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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
GENERAL

We are the largest integrated manufacturer and marketer of uncoated freesheet paper in North America and
the second largest in the world based on production capacity. We are also a manufacturer of papergrade, fluff and
specialty pulp. Through our subsidiaries, we design, manufacture, market and distribute a wide range of paper
products for a variety of customers, including merchants, retail outlets, stationers, printers, publishers, converters
and end-users. We have three business segments: Papers, Paper Merchants and Wood. We had revenues of
$5.9 billion in 2007, of which approximately 82% was from the Papers segment, approximately 14% was from
the Paper Merchants segment and approximately 4% was from the Wood segment.

Throughout this Annual Report on Form 10-K, unless otherwise specified, “Domtar Corporation,” “the
Company,” “Domtar,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Domtar Corporation, its subsidiaries, as well as its
investments. Unless otherwise specified, “Domtar Inc.” refers to Domtar Inc., a wholly-owned Canadian
subsidiary. Information regarding our recent developments is included in Part II, Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

under the caption “Recent Developments.”

OUR HISTORY

Domtar Corporation was incorporated on August 16, 2006 for the sole purpose of holding the Weyerhacuser
Fine Paper Business (the “Predecessor”) and consummating the combination of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper
Business with Domtar Inc. {the “Transaction”). The Predecessor was owned by Weyerhacuser Company
("“Weyerhaeuser”) prior to the completion of the Transaction on March 7, 2007. Domtar Corporation had no
operations prior to March 7, 2007 when, upon the completion of the Transaction, we became an independent
public holding company. Information regarding the Transaction is included in Part II, Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditions and Results of Operations of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
under the caption “The Transaction” and “Accounting for the Transaction.”

OUR CORPORATE STRUCTURE

At December 30, 2007, Domtar Corporation had a total of 471,169,959 shares of common stock issued and
outstanding and Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc., an indirectly owned subsidiary, had a total of
44,252,831 exchangeable shares issued and outstanding. These exchangeable shares are intended to be
substantially the economic eguivalent to shares of our common stock and are currently exchangeable at the
option of the holder on a one-for-one basis for shares of our common stock. As such, the total combined number
of common stock and exchangeable shares issued and outstanding was 515,422,790 at December 30, 2007. Our
common shares are traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Toronte Stock Exchange under the symbol
“UFS” and our exchangeable shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol “UFX.”
Information regarding our common stock and the exchangeable shares is included in Part II, Item 8, Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, under Note 20 “Shareholders’ Equity.”




The following chart summarizes our corporate structure.

At December 30, 2007

. 471,169,959
Domtar Corporation 4— i common stock

r

Domtar Enterprises Inc. Domtar Paper Company, LLC
(former Domtar inc. U.S. assets) {Predecessor U.S. assets)

Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. 44— 44,2528
exchangeable shares

Domtar Pulp and Paper Products Inc.
{Predecessor Canadian assets)

Domtar inc.
(Domtar Inc. Canadian assets}

OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS

We operate in the three reportable segments described below. Each reportable segment offers different
products and services and requires different technology and marketing strategies. The following summary briefly
describes the operations included in each of our reportable segments:

» Papers — represents the aggregation of the manufacturing and distribution of business, commercial
printing and publication, and converting and specialty papers, as well as pulp.

« Paper Merchants — involves the purchasing, warehousing, sale and distribution of our paper products
and those of other paper manufacturers. These products include business and printing papers and
certain industrial products.

*  Wood — comprises the manufacturing and marketing of lumber and wood-based value-added products
and the management of forest resources.




Fifty-two weeks ended  Fifty-three weeks ended  Fifty-two weeks ended
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS PER SEGMENT December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 25, 2005

{In millions of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Sales:
Papers ........c.cviiiiiiiiiiiii $5,116 $3,143 $3,074
Paper Merchants .................... 813 — —
Wood .......... .. . 304 234 338
Total for reportable segments .............. 6,233 3,377 3.412
Intersegment sales—Papers . ... ........ (235) — (2)
Intersegment sales—Paper Merchants . . . N — —
Intersegment sales—Wood ... ........ (50) (71 (143)
Consolidated sales . ... .......covvvinin... $5,947 $3,306 $3,267
Operating income (loss):
Papers .......... oo $ 321 $ (608) $ (492)
Paper Merchants .................... 13 —_ —
Wood ..o e (63) 52 (86)
Corporate ..........coviiiiineennnn. n — —
Total ...t £ 270 $ (556) 3 (578)
Segmented assets:
Papers ........... .. ... .o it $6,888 $3,033
Paper Merchants ,................... 108 —
Wood ... ... . 320 65
Corporate ..........ccoviiiiiineann, 432 —
Total ..o $7.748 $3,998

Information regarding our reportable segments is included in Part IT, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations as well as Item 8, Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data, under Note 24, of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Geographic information is also
included under Note 24 of the Financial Statements.

PAPERS

Our Operations

We are the largest integrated manufacturer and marketer of uncoated freesheet paper in North America and
the second largest in the world based on production capacity. In uncoated freesheet, we have 12 pulp and paper
mills in operation (nine in the United States and three in Canada) with an annual paper production capacity of
approximately 4.6 million tons of uncoated freesheet paper. In addition, we have an annual production capacity
of 238,000 tons of coated groundwood at our Columbus paper mill. Approximately 81% of our paper production
capacity is domestic and the remaining 19% is located in Canada. Our paper manufacturing operations are
supported by 17 converting and distribution operations including a network of 11 plants located offsite of our
paper making operations. Also, we have forms manufacturing operations at two of the offsite converting and
distribution operations and three stand-alone formis manufacturing operations.

We also manufacture and sell pulp in excess of our internal requirements and we purchase papergrade pulp
from third parties allowing us to optimize the logistics of our pulp capacity while reducing transporntation costs.
We have the capacity to sell approximately 1.5 million metric tonnes of pulp per year depending on market
conditions. Approximately 45% of our trade pulp production capacity is domestic and the remaining 55% is
located in Canada. Qur net pulp position, the amount of pulp produced and sold net of purchases from third
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parties, was approximately 1.1 million metric tonnes of pulp in 2007. We produce market pulp at our two
non-integrated pulp mills in Kamloops and Woodland, as well as at our pulp and paper mills in Dryden,
Espanola, Ashdown, Hawesville, and Windsor. Also, we produce fluff pulp at our Plymouth mill. We also have
pulping operations in Prince Albert and Lebel-sur-Quévillon that are not in operation.

The table below lists our operating pulp and paper mills and their annual production capacity.

Saleable
Production Facility Fiberline Pulp Capacity Paper Capacity Trade Pulp ®
#lines (‘000 ADMT) #machines (‘000ST) (‘000 ADMT)

Uncoated freesheet

Ashdown, Artkansas ......... ..., 3 810 4 933 86
Windsor, Quebec ....... ... ... . it 1 454 2 670 33
Hawesville, Kentucky ......................... 1 455 2 634 47
Plymouth, North Carolina ...................... 2 486 2 489 153
Kingsport, Tennessee . .......ooiiiinnnninann 1 272 1 425

Marlboro, South Carolina ...................... 1 356 1 391
Johnsonburg, Pennsylvania ..................... 1 231 2 374

Dryden, Ontario  ............. .. oovaiai.t, 1 319 1 151 197
Nekoosa, Wisconsin . ................ ... ... ... 1 162 3 167

Rothschild, Wisconsin ..... .. ... ... ... .. .. ... 1 60 1 147

Port Huron, Michigan ......................... — — 4 116

Espanola, Ontario ... ........ .ot 2 351 2 77 114
Total uncoated freesheet ................ ... .... 15 3,956 25 4,574 630
Coated groundwood

Columbus, Mississippi . .. ...cvvvvnnveeeinat 1 70 1 238 —
Total coated grandwood .. ........ ... ... ... ... 1 70 1 238 —
Pulp

Kamloops, British Columbia .................... 2 477 — — 477
Woodland, Maine .. ........ ... . i _l 368 —_ —_ 398
Total pulp . ... .. s 3 875 — — 8715
Total .. et 19 4,901 26 4,812 1,505
Pulppurchases ... ... ........................ 288
Netpulp ... 1,217

(1) Estimated third-party shipments dependent upon market conditions.

Our Raw Materials

The manufacturing of pulp and paper requires wood fiber, chemicals and energy. We outline below details
of these three major raw materials used in our manufacturing operations.

Wood Fiber
United States pulp and paper mills

The fiber used by our pulp and paper mills in the United States is primarily hardwood and secondarily
softwood, both are readily available in the market from multiple third-party sources. The mills obtain fiber from
a variety of sources, depending on their location. These sources include a combination of long-term supply
contracts, wood lot management arrangements, advance stumpage purchases and spot market purchases.
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Canadian pulp and paper milis

The fiber used at our Windsor pulp and paper mill is hardwood originating from a variety of sources,
including purchases on the open market in Canada and the United States, contracts with Quebec wood producers’
marketing boards, public land where we have wood fiber harvesting rights and Domtar’s private lands. Our
Espanola and Dryden pulp and paper mills, which consurne both hardwood and softwood, obtain fiber from third
parties or directly or indirectly from public lands, either through designated wood harvesting rights for the pulp
mills or from our Ontario sawmills. The fiber used at our Kamloops pulp mill is all softwood, originating from
third-party sawmilling operations in the southern part of the British Columbia interior.

Cutting rights on public lands related to our pulp and paper mills in Canada represent about
0.8 million cubic meters of softwood and 1.3 million cubic meters of hardwood, for a total of 2.1 million cubic
meters of wood per year. Access to harvesting of fiber on public lands in Ontario and Quebec is subject to review
by the respective governmental authorities.

During 2007, the cost of wood fiber relating to our Papers business comprised approximately 19% of the
aggregate amount of costs of sales.

Chemicals

We use various chemical compounds in our pulp and paper manufacturing facilities that are purchased
primarily on a central basis through contracts varying in general between one to twelve years in length to ensure
product availability. Most of the contracts have pricing that fluctuates based on prevailing market conditions. For
pulp manufacturing, we use numerous chemicals including caustic soda, sodium chlorate, sulfuric acid, lime,
peroxide and liquid oxygen. For paper manufacturing, we also use several chemical products including starch,
precipitated calcium carbonate, optical brighteners, dyes and aluminum sulfate.

During 2007, the cost of chemicals comprised approximately 12% of the aggregate amount of costs of sales.

Energy

Our operations consume substantial amounts of fossil fuel including natural gas, fuel oil, coal and hog fuel
as well as electricity. We purchase substantial portions of the fuel we consume under supply contracts. Under
most of these contracts, suppliers are committed to provide quantities within pre-determined ranges that provide
us with our needs for a particular type of fuel at a specific facility. Most of the contracts have pricing that
fluctuates based on prevailing market conditions. Natural gas, fuel oil, coal and hog fuel are consumed primarily
to produce steam that is used in the manufacturing process and, to a lesser extent, to provide direct heat to be
used in the chemical recovery process. We provide about 68% of the energy required to produce steam internally
through our recovery boilers and cogeneration assets with the remaining fuel purchased in the form of bark,
natural gas, oil and coal.

We own power generating assets, including steam turbines, at thirteen locations: Ashdown, Dryden, Espanola,
Hawesville, Johnsonburg, Kamloops, Kingsport, Nekoosa, Plymouth, Port Huren, Rothschild, Windsor and Woodland,
as well as hydro assets at five locations: Espanola, Gatineau, Nekoosa, Woodland and Rothschild. Electricity is
primarily used to drive motors and other equipment, as well as provide lighting. Approximately 69% of our electric
power requirements are produced internally. We purchase the balance of our power requirements from local utilities.

During 2007, energy costs relating to our Papers business comprised approximately 8% of the aggregate
amount of costs of sales.

Our Product Offering and Go-to-Market Strategy

Our uncoated freesheet papers and coated groundwood papers are used for business, commercial printing
and publication, and converting and specialty applications.
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Business papers include copy and electronic imaging papers, which are used with ink jet and laser printers,
photocopiers and plain-paper fax machines, as well as computer papers, preprinted forms and digital papers.
These products are primarily for office and home use. Business papers accounted for approximately 43% of our
shipments of paper products in 2007,

Our commercial printing and publication papers include uncoated freesheet papers, such as offset papers and
opaques and coated groundwood. These uncoated freesheet grades are used in sheet and roll fed offset presses
across the spectrum of commercial printing end-uses, including digital printing. Our publication papers include
tradebook and lightweight uncoated papers used primarily in book publishing applications such as textbooks,
dictionaries, catalogs, magazines, hard cover novels and financial documents. Design papers, a sub-group of
commercial printing and publication papers, have distinct features of color, brightness and texture and are
targeted towards graphic artists, design and advertising agencies, primarily for special brochures and annual
reports. Coated groundwood papers are used primarily in magazines, catalogs and inserts. Commercial printing
and publication papers accounted for approximately 35% of our shipments of paper products in 2007.

We also produce paper for several converting and specialty markets. These converting and specialty papers
consist primarily of base papers that are converted into finished products, such as envelopes, tablets, business forms
and data processing/computer forms and base stock used by the flexible packaging industry in the production of
food and medical packaging and other specialty papers for various other industrial applications, including base stock
for sandpaper, base stock for medical gowns, drapes and packaging, as well as transfer paper for printing processes.
We also participate in several converting grades for specialty and security applications. These converting and
specialty papers accounted for approximately 22% of our shipments of paper products in 2007.

The chart below illustrates our main paper products and their applications.

Converting and
Category Business Papers Commercial Printing and Publication Papers Specialty Papers
Coated
Ty_pe Uncoated Freesheet Groundwood Uncoated Freesheet
Grade Copy Premium Offset Opaques No.5 Business converting
imaging /  Colors Premium Coated Flexible packaging
technology  Index opaques Abrasive papers
papers Tag Text, cover Decorative papers
Bristol and writing Imaging papers
Lightweight Label papers
Tradebook Medical disposables
Application Photocopies Commercial  Stationary Catalogs Forms & envelopes
Office Printing Brochures Magazines  Food & Candy wrappings
documents Direct mail  Annual Direct mail ~ Surgical gowns
Presentations Pamphlets reports Cards Repositionable note pads
Brochures Books Posters Security check papers

Catalogs Packaging

Qur customer service personnel work closely with sales, marketing and production staff to provide service
and support to merchants, converters, end-users, stationers, printers and retailers. We promote our products
directly to end-users and others who influence paper purchasing decisions in order to enhance brand recognition
and increase product demand. In addition, our sales representatives work closely with mill-based new product
development personnel and undertake joint marketing initiatives with customers in order 1o better understand
their businesses and needs and to support their future requirements.

We seli business papers primarily to paper merchants, office equipment manufacturers, stationers and retail
outlets. We distribute uncoated commercial printing and publicalion papers to end-users and commercial printers,
mainly through paper merchants, as well as selling directly to converters. We sell our converting and specialty
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products mainly to converters, who apply a further production process such as coating, laminating, folding or
waxing to our papers before selling them to a variety of specialized end-users. We distributed approximately
49% of our paper products in 2007 through a large network of paper merchants operating throughout North
America, one of which we own (sce “—Paper Merchants™). Paper merchants, who sell our products to their own
customers, represent our largest group of customers. Qur ten largest paper customers represented approximately
55% of our 2007 Paper business sales or 46% of our total sales in 2007. The sales to our largest customer, Office
Depot, amounted to 10% of our total sales in 2007. The majority of our customers purchase products through
individual purchase orders. In 2007, approximately 84% of our paper sales were domestic, 9% were in Canada,
and 7% were in other countries.

We sell market pulp to customers in North America mainly through a North American sales force while
sales to most overseas customers are made directly or through commission agents. We maintain pulp supplies at
strategically located warehouses, which allow us to respond to orders on short notice. In 2007, approximately
33% of our sales of market pulp were domestic, 4% were in Canada, 4% were in Mexico and 59% were overseas.

The chart below illustrates our channels of distribution for our paper products.

Converting
and
Commercial Printing and Specialty
Category Business Papers Publication Papers Papers
Domtar sells to: Merchants Office Retailers  Merchants Converters End-Users Converters
! Equipment 1 l l 4
Manufacturers /
Stationers
L
Customer sells to: Printers / Retailers / Printers /  Printers/  Merchants / End-users
Retailers / Stationers / End-users Converters/ Retailers
End-users End-users End-users
PAPER MERCHANTS

Our Operations

Our Paper Merchants business involves the purchasing, warehousing, sale and distribution of our products
and those of other manufacturers, Products include business, printing and publishing papers and certain industrial
products. These products are sold to a wide and diverse customer base, which includes small, medium and large
commercial printers, publishers, quick copy firms, catalog and retail companies and institutional entities.

Our paper merchants operate in the United States and Canada under a single banner and umbrella name, the
Domtar Distribution Group. Ris Paper operates throughout the Northeast, Mid-Atlantic and Midwest areas from
20 locations in the United States, including 16 distribution centers serving customers in over 18 states. The
Canadian business operates as Buntin Reid in three locations in Ontario; JBR/La Maison du Papier in
two locations in Quebec; and The Paper House from two locations in Atlantic Canada.

Sales are executed by our sales force, based at branches strategically located in served markets, We
distribute about 53% of our paper sales from our own warehouse distribution system and about 47% of our paper
sales through mill-direct deliveries (i.e., delivertes directly from manufacturers, including ourselves, to our
customers).
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The table below lists all of our Domtar Distribution Group locations.

JBR / La Maison

RIS Paper Buntin Reid du Papier The Paper House
Eastern Region MidWest Region Ontario, Canada Quebec, Canada Atlantic, Canada
Albany, New York Cincinnati, Ohio London, Ontario  Montreal, Quebec Dartmouth, Nova Scotia
Boston, Massachusetts Cincinnati, Ohio (I.T.) Ottawa, Ontario  Quebec City, Quebec  Mt. Pearl, Newfoundland
Buffato, New York Cleveland, Ohio Toronto, Ontario
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania  Columbus, Ohio
Hartford, Connecticut Covington, Kentucky

Lancaster, Pennsylvania  Dayton, Ohio
New York, New York Dallas/Forth Worth, Texas
Philadelphia, Fort Wayne, Indiana
Pennsylvania Indianapelis, Indiana
Southport, Connecticut Kalamazoo, Michigan
Washington, DC/
Baltimore, Maryland

Qur Raw Materials

The distribution business sells annually over 0.8 million tons of paper, forms and industrial/packaging
products from over 60 suppliers located around the world. Domtar products represent approximately 39% of the
total.

Our Product Offering and Go-to-Market Strategy

Our product offerings addresses a broad range of printing, publishing, imaging, advertising, consumer and
industrial needs and are comprised of uncoated, coated and specialized papers and industrial products. Our
go-to-market strategy is to serve numerous segments of the commercial printing, publishing, retail, wholesale,
catalog and industrial markets with logistics and services tailored to the needs of our customers. In 2007,
approximately 69% of our sales were made in the United States and 31% were made in Canada.

wOoO0D

Our Operations

Our Wood business comprises the manufacturing, marketing and distribution of lumber and wood-based
value-added products, and the management of forest resources. We operate five sawmills with a production
capacity of approximately 660 million board feet of tlumber and one remanufacturing facility. In addition, we
own six sawmills that are currently not in operation but have an aggregate production capacity of approximately
796 million board feet of lumber. We also have investments in five companies, one of which is not in operation.
We seek to optimize the 28 million acres of forestland we directly license or own in the United States and
Canada through efficient management and the application of certified sustainable forest management practices to
help ensure that a continuous supply of wood is available for future needs. Additional information regarding our
Wood business is included in Part II, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations of this Annual report on Form 10-K, under the caption “Recent Developments.”
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The table below lists all of our sawmills and their annual production capacity.

Annuzl Wood Capacity
MFBM)

Production facilities Province (MF

Operating sawmills:

EarFalls ... .. e Ontario 190
Val d Or . e Quebec 160
Timmins . ... e Ontario 140
Matagami . .......... . e Quebec 100
Ste-Marie ... . e e e, Quebec 70
Total capacity of operating sawmills 660
Remanufacturing facility
Sullivan . ... e Quebec 15
Non-operating sawmills:
Big River ... .. e Saskatchewan 250
Lebel-sur-Quévillon .. .. ... ... . .. . .. i e Quebec 140
Naim Centre ... ...t i it Ontario 130
White River .. ... .. e e Ontario 110
Malartic . ... o i i e e e Quebec 86
Grand-Remous . ....... .. . Quebec _80
Total capacity of non-operating sawmills 796

The following table lists our investments.

Investments Province Ownership
Bl ke . e e e e Ontario 66%
Wapawekka (0 e Saskatchewan 51%
GOBAMA . . ...ttt e e Ontario 50%
Anthony Domtar ... ... .. e Ontario 50%
Haavalsdrud ... ... . e e e Ontario 25%

(1) Not in operation

Qur Raw Materials
Wood Fiber

Fiber costs, net of revenues from wood chip sales, represents approximately 50% of our total manufacturing
costs in the wood business or 1% of the aggregate amount of cost of sales. In Quebec, our annual allowable
softwood harvesting amounts to approximately 1.7 million cubic meters and is granted by the Ministry of Natural
Resources (Quebec). We obtain most of the wood fiber required for our northern Quebec sawmilling operations
either directly or indirectly from these harvesting rights. Additional information regarding wood fiber availability
in Quebec is included in Part II, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and
Results of Operations of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, under the caption “Fiber Supply.”

In Ontario, our annual allowable softwood harvesting on public lands amounts to approximately 2.8 million
cubic meters pursuant to Sustainable Forest Licenses that have been granted by the Ontario Ministry of Natural
Resources. We obtain most of the wood fiber required for our northern Ontario sawmilling operations either
directly or indirectly from these harvesting rights. The remaining required fiber is either harvested from our
private lands, or purchased under various contractual arrangements and on the open market.
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All wood fiber received by Domtar mills must conform to Domtar's Fiber Use and Sourcing Policy, which
forbids the inclusion of fiber that is illegally harvested, derived from improperly managed High Conservation
Value Forests, harvested without respect for aboriginal communities, or is genetically engineered. Further,
67% of Domtar’s Ontario and Quebec timber supply area is currently third-party certified, with 53% of the total
supply area certified to the Forestry Stewardship Council (“FSC”) standards. Domtar’s goal is to reach
100% certification of all lands under its control by the FSC, and to have all of its wood suppliers conform to the
FSC Controlled Wood Standard.

Energy

Our wood operations require the use of two types of energy: electric energy is used to operate our
manufacturing machinery and fossil fuel is used for the drying of wood. The type of fossil fuel used to dry the
wood varies among our sawmills and depends on the technology available. Some of our assets operate with
energy produced through residual products such as bark, sawdust and shavings. The use of our own products in
the production of energy results in lower energy costs. In other sawmills, we use fuel oil, natural gas and
propane.

Our Product Offering and Go-to-Market Strategy

We produce primarily dimensional lumber used in the construction industry and our offerings include a
variety of grades of kiln-dried softwood lumber, produced mainly from black spruce and jack pine known for
their strength, stability, light weight and good workability. Most of our production capacity is used to produce
studs and random length lumber in dimensions of 2 inches by 3 inches through 2 inches by 10 inches in lengths
of 8 feet to 16 feet. We also manufacture quality #1 and #2 wood, utility quality #3 wood, economic wood as
well as “rough” wood that we sell green and dried. We also manufacture a wide variety of value-added products
including MSR 2100, MSR 1650, Premium, Select and Mid-line.

We sell substantially all of our softwood lumber through our sales office in Montreal to a wide range of
retailers, distributors, manufacturers and wholesalers in the United States and Canada who sell to end-users. These
wood products are consumed in the home construction, renovation and industrial markets. Our marketing efforts for
lumber products are focused on providing our customers with efficient value-added supply chain integration, in
order to achieve a high level of customer satisfaction and a balanced and diversified customer base for our products.
In 2007, approximately 70% of our lumber sales were made in the United States and 30% were made in Canada.

Our ten biggest clients represented approximately 48% of our sales in 2007. None of these clients
represented 10% or more of our total sales in 2007.

OUR COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

We believe that our competitive strengths provide a solid foundation for the execution of our business
strategy:

Leading market position. We are the largest integrated manufacturer and marketer of uncoated freesheet
paper in North America and the second largest in the world based on production capacity. This leading market
position provides us with key competitive advantages, including economies of scale, wider sales and marketing
coverage and a broad product offering, such as business, printing and publishing and converting and specialty
paper grades.

Efficient and cost-competitive assets. Qur papers business is comprised of a mix of assets which allow us to
be a low-cost producer of high volume papers and an efficient producer of value-added specialty papers. Our six
largest mills focus on production of high volume copy and offset papers while the others focus on the production
of value-added paper products where quality, flexibility and service are key determinants. Most of our paper
production is at mills with integrated pulp production and cogeneration facilities, reducing their exposure to price
volatility for purchased pulp and energy.
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Proximity to customers. We have a broad distribution and manufacturing footprint completed by converting
and distribution operations located across North America. This proximity to customers provides opportunities for
enhanced customer service and the minimization of freight distance, response time and delivery cost, which
conslitute key competitive advantages, particularly in the high volume copy and offset paper grades market
segment. Customer proximity also allows for just-in-time delivery of high demand paper products in less than
48 hours to most major North American cities.

Strong franchise with attractive service solutions. We sell paper to multiple market segments through a
variety of channels, including paper merchants, converters, retail companies and publishers throughout North
America. In addition, we maintain a strong market presence through our ownership of the Domtar Distribution
Group. We will build on those positions by maximizing our strengths with centralized planning capability and
supply-chain management solutions.

High quality products with strong brand recognition. We enjoy a strong reputation for producing high
quality paper products and market some of the most recognized and preferred papers in North America, including
a wide range of business and commercial printing paper brands, such as Cougar®, Lynx® Opaque, Husky®
Offset, First Choice®, and Domtar EarthChoice® Office Paper, part of a family of environmentally and socially
responsible paper,

Experienced management team with proven integration expertise. Our management team has significant
experience and a record of success in the North American paper industry, including with respect to business
integration issues. To support the management team, we believe our employees’ expertise and know-how help
create operational efficiencies and enable us to deliver improved profitability from our manufacturing operations.

OUR STRATEGIC INITIATIVES AND FINANCIAL PRIORITIES

Our goal is to be recognized as the supplier of choice of branded and private branded paper products for
consumer channels, stationers, merchants, printers and converters in North America. We have implemented the
following business strategies in order to enhance cash flow and generate shareholder value:

* build customer loyalty and balance supply with demand;
» successfully integrate the combined businesses and optimize the operating platform;

* increase depth of product offerings including our offering of environmentally and ethically responsible
line of papers;

* deliver on synergies;
» focus on free cash flow generation and maintain financial discipline; and

= conduct operations in a sustainable way.

Build customer loyalty and balance supply and demand. We are building on the successful relationships that
the Predecessor and Domtar Inc. have developed with key customers to support their businesses and to provide
inventory reduction solutions through just-in-time delivery for the most-demanded products. We believe that we
are a supplier of choice for customers who seek competitively-priced paper products and services.

Successfully integrate the combined businesses and optimize the operating platform. We believe that the
combination of the Predecessor and Domtar Inc. represents a strategic fit because of the similarity of both their
fine paper offerings in uncoated freesheet grades and their geographic presence. Qur integration efforts have been
focused on providing a single face to our customers, utilizing our greater sales and marketing coverage to
enhance customer service, and achieving synergies. The combination provides an opportunity to combine the
operational strengths and best practices of two of the industry’s leading manufacturers. We are implementing
plans to improve our operating efficiency and cost structure and to achieve synergies within two years through a
combination of process optimization resulting in lower operating costs, reductions in transportation, logistics and
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purchasing costs, implementation of best-in-class business practices and reductions in sales and administrative
costs. We are also optimizing our distribution network, reviewing our organizational structure and consolidating
our regional centers and back-office functions where appropriate.

Increase depth of product offering including our offering of environmentally and ethically responsible line
of papers. We believe that we are delivering improved service to customers through increased depth of product
offerings and greater access to volume. We believe the development of EarthChoice®, our line of
environmentally and socially responsible paper, is providing a platform upon which to expand our offerings to
customers. The EarthChoice® line of papers, a product line endorsed and supported by leading environmental
groups, offers customers solutions and peace of mind through the use of a combination of Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) virgin fiber and recycled fiber. FSC is the certification recognized by environmentai groups as the
most stringent and is third-party audited.

Deliver on synergies. We have targeted $200 million of synergies from the Transaction to be achieved by
the end of March 2009. There are more than 650 synergy projects covering best-in-class practices, selling,
general and administration, transportation and logistics, process optimization, procurement and maintenance.
Given the success 10 date, we are optimistic that we will exceed our synergy goal of $200 million run rate by the
end of fiscal year 2008.

Focus on free cash flow generation and maintain financial discipline. We believe that value creation is
achieved by operating our assets efficiently and reducing manufacturing costs while managing our capital
expenditures effectively and minimizing working capital requirements to generate free cash flow.

Conduct operations in a Sustainable way. Customers and end-users as well as all stakeholders in
communities where we operate seek assurances from the pulp and paper industry that resources are managed in a
sustainable manner. We strive to provide these assurances by cenifying our forest, manufacturing and
distribution operations and we intend to subscribe to internationally recognized environmental management
systems, namely 1SO 14001.

OUR COMPETITION

The markets in which our businesses operate are highly competitive with well-established domestic and
foreign manufacturers.

In the Papers business, our paper production does not rely on proprietary processes or formulas, except in
highly specialized papers or customized products. In order to gain market share in uncoated frecsheet, we
compete primarily on the basis of product quality, breadth of offering, service solutions and competitively priced
paper products. We seek product differentiation through an extensive offering of high quality FSC-certified paper
products. While we have a leading position in the North American uncoated freesheet market, we also compete
with other paper grades, including coated freesheet and uncoated groundwood, and with electronic transmission
and document storage alternatives. As the use of these alternative products continues to grow, we may see a
decrease in the overall demand for paper products or shifts from one type of paper to another. All of our paper
manufacturing facilities are located in the United States or in Canada where we sell 93% of our papers. The five
largest manufacturers of uncoated freesheet papers in North America own approximately 80% of the total
production capacity. On a global basis, there are hundreds of manufacwrers that produce and sell uncoated
freesheet papers, ten of which have an annual production capacity of over 1 million tons. The level of
competitive pressures from foreign producers in the North American market is highly dependent upon exchange
rates including the rate between the U.S. dollar and the Euro.

The market pulp we sell is either hardwood or softwood and, to a lesser extent, fluff pulp. The pulp market
is highly fragmented with many manufacturers competing worldwide, some of whom have lower operating costs

than we do. Competition is primarily on the basis of access to low-cost wood fiber, product quality and prices.
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The pulp we sell is primarily slow growth northern bleached hardwood and softwood kraft, and we produce
specially engineered pulp grades with a pre-determined mix of wood species that go into the making of al! kinds
of papers, from business to specialty papers. We also seek product differentiztion through the certification of our
pulp mills to the FSC chain-of-custedy standard and the procurement of FSC-certified virgin fiber. All of our
market pulp production capacity is located in the United States or in Canada and we sell 59% of our pulp
overseas.

In Wood, we sell primarily Kiln-dried softwood lumber and other value added products. We are the 10
largest producer of lumber in North America with a production capacity of 1.5 MFBM and our competitors
include other major lumber producers, most of which are located in Eastern Canada. Competition is primarily on
the basis of access to low-cost fiber, service and prices. All of our lumber production capacity is located in
Canada and we sell 70% of our lumber to the United States, resulting in an exposure to currency fluctuations and
potentially subject to softwood lumber export taxes.

OUR EMPLOYEES

We have approximately 13,000 employees, of which approximately 56% are employed in the United States
and 44% in Canada. Approximately 69% of our employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements.

OUR APPROACH TO SUSTAINABILITY

We adopted our Statement on Sustainable Growth to govern our pathway to sustainability, from excellence in
corporate and ethical standards to product stewardship, Derived from our Statement, we define our actions under our
Code of Ethics, policies addressing health and safety, environment, forestry fiber procurement and others.

OUR ENVIRONMENTAL CHALLENGES

Qur business is subject to a wide range of general and industry-specific laws and regulations in the United
States and Canada relating to the protection of the environment, including those governing air emissions,
wastewater discharges, the storage, management and disposat of hazardous substances and wastes, contaminated
sites, landfill operation and closure obligations and health and safety matters. Compliance with these laws and
regulations is a significant factor in the operation of our business. We may encounter situations in which our
operations fail to maintain full compliance with applicable environmental requirements, possibly leading to civil
or criminal fines, penalties or enforcement actions, including those that could result in governmental or judicial
orders that stop or interrupt our operations or require us to take corrective measures at substantial costs, such as
the installation of additional pollution control equipment or other remedial actions.

Compliance with U.S. federal, state and local and Canadian federal and provincial environmental laws and
regulations involves capital expenditures as well as additional operating costs. For example, the United States
Environmental Protection Agency has promulgated regulations dealing with air emissions from pulp and paper
mills, including regulations on hazardous air pollutants that require use of maximum achievable control
technology and controls for pollutants that contribute to smog and haze. Additional information regarding
Environmental Matters is included in Part II, Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, under the section of Critical
accounting policies, caption “Environmental Matters and Other Asset Retirement Obligations.”

OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Many of our brand name paper products are protected by registered trademarks. Our key trademarks include
Cougar®, Lynx® Opaque, Husky® Offset, First Choice® and Domtar EarthChoice®. These brand names and
trademarks are important to the business. Our numerous trademarks have been registered in the United States
and/or in other countries where our products are sold. The current registrations of these trademarks are effective
for various periods of time. These trademarks may be renewed periodically, provided that we, as the registered
owner, and/or licensees comply with all applicable renewal requirements, including the continued use of the
trademarks in connection with similar goods.
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We own U.S. and foreign patents, some of which have expired or been abandoned, and have several pending
patent applications. Our management regards these patents and patent applications as important but does not
consider any single patent or group of patents to be materially important to our business as a whole.

In connection with the Transaction, we entered into a contribution and distribution agreement with
Weyerhaeuser and Domtar Paper Company, LLC, dated as of January 25, 2007 (as amended from time to time,
the “Contribution and Distribution Agrecment”). Under the terms of the Contribution and Distribution
Agreement and the intellectual property license agreement, we received a fully paid-up, royalty free,
non-exclusive license to use certain intellectual property and technology that is retained by Weyerhacuser.

INTERNET AVAILABILITY OF INFORMATION

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we incorporate by reference certain information contained in other
documents filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) and we refer you to such information.
We file annual, quarterly and current reports and other information with the SEC. You may read and copy any
materials we file with the SEC at the SEC's Public Reference Room at 100F Street, NE, Washington DC, 20549,
You may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling 1-800-SEC-0330. The
SEC maintains a website at www.sec.gov that contains our quarterly and current reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information we file electronically with the SEC. You may also access, free of charge, our
report filed with the SEC through our website. Reports filed or furnished to the SEC will be available as
reasonably practicable after they are filed or furnished to the SEC. The information contained on our website,
www.domtar.com, is not, and should in no way be construed as, a part of this or any other report that we filed
with or furnished to the SEC.

OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Raymond Royer, age 69, is the president, chief executive officer and a director of the Company. Mr. Royer
was president and chief executive officer and director of Domtar Inc. since joining Domtar Inc. in 1996. He is
also a director of Power Financial Corporation. Mr. Royer is an Officer of the Order of Canada, a Commander of
the Order of Léopold Il of Belgium and an Officer of the Ordre national du Quebec.

Marvin D. Cooper, age 64, has been executive vice-president and chief operating officer of the Company
since March 2007. Mr. Cooper was senior vice-president, cellulose fiber, white papers and containerboard
manufacturing and engineering of Weyerhaeuser from 2002 to 2006 when he stepped down to work full-time on
the Transaction. Prior to joining Weyerhaeuser in 2002, he held a number of executive positions with Willamette
Industries, Inc., including executive vice-president, pulp and paper mills from 1998 to 2002. His career in the
pulp and paper industry spans over 36 years. '

Daniel Buron, age 44, is the senior vice-president and chief financial officer of the Company. Mr. Buron
was senior vice-president and chief financial officer of Domtar Inc. since May 2004. He joined Domtar Inc. in
1999. Prior to May 2004 he was vice-president, finance, pulp and paper sales division and, prior to September
2002, he was vice-president and controller. He has over 19 years of experience in finance,

Steven A. Barker, age 54, is the senior vice-president, pulp and paper marketing of the Company. Mr. Barker
was senior vice-president pulp and paper sales and marketing of Domtar Inc. since December 2004. He joined
Domitar Inc. in 2000 following the acquisition of Ris Paper Company, Inc. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of Domtar
Inc. since 2000) where he held a number of executive positions. His career in the paper industry spans over
25 years.

Roger H. Brear, age 60, is the senior vice-president, southern region mills of the Company. Mr. Brear was
senior vice-president, paper manufacturing of Domtar Inc. since 2001 when he joined following the acquisition
of four U.S. paper mills from Georgia-Pacific Corporation, where he held various senior manufacturing
positions. His career in the paper industry spans over 33 years.
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Michel Dagenais, age 58, is the senior vice-president, human resources of the Company. Mr. Dagenais was
vice-president, human resources of Domtar Inc. since 2005. Previously, he was director, human resources of the
Forest Products Group since joining Domtar Inc. in 2001. During his career that spans over 36 years, he has held
various management and consulting positions in human resources and labor relations.

Ghislain Dinel, age 59, is the senior vice-president, northern region mills of the Company. Mr. Dinel was
vice-president, operations, optimization and technology of Domtar Inc. since 2004. Since joining Domtar Inc. in
1970, he has held various management positions in the pulp and paper operations. His career in the pulp and
paper industry spans over 37 years.

Michael Edwards, age 60, is the group senior vice-president, pulp and paper manufacturing of the Company,
Mr. Edwards was vice-president, fine paper manufacturing of Weyerhaeuser since 2002. Since joining
Weyerhaeuser in 1994, he has held various management positions in the pulp and paper operations. Prior to
Weyerhaeuser, Mr. Edwards worked at Domtar Inc. for 11 years. His career in the pulp and paper industry spans
over 44 years.

James F. Lenhoff, age 57, is the senior vice-president, Distribution of the Company. Mr. Lenhoff was the
senior vice-president, Domtar Distribution Group of Domtar Inc. since 2004. He joined Domtar Inc. in 2000
following the acquisition of Ris Paper Company Inc. where he was vice president, sales and marketing. His
career in the paper industry spans over 26 years.

Patrick Loulou, age 39, is the senior vice-president, corporate development since he joined the Company in
March 2007. Previously, he held a number of positions in the telecommunications sector, as well as in
management consulting. He has over 10 years experience in corporate strategy and business development.

Jean-Francois Mérette, age 41, is the senior vice-president, forest products of the Company. Mr., Mérette
was the vice-president, sawmills since he joined Domtar Inc. in 2005. Previously, he has held various
management positions with a major forest products company. His career in the forest products industry spans
over 16 years.

Bart Nicholson, age 48, is the senior vice-president, specialty mills and converting operations of the
Company. Mr. Nicholson was vice-president, fine paper converting operations since he joined Weyerhaeuser in
2002. Previously, he held various technical and management positions in the pulp and paper operations of
Willamette Industries, Inc. since 1981. His career in the pulp and paper industry spans over 26 years.

Yves L. Parent, age 54, is the senior vice-president, information technology of the Company since March
2007. He joined Domtar Inc. in 2005 as vice-president, information technology. He has over 25 years of
experience in IT management, including 15 years in the puip and paper industry and 10 years as senior director,
IT in an international manufacturing organization.

Gilles Pharand, age 63, is the senior vice-president, law and corporate affairs of the Company. Mr. Pharand
joined Domtar Inc. in 1970; and has been senior vice-president, corporate affairs since 1994 and general counsel
since 1986, being responsible for secretariat, environmental and legal affairs, communications and government
relations, internal audit and head office operations. His career in the pulp and paper industry spans over 37 years.

Richard L. Thomas, age 54, is the senior vice-president, sales of the Company. Mr. Thomas was vice-
president of fine papers of Weyerhaeuser since 2005. Prior to 2005, he was vice-president, business papers of
Weyerhaeuser. Mr., Thomas joined Weyerhaeuser in 2002 when Willamette Industries, Inc. was acquired by
Weyerhaecuser. At Willamette, he held various management positions in operations since joining in 1992.
Previously, he was with Champion International Corporation for 12 years.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The information included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K may contain forward-looking statements
relating to trends in, or representing management’s beliefs about, Domtar Corporation’s future growth, results of
operations, performance and business prospects and opportunities. These forward-looking statements are
generally denoted by the use of words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “expect,” “intend,” “aim,” “target,” “‘plan,”
“continue,” “estimate,” “project,” “may,” “will,” *should” and simifar expressions. These stalements reflect
management’s current beliefs and are based on information currently available to management. Forward-looking
statements are necessarily based upon a number of estimates and assumptions that, while considered reasonable
by management, are inherently subject to known and unknown risks and uncertainties and other factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially from historical results or those anticipated. Accordingly, no assurances
can be given that any of the events anticipated by the forward-looking statements will occur, or if any occurs,
what effect they will have on Domtar Corporation’s results of operations or financial condition. These factors
include, but are not limited to:

"t Gé LT

+ the effect of general economic conditions, particularly in the U.S. and Canada;

+ market demand for Domtar Corporation’s products, which may be tied to the relative strength of
various U.S. and/or Canadian business segments;

= product selling prices;
+ raw material prices, including wood fiber, energy and chemical;

» performance of Domtar Corporation’s manufacturing operations, including unexpected maintenance
requirements;

+ the successful integration of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business with Domtar Inc. and the ability to
realize anticipated cost savings;

* the level of competition from domestic and foreign producers;

s the effect of forestry, land use, environmental and other governmental regulations, and changes in
accounting regulations;

« the effect of weather and the risk of loss from fires, floods, windstorms, hurricanes and other natural
disasters;

« transportation costs;
= the loss of current customers or the inability to obtain new customers;
» legal proceedings;

+ changes in asset valuations, including write downs of property, plant and equipment, inventory,
accounts receivable or other assets for impairment or other reasons;

s changes in currency exchange rates, particularly the relative value of the U.S. dollar to the Canadian
dollar;

« the effect of timing of retirements and changes in the market price of Domtar Corporation’s common
stock on charges for stock-based compensation;

« performance of pension fund investments and related derivatives; and
«  the other factors described under “Risk Factors,” in item LA of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
You are cautioned not to unduly rely on such forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date
made, when evaluating the information presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Unless specifically

required by law, Domtar Corporation assumes no obligation to update or revise these forward-looking statements
to reflect new events or circumstances.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below in addition to the other information presented in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Some of the following risks relate principally to the Company’s business and
the industry in which it operates, while others relate principally to the Transaction.

RISKS TO THE INDUSTRIES AND BUSINESSES OF THE COMPANY

The pulp, paper and wood product industries are highly cyclical. Fluctuations in the prices of and the demand
for the Company’s products could result in smaller profit margins and lower sales volumes.

The pulp, paper and wood product industries are highly cyclical. Historically, economic and market shifts,
fluctuations in capacity and changes in foreign currency exchange rates have created cyclical changes in prices,
sales volume and margins for the Company’s products. The length and magnitude of industry cycles have varied
over time and by product, but generally reflect changes in macroeconomic conditions and levels of industry
capacity. Most of the Company’s paper products are commodities that are widely available from other producers.
Even the Company’s non-commodity products, such as value-added papers, are susceptible to commodity
dynamics. Because commodity preducts have few distinguishing qualities from producer to producer,
competition for these products is based primarily on price, which is determined by supply relative to demand.

The overall levels of demand for the products the Company manufactures and distributes, and consequently
its sales and profitability, reflect fluctuations in levels of end-user demand, which depend in part on general
macroeconomic conditions in North America and worldwide, as well as competition from electronic substitution.
See—"Some of the Company’s products are vulnerable to long-term declines in demand due to competing
technologies or materials.” For example, demand for cul-size office paper may fluctuate with levels of white-
collar employment. Demand for many such products was materially and negatively impacted by the global
economic downturn, among other things, in the early part of this decade, and the Company expects that it will be
susceptible to such downtums in the future,

Industry supply of pulp, paper and wood products is also subject to fluctuation, as changing industry
conditions can influence producers to idle or permanently close individual machines or entire mills. Such
closures can result in significant cash and/or non-cash charges. In addition, to avoid substantial cash costs in
connection with idling or closing a mill, some producers will choose 1o conlinue to operate at a loss, sometimes
even a cash loss, which could prolong weak pricing environments duoe to oversupply. Oversupply can also result
from producers introducing new capacity in response to favorable short-term pricing trends,

Industry supply of pulp, paper and wood products is also influenced by overseas production capacity, which
has grown in recent years and is expected to continue to grow. While the weakness of the U.S. dollar has
mitigated the levels of imports in recent years, imports of pulp, paper and wood products from overseas may
increase, putting downward pressure on prices.

As a result, prices for all of the Company’s products are driven by many factors outside of its control, and it
has little influence over the timing and extent of price changes, which are often volatile. Because market
conditions beyond the Company’s centrol determine the prices for its commeodity products, the price for any one
or more of these products may fall below its cash production costs, requiring the Company to either incur cash
losses on product sales or cease production at one or more of its manufacturing facilities. The Company
continues to evaluate potential adjustments to its production capacity, which may include additional closures of
machines or entire mills, and the Company could recognize significant cash and/or non-cash charges relating to
any such closures in future periods. Therefore, the Company’s profitability with respect to these products
depends on managing its cost structure, particularly wood fiber, chemical and energy costs, which represent the
largest components of its operating costs and can fluctuate based upon factors beyond its control, as described
below. If the prices of or demand for its products decline, or if its wood fiber, chemical or energy costs increase,
or both, its sales and profitability could be materially and adversely affected.
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Some of the Company’s products are vulnerable to long-term declines in demand due to competing technologies
or materials.

The Company’s business competes with electronic transmission and document storage alternatives, as well
as with paper grades it does not produce, such as uncoated groundwood. As a result of such competition, the
Company has experienced decreased demand for some of its existing pulp and paper products. As the use of
these alternatives grows, demand for pulp and paper products is likely to further decline. Moreover, demand for
some of the Company’s wood products may decline if customers purchase alternatives products.

The Company faces intense competition in its markets, and the failure to compete effectively would have a
material adverse effect on its business and results of aperations.

The Company competes with both U.S. and Canadian paper producers and, for many of its product lines,
global producers, some of which may have greater financial resources and lower production costs than the
Company. The principal basis for competition is selling price. The Company’s ability to maintain satisfactory
margins depends in large part on its ability to control its costs. The Company cannot assure you that it can
compete effectively and maintain current levels of sales and profitability. If the Company cannot compete
effectively, such failure will have a material adverse effect on its business and results of operations,

The Company's intellectual property rights are valuable, and any inability to protect them could reduce the value
of its products and its brands.

The Company relies on patent, trademark, and other intellectual property laws of the United States and other
countries to protect its intellectual property rights. However, the Company may be unable to prevent third parties
from using its respective intellectual property without its authorization, which may reduce any competitive
advantage it has developed. If the Company had to litigate to protect these rights, any proceedings could be costly,
and it may not prevail. The Company cannot guarantee that any United States or foreign patents, issued or pending,
will provide it with any competitive advantage or will not be challenged by third parties. Additionally, the Company
has obtained and applied for United States and foreign trademark registrations, and will continue to evaluate the
registration of additional service marks and trademarks, as appropriate. The Company cannot guarantee that any of
its pending patent or trademark applications will be approved by the applicable governmental authorities and, even
if the applications are approved, third parties may seek to oppose or otherwise challenge these registrations. The
failure to secure any pending patent or trademark applications may limit the Company’s ability to protect the
intellectual property rights that these applications were intended to cover.

The Company's manufacturing businesses may have difficulty obtaining wood fiber at Sfavorable prices, or at all.

Wood fiber is the principal raw material used by the Company, comprising approximately 19% of the
aggregate amount of cost of sales during 2007. Wood fiber is a commodity, and prices historically have been
cyclical. The primary source for wood fiber is timber. Environmental litigation and regulatory developments
have caused, and may cause in the future, significant reductions in the amount of timber available for commercial
harvest in the United States and Canada. In addition, future domestic or foreign legislation and litigation
concerning the use of timberlands, the protection of endangered species, the promotion of forest health and the
response to and prevention of catastrophic wildfires could also affect timber supplies. Availability of harvested
timber maybe further limited by fire, insect infestation, discase, ice storms, wind storms, flooding and other
natural and man made causes, thereby reducing supply and increasing prices. Wood fiber pricing is subject to
regional market influences, and the Company’s cost of wood fiber may increase in particular regions due to
market shifts in those regions. Any sustained increase in wood fiber prices would increase the Company’s
operating costs, and the Company may be unable to increase prices for its products in response to increased wood
fiber costs due to additional factors affecting the demand or supply of these products.

The Province of Quebec adopted legislation, which became effective April 1, 2005, that reduced allowable
wood-harvesting volumes by an average of 20% on public lands and 25% on territories covered by an agreement
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between the Government of Quebec and the Cree First Nations. As a result, the amount of fiber, primarily
softwood fiber, the Company is permitted to harvest annually, under its existing licenses from the Quebec
government, was reduced by approximately 500,000 cubic meters to approximately 1.8 million cubic meters,
reflecting a 21% reduction. The Chief Forester of Quebec has proposed a further reduction of 55,000 cubic
meters, or 3%, of the total softwood annual allowable cut of forests managed by the Company. The reduction will
be effective from April 2008 to March 2009 and would significantly affect the supply of fiber for the Company’s
Northern Quebec softwood sawmill and market pulp operations. In addition, on October i, 2007 Domtar Inc.
received written notice from the Minister of Natural Resources and Wildlife for the province of Quebec
purporting to revoke, effective September 14, 2007, Domtar Inc.’s forest license rights relating to its Grand
Remous and Malartic sawmills representing approximately 567,000 cubic meters of fiber on an annual basis.
While we are currently seeking the reinstatement of these license rights through formal legal proceedings, there
is no assurance that we will be successful and we may lose these forest license rights permanently. The reduction
in harvest volume would also result in a corresponding increase in the unit cost of wood delivered to the
sawmills. In addition, as a result of the impact of the strength of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar, low
lumber prices and other factors, a significant portion of the Company’s wood fiber harvesting operations in
Quebec have been shut down and all but two, Val d’Or and Matagami, of the facilities related to such operations
have been closed indefinitely. As a result of the reduced availability, the Company may face increased costs in
purchasing, and have difficulty locating wood fiber sufficient to satisfy ils requirements.

Historically, Weyerhaeuser provided, on average, approximately 45% of the Weyerhacuser Fine Paper
Business’ wood fiber requirements, which is approximately 19% of the Company’s wood fiber requirements. The
Company currently obtains its wood fiber requirements in part by harvesting timber pursuant to its forest licenses
and forest management agreements, in part by purchasing wood fiber from Weyerhaeuser pursuant to the fiber
and pulp supply agreements entered into in connection with the Transaction, which expire between 2008 and
2027, and in part by purchasing wood fiber from third parties. If the Company's cutting rights, pursuant to its

_ forest licenses or forest management agreements, are reduced or if Weyerhaeuser or any third-party supplier of
wood fiber stops selling or is unable to sell wood fiber to the Company, its financial condition and operating
could be materially and adversely affected.

An increase in the cost of the Company's purchased energy or chemicals would lead to higher manufacturing
costs, thereby reducing its margins.

The Company’s operations consume substantial amounts of energy such as electricity, natural gas, fuel oil,
coa) and hog fuel. Energy comprised approximately 8% of the aggregate amount of cost of sales in 2007. Energy
prices, particularly for electricity, natural gas and fuel oil, have been volatile in recent years and currently exceed
historical averages. As a result, fluctuations in energy prices will impact the Company’s manufacturing costs and
contribute to earnings volatility. While the Company purchases substantial portions of its energy under supply
contracts, many of these contracts are based on market pricing.

Other raw materials the Company uses include various chemical compounds, such as precipitated calcium
carbonate, sodium chlorate and sodium hydroxide, sulfuric acid, dyes, peroxide, methanol and aluminum sulfate,
Purchases of chemicals comprised approximately 12% of the aggregate amount of cost of sales in 2007. The
costs of these chemicals have been volatile historically, and are influenced by capacity utilization, energy prices
and other factors beyond the Company’s control. Chemical prices have been increasing although the impact has
been partially mitigated by long term purchasing contracts that reflect our increased purchasing power.

Due to the commodity nature of the Company’s products, the relationship between industry supply and
demand for these products, rather than changes in the cost of raw materials, will determine the Company’s ability
to increase prices. Consequently, the Company may be unable to pass on increases in its operating costs to its
customers. Any sustained increase in chemical or energy prices without any comresponding increase in product
pricing would reduce the Company’s operating margins and potentially require it to limit or cease operations of
one or more of its machines.
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The Company could experience disruptions in operations and/or increased labor costs due to labor disputes.

Employees at 44 of the Company’s facilities, a majority of the Company’s 13,000 employees, are
represented by unions through collective bargaining agreements, generally on a facility-by-facility basis, which
will expire between 2008 and 2012. Currently six collective bargaining agreements are up for renegotiation of
which only three are currently under negotiation. The Company may not be able to negotiate acceptable new
collective bargaining agreements, which could result in strikes or work stoppages or other labor dispules by
affected workers. Renewal of collective bargaining agreements could also result in higher wages or benefits paid
to union members. In addition, labor organizing activities could occur at any of the Company’s facilities.
Therefore, the Company could experience a disruption of its operations or higher ongoing labor costs, which
could have a material adverse effect on its business and financial condition.

In connection with the Company’s restructuring efforts, the Company has suspended operations at, or closed
or announced its intention to close, various facilities and may incur liability with respect to affected employees,
which could have a material adverse effect on its business or financial condition. In addition, the Company
continues to evaluate potential adjustments to its production capacity, which may include additional closures of
machines or entire milts, and the Company could recognize significant cash and/or non-cash charges relating to
any such closures in the future.

In the early part of 2006, Weyerhaeuser closed its pulp and paper mill in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan, which
the Company acquired in the Transaction, which remains closed. Certain unionized parties filed a grievance against
Weyerhaeuser following the shut down, alleging that certain post-closure actions taken by Weyerhaeuser violated
their collective bargaining agreement. In particular, the union disputed Weyerhaeuser's post-closure contracting
with a third-party vendor to oversee on-site security al Prince Albert. In connection with the Transaction, the
Company has assumed any liability with respect to this grievance. In November 2007, the Company was informed
that the Government of Saskatchewan was not prepared to participate in the financing and redevelopment of the
Prince Albert facility into a Northern Bleached Softwood Kraft pulp mill producing 100% Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) certified softwood pulp for the North America and offshore markets, as set forth in the memorandum
of understanding signed on September 12, 2007. As such, the Company has not determined whether this facility will
be reopened, sold or closed. In a separate grievance related to the closure of the Prince Albert facility, which could
result in liability in excess of $20 million, the union is claiming that it is entitled to the accumulated pension benefits
during the actual layoff period because, according to the union, a majority of employees retained still had recall
rights during the layoff. The Company is currently evaluating its position with respect to these grievances and
cannot be certain that it will not incur liability, which could be material, with respect to these grievances.

The Company relies heavily on a small number of significant customers, including one customer that represented
approximately 10% of the Company's sales in 2007. A loss of any of these significant customers could materially
adversely affect the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations.

The Company heavily relies on a smatl number of significant customers. The Company'’s largest customer is
Office Depot. Office Depot was historically a major customer of the Weyerhacuser Fine Paper Business and
Willamette Industries. A significant reduction in sales to any of the Company’s key customers, including Office
Depot (which could be due to factors outside its control, such as purchasing diversification) or financial
difficulties experienced by these customers, could materially adversely affect the Company’s business, financial
cendition or results of operations.

A material disruption at one of the Company's manufacturing facilities could prevent it from meeting customer
demand, reduce its sales and/or negatively impact its net income.

Any of the Company’s pulp or paper manufacturing facilities, or any of its machines within an otherwise
operational facility, could cease operations unexpectedly due to a number of events, including:

» unscheduled maintenance outages,;

» prolonged power failures;
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» equipment failure;

* chemical spill or release;

= explosion of a boiler;

* the effect of a drought or reduced rainfall on its water supply;

* labor difficulties;

= disruptions in the transportation infrastructure, including roads, bridges, railroad tracks and tunnels;
= fires, floods, earthquakes, hurricanes or other catastrophes; '

* terrorism or threats of terrorism; or

= other operational problems, including those resulting from the risks described in this section,

Events such as those listed above have resulted in operating losses in the past. In May 2006, the
Weyerhacuser Fine Paper Business facilities in Plymouth, North Carolina experienced a disruption in their power
supply, causing damage 10 a turbine generator necessary to convert high pressure steam to medium and low
pressure steam used by the varicus mill processes. As a result of this damage, various mill operations at the
Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business’s Plymouth facilities were shut down for repairs for up to eleven days. The
Company estimates the total financial impact of this incident on its operating income was $11 million including
repair costs, the opportunity value of lost production and increased operating costs. Future events may cause
similar shutdowns, which may resuit in additional downtime and/or cause additional damage to the Company’s
facilities. Any such downtime or facility damage could prevent the Company from meeting customer demand for
its products and/or require it to make unplanned capital expenditures. If one of these machines or facilities were
to incur significant downtime, the Company’s ability to meet its production targets and satisfy customer
requirements would be impaired, resulting in lower sales and income.

The Company’s operations require substantial capital, and it may not have adequate capital resources 1o provide
Sfor all of its capital requirements.

The Company’s businesses are capital intensive and require that it regularly incur capital expenditures in
order to maintain its equipment, increase its operating efficiency and comply with environmental laws. In 2007,
the Company’s total capital expenditures were approximately $116 million, including approximately $65 million
for maintenance capital and approximately $11 million for environmental expenditures. The Company’s total
capital expenditures in 2006 were approximately $64 million, including approximately $62 million for
maintenance capital and approximately $2 million for environmental expenditures.

If the Company’s available cash resources and cash generated from operations are not sufficient to fund its
operafing needs and capital expenditures, the Company would have to obtain additicnal funds from borrowings
or other available sources or reduce or delay its capital expenditures. The Company may not be able to obtain
additional funds on favorable terms, or at all. 1n addition, the Company’s debt service obligations will reduce its
available cash flows. If the Company cannot maintain or upgrade its equipment as it requires or allocate funds to
ensure environmental compliance, it could be required to curtail or cease some of its manufacturing operations,
or it may become unable to manufacture products that compete effectively in one or more of its product lines.

The Company could incur substantial costs as a resull of compliance with, violations of or liabilities under
applicable environmental laws and regulations. Ir could also incur costs as a result of asbestos-related personal
injury lirigation.

The Company is subject, in both the United States and Canada, to a wide range of general and industry-

specific laws and regulations relating to the protection of the environment and natural resources, including those
governing air emissions, wastewater discharges, harvesting, silvicultural activities, the storage, management and
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disposal of hazardous substances and wastes, the cleanup of contaminated sites, landfill operation and closure
obligations, forestry operations and endangered species habitat, and health and safety matters. In particular, the
pulp and paper industry in the United States is subject to the United States Environmental Protection Agency’s
(“EPA™) Cluster Rule and was until recently subject to the EPA’s Boiler MACT Rule (the Boiler MACT Rule
has been vacated, however, alternative U.S. federal and state regulations are being discussed) that further
regulate effluent and air emissions. These laws and regulations require the Company to obtain authorizations
from and comply with the requirements of the appropriate governmental authorities, which have considerable
discretion over the terms and timing of permits.

The Company has incurred, and expects that it will continue to incur, significant capital, operating and other
expenditures complying with applicable environmental laws and regulations as a result of remedial obligations.
The Company incurred approximately $85 million of operating expenses and $11 million of capital expenditures
in connection with environmental compliance and remediation for 2007. As of December 30, 2007, the Company
had a provision of $119 million for environmental expenditures, including certain asset retirement obligations
(such as for land fill capping and asbestos removal). In addition, during the first half of 2006, the Company
closed its pulp and paper mill in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan and the Big River Sawmill in Saskatchewan. The
Company has not determined whether either of these facilities will be reopened, sold or permanently closed. In
the event the facilities are permanently closed, the Province of Saskatchewan may require active
decommissioning and reclamation at one or both facilities, which would likely include investigation and remedial
action for areas of significant environmental impacts. The Province of Saskatchewan has required certain
facilities located in the Province to submit preliminary decommissioning and reclamation plans and to include in
such plans estimates of costs associated with decommissioning and reclamation activities, Weyerhaeuser
submitted such a plan for its pulp and paper facility in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan. In its preliminary
decommissioning and reclamation plan, Weyerhaeuser included a preliminary, generalized estimate of costs
ranging from CDNS$20 to CDN$25 million (approximately $20 to $25 million). Weyerhaeuser advised the
Province of Saskatchewan that it was not providing a detailed delineation of costs at this time because such costs
will depend on site specific factors, the professional judgments of environmental specialists and experts, further
detailed environmental site assessments, and most fundamentally, a decision about the future use or closure of
the site. The estimate referred to above does not take into account the equipment resale value or scrap material
value which is considered to be significant, nor does it include the cost of completing a phase 11 environmental
site assessment (which could involve sampling and analysis of building materials and environmental media), or
the cost of any remediation required based on such assessment. The Company has not undertaken an in depth
review of Weyerhaeuser’s estimate and the net decommissioning and reclamation costs could exceed
Weyerhaeuser’s estimate.

The Company also could incur substantial costs, such as civil or criminal fines, sanctions and enforcement
actions (including orders limiting its operations or requiring corrective measures, installation of pollution control
equipment or other remedial actions), cleanup and closure costs, and third-party claims for property damage and
personal injury as a result of violations of, or liabilities under, environmental laws and regulations. The
Company’s ongoing efforts to identify potential environmental concerns that may be associated with its past and
present properties will lead to future environmental investigations. Those efforts will likely result in the
determination of additional environmental costs and liabilities which cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

As the owner and operator of real estate, the Company may be liable under environmental laws for cleanup,
closure and other damages resulting from the presence and release of hazardous substances, including asbestos,
on or from its properties or operations. The amount and timing of environmental expenditures is difficult to
predict, and, in some cases, the Company’s liability may be imposed without regard to contribution or to whether
it knew of, or caused, the retease of hazardous substances and may exceed forecasted amounts or the value of the
property itself. The discovery of additional contamination or the imposition of additional cleanup obligations at
the Company’s or third-party sites may result in significant additional costs. Any material liability the Company
incurs could adversely impact its financial condition or preclude it from making capital expenditures that would
otherwise benefit its business.
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In addition, the Company may be subject to asbestos-related personal injury litigation arising out of
exposure to asbestos on or from its properties or operations, and may incur substantial costs as a result of any
defense, settlement, or adverse judgment in such litigation. The Company may not have access to insurance
proceeds to cover costs associated with asbestos-related personal injury litigation.

Enactment of new environmental laws or regulations or changes in existing laws or regulations, or
interpretation thereof, might require significant expenditures.

The Company may be unable to generate funds or other sources of liquidity and capital to fund
environmental liabilities or expenditures.

The Company is affected by changes in currency exchange rates.

The Company manufactures a significant amount of pulp and paper in Canada. Sales of pulp and paper
products by the Company’s Canadian milis will be invoiced in U.S. dollars or in Canadian dollars linked to U.S,
pricing but most of the costs relating to these products will be incurred in Canadian dollars. As a result, any
decrease in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Canadian dollar will reduce the Company’s profitability.

Exchange rate fluctuations are beyond the Company’s control. Since January 1, 2002, the Canadian dollar
has appreciated more than 60% relative to the U.S. dollar. This has had a material adverse effect on the sales and
profitability of the Canadian operations of both the Predecessor and Domtar Inc. and is continuing to have an
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial results and financial condition.

The Company may be required to pay significant lumber export taxes and/or countervailing and antidumping
duties.

The Company may experience reduced revenues and margins on its softwood lumber business as a result of
lumber export taxes and/or countervailing and antidumping duty applications. In April 2001, the Coalition for
Fair Lumber Imports (“Coalition”) filed two petitions with the U.S. Department of Commerce (“Department”)
and the International Trade Commission (“ITC™) claiming that production of softwood lumber in Canada was
being subsidized by Canada and that imports from Canada were being “dumped” into the U.S. market (sold at
less than fair value). The Coalition asked that countervailing duty (“*CVD"} and antidumping (“AD”) tariffs be
imposed on softwood lumber imported from Canada.

In 2006, the Canadian and U.S. governments reached a final settlement to this long-standing dispute. The
provisions of the settlement included repayment of approximately 81% of the deposits, imposition of export
measures in Canada, and measures to address long-term policy reform. It is possible that the CVD and AD tariffs
or tariffs similar to the CVD and AD tariffs may again be imposed on the Company, in the future.

Under the settlement agreement, Canadian softwood lumber exporters pay an export tax when the price of
lumber is at or below a threshold price. Under present market conditions, the Company’s softwood lumber
exports are subject to a 5% export charge plus a market restriction on access managed by a quota system.

The Company experienced and may continue 10 experience reduced revenues and margins in the softwood
lumber business as a result of the application of the settlement agreement. The settlement agreement could have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial results and financial condition, including, but not
limited to, facility closures or impairment of assets.

The Company depends on third parties for transportation services.

The Company relies primarily on third parties for transportation of the products it manufactures and/or
distributes, as well as delivery of its raw materials. In particular, a significant portion of the goods it
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manufactures and raw materials it uses are transported by railroad or trucks, which are highly regulated. If any of
its third-party transportation providers were to fail to deliver the goods the Company manufactures or distributes
in a timely manner, the Company may be unable 1o sell those products at full value, or at all. Similarly, if any of
these providers were to fail to deliver raw materials to the Company in a timely manner, it may be unable to
manufacture its products in response to customer demand. In addition, if any of these third parties were to cease
operations or cease doing business with the Company, it may be unable to replace them at reasonable cost. Any
failure of a third-party transportation provider to deliver raw materials or finished products in a timely manner
could harm the Company’s reputation, negatively impact its customer relationships and have a material adverse
effect on its financial condition and operating results.

The transition services provided by Weyerhaeuser may be difficult for the Company to replace without
operational problems and additional costs.

The Company entered into a transition services agreement with Weyerhaeuser pursuant to which
Weyerhaeuser agreed to provide the Company certain transition services for a period of time following the
Closing Date. These services include, among others, certain services relating to finance and administration,
human resources, payroll and information technology. If, after the expiration of the agreement, the Company is
unable to perform these services or replace them in a timely manner or on terms and conditions as favorable as
those the Company receives from Weyerhaeuser, the Company may experience operational problems and an
increase in its costs. In addition, the cost for such services may be higher than the cost for such services when the
Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business was operated as part of Weyerhaeuser. See “Risks related to the transaction—
The historical financial information of the Predecessor may not be representative of its results if the
Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business had been operated independently of Weyerhacuser and, as a result, may not
be a reliable indicator of its future results.” At December 30, 2007, the transition services agreement for both
human resources and payroll services as well as finance and administration had been terminated as all activities
related to those agreements had been successfully transferred to the Company.

As a result of the separation of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business from Weyerhaeuser, the Company may
experience increased costs resulting from decreased purchasing power, which could decrease its overall
profitability.

Prior to its separation from Weyerhaeuser, the Predecessor was able to take advantage of Weyerhaeuser’s
size and reputation in procuring raw materials and other goods and services used both for the Predecessor and
Weyerhaeuser’s other businesses. As an independent public company, the Company may be unable to obtain
similar goods, services and technology at prices or on terms as favorable as those obtained by the Predecessor
prior to its separation from Weyerhaeuser.

The Company has liabilities with respect to its pension plans and the actual cost of its pension plan obligations
could exceed current provisions. As of December 30, 2007, the Company’s defined benefit plans had a surplus of
$38 million on certain plans and a deficit of $185 miilion on others on a ongoing basis.

The Company’s future funding obligations for the defined benefit pension plans depend upon changes to the
level of benefits provided by the plans, the future performance of assets set aside in trusts for these plans, the
level of interest rates used to determine minimum funding levels, actuarial data and experience, and any changes ‘
in government laws and regulations. As of December 30, 2007, the Company’s Canadian defined benefit pension
funds had approximately CDN$1,491 million (approximately $1,509 million) of assets, of which approximately
CDN$445 million (approximately $450 million) is held by Domtar Inc.’s Canadian pension funds, invested in
multiple third party asset backed commercial paper (“ABCP™) conduits, which are currently subject to
restructuring or repayment delay, and of which CDN$389 million (approximately $393 million) is subject to the
interim arrangement of the “Montreal Proposal” pursuant to which banks and major investors are negotiating
restructuring proposals with respect to certain ABCP conduits; however, these discussions are not finalized, and
the outcome and the effect it would have on the value of the Company’s Canadian pension fund assets has yet to
be determined.
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Losses in the pension fund investments, if any, would result in future increased contributions by the
Company or its Canadian subsidiaries. Additional contributions to these pension funds would be required to be
paid over a 5-year period. Losses, if any, would also impact operating results over a longer period of time and
immediately increase liabilities and reduce equity.

RISKS RELATED TO THE TRANSACTION
The Company may not realize anticipated synergies, cost savings and growth opportunities from the Transaction.

The success of the Transaction depends, in part, on the Company’s ability to realize the anticipated
synergies, cost savings and growth opportunities from integrating the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business with the
Domtar Inc. business. The Company’s success in realizing these synergies, cost savings and growth
opportunities, and the timing of this realization, depends on the successful integration of such businesses and
operations. Even if the Company is able to integrate such businesses and operations successfully, there can be no
assurance that this integration will result in the realization of the full benefits of synergies, cost savings and
growth opportunities that the Company expects from this integration or that these benefits will be achieved
within the anticipated time frame. For example, the elimination of duplicative costs may not be possible or may
take longer than anticipated, or the benefits from the Transaction may be offset by the loss of Weyerhaeuser’s
purchasing power or the costs incurred in integrating the businesses and operations,

The Company incurred and expects to continue fo incur significant costs related to the Transaction that could
have a material adverse effect on its operating results.

The Company incurred financial, legal and accounting costs and sales and transfer taxes in connection with the
Transaction. In addition, the Company estimates that it will incur costs in connection with the separation of the
Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business from Weyerhaeuser. The Company also anticipates that it will incur significant
costs in connection with the integration of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business and the Domtar Inc. business,
including, among other things, costs relating to information technology integration, severance costs and the
potential write-down of assets, which cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. These costs may have a material
adverse effect on the Company’s cash flows and operating results in the periods in which they are recorded.

The historical financial information of the Predecessor may not be represeniative of its results if the
Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business had been operated independently of Weyerhaeuser and, as a result, may not
be a reliable indicator of its future resuits.

Prior to the Closing Date, the Predecessor was a fully integrated business unit of Weyerhaeuser. Consequently,
the financial information of the Predecessor included in this document has been derived from the consolidated
financial statements and accounting records of Weyerhaeuser and reflects assumptions and allocations made by
Weyerhaeuser. The financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Predecessor presented may be
different from those that would have resulted had the Predecessor been operated independently. For example, in
preparing the Predecessor financial statements, Weyerhaeuser has made an appropriate allocation of costs and
expenses that are attributable to the Predecessor. However, these costs and expenses reflect the costs and expenses
attributable to the Predecessor operated as part of a larger organization and do not reflect costs and expenses that
would be incurred by this business had it been operated independently. As a result, the historical financial
information of the Predecessor may not be a reliable indicator of future results.

Material weaknesses in our internal control over financial reporting could result in a material misstatement of
our financial condition.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than
a temote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected. Management of the Company identified the following material weaknesses as of
April 1, 2007, which were remediated as of December 30, 2007.
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The Company did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and accuracy of financial
information produced under the transition services agreement with Weyerhaeuser. Specifically, the Company did
not have controls designed and in place to ensure that financial data regarding the Predecessor was complete,
accurate, produced on a timely basis and supported with appropriate documentation. Further, the Company did
not maintain an appropriate accounting and financial reporting organizational structure, specifically relating to
the depth of resources, to be able to ensure that the accounting records being maintained by Weyerhacuser under
the transition services agreement were accurate and complete. The financial data produced under the transition
services agreement affects substantially all balance sheet and income statement accounts.

These control deficiencies resulted in adjustments to the interim financial statements as of and for the
thirteen week period ended April 1, 2007 and a delay in the filing of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for that
pericd.

Aboriginal interests may delay or result in challenges to the transfer of certain forest licenses and forest
management agreements.

Under applicable forestry legislation in Saskatchewan, Weyerhacuser must obtain consent from the
Government of Saskatchewan in order to complete the transfer of certain timber rights in Saskatchewan to the
Company. Pursuant to the agrecments governing the Transaction, the transfer of these timber rights were delayed
until the appropriate approvals are received. Recent Supreme Court of Canada decisions have confirmed that the
federal and provincial governments in Canada have a duty to consult with, and in certain circumstances, seek to
accommodate aboriginal groups whenever there is a reasonable prospect that a government's decision may
adversely affect an aboriginal group’s interests in relevant land and resources that are the subject of the decision.
The Company believes that the Government of Saskatchewan has consulted with relevant aboriginal groups in
connection with these consent approvals. This consultation process could result in delays, constrain access t0 the
timber or give rise to additional costs. In addition, if the Government of Saskatchewan does not adequately
discharge its obligation this could result in litigation. It is not possible at present to predict the risks associated
with such litigation.

If the distribution by Weyerhaeuser of its shares of Company common stock to the holders of Weyerhaeuser
common shares and Weyerhaeuser exchangeable shares pursuant to an exchange offer ( “Distribution”) did not
constitute a tax-free transaction, either as a result of actions taken in connection with the distribution or as a
result of subsequent acquisitions of shares of Company common stock, then the Company may be responsible for
payment of substantial U.S. federal income taxes under its tax sharing agreement with Wevyerhaeuser.

Weyerhaeuser received a private letter ruling from the Internal Revenue Service on February 5, 2007 to the
effect that, based on the facts, assumptions, representations and undertakings set forth in the ruling, the
Contribution and Distribution qualified as tax-free to Weyerhaeuser and the holders of Weyerhacuser common
shares for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Sections 355 and 368 and related provisions of the Code.

The Distribution would become taxable to Weyerhaeuser pursuant to Section 355(e) of the Code if 50% or
more (by vote or value) of equity securities of the Company were acquired, directly or indirectly, by persons
other than Weyerhaeuser sharcholders as part of a plan or series of related transactions that included the
Distribution. Because Weyerhaeuser shareholders owned more than 50% of Company common stock following
the Arrangement, the Arrangement, by itself, would not have caused the Distribution to be taxable to
Weyerhaeuser under Section 355(¢) of the Code. However, if the IRS were to determine that other acquisitions of
Company equity securities, either before or after the Distribution and the Arrangement, were part of a plan or
series of related transactions that included the Distribution such determination could result in the recognition of a
gain by Weyerhaeuser under Section 355(e) of the Code. In such case, the gain recognized by Weyerhaeuser
likely would include the entire fair market value of the Company common stock distributed to Weyerhaeuser's
shareholders, and thus would be substantial.
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Under the tax sharing agreement among Weyerhaeuser, the Company, and Domtar Inc., the Company
generally would be required to indemnify Weyerhaeuser against tax-related losses to Weyerhaeuser and/or its
shareholders that arise as a result of certain actions taken or omissions to act by the Company, its subsidiaries or
certain affiliates of the Company (“Disqualifying Actions”) after the Transaction. See “Risks related to the
transaction—The Company may be affected by significant restrictions following the Transaction in order to
avoid significant tax-related liabilities.”

The Company may be affected by significant restrictions following the Transaction in order to avoid significant
tax-related liabilities.

Even if the Distribution qualifies as a tax-free reorganization, it may not qualify as a transaction that is
tax-free to Weyerhaeuser if 50% or more (by vote or value) of the equity securities of the Company are acquired
by persons other than Weyerhacuser shareholders as part of a “plan” that includes the Distribution pursuant to
Section 355(¢) of the Code.

The tax sharing agreement requires that the Company, its subsidiaries and certain affiliates of the Company,
for a two-year period following the Closing Date, avoid taking certain actions that might cause the Distribution to
be treated as part of a plan pursuant to which 50% or more of the Company’s equity securities are acquired.
Certain of these Disqualifying Actions subject to restrictions include:

* The redemption, recapitalization, repurchase or acquisition by the Company of its capital stock;
* The issuance by the Company of capital stock or convertible debt;

* The liguidation of the Company;

= The discontinuance of the operations of the Predecessor;

* The sale or disposition (other than in the ordinary course of business) of all or a substantial part of the
Predecessor; or

* The other actions, omissions to act or transactions that could jeopardize the tax-free status of the
Distribution.

To the extent that the tax-free status of the Distribution is lost because of a Disqualifying Action after the
date of consummation of the Transaction, the Company generally will be required to indemnify, defend and hold
harmless Weyerhaeuser from and against any and all resulting tax-related losses incurred by Weyerhaeuser and/
or Weyerhaeuser shareholders, without regard 1o whether Weyerhaeuser gave the Company prior written consent
to the specific action taken by the Company.

Because of these restrictions, the Company may be limited in its abiiity to pursue strategic transactions or
equity or convertible debt financing or engage in new business or other transactions that may maximize the value
of its business.

A third party has demanded an increase in consideration from Domtar Inc. under an existing contract in
connection with the Transaction.

In 1998, Domtar Inc. acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of E.B. Eddy Limited and E.B. Eddy
Paper, Inc., an integrated producer of specialty paper and wood products. The purchase agreement relating to this
acquisition includes a purchase price adjustment whereby, in the event of the acquisition by a third-party of more
than 50% of the shares of Domtar Inc. in specified circumstances, Domtar Inc. may be required to pay an
increase in consideration of up to a maximum of CDN$120 million (approximately $121 million). This amount
gradually declines over a 25-year pericd and at March 7, 2007, the Closing Date, the maximum amount of the
purchase price adjustment was CDN$110 million (approximately $111 million). No provision was recorded for
this potential purchase price adjustment.
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On March 14, 2007, Domtar Inc. received a letter from George Weston Limited (the previous owner of
E.B. Eddy and a party to the purchase agreement) demanding payment of CDN$110 million (approximately
$111 million) as a result of the consummation of the Transaction. On June 12, 2007, an action was commenced
by George Weston Limited against Domtar Inc. in the Superior Court of Justice of the province of Ontario,
Canada, claiming that the consummation of the Transaction triggered the purchase price adjustment and seeking
a purchase price adjustment of CDN$110 million (approximately $111 million} as well as additional
compensatory damages. The Company and Domtar Inc. does not belicve that the consummation of the
Transaction triggers an obligation to pay an increase in consideration under the purchase price adjustment and it
intends to defend itself vigorously against any claims with respect thereto. However, the Company may not be
successful in its defense of such claims, and, if it is ultimately required to pay an increase in consideration, such
payment may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s liquidity, results of operations and financial
condition.

The Company’s substantial indebtedness, which is approximately $2.2 billion as of December 30, 2007, could
adversely affect its financial condition and impair its ability to operate its business.

As of December 30, 2007, the Company had approximately $2.2 billion of outstanding indebtedness,
including $693 million of indebtedness under its senior secured credit facilities, $39 million of capital leases and
$1.5 billion of unsecured long-term notes.

The Company’s substantial degree of indebtedness could have important consequences to the Company’s
financial condition, operating results and business, including the following:

* it may limit the Company’s ability to obtain additional debt or equity financing for working capital,
capital expenditures, product development, debt service requirements, acquisitions and general
corporate or other purposes;

« a substantial portion of the Company’s cash flows from operations will be dedicated to payments on its
indebtedness and will not be available for other purposes, including operations, capital expenditures
and future business opportunities;

» the debt service requirements of the Company’s indebtedness could make it more difficult for the
Company to satisfy its other obligations;

* the Company’s borrowings under the senior secured credit facilities are at variable rates of interest,
exposing the Company to increased debt service obligations in the event of increased interest rates;

« it may limit the Company’s ability to adjust to changing market conditions and place it at a competitive
disadvantage compared to its competitors that have less debt; and

« it may increase the Company's vulnerability to a downturn in general economic conditions or in its
business, and may make the Company unable to carry out capital spending that is important to its
growth.

Despite current indebtedness levels, the Company and its subsidiaries may incur substantially more debt. This
could further exacerbate the risks associated with its substantial leverage.

The Company and its subsidiaries may incur substantial additional indebtedness in the future. Although the
Credit Agreement comtains restrictions on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, including secured
indebtedness, these restrictions are subject to a number of qualifications and exceptions, and the indebtedness
incurred in compliance with these restrictions could be substantial. For example. as of December 30, 2007, the
Company had $50 miltion drawn under its senior secured revolving credit facility and $46 million of letters of
credit outstanding, resulting in $654 million of availability for future drawings under this facility. Other new
borrowing could also be incurred by Domtar Corporation or its subsidiaries. If the Company incurs additional
debt, the risks associated with its substantial leverage would increase.
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The Company's ability to generate the significant amount of cash needed to pay interest and principal on the
Domtar Corporation notes and service its other debt and financial obligations and its ability to refinance all or a
portion of our indebtedness or obtain additional financing depends on many factors bevond the Company's
control.

The Company has considerable debt service obligations. The Company’s ability to make payments on and
refinance its debt, including the Domtar Corporation debt securities and amounts borrowed under its senior
secured credit facilities and other financial obligations and to fund its operations will depend on its ability to
generate substantial operating cash flow. The Company’s cash flow generation will depend on its future
performance, which will be subject to prevailing economic conditions and to financial, business and other
factors, many of which are beyond its control.

The Company business may not generate sufficient cash flow from operations and future borrowings may
not be available to the Company under its senior secured credit facilities or otherwise in amounts sufficient to
enable the Company to service its indebtedness, including the Domtar Corporation notes, and borrowings under
its senior secured credit facilities or to fund its other liquidity needs. If the Company cannot service its debt, the
Company will have to take actions such as reducing or delaying capital investments, selling assets, restructuring
or refinancing its debt or seeking additional equity capital. Any of these remedies may not be effected on
commercially reasonable terms, or at all, and may impede the implementation of its business strategy. Further,
the Credit Agreement may restrict the Company from adopting any of these alternatives. In addition, the
restrictions on the Company’s ability to issue equity securities or convertible debt securities during the two year
period following the Closing Date without jeopardizing the intended tax consequences of the Transaction may
make it difficult for the Company to raise equity capital if needed to service its indebtedness. Because of these
and other factors that may be beyond its contrel, the Company may be unable to pay the principal, premium, if
any, interest or other amounts on the Domtar Corporation notes. See “Risks related to the Transaction—The
Company may be affected by significant restrictions following the Transaction in order to avoid significant
tax-related liabilities.”

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

A description of our mills and related properties is included in Part 1, Item I, Business, of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Production facilities

We own all of our production facilities with the exception of certain portions that are subject to leases with
government agencies in connection with industrial development bond financings or fee-in-lieu-of-tax
agreements, and lease substantially all of our sales offices, regional replenishment centers and warehouse
facilities. We believe our properties are in good operating condition and are suitable and adequate for the
operations for which they are used. We own substantially all of the equipment used in our facilities.

Forestlands

We optimize 28 million acres of forestland directly licensed or owned in the United States and Canada
through efficient management and the application of certified sustainable forest management practices such that a
contineous supply of wood is available for future needs.
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Listing of facilities and locations

Head Office
Montreal, Quebec

Papers
Operation Center:
Fort Mill, South Carolina

Uncoated Freesheet:
Ashdown, Arkansas
Dryden, Ontario
Espanola, Ontario
Hawesville, Kentucky
Johnsonburg, Pennsylvania
Kingsport, Tennessee
Mariboro, South Carolina
Nekoosa, Wisconsin
Plymouth, North Carolina
Port Huron, Michigan
Rothschild, Wisconsin
Windsor, Quebec

Coated Groundwood:
Columbus, Mississippi

Pulp:

Kamloops, British Columbia
Lebel-sur-Quévillon, Quebec
Prince Albert, Saskatchewan
Woodland, Maine

Chip Mills:

Hawesville, Kentucky
Johnsonburg, Pennsylvania
Kingsport, Tennessee
Marlbore, South Carolina

Converting and Distribution —
Onsite:

Ashdown, Arkansas

Dryden, Ontario

Plymouth, North Carolina
Port Edwards, Wisconsin
Rothschild, Wisconsin
Windsor, Quebec

Converting and Distribution —
Offsite:

Brownsville, Tennessee
Cerritos, California

Dallas, Texas

Dubois, Pennsylvania

Griffin, Georgia

Mira Loma, California

Owensboro, Kentucky
Ridgefields, Tennessee

Tatum, South Carolina
Terrebonne, Quebec
Washington Court House, Ohio

Forms Manufacturing:
Cerritos, California
Dallas, Texas
Indianapolis, Indiana
Langhorne, Pennsylvania
Rock Hill, South Carolina

Enterprise Group* — United
States:

Birmingham, Alabama
Chandler, Arizona

Ft. Smith, Arkansas
Little Rock, Arkansas
Buena Park, California
Cerritos, California
Hayward, California
Denver, Colorado
Jacksonville, Florida
Lakeland, Florida
Miami, Flonda
Duluth, Georgia
Boise, Idaho

Peoria, Illinois

West Chicago, llinois
Evansville, Indiana

Ft. Wayne, Indiana
Indianapolis, Indiana
Des Moines, lowa
Kansas City, Kansas
Lexington, Kentucky
Louisville, Kentucky
Harahan, Louisiana
Shreveport, Louisiana
Boston, Massachusetts
Livonia, Michigan
Wayland, Michigan
Fridley, Minnesota
Jackson, Mississippi
St. Louis, Missourt
Omaha, Nebraska

Las Vegas, Nevada
Hoboken, New Jersey
Albuquerque, New Mexico
Buffalo, New York
Syracuse, New York
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Charlotte, North Carolina
Cincinnati, Ohio
Cleveland, Chio
Columbus, Ohio
Oklahoma City, Oklahoma
Tulsa, Oklahoma
Langhome, Pennsylvania
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
Rock Hill, South Carolina
Chattanooga, Tennessee
Knoxville, Tennessee
Memphis, Tennessee
Nashville, Tennessee

El Paso, Texas

Garland, Texas

Houston, Texas

San Antonio, Texas

Salt Lake City, Utah
Richmond, Virginia
Kent, Washington
Vancouver, Washington
Milwaukee, Wisconsin

Enterprise Group* — Canada:
Calgary, Alberta

Montreal, Quebec

Toronto, Ontario

Vancouver, British Columbia

Paper Merchants
Head Office:
Covington, Kentucky

RIS Paper - Eastern Region:
Albany, New York

Boston, Massachuseits
Buffalo, New York
Harrisburg, Pennsylvania
Hartford, Connecticut
Lancaster, Pennsylvania
New York, New York
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
Southport, Connecticut
Washington, DC / Baltimore,
Maryland

RIS Paper — MidWest Region:
Cincinnati, Ohioc

Cincinnati, Ohio (L.T.)
Cleveland, Ohio




Columbus, Ohio JBR / La Maison du Papier — Grand-Remous, Quebec

Dayton, Ohio Canada: Lebel-sur-Quévillon, Quebec
Dallas/Fort Worth, Texas Montreal, Quebec Naim Centre, Ontario
Fort Wayne, Indiana Quebec City, Quebec Malartic, Quebec

Indianapolis, indiana

e The Paper House — Canada: Matagami, Quebec
Kalamazoo, Michigan

Dartmouth, Nova Scotia Ste-Marie, Quebec

. ) . Mt. Pearl, Newfoundland Sullivan, Quebec
Burntin Reid — Canada: Timmins, Ontario

London, Ontar-'io Wooq Val dOr, Quebec
Ottawa, Ontario Big River, Saskatchewan

; - White River, Ontario
Toronto, Ontario Ear Falis, Ontario

* Enterprise Group is involved in the sale and distribution of Domtar papers, notably continuous forms, cut size
business papers as well as digital papers, converting rolls and specialty products.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Contribution and Distribution Agreement and other agreements entered into or to be entered
into in connection with the Transaction, the Company assumes responsibility for certain claims and litigation
matters arising out of or relating to the Company’s businesses whether or not asserted prior to the Transaction.
Currently, a small number of claims and litigation matters have arisen in the ordinary course of business.
Although the final outcome of any legal proceeding is subject to a number of variables and cannot be predicted
with any degree of certainty, management currently believes that the ultimate outcome of these legal proceedings
will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s long-term results of operations, cash flow or financial
position.

The Company is involved in various legal proceedings relating to contracts, commercial dispuies, taxes,
environmental issues, labor and employment and other matters related to former and ongoing operations. The
Company periodically reviews the status of these proceedings and assesses the likelihood of any adverse
judgments or outcomes of these legal proceedings, as well as analyzes probable losses. While the Company
believes that the ultimate disposition of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on its financial
condition, an adverse outcome in one or more of the following significant legal proceedings could have a
material adverse effect on our results or cash flow in a given quarter or year.

In the early part of 2006, Weyerhaeuser closed its pulp and paper mill in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan,
which the Company acquired in connection with the Transaction, and which remains closed. Certain unionized
parties filed a grievance against Weyerhaeuser following the shut down, alleging that certain post-closure actions
taken by Weyerhaeuser violated their collective bargaining agreement. In particular, the union disputed
Weyerhaeuser’s post-closure contracting with a third-party vendor to oversee on-site security at the Prince Albert
facility. In connection with the Transaction, the Company has assumed any liability with respect to this
grievance. In a separate grievance relating to the closure of the Prince Albert facility, which could result in
liability in excess of $20 million, the union is disputing the accumulation of pension benefits during the actual
layoff period because, according to the union, a majority of employees retained still had recall rights during the
layoff. The Company is currently evaluating its positions with respect to these grievances and cannot be certain
that it will rot incur liability, which could be material, with respect 1o these grievances.

Domtar Inc. is subject to a motion by Joachim Laferriére Electricien Inc., filed in the Quebec Superior Court
on January 9, 2006, for authorization to bring a class action suit against Domtar Inc. and others for alleged
damages relating to a conspiracy to fix prices of carbonless sheets during the period of January through
December 2000 in the Province of Quebec. The claim seeks estimated compensatory damages in the amount of
CDN$50 miilion (approximately $50 million) plus estimated exemplary damages in the amount of
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CDN$1 million to CDN$5 million (approximately $1 million to $5 million). Domtar Inc. is also subject 10 a
motion by McLay & Company Inc. filed in Ontario Superior Court on January 11, 2006, for authorization to
bring a class action suit against Domtar Inc. and others, for alleged inflated prices of carbonless sheets during the
period of October 1999 through September 2000 in the Province of Ontario. These class actions have been settled
in principle for an insignificant amount and are subject to Court approval. The amount had been previously
provided for in the purchase price allocation related to the acquisition of Domtar Inc.

On June 12, 2007, an action was commenced by George Weston Limited (“Weston™) in the Superior Court
of Justice of the Province of Ontario against Domtar Inc. The claim alleges that the consummation of the
Transaction triggered an obligation of Domtar Inc. to pay an increase in consideration under the purchase price
adjustment contained in the Share Purchase Agreement, dated June 16, 1998 (as amended by Amendment No. 1
thereto, dated July 31, 1998, the “Agreement”) between Weston, Weston Investments Inc., Domtar Inc. and
Domtar Industries Inc. pursuant to which Domtar Inc. acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of E.B.
Eddy Limited and E.B. Eddy Paper, Inc., an integrated producer of specialty paper and wood products. The claim
seeks a payment of CDN$110 million (approximately $111 million) under the purchase price adjustment
provision of the Agreement and additional compensatory damages. On August 13, 2007, Domtar Inc. served its
statement of defense in response to this claim. Neither the Company nor Domtar Inc. believes that the
consummation of the Transaction triggered an obligation to pay an increase in consideration under the purchase
price adjustment and Domtar Inc. intends to defend itself vigorously against any claims with respect thereto.
However, Domtar Inc. may not be successful in its defense of such claims, and if it is ultimately required to pay
an increase in consideration, such payment may have a material adverse effect on the Company’s and on Domtar
Inc.’s liquidity, results of operations and financial condition.

Several asbestos-related personal injury claims have been filed in U.S. state and federal courts against Domtar
Industries Inc. and certain other affiliates of the Company in connection with alleged exposure by people to
products or premises containing asbestos. While the Company believes that the ultimate disposition of these
matters, both individually and on an aggregate basis, will not have a material adverse effect on its financial
condition, there can be no assurance that the Company will not incur substantial costs as a result of any such claim.

Environment

Domtar Inc. and the Company is or may be a “potentially responsible party” with respect to various
hazardous waste sites that are being addressed pursuant to the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation, and Liability Act of 1980 (*“‘Superfund”) or similar laws. Domtar Inc. continues to take remedial
action under its Care and Control Program, as such sites mostly relate to its former wood preserving operating
sites, and a number of operating sites due to possible soil, sediment or groundwater contamination. The
investigation and remediation process is lengthy and subject to the uncertainties of changes in legal requirements,
technological developments and, if and when applicable, the allocation of liability among potentially responsible
parties.

An action was commenced by Seaspan International Ltd. (“Seaspan™) in the Supreme Court of British
Columbia, on March 31, 1999 against Domtar Inc. and others with respect to alleged contamination of Seaspan’s
site bordering Burrard Inlet in North Vancouver, British Columbia including contamination of sediments in
Burrard Inlet, due to the presence of creosote. As of July 3, 2002, the parties entered into a partial Settlement
Agrecment (the “Settlement Agreement™) which provides that while the agreement is performed in accordance
with its terms, the action commenced by Seaspan will be held in abeyance. The Settlement Agreement focused
on the sharing of costs between Seaspan and Domtar Inc. for certain remediation of contamination referred to in
the plaintiff’s claim. The Settlement Agreement does not address all of the plaintiff’s claims as that cannot be
reasonably determined at this time. Due 1o the complexity in the implementation of the Settlement, the parties are
currently renegotiating the terms and conditions of the Settlement. No party has exercised its right to terminate
the Settlement. The Company has recorded a provision for the estimated settlement amount.

335



Domtar Inc. was issued a Request for Response Action (“RFRA”) by the Minnesota Pollution Control
Agency (“MPCA™) for the ciean-up of tar seeps and soils at a former coal tar distillation plant located in Duluth,
Minnesota. On March 27, 1996, the MPCA issued the RFRA to Domiar Inc., Interlake Corp., Allied-Signal, Inc.
and Beazer East, Inc. requiring the investigation and potential remediation of a portion of an industrial site
located in Duluth, Minnesota, believed to contain contaminated sediments originating from former coke and gas
plants and coal tar distillation plants. Domtar Inc. formerly operated one coal tar distillation plant at this site. The
total cost of the likely remediation for which Domtar will remain responsible under the RFRA is estimated to be
between $3 million and $7 million. Under a final and binding arbitration process, an arbitration panel rendered,
with respect to the allocation of responsibility between the potentially responsible parties, a decision on
November 8, 2007 which is under review as per the rules of arbitration. A decision is expected in the second
quarter of 2008. The Company has a provision of $4 million at December 30, 2007.

At December 30, 2007, the Company had a provision of $119 million for environmental matters and other
asset retirement obligations. Additional costs, not known or identifiable, could be incurred for remediation
efforts. Based on policies and procedures in place to monitor environmental exposure, management believes that
such additional remediation costs would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financiat position,
earnings or cash flows.

While the Company believes that it has determined the cost for environmental matters likely to be incurred
based on known information, their ongoing efforts to identify potential environmental concerns that may be
associated with their past and present properties will lead to future environmental investigations. These efforts
will likely result in the determination of additional environmental costs and liabilities, which cannot be
reasonably estimated at this time.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year
ended December 30, 2007.

ITEM 5, MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

MARKET INFORMATION

Domtar Corporation’s common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange and the Toronto Stock
Exchange under the symbol “UFS.” Price ranges of our common stock during 2007 on the New York Stock
Exchange and the Toronto Stock Exchange were:

New York Stock Toronto Stock Exchange
Exchange ($) (CDN$)

_High Low Close High Low Close

2007 Quarter
First (0 e e 992 855 931 il.55 1008 10.51
Second ... e 11.49 921 1116 1229 1031 1183
Third ... e 11.52 6.67 820 1223 723 3.18
Fourth ... e 874 681 769 839 672 759
(- ¥ o 11.52 667 769 1223 672 759

{1y The Company’s common stock was listed March 7, 2007, the date of the Transacticn. Prior to the
Transaction, the Company did not have publicly traded common stock. Refer to Item 7, Management’s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations of this Annual Report on Form
10-K for more information on the Transaction.
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HOLDERS

A1 December 30, 2007, the number of shareholders of record of Domtar Corporation common stock was
approximately 2,000 and the number of shareholders of record of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. exchangeable
shares was approximately 4,600.

DIVIDENDS

During 2007, the Company did not pay dividends on its common stock and did not buy back any of its
common stock.

In December 2007, Domtar Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Domtar Corporation, announced the
redemption of its Series A and Series B preferred shares. The Series A and Series B preferred shares were
redeemed on December 21, 2007 at a price per share of CDN$25.

PERFORMANCE GRAPH

This graph compares the return on a $100 investment in the Company’s common stock on March 7, 2007
with a $100 investment in an equally-weighted portfolio of a Peer Groupt", a $100 investment in the S&P 500
Index and a $100 investment in the S&P 500 Materials Index.

Return on $100 Investment

140 -

130 S

120

110 -

Dollars

100

90 4

BO“I

70 T T T \
3/6/2007 3/30/2007 6/29/2007 9/28/2007 12/31/2007

[ —e- Domtar Comporation - Peer Group _ ~o~ S&P 500 Materlals & S&P 500 |

ASSUMPTIONS:
« Returns are in local currencies and assume quarterly reinvestment of dividends

« Measurement dates are the last trading day of the period as shown

(1) On May 18, 2007, the Human Resources Committee of the Board of Directors established performance
measures as part of the Performance Conditioned Restricted Stock Unit (“PCRSUs™) Agreement including
the achievement of a total shareholder return compared to a peer group. The selected peer group companies
include: Abitibi-Consolidated, Bowater, Glatfelter, International Paper, MeadWestvaco, Packaging Corp. of
America, Sappi, Smurfit-Stone, Stora Enso, UPM-Kymmene, Wausau Paper.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following sets forth selected historical financial data of the Company for the periods and as of the dates
indicated. The selected financial data as of December 25, 2005, December 31, 2006 and December 30, 2007 and
for the fiscal years ended December 26, 2004, December 23, 2003, December 31, 2006 and December 30, 2007
have been derived from the audited financial statements of Domtar Corporation for 2007, and the Weyerhaeuser
Fine Paper Business for 2004, 2005 and 2006. The selected financial data as of December 28, 2003 and
December 26, 2004 and for the fiscal year ended December 28, 2003 have been derived from the financial
statements for the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business, which have not been audited. The Company’s fiscal year
ends on the last Sunday of the calendar year. Fiscal year 2007 consisted of 52 weeks, as did all other fiscal years
presented except for fiscal 2006, which consisted of 53 weeks.

The Company acquired Domtar Inc. as of March 7, 2007. Accordingly, the results of operations for Domtar
Inc. are reflected in the financial statements only as of and for the period after that date. Prior to March 7, 2007,
the financial statements of the Company reflect only the results of operations of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper
Business. Since the selected historical financial information of the Company as of and for the 52 weeks ended
December 30, 2007 excludes the results of Domtar Inc. prior to March 7, 2007, they are not necessarily
indicative of results that may be expected in future years. See Item 1A, Risk Factors — “The histortcal financial
information of the Predecessor Company may not be representative of its results if the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper
Business had been operated independently of Weyerhaeuser and, as a result, may not be a reliable indicator of its
future results.” The following table should be read in conjunction with Items 7, Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25, December 26, December 28,
FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

(In millions of U.S. dollars, except per share figures)
Statement of Income Data;
Sales .. ... .. $5,947 $3,306 $3,267 $3,026 $2,854
Closure and restructuring costs and, impairment
of goodwill and property, plant and

QUIPMENE . . .o h vt 110 764 538 17 24
Depreciation and amortization ................ 471 311 157 348 338
Operating income (loss) ..................... 270 (556) {578} 41) (96)
Netearnings (loss) ......... ..o, 70 (609) {478) amn {67)
Net earnings (loss) per share—basic ........... $ 015 $(2.14) $(1.68) $(0.06) $(0.24)
Net earnings (loss) per share—dilated . ......... $ 0.15 $(2.14) $(1.68) $(0.06) $(0.24)
Balance Sheet Data:

Cash and cash equivalents .. ................. $ 7 § 1 $ 1 $ 2 $ 1
Net property, plant and equipment . ............ 5,362 3,065 3,270 3,923 4,113
Total a8Sets . .. ...t 7,748 3,998 4,970 5.565 5,649
Long-termdebt.............. ... ... ... .. .. 2,213 32 24 27 32
Total shareholders” equity . .................. 3,197 2,915 3,773 4,261 4316
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Throughout this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
(*MD&A”), unless otherwise specified, “Domtar Corporation,” “the Company,” “Domtar,” “we,” “us” and “our”
refer to Domtar Corporation and its subsidiaries, as well as its investments. Domtar Corporation’s common stock
is listed on the New York Stock Exchange and the Toronto Stock Exchange. Except where otherwise indicated,
all financial information reflected herein is determined on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States (“GAAP”). This MD&A should be read in conjunction with Domtar Corporation’s audited
consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in Item 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary
Data of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

LAINT

In accordance with industry practice, in this report, the term “ton” or the symbol “ST” refers to a short ton,
an imperial unit of measurement equal to 0.9072 metric tons. The term “tonne™ or the symbol “ADMT” refers to
an air dry metric ton and the term “MFBM?” refers to million foot board measure. In this report, unless otherwise
indicated, all dollar amounts are expressed in U.S. dollars, and the term “dollars” and the symbol “$” refer to
U.S. dollars. In the following discussion, unless otherwise noted, references to increases or decreases in income
and expense items, prices, contribution to net earnings (loss), and shipment volume are based on the fifty-two
week periods ended December 30, 2007 and December 25, 2005, as compared to the fifty-three week period
ended December 31, 2006, The fifty-two week periods are also referred to as 2007 and 2005, and the fifty-three
week period is referred to as 2006.

THE TRANSACTION

Domtar Corporation was incorporated on August 16, 2006 for the sole purpose of holding the Weyerhaeuser
Fine Paper Busingss and consummating the combination of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business with Domtar
Inc. (the “Transaction™). The Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business was owned by Weyerhaecuser Company
(“Weyerhaeuser”) prior to the completion of the Transaction. The Transaction was consummated on March 7,
2007. Domtar Corporation had no operations prior to March 7, 2007 when, upon the completion of the
Transaction, it became an independent public holding company that, directly or indirectly through its
subsidiaries, owns the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business and Domtar Inc. We refer to Domtar Corporation, as of
the consummation of the Transaction, as the “Successor.”

Although Weyerhaeuser does not have a continuing proprietary interest in Domtar Corporation, we have
entered into several agreements with Weyerhaeuser and/or some of its subsidiaries in connection with the
Transaction, including a tax sharing agreement, an intellectual property licensing agreement, a transition services
agreement, fiber and pulp supply agreements and site services agrecments. These agreements enable us to
continue to operate the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business efficiently following the completion of the
Transaction.

The following MD&A of Domtar Corporation covers certain periods prior to the Transaction. For
accounting and financial reporting purposes, the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business is considered to be the
“Predecessor” to Domtar Corporation and as a result, its historical financial statements now constitute the
historical financial statements of Domtar Corporation. Accordingly, the results reported for 2006 and for 2005
include only the results of operations of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business, on a carve-cut basis. The results
reported for the fourth quarter of 2007 include results of the Successor for the entire period and those reported for
2007 include the results of operations of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business, on a carve-oul basis, for the
period from January 1, 2007 to March 6, 2007 and the results of operations of the Successor for the period from
March 7, 2007 to December 30, 2007, which represents forty-three weeks of operations. These historical
financial statements may not be indicative of our future performance, see Part I, Item 1A, Risk Factors, “The
historical financial information of the Predecessor may not be representative of its results if the Weyerhaeuser
Fine Paper Business had been operated independently of Weyerhaeuser and, as a result, may not be a reliable
indicator of its future results.”
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For more information on the Transaction, refer to Note 1 of the consolidated financial statements, included
in Item 8, Financial Statements, in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

In 2007, we reported operating income of $270 million, an increase of $826 millien compared to an
operating loss of $556 million in 2006 mainly due to a goodwill impairment charge recorded in the first quarter
of 2006 and in part due to the acquisition of Domtar Inc. Excluding operating income of $168 million attributable
to Domtar Inc., the operating income in 2007 amounted to $102 million, an increase in operating income of
$658 million compared to 2006. The increase was mostly attributable to a $749 million goodwill impairment
charge recorded in the first quarter of 2006 based on an evaluation of goodwill relating to the Papers segment,
higher average selling prices for pulp and paper, higher shipments for pulp and lower costs for freight and for
maintenance. These factors were partially offset by an aggregate $96 million charge for the impairment of
goodwill and property, plant and equipment recorded in the fourth quarter of 2007 associated with the
reorganization of our Dryden paper mill and the goodwill impairment of cur Wood business, the non-recurring
benefit of the $65 million duties refund recorded in the fourth quarter of 2006, as well as lower shipments for
paper and wood, partially resulting from the additional week of operations in 2006. Additional factors include
lower average selling prices for wood products, higher costs for fiber and chemicals, the negative impact of a
stronger Canadian dollar, severance costs related to the reorganization of our Dryden paper mill and a $9 million
increase in environmental provisions recorded in 2007,

For 2008, inflation pressures on energy-related costs, including those related to fiber and chemicals, are
expected to remain while costs related to integration are expected to decrease in the second half of the year,
Average paper price realizations are expected to increase after giving effect to price increases implemented
toward the end of 2007 and additional pricing initiatives announced for 2008. Paper volumes are expected to stay
relatively steady when compared to 2007. While there are indications that growth in the U.S. economy may
continue to slow in the next months, this has not yet impacted Domtar’s Papers business,

CORPORATE OVERVIEW

While all of our businesses are affected by changes in economic conditions in North America, there are a
number of business-specific factors affecting Domtar Corporation’s operating results. Sales in our Papers
business and Paper Merchants business are affected by the overall demand for printing and writing papers in
North America. Our operating results are affected primarily by sales volumes, selling prices, currency
fluctuations and raw materials costs. Factors affecting volumes and prices include per capita vsage of uncoated
freesheet papers, changes in white-collar employment, cycles in marketing and advertising activities, ongoing
substitution of electronic media, inventory fluctuations at the end-users and imports of uncoated freesheet papers
in North America. Currency fluctuations affect mainly the operating results of our Canadian operations exporting
to the U.S. market. Raw materials costs are affected by the direct and indirect impact of energy prices including
fossil fuels, supply constraints and the changes in economic conditions,

Sales in our Wood business are affected by demand for framing lumber and overall economic conditions.
Our operating results are affected primarily by sales velumes, selling prices, currency fluctuations and fiber
costs. Factors affecting volumes and prices include changes in housing starts, unsold inventories of homes,
fluctuations in interest rates and changes in the unemployment rate. Currency fluctuations impact the Canadian-
dollar denominated cost structure of all of our sawmilling operations affecting the operating results. Fiber costs
on public lands are affected by energy prices, changes in harvesting volumes and regulations in place.

HIGHLIGHTS

Duning 2007, we completed a significant transaction creating a new leader in our industry, conducted a
review of our operations resulting in the streamlining of our portfolio of assets and, as a result of our synergy
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efforts, identified and launched multiple projects aimed at reducing costs and improving efficiency. We
completed a bond exchange and tender offers, for debentures and preferred shares, for the purpose of simplifying
our capital structure, achieved and surpassed our first-year synergy target and strengthened our balance sheet.

Potential Redevelopment of Prince Albert Facility

On November 30, 2007, we were informed that the Government of Saskatchewan was not prepared to
participate in the financing and redevelopment of the Prince Albert facility into a Northern Bleached Softwood
Kraft (“NBSK™) pulp mill producing 100% Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”) certified softwood pulp for the
North American and offshore markets, as set forth in the memorandum of understanding signed on
September 12, 2007. As such, the Company has not determined whether this previously idled facility will be
reopened, sold or closed.

Debt restructuring

During November 2007, certain of Domtar Inc.’s bondholders elected to exchange their Domtar Inc. bonds
for Domtar Corporation bonds with the same maturity and interest rate pursuant to an exchange offer. The
amounts exchanged were 99.96% of the outstanding principal amount of 7.875% Notes, 99.55% of the -
outstanding principal amount of 5.375% Notes, 99.93% of the outstanding principal amount of 7.125 % Notes,
and 99.30% of the outstanding principal amount of 9.5% Notes. During December 2007, 97.32% of the
outstanding principal amount of the 10% Debentures and 99.33% of the outstanding principal amount of the
10.85% Debentures were purchased and cancelled by Domtar Inc. pursuant to a tender offer.

Restructuring

We regularly review our overall production capacity with the objective of adjusting our production capacity
with anticipated long-term demand. In December 2007, we anncunced the reorganization of our Dryden facility
as well as the closure of our Port Edwards mill, effective in the first and second quarters of 2008, respectively.
These measures will result in the curtailment of approximately 336,000 tons of paper capacity per year and will
affect approximately 625 employees.

In July 2007, we announced the closure of two paper machines, one located at our Woodland paper mill and
another at our Port Edwards paper mill, as well as the closure of our paper mill in Gatineau and our converting
center in Ottawa, effective October 2007. In total, these closures resulted in the curtailment of approximately
284,000 tons of paper capacity per year and affected approximately 430 employees. We continue to evaluate
potential adjustments to our production capacity, which may include additional closures of machines or entire
mills, and we could recognize cash and/or non-cash charges relating to any such closures in future periods.

In 2005, we announced the indefinite closure of our Big River and 51% owned Wapawekka, Saskatchewan
sawmills (effective in the first quarter of 2006) and the indefinite closure of our Prince Albert pulp and paper mill
and one paper machine at our Dryden pulp and paper mill (effective in the second quarter of 2006}.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS
Agreement for the Sale of Wood Business

On January 7, 2008, Domtar announced that Domtar Inc. and Conifex Inc. have terminated the agreement
announced June 22, 2007, relating to the sale of Domtar Inc.’s Wood business. Conifex Inc. was to acquire
sawmills and other forest operations situated in Ontario and Quebec. Both parties recognized that the closing
conditions had not been met pursuant to the terms of the agreement.

Domtar intends to continue to seek opportunities to maximize the value of these assets as well as pursue
initiatives to improve their operational efficiency.
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Kamloaps Fiber Supply

We entered into a number of fitber supply agreements with Weyerhaeuser pursuant to which Weyerhaeuser
had agreed to supply our Kamloops pulp mill with fiber. In February 2008, Weyerhaeuser announced the closure
effective May 12, 2008 of its sawmill in Kamloops. The mill is a source of fiber for our Kamloops pulp mill.
This closure will not have a significant impact on our Kamloops pulp mill operations because under the terms of
the supply agreements, Weyerhaeuser will still be responsible for supplying our mill with the agreed upon
amount of fiber.

ACCOUNTING FOR THE TRANSACTION

The Transaction was considered, for accounting purposes, as the acquisition of Domtar In¢c. by Domtar
Corporation and has been accounted for using the purchase method of accounting. Accordingly, the purchase
price is based upon the estimated fair value of Domtar Corporation common stock issued in addition to
acquisition costs directly related to the Transaction. Since no quoted market price existed for the shares of
Domtar Corporation’s common stock, the purchase price is based on the fair value of the net assets acquired on
August 23, 2006, the date on which the terms of the Transaction were agreed to and announced. The fair value of
- Domtar Inc. common shares of $6.63 per share used in the calculation of the purchase price is based upon the
average closing price of Domtar Inc. common shares on the Toronte Stock Exchange for the five trading days
beginning August 21, 2006 and ending August 25, 2006, converted at the average daily foreign exchange rate of
the Bank of Canada. The number of outstanding Domtar Inc, common shares used in the calculation of the fair
value is based on the same periods.

The total purchase price is allocated to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based
on our estimates of their fair value, which are based on information currently available. During the fourth quarter
of 2007, we have completed the valuation of all assets and liabilities. In the process of completing such
valuation, we have revised the amounts allocated to certain assets and liabilities from those previously reported
in the third quarter of 2007. The principal significant elements for which such amounts have been modified
include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, income tax balances and goodwill.
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The following table summarizes the components of the total purchase price and the purchase price
allocation.

(In millions of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise noted)
231,436,850 common shares of Domtar Inc. outstanding at an average closing price of $6.63 per

1 T < $1.534
DArect acqUIsition COSES .. .o v vttt ettt et et e e 28
Estimated total purchase price, netof assumeddebt ........................ ... ... ... ... $1,562

The rotal purchase price of the transaction has been allocated as follows:
Fair value of net assets acquired at the date of acquisition

Cash and cash eQUIVAlEnts ... ... ... ... . ittt i $ 573
RECEIVADIES . . . . ... e e 166
AL 110 o T O 448
Prepaid eXpenses ... ... . e e i 12
Income and other taxesreceivable . ... ... . . . 10
Deferred INCOME [aXES—CUITENL . . ..ottt t et ettt e e e et it ianaea e eannses 63
Property, plant and equipment . ... ... .. i e e 2,469
Intangible assels . ... .ot e e et 98
Deferred income taXes—noNn CUITENT . . ... ...ttt ettt e tee et ranaanerraanennnnnn 34
Goodwill . .. e e e e 300
L0 1T T N 39
Total ASSEES . . ... . .. e e $4,212
Less: Liabilities
Bank indebtedness ... ...t e e e $ o1
Trade and other payables .. ... . ... . e 410
Income andothertaxespayable . ....... ... . . ... . 15
Long-term debt due withinone year ......... ... . . . . ... i i e 1
Long-term debt . .. e e e e 1,660
Deferred income tax lability—non-Cutment . ... ...ttt 141
Other liabilities and deferred credits . ... ... . . oo e 328
MInority INterests .. ... .. e e 28
Total labilities ... ... ... e e e e 2,650
Fair value of net assets acquired at the date of acquisition .. ................................ $1,562
OUR BUSINESS

Domtar Corporation’s reporting segments correspond to the following business activities: Papers, Paper
Merchants and Wood. A description of our business is included in Part I, Item 1, Business of this Annual Report
on Form 10-K.

Papers

We are the largest integrated manufacturer and marketer of uncoated freesheet paper in North America and
the second largest in the world based on production capacity. In uncoated freesheet, we have 12 pulp and paper
mills in operation (nine in the United States and three in Canada) with an annual paper production capacity of
approximately 4.6 million tons of uncoated freesheet paper, after giving effect to the announced closure of our
Port Edwards facility and the restructuring of our Dryden facility. In addition, we have an annual production
capacity of 238,000 tons of coated groundwood at our Columbus paper mill. Our paper manufacturing operations
are supported by 17 converting and distribution operations including a network of 11 plants located offsite of our
paper making operations. Also, we have forms manufacturing operations at two of the offsite converting and
distribution operations and three stand-alone forms manufacturing operations.
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We design, manufacture, market and distribute a wide range of fine paper products for a variety of
consumers, including merchants, retail outlets, stationers, printers, publishers, converters and end-users.
Approximately 81% of our paper production capacity is domestic and the remaining 19% is located in Canada.
We also manufacture and sell pulp in excess of our internal requirements and we purchase papergrade pulp from
third parties allowing us to optimize the logistics of our pulp capacity while reducing transportation costs. We
have the capacity to sell to third parties approximately 1.5 million metric tonnes of pulp per year depending on
market conditions. Approximately 45% of our trade pulp production capacity is domestic and the remaining
55% is located in Canada. We shipped approximately 1.3 million metric tonnes of pulp in excess of our internal
requirements in 2007,

Paper Merchants

Our Paper Merchants business consists of an extensive network of strategically located paper distribution
facilities, comprising the purchasing, warehousing, sale and distribution of our various products and those of
other manufacturers. These products include business and printing papers and certain industrial products. These
products are sold to a wide and diverse customer base, which includes small, medium and large commercial
printers, publishers, quick copy firms, catalog and retail companies and institutional entities. Qur paper
merchants operate in the United States and Canada under a single banner and umbrella name, the Domtar
Distribution Group. Ris Paper, part of the Domtar Distribution Group, operates throughout the Northeast,
Mid-Atlantic and Midwest areas from 20 locations in the United States, including 6 distribution centers. In
Canada, Domtar Distribution Group operates as Buntin Reid in three locations in Ontario; JBR/La Maison du
Papier in two locations in Quebec; and The Paper House in two locations in Atlantic Canada.

Wood

Our Wood business comprises the manufacturing, marketing and distribution of lumber and wood-based
value-added products, and the management of forest resources. We operate five sawmills with a production
capacity of approximately 660 million board feet of lumber and one remanufacturing facility. In addition, we
own six sawmills that are currently not in operation but have an aggregate production capacity of approximately
796 million board feet of lumber. We also have investments in five companies, one of which is not in operation.
We seek to optimize the 28 million acres of forestland we directly license or own in the United States and
Canada through efficient management and the application of certified sustainable forest management practices to
help ensure that a continuous supply of wood is available for future needs.




CONSOLIDATED AND SEGMENTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following table includes the consolidated financial results of Domtar Corporation for the fifty-two week
periods ended December 30, 2007, which consists of the consolidated financial results of the Weyerhaeuser Fine
Paper Business, on a carve-out basis, from January 1, 2007 to March 6, 2007 and of the Successor for the period
from March 7, 2007 to December 30, 2007, and the consolidated financial results of the Weyerhaeuser Fine
Paper Business, on a carve-out basis, for the fifty-three week periods ended December 31, 2006 and the fifty-two
weeks ended December 25, 2005.

Fifty-two weeks ended  Fifty-three weeks ended  Fifty-two weeks ended

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 25, 2005
(In millions of U.S. doflars, unless otherwise noted)

Sales . ... e $5,947 $3,306 $3,267

Operating income {loss) .................. 270 (556) (578)

Netearnings (loss) .......... ... oo, 70 (609) {478)

Net earnings (loss) per common share
(in dollars) (:

Basic ... 0.15 (2.14) (1.68)
Diluted ............... i, 0.15 (2.14) (1.68)
Operating income (loss) per segment:
Papers . ...... ... $ 321 $ (608) $ (492)
Paper Merchants .................... 13 — -
Wood ... (63) 52 (86)
Corporate . .........c.ovvriinnnnnn, ¢} — —
Total ........ ... ..l $ 270 $ (556) 3 (578)
At Decernber 30, 2007 At December 31, 2006
Total assets ............ovveeiiiiennannn $7.,748 $3.998
Total long-term debt, including current
POTtiON . ....... ... ... ... ..., $2,230 $ 44

(1) Refer 1o Note 5 of the consolidated financial statements included in Item 8, for more information on the
calculation of net earnings (loss) per common share.

FIFTY-TWQ WEEK PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2007 VERSUS
FIFTY-THREE WEEK PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Sales

Sales for 2007 amounted to $5,947 million, an increase of $2.641 million, or 80%, from sales of
$3,306 mitlion in 2006 due to the acquisition of Domtar Inc. Excluding sales of $2,807 million attributable to
Domtar Inc., sales for 2007 amounted to $3,140 million, a decrease of $166 million compared to sales for 2006.
The decrease was mainly attributable to lower shipments for paper and wood, partially resulting from the
additional week of operations in 2006, as well as lower average selling prices for wood products. These factors
were partially offset by higher average selling prices for pulp and paper and higher shipments for pulp.

Domtar Inc.’s sales for the forty-three weeks ended December 30, 2007 amounted to $2,807 million.

Domtar Inc.’s sales were impacted by lower shipments for paper, pulp and wood products and lower average
selling prices for lumber, partially offset by higher average selling prices for paper and pulp.
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Cost of Sales

Cost of sales amounted to $4,757 million, an increase of $2,081 million, or 78%, in 2007, compared to cost
of sales in 2006 due to the acquisition of Domtar Inc. Excluding cost of sales of $2,181 million attributable to
Domtar Inc., cost of sales in 2007 amounted to $2,576 million, a decrease of $100 million compared to cost of
sales in 2006. This decrease was mainly attributable to lower production and shipments for paper and wood
products, partially resulting from the additional week of operations in 2006, lower costs for freight, lower costs
for maintenance, lower costs due to mill and sawmill closures mentioned above, and lower costs related to
lack-of-order downtime. These factors were partially offset by higher costs for fiber and chemicals, the negative
impact of a strenger Canadian dollar, severance costs related to the reorganization of our Dryden paper mill and a
$9 million increase in environmental provisions recorded in 2007,

Domtar Inc.’s cost of sales for the forty-three weeks ended December 30, 2007 amounted to $2,181 million,
which were impacted by lower production and shipments for all of its major products except pulp, and lower
costs for freight, partially offset by higher costs for fiber and chemicals and the negative impact of a stronger
Canadian dollar.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SG&A expenses increased by $234 million in 2007 compared to SG&A expenses in 2006 primarily due to
the acquisition of Domtar Inc, Excluding SG&A of $218 million attributable to Domtar Inc., SG&A in 2007
amounted to $190 miilion, an increase of $16 million compared 10 SG&A in 2006. This increase in SG&A is
mostly due to integration and optimization costs, fees paid to Weyerhaeuser for transition services, as well as
stock-based compensation costs. These amounts were partially offset by the elimination of the corporate charges
from Weyerhaeuser.

Domtar Inc.’s SG&A amounted 1o $218 million for the forty-three weeks ended December 30, 2007, and
included transaction costs as well as integration and optimization costs.

Operating Income

Operating income in 2007 amounted to $270 million, an increase of $826 million compared to an operating
loss in 2006 of $556 million mainly due to a $749 million goodwill impairment charge recorded in the first
quarter of 2006 and in part due to the acquisition of Domtar Inc. Excluding operating income of $168 million
attributable to Domtar Inc., operating income in 2007 amounted to $102 million, an increase of $658 million
compared to 2006, The improvement in operating income was mostly attributable to a $749 million goodwill
impairment charge recorded in the first quarter of 2006 based on an evaluation of goodwill relating to the Papers
segment, as well as the factors mentioned above. These factors were partially offset by an aggregate $96 million
charge for the impairment of goodwill and property, piant and equipment recorded in the fourth quarter of 2007
associated with the reorganization of our Dryden paper mill and the goodwill impairment of our Wood business
as well as the non-recurring benefit of a $65 million duties refund recorded in the fourth quarter of 2006.

Domtar Inc.’s operating income for the forty-three weeks ended December 30, 2007 amounted to
$168 million and was impacted by the factors mentioned above, as well as gains on a lawsuit settlement and an
insurance claim settlement received in the fourth quarter of 2007 of $39 million and $12 million, respectively,
and gains of $18 million on financial instruments.

Interest Expense

We incurred $171 million of interest expense for the fifty-two week period ended December 30, 2007
mainly relating to interest incurred after March 6, 2007 under our new Credit Agreement that we entered into in
connection with the Transaction, as well as interest on existing Domtar Inc. debt exchanged for Domtar
Corporation debt in the fourth quarter of 2007. Our interest expense for the fifty-two week period ended
December 30, 2007 also includes costs related to our debt restructuring in the amount of $25 million.
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Income Taxes

For the fifty-two week period ended December 30, 2007, our income tax expense amounted to $29 million,
which was comprised of current tax expense of $102 million and deferred tax recovery of $73 million. The
current tax expense includes $15 million of expense related to the period prior to the Transaction and does not
constitute cash taxes for the Company.

The following table provides the allocation of the income tax expense of each jurisdiction for 2007:

JURISDICTION US. Canada Total

(In million of
U.S. dollars, unless
otherwise noted)

Income (10ss) before INCOME LAXES . .. ..ottt e e e e e e $217 S(118) 399
Income t1ax (benefit) expense ... .. ... .. ... . 72 43y 29
Ef e ctive taX Tate . ..ot e e e e 33% 36% 29%

The U.S. effective tax rate includes $4 million related to a non-conventional fuel tax credit. The
non-conventional fuel tax credits are subject to fluctuations in the price of oil. Under current U.S. tax law, the
sale of biomass gas will no longer generate non-conventional fuel tax credits after 2007. The Canadian effective
tax rate for the fifty-two week period ended December 30, 2007 differs from the combined statutory rate due to
an $11 million benefit related to changes in the federal income tax rate, out of which $6 million is related to a
previously reported out-of-period adjustment.

Net Earnings

Net earnings amounted to $70 million ($0.15 per common share on a diluted basis) in 2007, an increase of
$679 million compared to a net loss of $609 million (32.14 per common share on & diluted basis) in 2006 mainly
due to the impairment of goodwill recorded in the first quarter of 2006 and in part due to the acquisition of
Domtar Inc. Excluding net earnings of $86 million attributable to Domtar Inc., net loss in 2007 amounted to
$16 million, a decrease in net loss of $593 million compared to the net loss of 2006. This improvement in net
earnings was mainly attributable to the factors mentioned above.

FOURTH QUARTER OVERVIEW

For the fourth quarter of 2007, we reported operating income of $7 million, a decrease of $136 million
compared to operating income of $143 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 in part due to the acquisition of
Domtar Inc. Excluding operating income of $76 million attributable to Domtar Inc., the operating loss in the
fourth quarter of 2007 amounted to $69 million, a variation of $212 million compared to the fourth quarter of
2006. This variation is mainly attributable to an aggregate $96 million charge for the impairment of goodwill and
property, plant and equipment recorded in the fourth quarter of 2007 associated with the reorganization of our
Dryden paper mill and the goodwill impairment of our Wood business as well as the non-recurring benefit of the
365 million refund for antidumping and countervailing duties recorded in the fourth quarter of 2006. This
variation is also atiributable to lower shipments for paper and wood products, primarily due to the additional
week of operations in the fourth quarter of 2006, the negative impact of a stronger Canadian dollar, and higher
costs for fiber and chemicals. These factors were partially offset by higher average selling prices for paper and
pulp, lower costs due to the one week differential when compared to the fourth quarter of 2006 as well as to the
achieved synergies from the Transaction with Domtar Inc., lower maintenance costs, higher shipments for pulp
and lower costs for energy.
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FIFTY-THREE WEEK PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 VERSUS
FIFTY-TWO WEEK PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 25, 2005

Sales

Sales amounted to $3,306 million in 2006, an increase of $39 million, or 1.2%, compared to sales of
$3,267 million in 2005. This increase is mainly attributable to higher average selling prices for both paper and
pulp, resulting from an overall improvement in the pulp and paper markets, partially offset by a decrease in
shipments for paper and pulp, mostly resulting from the closures of our Prince Albert, Saskatchewan pulp and
paper mill and one paper machine at our Dryden pulp and paper mill, as welt as a decrease in shipments of
softwood lumber, partially due to the closures of our Big River and 51% owned Wapawekka, Saskatchewan
sawmills.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales amounted to $2,676 million in 2006, a decrease of $108 million, or 3.9%, compared to cost of
sales of $2,784 million in 2005. This decrease was primarily due to a reduction in the costs incurred in the
production process for pulp, paper and lumber as a result of the paper mill and sawmill closures mentioned
above, partially offset by an increase in operating costs at the Canadian facilities as a result of the negative
impact of a stronger Canadian dollar, an increase in chemical costs, an increase in supplies (primarily packaging
materials) and an increase in other miscellaneous items during 2006, for the facilities that continued to operate.

Operating Loss

Operating loss amounted to $556 million in 2006, a decrease of $22 million, or 3.8%, compared to an
operating loss of $578 million in 2005 due to items mentioned above, as well as a $522 million decrease in
aggregate impairment of property, plant and equipment and closure and restructuring costs in 2000 and the
$65 million refund for countervailing and antidumping duties recorded in 2006. These factors were partially
offset by a $749 million goodwill impairment related to the closure of paper facilities in 2006,

Net Loss

Net loss amounted to $609 million in 2006, an increase of $131 million, or 27%, compared to a net loss of
$478 million in 2005. This increase resulted from the factors mentioned above, in addition to an increase in
income tax expense, mostly due to the non-deductibility for tax purposes of the $749 million goodwill
impairment charge in 2006.
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PAPERS

Fifty-two weeks ended  Fifty-three weeks ended  Fifty-two weeks ended
SELECTED INFORMATION December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 25, 2005

{In millions of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise noted)

Sales
Totalsales .......oovvnininirvnnnnin, 35,116 $3,143 $3,074
Intersegmentsales ..................... (235) = @
$4,881 $3,143 $3,072
Operating income (loss) .................... 321 (608) (492)
Shipments
Paper (in thousands of ST) .............. 4,501 3,024 3,297
Pulp (in thousands of ADMT) ............ 1,329 798 828
Benchmark prices (1%
Copy 20 b sheets ($/ton) .. .. ............ $ 968 $ 902 b 822
Offset S0 lbrolls ($/ton) ................ 818 823 726
Coated publication, no.5, 40 1b Offset, rolls
($hon) ... ... e 787 863 877
Pulp NBSK—U.S. market ($/ADMT) ..... 824 722 647
Pulp NBHK—1Japan market @} ($/ADMT) .. 655 592 526

(1) Source: Pulp & Paper Week. As such, these prices do not necessarily reflect our transaction prices,

(2) Based on Pulp and Paper Week’s Southern Bleached Hardwood Kraft pulp prices for Japan, increased by an
average differential of $15/ADMT between Northern and Southern Bleached Hardwood Kraft pulp prices.

Sales and Operating Income
Sales

Sales in our Papers business amounted to $4,881 million in 2007, an increase of $1,738 million, or 55%
compared to sales of $3,143 million in 2006 due to the acquisition of Domtar Inc. Excluding sales of
$1,803 million attributable to Domtar Inc., sales in 2007 amounted to $3,078 million, a decrease of $65 million
compared 1o sales in 2006. The decrease is attributable to lower shipments for paper of approximately 8%,
excluding shipments attributable to Domtar Inc., in part due to the additional week of operation in 2006, panially
offset by an increase in average selling prices for pulp and paper and higher shipments for pulp of approximately
5%, excluding shipments attributable to Domtar Inc.

Domtar Inc.’s sales for the forty-three week period ended December 30, 2007 amounted to $1,803 million
and were impacted by higher average selling prices for paper and pulp, partially offset by lower shipments for
paper and pulp.

Sales in our Paper business amounted to $3,143 million in 2006, an increase of $71 million, or 2%
compared to sales of $3,072 million in 2005. The increase is attributable to an increase in average selling prices
for pulp and paper, partially offset by lower shipments for pulp and paper of approximately 4% and 8%,
respectively. The decrease in pulp and paper shipments is primarily due to the closure of our Prince Albert pulp
and paper mill as well as the closure of one paper machine at our Dryden pulp and paper mill in the second
quarter of 2006.

Operating Income

Operating income in our Papers business amounted to $321 million in 2007, an increase of $929 mitlion
compared to an operating loss of $608 million in 2006 in part due to the acquisition of Domtar Inc. Excluding the
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operating income of $187 million attributable to Domtar Inc., operating income in 2007 amounted to
$134 million, an increase of $742 million compared to an operating loss in 2006. The increase is mostly
attributable to the absence in 2007 of a $749 million goodwill impairment expense recorded in the first quarter of
2006 as well as higher average selling prices for paper and pulp, lower costs for freight resulting from our freight
optimization efforts, lower costs for energy and higher shipments for pulp. These factors were partially offset by
a $92 miilion charge for the impairment of property, plant and equipment recorded in the fourth quarter of 2007
associated with the reorganization of our Dryden paper mill, as well as lower shipments for paper, mostly due to
the additional week of operations in the fourth quarter of 2006. Additional factors include the negative impact of
a stronger Canadian dollar, higher costs for fiber, as well as higher costs for chemicals which is mostly due to the
increase in the price of starch and sodium chlorate which are used in the production of paper and pulp,
respectively.

Domtar Inc.’s operating income totaled $187 million for the forty-three week period ended December 30, 2007.
Domtar Inc.’s operating income was impacted by lower shipments for paper and pulp and higher costs for fiber and
chemicals, partially offset by gains totaling $51 million received in the fourth quarter of 2007 related to a lawsuit
settlement and an insurance claim settlement, higher average selling prices for paper and pulp, and lower freight costs.

Operating loss in our Papers business amounted to $608 million in 2006, an increase of $116 million
compared to an operating loss of $492 miilion in 2005. The increase in operating loss is primarily due to a $749
million of goodwill impairment expense recorded in the first quarter of 2006, the negative impact of a stronger
Canadian dollar, higher costs for chemicals, an increase in supplies, primarily packaging materials, and an
increase in other miscellaneous items during 2006 for our facilities that continued to operate. These factors were
partially offset by a decrease in impairment of property, plant and equipment and closure and restructuring costs
and a reduction in manufacturing costs as a result of the closure of our Prince Albert pulp and paper miil as well
as one paper machine at our Dryden pulp and paper mill in the second quarter of 2006.

Pricing Environment

In our Papers business, our overall average sales prices increased in 2007 compared to 2006. Our average
sales price for copy 20 Ib sheets and offset 50 Ib rolls was higher on average by $106/ton, or 12%, and $14/ton,
or 2%, respectively, in 2007 compared to 2006. A $60/ton price increase has been announced for business paper
grades, including copy and for several commercial printing and publication grades, including offset and opaque,
effective in the first quarter of 2008.

Our average sales prices for both Northern Bleached Softwood Kraft (“NBSK”) pulp and Northern Bleached
Hardwood Kraft (“NBHK") pulp increased by $80/tonne, or 13%, in 2007 compared to 2006. A $20/tonne price
increase has been announced for hardwood pulp, effective in February 2008.

Operations
Shipments

Qur paper shipments, excluding shipments attributable to Domtar Inc., decreased by 248,000 tons, or 8%, in
2007 compared to 2006 mostly due to the additional week of operations in the fourth quarter of 2006 and the
higher lack-of-order downtime resulting in the reorganization of our Dryden paper mill.

Our pulp trade shipments, excluding shipments of Domtar Inc., increased by 43,000 tonnes, or 5%, in 2007
compared to 2006 mostly due to increased lack-of-order downtime in paper, resulting in the availability of more
saleable market pulp.

Labor

A collective agreement expired in April 2004 for our Lebel-sur-Quévillon pulp mill (affecting
approximately 350 employees). Negotiations have ceased and the mill has been closed for an indefinite period
since November 2005.
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Negotiations for the renewal of the collective agreement that expired in November 2007 for our Ashdown
mill (affecting approximately 900 employees) began in October 2007 and are still ongoing. Negotiations for the
renewal of the collective agreement that expired in August 2007 for our Woodland mill began in
November 2007, and are ongoing as well.

Closure and Restructuring

In December 2007, we announced the reorganization of our Dryden facility as well as the closure of our Port
Edwards mill, effective in the first and second quarters of 2008, respectively. These measures will result in the
curtailment of approximately 336,000 tons of paper capacity per year and will affect approximately
625 employees.

In July 2007, Domtar announced the closure of two paper machines, one at our Woodland pulp and paper
mill and another at our Port Edwards pulp and paper mill as well as our Gatineau paper mill and our Ottawa
converting center, effective October 2007. In total, these closures resulted in the curtailment of approximately
284,000 tons of paper capacity per year and affected approximately 430 employees.

In 2006, we indefinitely closed our Prince Albert pulp and paper mill and one paper machine at our Dryden
pulp and paper mill (effective in the second quarter of 2006).

In 2007, we incurred $106 million for closure and restructuring costs ($15 miltion in 2006 and $537 million
in 2005), including impairment of property, plant and equipment of $92 miltion (nil in 2006 and $499 million in
2005). For more details on the closure and restructuring cost, refer to Item 8, Financial Statements, Note 16, of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

At December 30, 2007, $78 million of the paper segment closure and restructuring cost liability relate to
operations and activities of Domtar Inc., which was acquired by Domtar Corporation on March 7, 2007, and were
part of a plan that had begun to be assessed and formulated by management at that date. As a result, these costs
represent assumed liabilities and costs incurred as of the acquisition date and were treated as part of the purchase
price allocation in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) 95-3, Recognition of Liabilities in
Connection with a Purchase Business Combination. These closures also impacted the fair value of cenain
property, plant and equipment as part of the Domtar Inc. purchase price allocation.

In 2006, we recognized restructuring costs which included paper facilities and restructuring activities at our
Dryden and Prince Albert facilities.

In the fourth quarter of 2005, we announced the indefinite closure of our Prince Albert pulp and paper mill
and one paper machine at our Dryden pulp and paper mill and we recognized closure costs and impairment
charges related to these closures. Additionally, we recognized impairment charges for our Big River and 51%
owned Wapawekka, Saskatchewan, sawmill as they sold chips and hog fuel to the closed pulp and paper facility
and did not have an alternate market for such residual.

Other

On September 12, 2007, we signed a memorandum of understanding with the Province of Saskatchewan
regarding a plan for the redevelopment of the Prince Albert facility. On November 30, 2007, we were informed
that the Government of Saskatchewan was not prepared to participate in the financing and redevelopment of the
Prince Albert facility into a NBSK pulp mill producing 100% Forest Stewardship Council (“FSC”) certified
softwood pulp for the North American and offshore markets. As such, the Company has not determined whether
this previously idled facility will be reopened, sold or closed.

On May 9, 2007, we concluded the sale of our Vancouver property for total proceeds of $20 million. No
gain or loss was recorded on the sale.
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Our Lebel-sur-Quévillon pulp mill, which was part of our acquisition of Domtar Inc., was indefinitely
closed in the fourth quarter of 2005 due to unfavorable economic conditions. As of December 30, 2007, the
Lebel-sur-Quévillon pulp mill remains indefinitely idled due to continuing unfavorable economic factors such as
high wood fiber, energy and transportation costs, a strong Canadian dollar and uncompetitive labor costs. At
December 30, 2007, our Lebel-sur-Quévillon pulp mill is recorded at its estimated fair value as it was included in
the purchase price allocation upon acquisition.

PAPER MERCHANTS

Fifty-two weeks ended  Fifty-three weeks ended  Fifty-two weeks ended
SELECTED INFORMATION December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 25, 2005

(In millions of U.S. dollars)
Sales . ... ... $812 — —
Operating income ....................... 13 — —

Sales and operating income
Sales

Our Paper Merchants business generated sales of $812 million for the fifty-two weeks ended
December 30, 2007. The Predecessor had no Paper Merchants operations and as a result, sales for 2007 represent
forty-three weeks of sales, from March 7, 2007, to December 30, 2007.

Operating Income

Operating income amounted to $13 million for the fifty-two weeks ended December 30, 2007.

Operations
Labor

We have collective agreements covering six locations in the U.S. and five locations in Canada that will
expire between December 2008 and December 2010,

wWOO0D

Fifty-two weeks ended  Fifty-three weeks ended  Fifty-two weeks ended

SELECTED INFORMATION December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006 December 253, 2005
(In millions of U.S. dollars, unless otherwise noted)
Sales . ... ... e $304 $234 $ 338
Intersegment sales ................... (50) __('_7_] )} (143)
254 163 195
Operating income (loss) .................. (63} 52 (86)
Shipments (millions of FBM) .............. 684 223 431
Benchmark prices (1
Lumber G.L. 2x4x8 stud ($/MFBM) ... .. $321 $343 $ 418
Lumber G.L. 2x4 R/L no. 1 & no. 2
(3/MFBM) .. .. ........ciiiei 329 368 420

(1) Source: Random Lengths. As such, these prices do not necessarily reflect our sales prices.

52




Sales and Operating Loss
Sales

Sales in our Wood business amounted to $254 million in 2007, an increase of $91 million, or 56%, compared
to sales of $163 million in 2006 primarily due to the acquisition of Domtar Inc. Excluding sales of $192 million
attributable to Domtar Inc., sales in 2007 amounted to $62 million, a decrease of $101 million compared to sales in
2006. The decrease is attributable to lower shipments, mostly due to the indefinite closure of our Big River and 51%
owned Wapawekka, Saskatchewan sawmills during the first quarter of 2006, the slowdown in the U.S. housing
industry as well as the additional week of operations in the fourth quarter of 2006 and lower average selling prices.

Domtar Inc.’s sales amounted to $192 million in the forty-three week period ended December 30, 2007 and
were impacted by lower shipments and lower average selling prices.

Sales in our Wood business amounted to $163 million in 2006, a decrease of $32 million, or 16% when
compared to sales of $195 million in 2005. The decrease in sales is primarily a result of the closure of our Big
River and 51% owned Wapawekka sawmills during the first quarter of 2006.

Operating Loss

Operating loss in our Wood business amounted to 363 million in 2007, an increase in operating loss of
$115 million compared to an operating income of $52 million in 2006 primarily due to the absence of a
$65 million refund for antidumping and countervailing duties recorded in the fourth quarter of 2006 as well as
the acquisition of Domtar Inc. Excluding an operating loss of $36 million attributable to Domtar Inc., the
operating loss in 2007 amounted to $27 million, an increase in operating loss of $79 million compared to 2006.
The increase in operating loss is attributable to the above mentioned $65 million duties refund recorded in the
fourth quarter of 2006, lower shipments, mostly due to the indefinite closure of our Big River and 51% owned
Wapawekka sawmills during the first quarter of 2006 as well as the additional week of operations in the fourth
quarter of 2006, lower average selling prices and a $4 million charge for the goodwill impairment recorded in the
fourth quarter of 2007, partially offset by lower costs resulting from the sawmill closures mentioned above.

Domtar Inc.’s operating loss totaled $36 million for the forty-three week period ended December 30, 2007.
Factors impacting Domtar Inc.’s operating loss includes lower average selling prices and lower shipments for
lumber and chips, partially offset by lower energy costs and lower freight charges.

Operating income in our Wood business amounted to $52 million in 2006, an increase in operating income
of $138 million compared to operating loss of $86 million in 2005. The increase in operating income is primarily
due to the absence in 2006 of a $77 million of closure and restructuring costs, including impairment of property,
plant and equipment, recorded in 2005, the $65 million refund for antidumping and countervailing duties
recorded in 2006, lower manufacturing costs primarily due to the closure of our Big River and 51% owned
Wapawekka sawmills during the first quarter of 2006, partially offset by higher shipments of wood products.

Pricing Environment

Our average sales price for Great Lakes 2x4 stud decreased by $30/MFBM, or 10%, and our average sales
price for Great Lakes 2x4 random length decreased by $47/MFBM, or 14%, in 2007 compared to 2006.

Operations
Shipments

On an annual basis, our lumber and wood shipments, excluding shipments of Domtar Inc., decreased by
87 MFBM, or 39%, compared to last year, mostly as a result of the indefinite closure of our Big River and 51%
owned Wapawekka sawmills during the first quarter of 2006, the additional week of operations in 2006 as well as
the slowdown in the U.S. housing industry.
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Labor

In May 2007, a five year agreement was ratified with the union at our Va! d'Or sawmill (affecting
approximately 88 employees).

Negotiations for a new collective agreement for our Sullivan remanufacturing facility (affecting
approximately 60 employees) have ceased and the sawmill became a non-unionized facility effective in the
second quarter of 2007.

A collective agreement expired in June 2007 for our Sainte-Marie sawmill. Negotiations for the renewal of
this collective agreement (affecting approximately 70 employees) began in August 2007 and are still ongoing.

A collective agreement expired in August 2005 for our Nairn Centre sawmill and a new agreement expiring
in 2010 was ratified by the members in December 2007.

Fiber supply

The Province of Quebec adopted legislation, which became effective April 1, 2003, that reduced allowable
wood-harvesting volumes by an average of 20% on public lands and 25% on territories covered by an agreement
between the Government of Quebec and Cree First Nations. As a result, the amount of fiber, primarily softwood
fiber, we are permitted to harvest annually under our existing licenses from the Quebec government, was reduced
by approximately 500,000 cubic meters to approximately 1.8 million cubic meters, reflecting a 21% reduction.
The Chief Forester of Quebec has proposed a further reduction of 55,000 cubic meters, or 3%, of the total
sofiwood annual allowable cut of forests managed by Domtar. The reduction will be effective from April 2008 to
March 2009 and would significantly affect the supply of fiber for our Northern Quebec softwood sawmill, The
reduction in harvest volume would also result in a corresponding increase in the unit cost of wood delivered 1o
the sawmills. As a result of the strength of the Canadian dollar against the U.S. dollar, low lumber prices and
other factors, a significant portion of our wood harvesting operations in Quebec have been shut down and all but
two, Val d’Or and Matagami, of these facilities related to such operations have been closed indefinitely. In
June 2007, we restarted our Val d’Or sawmill, as a result of a new contract for our chips and more favorable
economic conditions, which has an annual capacity of approximately 160 million board feet, and in
January 2008, we restarted our Matagami sawmill which has an annua! capacity of approximately 100 million
board feet.

On October 1, 2007, Domtar Inc. received a written notice from the Minister of Natural Resources and
Wildlife for the province of Quebec purporting to revoke, effective September 14, 2007, Domtar Inc.’s forest
license rights relating to its Grand-Remous and Malarctic sawmills representing approximately 567,000 cubic
meters of fiber on an annual basis. While we are currently seeking the reinstatement of these license rights
through formal legal proceedings, there is no assurance that we will be successful and we may lose these forest
license rights permanently.

Other

In January 2008, we announced that Domtar Inc. and Conifex Inc. agreed to terminate the agreement entered
into in June 2007 to sell substantially all of our Wood business to Conifex Inc. See Recent Developments,
“Agreement for the Sale of Wood Business” above for further details.

In September 2007, we concluded the sale of our 45% investment in Nabakatuk Forest Products Inc. for
total proceeds of approximately $4 million. No gain or loss was recorded on the sale.

In the first quarter of 2006, we indefinitely closed our Big River and 51% owned Wapawekka,

Saskatchewan sawmills due to the closure of our Prince Albert, Saskatchewan facility and poor market
conditions. These previously idled facilitics are currently not in operation. At December 30, 2007, we had not
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determined whether these facilities will be reopened, sotd or closed. In the event that our Big River,
Saskatchewan sawmill is closed, the Province of Saskatchewan may require active decommissioning and
reclamation at the facility, which would likely include investigation and remedial action for areas of significant
environmental impact.

In January 2007, due to the difficult market conditions that have prevailed in the wood sector in recent
months, including the slowdown of the U.S. housing industry and the new softwood lumber agreement, we
announced the indefinite closure of our White River sawmill which became effective prior to the end of the
second quarter of 2007. The closure impacted approximately 140 permanent positions and reduced our
production capacity by 110 mitlion board feet of lumber.

CONSOLIDATED PRO FORMA RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR FIFTY-TWO WEEK PERIOD
ENDED DECEMBER 30, 2007 VERSUS FIFTY-THREE WEEK PERIOD ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

The following unaudited pro forma information for the years ended December 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006 give effect to the Transaction as if it occurred as of the beginning of the respective fiscal
periods. The December 31, 2006 pro forma information was prepared based on the historical financial
information of the Predecessor and Domtar Inc. The December 30, 2007 pro forma information was prepared
based on our historical financial information for the fifty-two week period ended December 30, 2007 as well as
the historical financial information for Domtar Inc. for the period from January 1, 2007 to March 7, 2007. The
unaudited pro forma financial information includes adjustments directly attributable to the Transaction.

This unaudited pro forma financial information is for illustrative and informational purposes only and is not
necessarily indicative of the results of operations that would have been achieved had the Transaction actually
taken place at the dates indicated, and does not purport to be indicative of future operating results.

Filty-two weeks ended  Fifty-three weeks ended
PRO FORMA FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006

{In millions of U.S. dollars,
unless otherwise noted)

BAlEE © v et e $6,520 $6,750
Operating income (1oss) . ... ... v 300 (251)
Netearnings (1088) .. ... i i e 62 (550)
Sales

Pro forma sales amounted to $6.520 million in 2007, a decrease of $230 million, or 3%, from pro forma
sales of $6,750 million in 2006. The decrease in sales was mainly attributable to lower shipments for paper and
wood products, mostly resulting from the additional week of operations in 2006 and our restructuring efforts
undertaken in 2007 including mill and sawmill closures, as well as lower average selling prices for our wood
products. These factors were partially offset by higher average selling prices for paper and pulp and higher
shipments for pulp.

Operating Income

Pro forma operating income amounted to $300 million in 2007, an increase of $551 million from a pro
forma operating loss of $251 million in 2006. The increase in operating income is mostly attributable to the
absence in 2007 of a $749 million goodwill impairment charge recorded in the first quarter of 2006 based on an
evaluation of goodwill relating to the Papers segment, the realization of savings stemming from restructuring
activities, higher average selling prices for pulp and paper, and synergy realizations including lower costs for
freight. On a pro forma basis, operating income in 2007 was also positively impacted by an aggregate gain of
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$51 million related to a lawsuit and insurance claim settlement, as well as gains on financial instruments. These
factors were partially offset by a duties refund of approximately $210 million recorded in the fourth quarter of
2006 ($65 million recorded by the Predecessor and $145 million recorded by Domtar Inc.), an aggregate
%96 million charge for the impairment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment recorded in the fourth
quarter of 2007 associated with the reorganization of our Dryden paper mill and the goodwill impairment of our
Wood business, the negative impact of a stronger Canadian dollar, higher costs for fiber and chemicals, and
transaction, integration and optimization costs.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION EXPENSE

Prior to the consummation of the Transaction, employees of Weyerhaeuser who were being transferred to
the Company were given the opportunity to exchange their outstanding Weyerhaeuser equity awards for awards
of the Company having the same terms and conditions as their prior Weyerhacuser awards. We have adopted
three plans to provide for the grant of our equity awards in exchange for the prior plan awards. The Restricted
Share Units ("RSU"), Stock Appreciation Rights (“SAR™) and Stock Options mirror the three Weyerhaeuser
plans under which the prior plan awards were initially granted.

In connection with the Transaction, Domtar Corporation also exchanged outstanding options held by
Domtar Inc. employees for options to purchase, on the same terms and conditions, shares of common stock of
Domtar Corporation. The number of shares subject to the options granted in exchange was equal to the number of
common shares of Domtar Inc. that would have been received or a number of shares of Domtar Corporation
commen stock that would provide the equivalent value to the Domtar Inc, common shares determined using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model, depending on if the exercise price was higher, equal to or less than the
market value at the time of the exchange. Further, each outstanding award of restricted Domtar Inc. common
shares and deferred share units was exchanged on a one-for-one basis, and on the same terms and conditions as
applied to Domtar Inc. awards, for awards of restricted shares and deferred share units with respect to the
Company’s common stock.

In June 2007, a number of new equity awards were granted, consisting of performance conditioned
restricted stock units, restricted stock units and non-qualified stock options, which are subject to a variety of
service, performance and market conditions. As of December 30, 2007, one market condition for the first
measurement period was achieved for the performance conditioned restricted stock units. No other performance
condition was achieved.

For the year ended December 30, 2007, compensation expense recognized in our results of operations was
approximately $15 million for all of the outstanding awards. Compensation cost not yet recognized amounted 10
approximately $29 million and will be recognized over the remaining service period. Compensation costs for
performance awards are based on management’s best estimate of the final performance measurement.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Our principal cash requirements are for ongoing operating cost, working capital and capital expenditures, as
well as principal and interest payments on our debt. We expect to fund our liquidity needs primarily with
internally generated funds from our operations and, to the extent necessary, through borrowings under our
revolving credit facility. We also have the ability to fund liquidity requirements through new financing, subject to
satisfactory market conditions and credit ratings.

Our ability to make payments on and to refinance our indebtedness, including debt we have incurred under
the Credit Agreement and new Domtar Corporation notes, and to fund working capital, capital expenditures, debt
service and investments will depend on our ability to generate cash in the future, which is subject to general
economic, financial, competitive, legislative, regulatory and other factors that are beyond our control, The terms
of the debt we incurred under the Credit Agreement and the terms of future indebtedness may impose various
restrictions and covenants on us that could limit our ability to respond to market conditions, to provide for
unanticipated capital investments or to take advantage of business oppertunities.
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Operating Activities

Cash flows provided from operating activities totaled $606 million in 2007, a $249 million increase
compared to cash flows provided from operating activities of $357 million in 2006 in part due to the acquisition
of Domiar Inc. This increase in cash flows generated from operations reflects improved earnings as well as a
decrease in requirements for working capital, in part due to the acquisition of Domtar Inc., partially offset by
pension contributions made in excess of pension expense of $7! million.

Investing Activities

Cash flows provided from investing activities in 2007 amounted to $485 million. Excluding acquired cash
of $573 million in 2007, cash flows used for investing activities was $88 million, compared to cash flows used
for investing activities of $63 million in 2006. The $25 million increase in cash flow used for investing activities,
when excluding cash acquired, is primarily related to higher capital spending, in part due to the acquisition of
Domtar Inc., partially offset by the proceeds from our disposal of properties, plants and equipment. We intend to
limit our annual capital expenditures to below 60% of depreciation.

Financing Activities

Cash flows used for financing activities totaled $1,025 million in 2007 compared to cash flows used for
financing activities of $294 million in 2006. This $731 million increase in cash flows used for financing activities
is mainly attributable to the distribution to Weyerhaeuser of $1,431 million upon the acquisition of Domtar Inc.,
and the repurchase of our Canadian debentures as well as the costs incurred as a result of the debt exchange
undertaken in 2007. These factors were partially offset by net borrowings under our new Credit Agreement of
$643 million (consisting of an $800 million Term loan B facility less repayments) plus an additional $50 million
of borrowings under the revolving credit facility used in the debt exchange.

Capital Resources

Net indebtedness was $2,222 million at December 30, 2007, calculated as bank indebtedness plus long-term
debt net of cash and cash equivalents, compared to $43 million at December 31, 2006. The £2,179 miilion
increase in net indebtedness is due to the outstanding indebtedness of Domtar Inc. at the time of the Transaction
(exchanged for Domtar Corporation debt in the fourth quarter) and borrowings under our credit agreement
entered into in connection with the Transaction.

In connection with the Transaction, the Company, Domtar Paper Company, LLC and Domtar Inc. entered
into a new Credit Agreement, which consisted of an $800 million senior secured tranche B term loan facility and
a $750 million senior secured revolving credit facility. In connection with the closing of the Transaction, the
Company borrowed $800 million under the tranche B term loan facility, which has subsequently been reduced to
$643 million. The revolving credit facility may be used by the Company, Domtar Paper Company, LLC and
Domtar Inc. for working capital needs and for general corporate purposes, and a portion is available for letters of
credit. Borrowings by the U.S. Borrowers under the revolving credit facility will be made available in U.S.
dollars, and borrowings by Domtar Inc. under the revolving credit facility will be made available in U.S. dollars
and/or Canadian dollars and limited to $150 million (or the Canadian dollar equivalent thereof).

The tranche B term loan facility matures on March 7, 2014, and the revolving credit facility matures on
March 7, 2012. The tranche B term loan facility amortizes in nominal quarterly installments (equal to one percent
of the aggregate initial principal amount thereof per annum) with the balance due on the maturity date.

Amounts drawn under the tranche B term loan facility bear annual interest at either a Eurodollar rate plus a
margin of 1.375%, or an alternate base rate plus a margin of 0.375%. Amounts drawn under the revolving credil
facility bear annual interest at either a Eurodollar rate plus a margin of between 1.25% and 2.25%, or an alternate
base rate plus a margin of between 0.25% and 1.25%. Amounts drawn under the revolving credit facility by
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Domtar Inc. in U.S. dollars bear annual interest at either a Eurodollar rate plus a margin of between 1.25% and
2.25%, or a U.S. base rate plus a margin of between 0.25% and 1.25%. Amounts drawn under the revolving
credit facility by Domtar Inc. in Canadian dollars bear annual interest at the Canadian prime rate plus a margin of
between 0.25% and 1.25%. Domtar Inc. may also issue bankers’ acceptances denominated in Canadian dollars
which are subject to an acceptance fee, payable on the date of acceptance, which is calculated at a rate per annum
equal to between 1.25% and 2.25%. The interest rate margins and the acceptance fee, in each case, with respect
to the revolving credit facility, are subject to change based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio.

The Credit Agreement contains a number of covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the
Company and its subsidiaries to make capital expenditures and place restrictions on other matters customarily
restricted in senior secured credit facilities, including restrictions on indebtedness (including guarantee
obligations), liens (including sale and leasebacks), fundamental changes, sales or disposition of property or
assets, investments {including loans, advances, guarantees and acquisitions), transactions with affiliates, hedge
agreements, dividends and other payments in respect of capital stock, changes in fiscal periods, environmental
activity, optional payments and modifications of other material debt instruments, negative pledges and
agreements restricting subsidiary distributions and changes in lines of business. For so long as the revolving
credit commitments are outstanding, we are required to comply with a consolidated EBITDA (as defined under
the Credit Agreement) to consolidated cash interest coverage ratie of greater than 2.50x and a consolidated debt
to consolidated EBITDA (as defined under the Credit Agreement) ratio of less than 4.75x, decreasing to 4.5 on
December 31, 2008. The Credit Agreement contains customary events of default, provided that non-compliance
with the consolidated cash interest coverage ratio or consolidated leverage ratio will not constitute an event of
default under the tranche B term loan facility unless it has not been waived by the revolving credit lenders within
a period of 45 days after notice.

The Company’s direct and indirect, existing and future, U.S. wholly-owned subsidiaries serve as guarantors
of the senior secured credit facilities for any obligations there under of the U.S. borrowers, subject to certain
agreed exceptions. The Company and its subsidiaries, serve as guarantors of Domtar Inc.’s obligations as a
borrower under the senior secured credit facilities, subject to agreed exceptions. Domtar Inc. does not guarantee
Domtar Corporation’s obligations under the Credit Agreement.

The obligations of the Company in respect to the senior secured credit facilities are secured by all of the
equity interests of the Company’s direct and indirect U.S. subsidiaries and 65% of the equity interests of the
Company’s direct and indirect “first-tier” foreign subsidiaries, subject to agreed exceptions, and a perfected first
priority security interest in substantially all of the Company’s and its direct and indirect U.S. subsidiaries’
tangible and intangible assets. The obligations of Domtar Inc., and the obligations of the non-U.S. guarantors, in
respect of the senior secured credit facilities are secured by all of the equity interests of the Company’s direct and
indirect subsidiaries, subject to agreed exceptions, and a perfected first priority security interest, lien and
hypothec in the inventory of Domtar Inc., its immediate parent, and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.

There was $50 million drawn under our revolving credit facility and no borrowings outstanding in the form
of overdraft. In addition, at December 30, 2007, we had outstanding letters of credit pursuant to this bank credit
for an amount of $46 million. We also have other outstanding letters of credit for an amount of $2 million.

During November 2007, certain of Domtar Inc.’s bondholders elected to exchange their Domtar Inc. bonds
for Domtar Corporation bonds with the same maturity and interest rate pursuant to an exchange offer, The
amounts exchanged were $599 million of 7.875% Notes due 2011 (99.96% of the outstanding principal amount),
$348 million of 5.375% Notes due 2013 (99.55% of the outstanding principal amount), $399 million of 7.125 %
Notes due 2015 (99.93% of the outstanding principal amount), and $124 million of 9.5% Notes due 2016
(99.30% of the outstanding principal amount). During December 2007, CDN$80 million of the 10% Debentures
due 2011 (97.32% of the outstanding principal amount} and CDN$74 million of the 10.85% Debentures due
2017 (99.33% of the outstanding principal amount) were purchased and cancelled by Domtar Inc. pursuant to a
tender offer. Also, during December 2007, Domtar Inc. redeemed its Series A and Series B preferred shares.
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Credit Rating

RATING AGENCY SECURITY RATING

Moody’s Investors Services Secured Credit Facilty Bal
Unsecured debt obligations B1

Standard & Poor’s Secured Credit Facilty BB+
Unsecured debt obligations B+

The ratings by Moody’s Investors Services (“Moody’s™) are the fifth and sixth best ratings in terms of
quality within nine rating gradations, with the numerical modifier 1 indicating a ranking at the top end of a rating
category. According to Moody’s, a rating of Ba has speculative elements and a rating of B is considered
speculative. The ratings by Standard & Poor’s (“S&P") are the fifth and sixth best ratings in terms of quality
within ten rating gradations, with the “plus” indicating a ranking at the higher end of this category. According to
S&P, ratings of BB and B have significant speculative characteristics.

Both agencies have a “stable” outlook in respect to these ratings. Any reductions in our credit ratings would
have a negative impact on our access to and cost of capital and financial flexibility. The above ratings are not a
recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities and may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the
above rating agencies.

Domtar Canada Paper Inc. Exchangeable Shares

Upon the consummation of the Transaction, Domtar Inc. shareholders had the option to receive either
common stock of the Company or shares of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. that are exchangeable for common stock
of the Company. As of December 30, 2007, we had 44,252,831 exchangeable shares issued and outstanding. The
exchangeable shares of Domtar (Canada)} Paper Inc. are intended to be substantially the economical equivalent to
shares of the Company’s common stock. These shareholders may exchange the exchangeable shares for shares of
Domtar Corporation common stock on a one-for-one basis at any time. The exchangeable shares may be
redeemed by Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. on a redemption date to be set by the Board of Directors, which cannot
be prior to July 31, 2023, or upon the occurrence of certain specified events.

OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

In the normal course of business, we finance certain of our activities off balance sheet through leases and
securitization,

Leases

On an ongoing basis, we enter into operating leases for property, plant and equipment. Minimum future
rental payments under these operating leases, determined at December 30, 2007, amounted to $87 million.

Receivables Securitization

We sell certain of our trade receivables through a securitization program, which expires in February 2011.
We use securitization of our receivables as a source of financing by reducing our working capital requirements.
This securitization program consists of the sale of receivables, or the sale of a senior beneficial interest in them,
to a special purpose trust managed by a financial institution for multiple sellers of receivables. The agreement
governing our receivables securitization program normally allows the daily sale of new receivables to replace
those that have been collected. It also limits the cash that can be received from the sale of the senior beneficial
interest 10 a maximum of $150 mitlion. The subordinated interest retained by us is included in “Receivables™ on
the consolidated balance sheet and will be collected only after the senior beneficial interest has been settled. The
book value of the retained subordinated interest approximates fair value.
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As of December 30, 2007, the senior beneficial interest in receivables held by third parties was $130
million. We expect to continue selling receivables on an ongoing basis, given the attractive discount rates,
Should this program be discontinued either by management’s decision or due to termination of the program by
the provider, our working capital and bank debt requirements will increase.

GUARANTEES
Indemnifications

In the normal course of business, we offer indemnifications relating to the sale of our businesses and real
estate. In general, these indemnifications may relate to claims from past business operations, the failure to abide
by covenants and the breach of representations and warranties included in sales agreements. Typically, such
representations and warranties relate to taxation, environmental, product and employee matters, The terms of
these indemnification agreements are generally for an unlimited period of time. At December 30, 2007, we are
unable to estimate the potential maximum liabilities for these types of indemnification guarantees as the amounts
are contingent upon the outcome of future events, the nature and likelihood of which cannot be reasonably
estimated at this time. Accordingly, no provisions have been recorded. These indemnifications have not yielded
significant expenses in the past.

Tax Sharing Agreement

In conjunction with the Transaction, we signed a Tax Sharing Agreement that governs both our and
Weyerhaeuser's rights and obligations after the Transaction with respect to taxes for both pre and post-
Distribution periods in regards to ordinary course taxes, and also covers related administrative matters. The
Distribution refers to the distribution of our common stock to Weyerhaeuser shareholders.

We will generally be required to indemnify Weyerhaeuser and its shareholders against any tax resulting
from the Distribution if that tax results from an act or omission by us after the Distribution. However, if
Weyerhaeuser, should recognize a gain on the Distribution for reasons not related to an act or omission to act by
us after the Distribution, Weyerhacuser would be responsible for such taxes and would not be entitled to
indemnification by us under the Tax Sharing Agreement. In addition, to preserve the tax-free treatment of the
Distribution to Weyerhaeuser, the following actions will be subject to restrictions for a two-year period following
the date of the Distribution:

* redemption, recapitalization, repurchase or acquisition of our own capital stock;
* issuance of capital stock or convertible debt;

» liquidation of Domtar Corporation;

* discontinuance of the operations of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business;

* sale or disposition (other than in the ordinary course of business) of all or a substantial part of the
Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business; or

* other actions, omissions to act or transactions that could jeopardize the tax-free status of the
Distribution.

Pension plans

We have indemnified and held harmless the trustees of our pension funds, and the respective officers,
directors, employees and agents of such trustees, from any and all costs and expenses arising out of the
performance of their obligations under the relevant trust agreements, including in respect of their reliance on
authorized instructions from us or for failing to act in the absence of authorized instructions. These
indemnifications survive the termination of such agreements. At December 30, 2007, we had not recorded a
liability associated with these indemnifications, as we do not expect to make any payments pertaining to these
indemnifications.
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E.B. Eddy Acquisition

On July 31, 1998, Domtar Inc. acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of E.B. Eddy Limited and
E.B. Eddy Paper, Inc. (E.B. Eddy), an integrated producer of specialty paper and wood products. The purchase
agreement includes a purchase price adjustment whereby, in the event of the acquisition by a third party of more
than 50% of the shares of Domtar Inc. in specified circumstances, Domtar Inc. may have had to pay up 1o a
maximum of CDN$120 million (approximately $121 million), an amount which is gradually declining over a
25-year period. At March 7, 2007, the closing date of the Transaction, the maximum amount of the purchase
price adjustment was CDN$110 million (approximately $111 mitlion). No provision was recorded for this
potential purchase price adjustment.

On March 14, 2007, we received a letter from George Weston Limited (the previous owner of E.B. Eddy
and a party to the purchase agreement) demanding payment of CDN$110 million (approximately $111 million)
as a result of the consummation of the Transaction. On June 12, 2007, an action was commenced by George
Weston Limited against Domtar Inc. in the Superior Court of Justice of the Province of Ontario, Canada,
claiming that the consummation of the Transaction triggered the purchase price adjustment and seeking a
purchase price adjustment of CDN$110 million (approximately $111 mitlion) as well as additional compensatory
damages. We do not believe that the consummation of the Transaction triggers an obligation to pay an increase in
consideration under the purchase price adjustment and intend to defend ourselves vigorously against any claims
with respect thereto. However, we may not be successful in our defense of such claims, and if we are ultimately
required to pay an increase in consideration, such payment may have a material adverse effect on our liquidity,
results of operations and financial condition,

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

In the normal course of business, we enter into certain contractual obligations and commercial
commitments. The following tables provide our obligations and commitments at December 30, 2007

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

CONTRACT TYPE 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 THEREAFTER TOTAL
Debentures and notes . ... ... oviveevennnnnn $12 $10 $ 8 %610 $ 58 $1,479 $2,177
Capital leases ............. ... ..o 8 7 6 4 4 26 55
Long-termdebt . ............. .. .. ... 20 17 14 614 62 1,505 2,232
Liabilities related to uncertain tax benefitsth ... .. — — _— — —_ — 40
Operating leases . ... ....cooovvvrnanns 29 22 16 9 5 6 87
Total obligations .. .. ...................... $49 $39 $30 $623 § 67 $1,511 $2,359

COMMERCIAL OBLIGATIONS

COMMITMENT TYPE 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 THEREAFTER TOTAL

Other commercial commitments® ... .............. 397 $26 $9 E E $144

(1) We have recognized total liabilities related to uncertain tax benefits of $40 million as of December 30,
2007. The timing of payments related to these obligations is uncertain, however, none of this amount is
expected to be paid within the next year,

(2) Includes commitments to purchase roundwood, wood, chips, gas, electricity and certain chemicals.

In addition, we expect to contribute a total amount of $72 million to the pension plans in 2008.

For 2008 and the foreseeable future, we expect cash flows from operations and from our various sources of
financing to be sufficient to meet our contractual obligations and commercial commitments.
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RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued FASB Staff Position AUG
AIR-1, “Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities.” This Staff Position prohibits the use of the
previously acceptable accrue-in-advance method of accounting for planned major maintenance activities in
annual and interim financial reporting periods. The three accounting methods permitted under the Staff Position
are: 1) direct expensing method, 2) buiit-in overhaul method and 3) deferral method. On January 1, 2007, we
adopted retroactively the direct expense method with restatement of prior interim periods. We previously used
the accrue-in-advance method for interim periods. The adoption of this Staff Position had no significant impact
on our annual consolidated financial statements.

Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 487). This interpretation, that we adopted on January 1, 2007,
clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax positions recognized in a company’s financial statements in accordance
with Statement 109. FIN 48 prescribes a more likely than not recognition threshold and measurement attribute
for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax
return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification of a liability for unrecognized tax benefits,
accounting for interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, and expanded income tax disclosures. The
adoption of this Interpretation had no significant impact on our consolidated financial statements.

Fair Value Option

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (“SFAS 1597). SFAS 159 permits an entity to measure certain financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value. Under SFAS 159, entities that elect the fair value option will report unrealized gains and
losses in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option may be elected on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, with few exceptions, as long as it is applied to the instrument in its entirety. We
have decided not to adopt the fair value option for any of our existing financial instruments.

Fair Value Measurements

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements™ (“SFAS 1577).
SFAS 157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 was expected to be effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning
after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. On February 12, 2008, the FASB issued
FASB Staff Position No. 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157" (“FSP") that amends
Statement 157 to delay the effeclive date for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those
that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis (that is, at least
annually). For such items, FSP defers the effective date of Statement 157 10 fiscal years beginning afier
November 15, 2008. We do not expect the adoption will have a significant impact on our financial position or
results of operations, however, additional disclosures in our financial statements will be required.

Business Combinations

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 141 {revised 2007), “Business Combinations” {SFAS
No. 141(R)}. This Statement replaces SFAS No. 141, “Business Combinations.” SFAS No. 141(R) requires an
acquirer 10 recognize the assets acquired, the labilities assumed, including those arising from contingent
considerations and contractual contingencies based on their fair values as measured on the acquisition date. In
addition, SFAS No. 141(R} requires the acquirer to measure the noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at fair
value, which will result in recognizing the goodwill atiributable to the noncontrolling interest in addition to the
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goodwill attributable to the acquirer. SFAS No. 141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
December 15, 2008. Since Statement 141(R) will only be applicable to future business combinations, it will not
have a significant effect on our financial position, resuits of operations or cash flow prior to such acquisitions.

Noncontrolling Interests

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements” (SFAS No. 160). SFAS No. 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements,” to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This Statement clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated
financial statements. SFAS No. 160 changes the way the consolidated earnings (loss) statement is presented by
requiring consolidated net earnings (loss) to be reported including the amounts attributable to both the parent
interest and the noncontrolling interest. In addition, the Statement requires disclosure on the face of the
consolidated statement of operations of the amounts of consolidated net earnings (loss) attributable to the parent
interest and to the noncontrolling interest. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal periods, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. We are not expecting the initial adoption of
SFAS No. 160 to have a significant effect on our financial position, results of operations and cash flows as we
have no significant non-controlling interests.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect our results of operations and financial position. On an ongoing basis, management
reviews its estimates, including those related to environmental matters and other asset retirement obligations,
useful lives, impairment of long-lived assets, goodwill, pension plans and other post-retirement benefit plans and
income taxes based on currently available information. Actual resuits could differ from those estimates.

These critical accounting policies reflect matters that contain a significant level of management estimates
about future events, reflect the most complex and subjective judgments, and are subject to a fair degree of
measurement uncertainty.

Environmental matters and other asset retirement obligations

Environmental expenditures for effluent treatment, air emission, landfill operation and closure, asbestos
containment and removal, bark pile management, silvicultural activities and site remediation (together referred to
as environmental matters) are expensed or capitalized depending on their future economic benefit. In the normal
course of business, we incur certain operating costs for environmental matters that are expensed as incurred.
Expenditures for property, plant and equipment that prevent future environmental impacts are capitalized and
amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 to 40 years. Provisions for environmental matters are not discounted
and are recorded when remediation efforts are likely and can be reasonably determined.

We recognize asset retirement obligations, at fair value, in the period in which we incur a legal obligation
associated with the retirement of an asset. Qur asset retirement obligations are principally linked to landfill
capping obligations, asbestos removal obligations and demolition of certain abandoned buildings. Conditional
asset retirement obligations are recognized, at fair value, when the fair value of the liability can be reasonably
estimated. The associated costs are capitalized as part of the carrying value of the related asset and depreciated
over its remaining useful life. The liability is accreted using a credit adjusted risk-free interest rate.

The estimate of fair value is based on the results of the expected future cash Tlow approach, in which
multiple cash flow scenarios that reflect a range of possible outcomes are considered. We have established cash
flow scenarios for each individual asset retirement obligation. Probabilities are applied to each of the cash flow
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scenarios to arrive at an expected future cash flow. There is no supplemental risk adjustment made to the
expected cash flows. The expected cash flow for each of the asset retirement obligations are discounted using the
credit adjusted risk-free interest rate for the comresponding period until the settlement date. The rates used vary,
based on the prevailing rate at the moment of recognition of the liability and on its settlement period. The rates
used vary between 4.5% and 12.0%.

Cash flow estimates incorporate either assumptions that marketplace participants would use in their
estimates of fair value, whenever that information is available without undue cost and effort, or assumptions
developed by internal experts.

During the first quarter of 2006, we closed our pulp and paper mill in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan and the
Big River sawmill in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan due to poor market conditions. We have not determined at this
time whether the facilities will be reopened, sold or permanently closed. In the event the facilities are
permanently closed, the Province of Saskatchewan may require active decommissioning and reclamation at one
or both facilities. In the event decommissioning and reclamation is required at either facility, the work is likely to
include investigation and remedial action for areas of significant environmental impacts.

In 2007, our operating expenses for environmental matters amounted to $85 million,

We made capital expenditures for environmental matters of $11 million in 2007, for the improvement of air
emissions, effluent treatment and remedial actions to address environmental compliance. At this time, we cannot
reasonably estimate the additional capital expenditures that may be required. However, management expects any
additional required expenditure would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position,
earnings or cash flows.

We are also a party to various proceedings relating to the cleanup of hazardous waste sites under the
Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, commonly known as *“Superfund,”
and similar state laws. The EPA and/or various state agencies have notified us that we may be a potentially
responsible party with respect to other hazardous waste sites as to which no proceedings have been instituted
against us. We continue to take remedial action under the Care and Control Program at a number of former
operating sites, especially in the wood preserving sector, due to possible soil, sediment or groundwater
contamination. The investigation and remediation process is lengthy and subject to the uncertainties of changes
in legal requirements, technological developments and the allocation of lability among potentially responsible
parties.

While we believe that we have determined the costs for environmental matters likely to be incurred, based
on known information, our ongeing efforts to identify potential environmental concerns that may be associated
with the properties may lead to future environmental investigations. These efforts may result in the determination
of additional environmental costs and liabilities, which cannot be reasonably estimated at this time.

Domtar Inc. was issued a Request for Response Action (“RFRA™) by the Minnesota Pollution Coatrol
Agency (“MPCA”) for the clean-up of tar seeps and soils at a former coa! tar distillation plant located in Duluth,
Minnesota. On March 27, 1996, the MPCA issued a RFRA to Domtar Inc., Interlake Corp., Allied-Signal, Inc.
and Beazer East, Inc. requiring the investigation and potential remediation of a portion of an industrial site
located in Duluth, Minnesota, believed to contain contaminated sediments originating from former coke and gas
plants and coal tar distillation plants. Domtar Inc. formerly operated one coal tar distillation plant at this site. The
total cost of the likely remediation is estimated to be between $3 million and $7 million. Final allocation of
remediation cost is expected to be determined in the second quarter of 2008. At December 30, 2007, we had a
provision of $4 million for remediation costs.

At December 30, 2007, we had a provision of $119 million for environmental matters and other asset
retirernent obligations. Additional costs, not known or identifiable, could be incurred for remediation efforts.
Based on policies and procedures in place to monitor environmental exposure, we believe that such additional
remediation costs would not have a material adverse effect on our financial position, earnings or cash flows,
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At December 30, 2007, anticipated undiscounted payments in each of the next five years are as follows:

2008 2009 20104 2011 2012 THEREAFTER TOTAL

Environmental provision and other asset retirement
obligation . ... e $21 $32 s14 $7 %7 $38 $119

Useful lives

Our property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, including asset
impairment write-down. Interest costs are capitalized for significant projects. For timber limits and timberlands,
amortization is calculated using the unit of production method. For deferred financing fees, amortization is
calculated using the effective interest rate method. For all other assets, amortization is calculated using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

We acquired intangible assets as part of the Transaction. Our intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization, including any applicable intangible asset impairment write-down. Water rights,
customer relationships, trade names and a supplier agreement are amortized on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 40 years, 20 years, 7 years and 5 years, respectively. Natural gas contracts and power
purchase agreements are each amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective contract. The
weighted-average amortization period is 4 years for natural gas contracts and 25 years for power purchase
agreements. Cutting rights are amortized using the units of production method.

On a regular basis, we review the estimated useful lives of our propenty, plant and equipment as well as our
intangible assets. Assessing the reasonableness of the estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets requires judgment and is based on currently available information. During the first quarter of
2007, we reviewed the useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired from
Domtar Inc. using information obtained from the preliminary fair value and purchase price allocation. During the
fourth quarter of 2007, we have completed the valuation of all assets acquired as well as their useful lives which
did not change from our initial estimates. In the process of completing such allocation, we have revised the
amounts allocated to certain assets from those previously reported. The principal significant elements for which
such amounts have been modified include property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, changes in
circumstances such as technological advances, changes to our business strategy, changes to our capital strategy
or changes in regulation can resuli in the actual useful lives differing from our estimates. Revisions to the
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets constitute a change in accounting
estimate and are dealt with prospectively by amending depreciation and amortization rates.

A change in the remaining estimated useful life of a group of assets, or their estimated net salvage value,
will affect the depreciation or amortization rate used to depreciate or amortize the group of assets and thus affect
depreciation or amortization expense as reported in our results of operations. A change of one year in the
composite estimated useful life of our fixed asset base would impact annual depreciation and amortization
expense by approximately $19 million. In 2007, we recorded depreciation and amortization expense of
$471 million compared to $311 million in 2006. At December 30, 2007, we had property, plant and equipment
with a net book value of $5,362 million ($3,065 million in 2006) and intangible assets, net of amortization of
$111 million {nil in 2006).

Impairment of long-lived assets

We review the carrying amount of long-lived assets when events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable through future operations. This is accomplished by
determining whether projected undiscounted future cash flows from operations exceed the net carrying amount of
the assets as of the assessment date (Step [ test). Impaired assets are recorded at fair value, determined principally
by using discounted future cash flows expected from their use and eventual disposition (Step I test). Estimates of
future cash flows and fair value require judgment and may change over time.
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Subsequent to the decision to shut down one paper machine at our Dryden mill and the write-off of $92
miltion related to this paper machine, we conducted a Step | impairment test on our remaining Dryden mill fixed
assets during the fourth quarter of 2007. Estimates of undiscounted future cash flows used 1o test the
recoverability of a long-lived asset include key assumptions related to trend prices, the 15-year forecasted
exchange rate for the U.S. dollar and the estimated useful life of the long-lived assets. We concluded that the
recognition of an impairment loss for our Dryden mill was not required. Additional information regarding this
impatrment test can be found in ltem 8, Financial Statements, Note 13 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,
Estimates of future cash flows and fair value require judgment and may change over time, therefore it is
reasonably possible that changes in future conditions may lead management to use different key assumptions,
which could require a material change in the net carrying amount of the assets tested for impairment. The total
net carrying amount of these assets was $395 million at December 30, 2007.

Goodwill

We have a significant amount of goodwill recorded in our consolidated balance sheet.

Goodwill is not amortized and is subject to an impairment test annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. We performed the annual impairment test of
goodwill during the fourth quarter of 2007, in accordance with SFAS 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.” As a result, we determined that the Wood segment goodwill was impaired necessitating an impairment
charge of $4 million, largely due to the deterioration of economic conditions in the Wood segment. Testing for
impairment is accomplished mainly by determining whether the fair value of a reporting unit, based upon
discounted cash flows, exceeds the net carrying amount of that reporting unit as of the assessment date. If the fair
value is greater than the net carrying amount, no impairment is necessary. In the event that the net carrying
amount exceeds the sum of the discounted estimated cash flows, a second test must be performed whereby the
fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill must be estimated to determine if it is less than its nel carrying amount.
Fair value of goodwill is estimated in the same way as goodwill was determined at the date of the acquisition in a
business combination, that is, the excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the reporting unit.

Pension Plans and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

As part of the acquisition of Domtar Inc., we now have several additional defined contribution plans and
multi-employer plans. The pension expense under these plans is equal to the Company’s contribution. Pension
expense was $10 million for the year ended December 30, 2007.

As part of the acquisition of Domiar Inc., the Company now has several additional defined benefit pension
plans covering substantially all employees. In the United States, this includes pension plans that are qualified
under the Internal Revenue Code (“qualified”) as well as a plan that provides benefits in addition to those
provided under the qualified plans for a select group of employees, which is not qualified under the Internal
Revenue Code (“unqualified’). In Canada, plans are registered under the Income Tax Act and under their
respective provincial pension acts (“registered”), or plans may provide additional benefits to a select group of
employees, and not be registered under the Income Tax Act or provincial pension acts (“non-registered”). The
defined benefit plans are generally contributory in Canada and non-contributory in the United States. The
Company also provides post-retirement plans to eligible Canadian and U.S. employees; the plans are unfunded
and include life tnsurance programs, medical and dental benefits and short-term and long-term disability
programs. The pension expense and the obligation related to the defined benefit plans are actuarially determined
using management’s most probable assumptions.

We account for pensions and other post-retirement benefits in accordance with FASB No. 158, “Employers’
Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Post-retirement Plans - an Amendment of FASB Statements
No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R)” (SFAS 158) which requires employers to recognize the overfunded or underfunded
status of defined benefit pension plans as an assel or liability in its Consolidated balance sheet. Pension and other
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post-retirement benefit assumptions include the discount rate, the expected long-term rate of return on plan
assets, the rate of compensation increase, health care cost trend rates, mortality rates, employee early retirements
and terminations or disabilities. Changes in these assumptions result in actuarial gains or losses which we have
elected to amortize over the expected average remaining service life of the active employee group covered by the
plans only to the extent that the unrecognized net actuarial gains and losses are in excess of 10% of the greater of
the accrued benefit obligation and the market-related value of plan assets at the beginning of the year.

An expected rate of return on plan assets of 6.2% was considered appropriate by our management for the
determination of pension expense for 2007. Effective January 1, 2008, we will use 6.3% as the expected retum
on plan assets, which reflects the current view of long-term investment returns. The expected return on plan
assets assumption is based on an analysis of the target asset allocation and expected return by asset class. This
rate is adjusted for an equity risk premium and by 0.5% to take into consideration the active investment
management of the plan assets.

We set our discount rate assumption annually to reflect the rates available on high-quality, fixed income
debt instruments, with a duration that is expected to maich the timing and amount of expected benefit payments.
High-quality debt instruments are corporate bonds with a rating of AA or better. The discount rates at
December 30, 2007 for pension plans were estimated at 5.5% for the accrued benefit obligation and 5.3% for the
net periodic benefit cost for 2007 and for post-retirement benefit plans were estimated at 5.6% for the accrued
benefit obligation and 5.3% for the net periodic benefit cost for 2007.

The rate of compensation increase is another significant assumption in the actuarial model for pension (set
at 2.7% for the accrued benefit obligation and 2.8% for the net periodic benefit cost) and for post-retirement
benefit (set at 2.9% for the accrued benefit obligation and 3.0% for the net periodic benefit cost) and is
determined based upon our long-term plans for such increases.

For measurement purposes, a 5.8% weighted-average annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of
covered health care benefits was assumed for 2008. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 4.1% by 2013
and remain at that level thereafter.

The following table provides a sensitivity analysis of the key weighted average economic assumptions used
in measuring the accrued pension benefit obligation, the accrued other post-retirement benefit obligation and
related net periodic benefit cost for 2007. The sensitivity analysis should be used with caution as it is
hypothetical and changes in each key assumption may not be linear. The sensitivities in each key variable have
been calculated independently of each other,

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS
PENSION OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT
ACCRUED ACCRUED
PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT NET PERIODIC BENEFIT NET PERIODIC
BENEFIT PLANS OBLIGATION BENEFIT COST OBLIGATION BENEFIT COST

(In millions of 1].S. dollars)
Expected rate of return on assets

Impact of:
19 INCIEASE v\ v v v vrennenss N/A (14) N/A N/A
1% decrease ...........ccovnn.. N/A 14 N/A N/A
Discount rate
Impact of:
190 INCrease .. ..vvvuvneaenensnns (224) (6) 14y —
1% decrease . .......covuenvnen. 229 1 18 l
Assumed overall health care cost trend
Impact of:
1% increase ................... N/A N/A 13 |
1% decrease .............cc.cuunn N/A N/A (1) (1)
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The assets of the pension plans are held by a number of independent trustees and are accounted for
separately in our pension funds. Our investment strategy for the assets in the pension plans is to maintain a
diversified portfolio of assets, invested in a prudent manner to maintain the security of funds while maximizing
returns within the guidelines provided in the investment policy. The Company’s pension funds are not permitted
to own any of the Company’s shares or debt instruments. The target asset allocation is based on the expected
duration of the benefit obligation.

The following table shows the allocation of the plan assets, based on the fair value of the assets held at
December 30, 2007 and the target allocation for 2007:

PERCENTAGE PLAN ASSETS AT

ALLOCATION OF PLAN ASSETS at December 30 TARGET ALLOCATION DECEMBER 30, 2007
{in %)

Fixed income securities ..........covviiiunnnn.ns 56% - 66% 62%

EqQUity SECUTIIES ... .. e e i e s 34% — 44% 38%

Total . e 100%

Our funding policy is to contribute annually the amount required to provide for benefits earned in the year
and to fund past service obligations over periods not exceeding those permitted by the applicable regulatory
authorities. Past service obligations primarily arise from improvements to plan benefits. We expect to contribute
a total amount of $72 million in 2008 compared to $106 million in 2007 to the pension plans. The contributions
made in 2007 to the post-retirement benefit plans amounted to $5 million. In conjunction with a partial wind-up
declared in 2006 related to the pension plans of Domtar Inc., an estimated amount of $132 million (CDN$130
million) of plan assets and liabilities is expected to be settled from the pension funds in 2008.

The estimated future benefit payments from the plans for the next ten years at December 30, 2007 are as
follows:

OTHER POST-
RETIREMENT
ESTIMATED FUTURE BENEFIT PAYMENTS FROM THE PLANS PENSION PLANS BENEFIT PLANS
2008 e $257 $6
2000 .. e 88 6
2000 e 90 6
2 DN 93 6
) RO 96 7
2003 - 2007 i 550 35

At December 30, 2007, our Canadian pension funds have approximately $450 million (CDN$445 million)
invested in multiple asset backed commercial paper (“ABCP”) conduits that may be restructured. Of this amount,
$393 million (CDN$389 million) is subject to the interim arrangement of the “Montreal Proposal”. Pursuant to
the Monireal Proposal, banks and major investors are negotiating restructuring proposals with respect to such
ABCP conduits intended to minimize potential losses for investors. These discussions are not yet completed and
the outcome and the effect it would have on the value of our Canadian pension fund assets has yet 1o be
determined. The objective of the Montreal Proposal is to restructure the ABCP conduits to give investors the
reasonable expectation of receiving full par value over time and reducing the risk that adverse credit market
conditions will impact the restructured notes. The objective of the Investors Committee is to complete the
restructuring process by the end of April 2008. At December 30, 2007, the company has determined that the fair
value of these ABCP investments should be reduced by 13% or CDN$57 million to reflect management’s best
estimate of fair value and assumes the successful completion of the Montreal Proposal. Additional information
on the reduction of our ABCP investments is included in Item &, Financial Statements, in Note 6 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K,
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We do not expect liquidity issues to affect the pension funds since pension fund obligations are primarily
long-term in nature. Losses in the pension fund investments, if any, would resuli in future increased contributions
by us and our Canadian subsidiaries. Additional contributions to these pension funds woutd be required to be
paid over a 5-year period. Losses, if any, would also impact operating earnings over a longer period of time and
immediately increase liabilities and reduce equity.

Income taxes

We use the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined according to differences between the carrying amounts and tax bases of the assets
and liabilities. The change in the net deferred tax asset or liability is included in carnings. Deferred tax assets and
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply in the years in which assets and
liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled. For these years, a projection of taxable income and an
assumption of the ultimate recovery or settlement period for temporary differences are required. The projection
of future taxable income is based on management’s best estimate and may vary from actual taxable income.

On a quarterly basis, we assess the need to establish a valuation allowance for deferred tax assets and, if it is
deemed more likely than not that our deferred tax assets will not be realized based on these taxable income
projections, a valuation allowance is recorded.

Our deferred tax assets are mainly composed of temporary differences related to accounting provisions for
acquisitions, restructuring, environmental matters, as well as net operating loss carry forwards. The majority of
these accruals are expected to be utilized or paid out over the next five years. Our deferred tax liabilities are
mainly composed of temporary differences pertaining to plant, equipment and others. Estimating the ultimate
settlement period, given the depreciation rates in effect are based on information as it develops, requires
judgment and our best estimates. The reversal of timing differences is expected at future enacted tax rates, which
could change due to changes in income tax laws or the introduction of tax changes through the presentation of
annual budgets by different governments. As a result, a change in the timing and the income tax rate at which the
components will reverse could materially affect deferred 1ax expense as recorded in our results of operations.

In addition, American and Canadian tax rules and regulations are subject to interpretation and require
judgment that may be challenged by taxation authorities. To the best of our knowledge, we have adequately
provided for our future tax consequences based upon current facts and circumstances and current tax law. On
January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes.” The
adoption of FIN 48 had no impact on our consolidated financial statements. At December 30, 2007, we had gross
unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $40 million. Refer to Item 8, Financial Statements, Note 9, of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K for detail on the unrecognized tax benefits.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ABOUT MARKET RISK

Our income before depreciation and amortization and interest expense can be impacted by the following
sensitivities:

SENSITIVITY ANALYSIS ESTIMATED ANNUAL IMPACT ON

Income bhefore depreciation and
amortization and interest expense

(in millions of .S, dollars,

unless otherwise noted)
Each $10/unit change in the selling price of the following products: ()
Papers .
20-1b repro bond, 92 bright (copy) . .. .. ..o oo 18
SO-lboffset, polls .. ... o e 5
Coated publication No.5,40-lboffset,rolls . . ........ ... .. ... ..., 2
Other. .. e e 24
Pulp—netposition ........ ... .. o 12
Wood (umiber) 2 L L e e e e e 8
Interest rate (1% change in interest rate on our floating rate debt) ......... 8
Foreign exchange (US $0.01 change in relative value to the Canadian dollar |
before hedging} ... ... oo i e 13
Energy @
Natural gas: $0.25/MMBtu change in price before hedging ............... 4
Crude oil: $1/barrel change in price before hedging .. ................... 1

(1) Based on estimated 2008 capacity (ST, ADMT or MFBM).

(2) Based on estimated 2008 capacity for operating sawmill only.

(3) Based on estimated 2008 consumption levels. The allocation between energy sources may vary during the
year in order to take advantage of market conditions.

Note that Domtar may, from time to time, hedge part of its foreign exchange, pulp, interest rate and energy
positions, which may therefore impact the above sensitivities.

In the normal course of business, we are exposed to certain financial risks. We do not use derivative
instruments for speculative purposes; although all derivative instruments purchased to minimize risk may not
qualify for hedge accounting.

INTEREST RATE RISK

We are exposed to interest rate risk arising from fluctuations in interest rates on our cash and cash
equivalents, bank indebtedness, bank credit facility and long-term debt. We may manage this interest rate
exposure by the use of derivative instruments such as interest rate swap contracts.

CREDIT RISK

We are exposed to credit risk on the accounts receivable from our customers. In order to reduce this risk, we
review new customers’ credit histories before granting credit and conduct regular reviews of existing customers’
credit performance. In addition, we aim to not rely heavily on a small number of significant customers, We buy
credit insurance to mitigate part of our exposure to credit risk.

We are also exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to our financial
instruments. We minimize this exposure by entering into contracts with counterparties that we believe are of high
credit quality. We usually do not obtain collaterai or other security to support financial instruments subject to
credit risk. We regularly monitor the credit standing of counterparties.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

We have manufacturing operations in the United States and Canada. As a resull, we are exposed to
movements in the foreign currency exchange rate in Canada. Approximately 19% of our uncoated freesheet
paper production capacity and 55% of our trade pulp production capacity as well as our Wood business are in
Canada, with manufacturing costs primarily denominated in Canadian dollars. Also, certain assets and liabilities
are denominated in Canadian dollars and are exposed to foreign currency movements. As a result, our earnings
are affected by increase or decrease in the value of the Canadian dollar. See ltem 1A, Risk Factors—“The
Company is affected by changes in currency exchange rate.”

In order to reduce the potential negative effects of a fluctuating Canadian dollar, we may enter Into various
arrangements to stabilize anticipated future net cash outflows denominated in Canadian dollars for periods of up
to 36 months. Such arrangements are composed of forward foreign contracts and currency options purchased and
sold. Forward foreign exchange contracts are contracts whereby we have the obligation to buy Canadian dollars
at a specific rate. Currency options purchased are contracts whereby we have the right, but not the obligation, to
buy Canadian dollars at the strike rate if the Canadian dollar trades above that rate. Currency options sold are
contracts whereby we have the obligation to buy Canadian dollars at the strike rate if the Canadian dollar trades
below that rate. No arrangements were outstanding as at December 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006.

COST RISK

We purchase natural gas at the prevailing market price at the time of delivery and, as such, are subject to
fluctuations in market prices. In order to manage the cash flow risk associated with purchases of natural gas, we
may utilize derivative financial instruments to fix the price of forecasted natural gas purchases for periods of up
to 36 months into the future as part of a hedging program. We formally document the hedge relationships,
including identification of the hedging instruments and the hedged items, the risk management objectives and
strategies for undertaking the hedge transactions, and the methodologies used to assess effectiveness and measure
ineffectiveness. Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments are allocated by us to individual
facilities based on projected usage of natural gas. We recognize our allocable share of the gains and losses on our
derivative financial instruments in earnings when the forecasted purchases occur.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of Domtar Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements of
earnings (loss), shareholders’ equity, comprehensive income {loss), and cash flows present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Domtar Corporation and its subsidiaries at December 30, 2007, and the results
of their operations and their cash flows for the year ended December 30, 2007 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. In addition, in cur opinion, the financial statement
schedule information for the year ended December 30, 2007 listed in the index appearing under Item [5 (a}(2)
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related
consolidated financial statements, These financtal statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements and financial statement schedule based on our audit. We conducted our audit of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Charlotte, North Carolina
March 25, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
Domtar Corporation:

We have audited the combined balance sheet of the Weyerhacuser Fine Paper Business (a Business Unit of
Weyerhaeuser Company) as of December 31, 2006, and the related combined statements of operations, Business
Unit equity, comprehensive income (loss), and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2006. In connection with our audits of the combined financial statements, we have also audited
financial statement schedule II. These combined financial statements and financial statement schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these combined
financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the combined financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business (a Business Unit of Weyerhaeuser Company) as
of December 31, 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the years in the two-year
period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic combined financial
statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

KPMG LLP

Seattle, Washington

March 29, 2007, except as to Notes 5 and 24,
which are as of June 19, 2007, and Note 26,
which is as of September 24, 2007
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS (LOSS)

(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

Sales ... e

Operating expenses
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation and amortization .........
Depreciation and amortization .................. ... 0000
Selling, general and administrative .. .......................
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (NOTE 16) .......
Impairment of goodwill (NOTE 12) ........................
Closure and restructuring costs (NOTE 16) ..................
Other operating income (NOTET) ... ... ... ... oan.

Operating income (10SS) ... ... ciiri i
Interestexpense (NOTE &) ... ... .o ittt iann,

Earnings (loss) before income taxes . ... ..o
Income tax expense (benefity (NOTE9) ............ ... .. ......

Netearmnings (loss} .. ... i e

Per common share (in dollars) (NOTE 5)
Net earnings (loss)
Basic ... .. e e
Diluted . ... . e
Weighted average number of common and exchangeable shares
outstanding (millions)
Basic ... e
Diluted . ... i e
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Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,
2007 2006 2005
$5,947 $3,306 $3.267
4,757 2,676 2,784

471 311 357
408 174 174
92 — 499
4 749 |
14 15 38
(69) {63) 8
5,677 3,862 3,845
270 (556) (578)
171 —_ _
99 (556) (578)
29 53 (100
70 (609) (478)
0.15 (2.14) (1.68)
0.15 (2.14) (1.68)
474.1 284.1 284.1
4759 284.1 284.1

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)
December 30, December 31,

2007 2006
Assets
Current assets
Cashand cashequivalents . ...... ... . it iaariiinennnnns $ 71 $ l
Receivables, less allowances of $9 and $2(NOTE10) . ......... ...ttt 542 340
Inventories (NOTE 11) ... ... it i e iaias e 936 520
Prepaid eXPENnSES ... .oo i e 14 6
Income and other taxesreceivable . .. ...... ... .. i 53 —
Deferred income taxes (NOTE9) . ... .o 182 22
Total CUITENL ASSELE .. ot v vt ie e et aa i na s aassenses 1,798 889
Property, plant and equipment, at cost (NOTE 13) .................covtn 9,685 6,696
Accumulated depreciation (NOTE 13) ........ oo, (4,323) (3,631
Net property, plant and equipment (NOTE 13) .............. ..ot 5,362 3,065
Goodwill (NOTE 12) ... e it c e 372 14
Intangible assets, net of amortization (NOTE 14) . ........... ...t 111 —_
Otherassets (NOTE 15) ... oot e e i e s 105 30
O Al ASSEES & v v v v s e s e et et e e 7,748 3,998
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Bank indebtedness . ... ...t e i 63 —
Trade and other payables (NOTE 17) .......... ...t 765 250
Income and othertaxes payable . ....... ... i 50 6
Long-term debt due within one year (NOTE 18) . ............... ...t 17 12
Total current liabilities .. ... .. ..o e 895 268
Long-termdebt (NOTE 18) ... ... ... 2213 32
Deferred income taxes (NOTE 9) .. ... it it e 1,003 758
Other liabilities and deferred credits (NOTE 19) .. ... ..o 440 25
Commitments and contingencies (NOTE 21)
Shareholders’ equity
Business Unit €qUity .. .......veeunniiiiininn et — 2,852
Commen stock (NOTE 20)

$0.01 par value; authorized 2,000,000,000 shares; issued and outstanding:

471,169,959 and 1,000 shares . ...... ... rrrmiiiannaeneannns 5 —
Exchangeable shares (NOTE 20)

No par value; unlimited shares authorized; issued and held by nonaffiliates:

44252 831 Shares . ..ttt e e e 293 —
Additional paid-in capital ........ ... .. o e 2,573 —
Retained BariNgs . ... ..o oumm i e 47 —
Accumuiated other comprehensive income .. ....... .. il 279 63

Total shareholders” equUty ... ..o iiae e 3,197 2,915
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity .................... ..., 7,748 3,998

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

Issued and
outstandicg Accumulated
common and Additional other Taotal

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF exchangeable stock  C Exchangeable BusinessUnit paid-in  Retained comprebensive shareholders’
SHAREHOLDERS® EQUITY (millions of shares) stock, a1 par shares equity capital  earnings income equity
Balance at December 26,2004 .......... - §— $— $4148 5§ — $— $i13 $ 4264
Netloss ..o iii i, —_ —_ —_ (478) — — — (478)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . . — — —_— — — — (50} (50)
Additional minimum pensicn liability

adjustments, netof tax ............... — — — — —_ — (6) &)
Contribution from Weyerhaeuser Co .. ... — — — 37 _ — -— 37
Cash flow hedge fair value adjustment,

metoftax ... ........ ... ... ... — — -— — — — 9 Y
Balance as at December 25,2005 ........ — — — 3,707 — — 66 3773
Netloss ..., — — — (609) —_ — —-— (609)
Foreign currency translation adjustments . . - — — — — — 19 19
Additional minimum pension liability

adjustments, netoftax ............... — — — — — — 6 6
Adjustment to initially adopt SFAS 158 . .. — — -— — -— — (12) (12)
Distribution to Weyerhaguser Co ........ — — — (246} — — — (246)
Cash flow hedge fair value adjustment,

netoftax ...l — — — — — — (16) (16)
Balance at December 31,2006 ... ... .... — — — 2,852 -— — 63 2915
Contributicn of Weyerhacuser fine paper

business to Domtar Corporation ....... 284.1 3 — — - — - 3
Net earnings to March 6,2007 .......... - — — 23 - — - 23
Distribution to Weyerhacuser Co prior to

March7,2007 ..................... - — — (1,431) - — _ (1,431)
Acquisition of Domtar In¢. (NOTE3) ..., 231.0 2 500 — 1,032 — —_ 1,534
Post closing adjustments (NOTE 1) ...... — —_ — (112) — —_ 5 (107)
Transfer of business unitequity ......... — — - (1,332) 1,332 — — -
Conversion of exchangeable shares ...... — — 207 — 207 — — —
Issuance of common shares . ............ 0.3 — — — 2 — — 2
Net eamings from March 7 to

December 30, 2007 (NOTE 1) ........ — — — — — 47 — 47
Foreign currency translation adjustments,

netoftax ...l — — — — — — 250 250
Change in unrecognized losses and prior

service cost related to pension and post

retirement benefit plans, netof tax ... .. — — — — — — (39) (39
Balance at December 30,2007 .......... 5154 5 293 — 2,573 47 279 3,197

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financiat statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

2007 2006 2005
Net earnings (I0SS) . . .o uovvv oot it $ 70 $(609) ${478)
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments, netof tax ........... 250 19 (50}
Additional minimum pension liability adjustment, net of tax .. .. — 6 (6)
Change in unrecognized losses and prior service cost related o
pension and post retirement benefit plans, netof tax ......... (39) — —
Net change in cash flow fair value adjustments, netof tax ....... —_ (16) 9
_Comprehensive income (JOSS) .. ..o v it e 281 (600) (525)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS)

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,
2007 2006 2005

Operating activities
Netearnings (JoSS) . .. ... e § 70 $(609) $(478)
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to cash flows from

operating activities

Depreciation and amortization ................ .. ... ... 471 311 357
Deferred income taxes (NOTE9) .......................... (73) (52) (135)
Closure and restructuring costs (NOTE 16) .................. 14 15 38
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (NOTE 16) ... . ... 92 — 499
Impairment of goodwill NOTE 12) ... ... ..o o... 4 749 1
Debt restructuring costs . . ... ... ... i 25 — —
Other ... e (2) 4 —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisition
Receivables . ... ... . . . ... . (75) (19 (40)
INVENOTIES . ..ot e e 38 43 (25)
Prepaid expenses . ...... ... . i, 6 2 (4)
Trade and otherpayables . . ... .. ... .. ... ... .. ... ... ..... 54 (79 C)]
Incomeandothertaxes ................... ... . ... ... 49 — —
Other assets and other liabilities ........................... (67) CY) 14)
Cash flows provided from operating activities ..............., 606 357 190
Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment .............. ... .... (116) GEY) (113)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment . ......... 29 1 4
Business acquisitions—cash acquired . . ................ .. ... 573 — —
Other .. e e (D — —
Cash flows provided from (used for) investing activities ... ... ., 485 (63) 109)
Financing activities
Net change in bank indebtedness .................... .. ... ... (21) —_ —
Drawdown of revolving bank credit facility ...................... 30 —_ —
Issuance of short-termdebt ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... . ..., 1,350 —_ —_
Issuance of long-termdebt ......... ... .. ... . .. .. i, 800 — —
Repayment of short-termdebt . ............ ... ... ... ... ... ... (1,350) — —
Repayment of long-termdebt . ........... ... ... .. ... ... ... Gl )] (6)
Debt 1SSUE COSES . .ottt ittt e e e (39 — —
Premium on redemption of long-termdebt ... ....... ... ... ... ... (40) — —
Repurchase of minority interest ................ ... ... .. .. (28) — —
Distribution to Weyerhaeuser prior to March 7, 2007 ............., (1,431) (287 (76)
OEhEr . e e e (5 —_ -
Cash flows used for financing activities ..................... (1,025) (294 (82)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents .. ............. 66 — (1)
Translation adjustments related to cash and cash equivalents ........ 4 — —
Cash and cash equivalents at beginningof year ................... | l 2
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year ........................ 71 1 |
Supplemental cash flow information
MNet cash payments for:
INterest ... ..ot e e 155 - -

Income taXes ... ... i e 112 — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

BACKGROUND

Domtar Corporation (“the Company” or “Domtar”) was incorporated on August 16, 2006 for the sole
purpose of holding the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business (the “Business Unit”) and consummating the
combination of the Business Unit with Domtar Inc. (the “Transaction™). The Business Unit was operated by
Weyerhacuser Company (“Weyerhaeuser™) prior to the completion of the Transaction.

On August 22, 2006, Weyerhaeuser and certain wholly owned subsidiaries entered into an agreement with
Domtar Inc. providing for:

* A series of transfers and other transactions resulting in the Business Unit becoming wholly owned by
the Company (the “Contribution”);

» The distribution of shares of the Company to Weyerhaeuser shareholders (the “‘Distribution”); and

* The combination of Domtar Inc., treated as a purchase for accounting purposes, with the Company.

The Transaction was consummated on March 7, 2007. Domtar Corporation had no operations prior to
March 7, 2007 when, upon the completion of the Transaction, it became an independent public holding company
that, directly or indirectly through its subsidiaries, owns the Business Unit and Domtar Inc. As of the date of
consummation of the Transaction, Domtar Corporation is referred to as the “Successor.”

Domutar Inc. is an integrated manufacturer of uncoated free sheet with pulp, paper and converting facilities
in the United States and Canada. Domtar Inc.’s paper business is the most significant segment. In addition to the
paper business, Domtar Inc. manufactures and markets lumber and wood-based value-added products and
engages in the paper merchants business, which involves the purchasing, warehousing, sale and distribution of
various paper products made by Domtar inc. and by other manufacturers.

The Business Unit consists of pulp and paper mills, converting operations, sawmills, forest management
licenses and telated assets. These facilities are principally engaged in the harvesting of timber and the
manufacture, distribution and sale of paper, pulp, and forest products, including softwood lumber.

Although Weyerhaeuser Company does not have a continuing proprietary interest in Domtar Corporation,
the Company entered into several agreements with Weyerhaeuser Company and/or certain of its subsidiaries in
connection with the Transaction, including a tax sharing agreement, an intellectual property licensing agreement,
a transition services agreement, fiber and pulp supply agreements and site services agreements. These agreements
enable the Company to continue to operate the Business Unit efficiently following the completion of the
Transaction.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The Contribution constituted a transfer of net assets between entities under common control, and as a result,
the Company reports the accounts of the Business Unit at their historical cost or carry over basis as of the date of
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

the Contribution. The agreements giving effect to the spin-off of the Business Unit, provide for various post-
closing transaction adjustments and the resolution of outstanding matters, which are expected to be addressed by
the parties during 2008. The post-closing adjustments made through December 30, 2007 are as follows:
$38 million increase in long-term liabilities and decrease in Business Unit equity related to the recognition of
other post-retirement benefit obligations (including $3 million for post-employment benefit obligations) that
were assumed as part of the Transaction but were not reflected in the historical carve out financial statements of
the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business; $21 million increase in deferred tax liabilities and decrease in Business
Unit equity related to the contribution of Canadian assets with a tax basis that was different Post-Transaction
than was assumed in the carve out financial statements; $44 million decrease in property, plant and equipment
related to differences in the carve out basis of shared assets versus the basis of assets actually transferred in the
transaction; $4 million increase in trade and other payables. Certain balance sheet matters remain under
discussion with Weyerhaeuser. Resolution of these discussions may lead to an adjustment to additional paid-in
capital or results of operations.

The combination of Domtar Inc. with the Company constituted, for accounting purposes, the acquisition of
Domtar Inc. by Domtar Corporation and, as a result, the Company reports the results of Domtar Inc. starting on
March 7, 2007.

For accounting and financial reporting purposes, the Business Unit is considered to be the surviving entity
following the Transaction. As a result, the Company is required to present historical financial statements as
though it owned only the Business Unit prior to the Transaction. Further, as the Company had no operations and
substantially no assets prior to the Contribution, the “Predecessor” financial statements are those of the Business
Unit. Accordingly, the results reported for the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005 include
only the results of operations of the Predecessor and the results reported for the year ended December 30, 2007
include the results of operations of the Predecessor for the period from January 1, 2007 to March 6, 2007 and the
results of operations of the Successor for the period from March 7, 2007 to December 30, 2007,

PREDECESSOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR PERIODS PRIOR TO MARCH 7, 2007

The combined financial statements of the Business Unit have been prepared in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) for the purpose of presenting the
Business Unit’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows. The combined financial statements have
been derived from historical accounting records of Weyerhaeuser. The historical operating results and cash flows
of the Business Unit may not be indicative of what they would have been had the Business Unit been a stand-
alone entity, nor are they necessarily indicative of what the Business Unit’s operating results and cash flows may
be in the future.

The combined statements of operations for the Business Unit include allocations of certain costs from
Weyerhacuser directly related to the operations of the Business Unit, including an apportionment of certain
centralized general and administrative costs for accounting, human resources, purchasing, information systems,
transaction services, payroll processing costs, legal fees and other overhead costs. These centralized costs were
allocated to the Business Unit using a three-part apportionment factor based on relative headcount, assets and
certain revenue. Weyerhaeuser pension and other post-retirement benefits expense was allocated based on
relative salaried headcount, with the exception of pension expense of four Canadian pension plans related solely
to the Business Unit which are directly included in the combined statements of operations. Management believes
the methodology applied for the allocation of these costs is reasonable. Except for an immaterial amount of
interest on capital leases and debt that was assumed by the Company, interest expense has not been allocated to
the Business Unit.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

Certain of the Business Unit's working capital assets and liabilities were common assets and liabilities
shared with Weyerhaeuser facilities not part of the Business Unit. Allocations were performed in order to refiect
the appropriate portion of each asset and liability in the accounts of the Business Unit. The allocations were
based on third party sales percentages, headcount percentages or a three-part apportionment factor based on
relative headcount, assets and certain revenue. Goodwill is allocated based on relative fair value. Management
believes the methodology used for the asset and liability allocations is reasonable.

Significant differences in the funding and operation of the Business Unit may have existed if it operated as
an independent, stand-alone entity, including the need for debt and the incurrence of interest expense, which
could have had a significant impact on the financial position and results of operations.

To conform with the basis of presentation adopted in the current period, certain figures previously reported
have been reclassified. For purposes of comparability between periods as well as ease of readability, the
Predecessor financial statements included herein have been renamed to conform to the conventions used for the
December 30, 2007 annual financial statements including the reference to “consolidated financial statements.”
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Domtar Corporation and all wholly-owned
subsidiaries.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The conselidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity with GAAP, which require
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the year, the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements. On an ongoing basis, management reviews the
estimates and assumptions, including those related to environmental matters, useful lives, impairment of long-
lived assets and goodwill, pension and other employee future benefit plans, income taxes, closure and
restructuring costs and asset retirement obligations, based on currently available information. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

TRANSLATION OF FOREIGN CURRENCIES
SELF-SUSTAINING FOREIGN OPERATIONS

The local currency is considered the functional currency for the Company’s operations outside the United
States. For foreign subsidiaries that are considered financially and operationally self-sustaining, the current rate
method of translation of foreign currencies has been used. Under this method, assets and liabilities are translated
into U.S. dollars at the rate in effect at the balance sheet date and revenues and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates during the year. All gains and losses arising from the translation of the financial
statements of these foreign subsidiaries are included in the “Accumulated other comprehensive income” account
under “Shareholders’ equity.”

VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

Variable interest entitics (VIE) are entities in which equity investors do not have a controlling financial
interest ar the equity investment at risk is not sufficient to permit the entity to finance its activities without
additional subordinated financial support provided by other partics. Domtar Corporation consolidates the VIE if
Domtar Corporation is considered the VIE's primary beneficiary, defined as the party that receives the majority
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of the expected residual returns and/or that absorbs the majority of the entity’s expected losses. As a result,
Domtar Corporation consolidates the operations of Wapawekka Lumber LP (“Wapawekka™). Wapawekka is
considered a VIE because its equity at risk was deemed to be less than its expected losses. Wapawekka is a 51%
owned limited partnership that operates a sawmill in Saskatchewan, Canada.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Domtar Corporation recognizes revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, when goods
are shipped, when there are no uncertainties surrounding product acceptance, when the related revenue is fixed or
determinable, when collection is considered reasonably assured and when the customer takes title and assumes
the majority of the risks and rewards of ownership.

SHIPPING AND HANDLING COSTS

The Company classifies shipping and handling costs as a component of Cost of sales in the consolidated
statements of earnings (loss).

INCOME TAXES

Domtar Corporation uses the asset and liability method of accounting for income taxes. Under this method,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined according to differences between the carrying amounts and tax
bases of the assets and liabilities. The change in the net deferred tax asset or liability is included in earnings.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates and laws expected to apply in the years in
which the assets and liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled. Uncertain tax positions are recorded based
upon the Company’s evaluation of whether it is “more likely than not” that, based upon its technical merits, the
tax position will be sustained upon examination by the taxing authorities.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters as a component of Income tax
expense in the consolidated statement of earnings (loss).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and short-term investments with original maturities of less than
three months and are presented at cost which approximates fair value.

RECEIVABLES

Receivables are recorded at cost net of a provision for doubtful accounts that is based on expected
collectibility. Gains or losses on securitization of receivables are calculated as the difference between the
carrying amount of the receivables sold and the sum of the cash proceeds on sale and the fair value of the
retained subordinate interest in such receivables on the date of transfer. Fair value is determined on a discounted
cash flow basis. Gains or losses related to the sales of receivables are recognized in earnings as a component of
Interest expense in the period when the sale occurs.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost includes labor, materials and production overhead.
The tast-in, first-out (“LIFO”} method is used to cost certain domestic raw materials, in process and finished
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goods inventories. LIFO inventories were $350 million and $284 million at December 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, respectively, The balance of domestic raw material inventories, all materials and supplies
inventories and all foreign inventories are costed at either the first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) or average cost methods.
Had the inventories for which the LIFO method is used been valued under the FIFO method, the amounts at
which product inventories are stated would have been $133 million and $98 million greater at December 30,
2007 and December 31, 2006, respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation including asset impairment
write-downs. Interest costs are capitalized for significant capital projects. For timber limits and timberlands,
amortization is calculated using the units of production method. For all other assets, amortization is calculated
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Buildings are amortized over periods
of 10 to 40 years and machinery and equipment over periods of 3 to 20 years. The depreciation expense is

| reported net of the amount of the amortization of deferred credits related to propeny, plant and equipment, No
depreciation is recorded on assets under construction.

‘ IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment upon the occurrence of events or changes in circumstances
| indicating that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable, as measured by comparing their net book
value to their estimated undiscounted future cash flows. Impaired assets are recorded at estimated fair value,

determined principally by using discounted future cash flows expected from their use and eventual disposition.

GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill is not amortized and is subject to an annual impairment test, or more frequently if events or
| changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Testing for impairment 15 accomplished mainly by |
determining whether the fair value of a reporting unit, based upon discounted estimated cash flows, exceeds the |
net carrying amount of that reporting unit as of the assessment date. If the fair value is greater than the net |
carrying amount, no impairment is necessary. In the event that the net carrying amount exceeds the sum of the
discounted estimated cash flows, a second test must be performed whereby the fair value of the reporting unit’s

goodwill must be estimated to determine if it is less than its net carrying amount. Fair value of goodwil} is

estimated in the same way as goodwill was determined at the date of the acquisition in a business combination,

that is, the excess of the fair value of the reporting unit over the fair value of the identifiable net assets of the |
reporting unit.

Intangible assets were acquired as part of the Transaction. Water rights, customer relationships, trade names
and supplier agreements are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 40 years, 20
years, 7 years and 5 years, respectively. Natural gas contracts and power purchase agreements are each amortized
on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective contract. The weighted-average amortization period is 4
years for natural gas contracts and 25 years for power purchase agreements. Cutting rights are amortized using
the units of production method. Any potential impairment for intangible assets will be calculated in the same
manner as that disclosed under impairment of long-lived assets.
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OTHER ASSETS

Other assets are recorded at cost. Direct financing costs related to the issuance of long-term debt are
deferred and amortized using the effective interest rate method.

ENVIRONMENTAL COSTS

Environmental expenditures for effluent treatment, air emission, landfill operation and closure, asbhestos
containment and removal, bark pile management, silvicultural activities and site remediation (together referred to
as environmental matters) are expensed or capitalized depending on their future economic benefit. In the normal
course of business, Domtar Corporation incurs certain operating costs for environmental matters that are
expensed as incurred. Expenditures for property, plant and equipment that prevent future environmental impacts
are capitalized and amortized on a straight-line basis over 10 to 40 years. Provisions for environmental matters
are not discounted and are recorded when remediation efforts are likely and can be reasonably determined.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS

Asset retirement obligations are recognized, at fair value, in the period in which Domtar Corporation incurs
a legal obligation associated with the retirement of an asset. Conditional asset retirement obligations are
recognized, at fair value, when the fair value of the liability can be reasonably estimated. The associated costs are
capitalized as part of the carrying value of the related asset and depreciated over its remaining useful life. The
liability is accreted using a credit adjusted risk-free interest rate.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION AND OTHER STOCK-BASED PAYMENTS

Domtar Corporation uses the fair value based approach of accounting for stock-based payments to directors
and employees and for stock options granted to the employees. Any consideration paid by plan participants on
the exercise of stock options or the purchase of shares is credited to Additional paid-in capital.

Unless otherwise determined at the time of the grant, time-based awards vest in approximately equal
installments over four years beginning on the first anniversary of the grant date and performance-based awards
vest based on achievement of pre-determined performance goals over performance periods of three years.
Awards may be subject to both performance and time-based vesting. The contributed surplus component of the
stock-based compensation is transferred to common shares upon the issuance of shares of common stock,

Deferred Share Units vest immediately at the grant date and are remeasured at each reporting period, until
settlement, using the quoted market value. The cost of the common stock acquired by the Company under the
Restricted Stock Plan is amortized over the restricted period. Deferred Share Units and common stock acquired
under the Restricted Stock Plan are accounted for in compensation expense and in “Other liabilities and deferred
credits.”

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

Derivative instruments are contracts that require or provide an option to exchange cash flows or payments
determined by applying certain rates, indices or changes therein to notional contract amounts. Derivative
instruments are utilized by Domtar Corporation in the management of the foreign currency risk, price risk on
certain purchases and sales, and interest rate exposures.
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DERIVATIVES DESIGNATED FOR HEDGE ACCOUNTING

In order for a derivative to qualify for hedge accounting, the hedge relationship must be designated and
formally documented at its inception, outlining the particular risk, management objective and strategy, the
specific asset, liability or cash flow being hedged, as well as how effectiveness is assessed. The derivative must
be effective in accomplishing the objective of offsetting either changes in the fair value or cash flow attributable
to the risk being hedged both at inception and over the term of the hedging relationship.

When derivative instruments have been designated within a hedge relationship and are highly effective in
offsetting the identified risk characteristics of specific financial assets and liabilities, or group of financial assets
and liabilities, hedge accounting is applied to these derivative instruments.

In a fair value hedge, hedging activities are carried at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in the
consolidated statement of earnings (loss). The changes in fair value of the hedged item attributable to the hedged
risk is also recorded in the consolidated statement of earnings (loss) by way of a corresponding adjustment of the
carrying amount of the hedged items recognized in the consolidated balance sheet,

In a cash flow hedge, the changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments are recorded in other
comprehensive income. These amounts are reclassified in the consolidated statement of carnings (loss) in the
periods in which resuits are affected by the cash flows of the hedged item. Hedges of net investments in self-
sustaining operations are treated in a manner similar to cash flow hedges. Any hedge ineffectiveness is recorded
in the consolidated statement of earnings (1oss) when incurred.

DERIVATIVES NOT DESIGNATED FOR HEDGE ACCOUNTING

In conjunction with the Transaction, the various financial instruments of Domtar Inc. were recorded at fair
value and, as such, did not meet the requirements for hedge accounting. As a result, Domtar Corporation
accounts for these contracts at their fair value with resulting gains and losses being included as a component of
Other operating income.

PENSION PLANS

Domtar Corporation’s plans include funded and unfunded defined benefit pension plans and defined
contribution plans. Domtar Corporation recognizes the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit
pension plans as an asset or liability in the consolidated balance sheets. The net periodic benefit cost includes the
following:

* The cost of pension benefits provided in exchange for employees’ services rendered during the period,
» The interest cost of pension obligations,

» The expected long-term return on pension fund assets based on a market-related value determined
using a five-year moving average market value for equity securities and fair value for other asset
classes,

» Gains or losses on settlements and curtailments,

¢ The straight-line amortization of past service costs and plan amendments over the average remaining
service period of approximately 14 years of the active employee group covered by the plans,
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« The amortization of cumulative net actuarial gains and losses in excess of 10% of the greater of the
accrued benefit obligation or market-related value of plan assets at the beginning of the year over the
average remaining service period of approximately 14 years of the active employee group covered by
the plans.

The defined benefit plan obligations are determined in accordance with the projected benefit method
prorated on services.

OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

Domtar Corporation recognizes the underfunded status of other post-retirement benefit plans (other than
multiemployer plans) as a liability in the consolidated balance sheets. These benefits, which are funded by
Domtar Corporation as they become due, include life insurance programs, medical and dental benefits and short-
term and long-term disability programs. Domtar Corporation amortizes the cumulative net actuarial gains and
losses in excess of 10% of the accrued benefit obligation at the beginning of the year over the average remaining
service period of approximately 14 years of the active employee group covered by the plans.

INVESTMENT TAX CREDITS

Investment tax credits are recognized in earnings as a reduction of income tax expense when Domtar
Corporation has made the qualifying expenditures and has a reasonable assurance that the credits will be realized.

GUARANTEES

A guarantee is a contract or an indemnification agreement that contingently requires Domtar Corporation to
make payments to the other party of the contract or agreement, based on changes in an underlying item that is
related to an asset, a liability or an equity security of the other party or on a third party’s failure to perform under
an obligating agreement. It could also be an indirect guarantee of the indebtedness of another party, even though
the payment to the other party may not be based on changes in an underlying item that is related to an asset, a
liability or an equity security of the other party. Guarantees are accounted for at fair value.

NOTE 2.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

ACCOUNTING FOR PLANNED MAJOR MAINTENANCE

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued FASB Staff Position AUG
AIR-1, “Accounting for Planned Major Maintenance Activities.” This Staff Position prohibits the use of the
previously acceptable accrue-in-advance method of accounting for planned major maintenance activities in
annual and interim financial reporting periods. The three accounting methods permitted under the Staff Position
are; 1) direct expense method, 2) built-in overhaul method and 3) deferral method. On January 1, 2007, the
Company adopted retroactively the direct expense method with restatement of prior interim periods. The
Company previously used the accrue-in-advance method of interim periods. The Company previously used the
accrue-in-advance method for interim periods. The adoption of this Staff Position had no significant impact on
the annua! consolidated financial statements.

87




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (FIN 48). This interpretation, which the Company adopted on
January 1, 2007, clarifies the accounting for uncertain tax positions recognized in a company's financial
statements in accordance with Staterment 109. FIN 48 prescribes a more likely than not recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax position taken or
expected to be taken in a tax return. FIN 48 also provides guidance on derecognition, classification of a liability
for unrecognized tax benefits, accounting for interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods, and expanded
income tax disclosures. The adoption of this Interpretation had no significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

FAIR VALUE OPTION

In February 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities” (SFAS 159). SFAS 159 permits an entity to measure certain financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value. Under SFAS 159, entities that elect the fair value option will report unrealized gains and
losses in earnings at each subsequent reporting date. The fair value option may be elected on an
instrumenti-by-instrument basis, with few exceptions, as long as it is applied to the instrument in its entirety. The
Company has decided not to adopt the fair value option for any of its existing financial instruments.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement No. 157, “Fair Value Measurements” (SFAS 157). SFAS
157 establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. Statement 157 was expected to be effective for financiai statements issued for fiscal years
beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years. On February 12, 2008, the
FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 157-2, “Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 157" (“FSP”) that amends
Statement 157 to delay the effective date for all non-financial assets and non-financial liabilities, except those
that are recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis {that is, at least
annually). For such items, FSP defers the effective date of Statement 157 to fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2008. The Company does not expect the adoption will have a significant impact on the financial
position or results of operations of the Company, however, additional disclosures in the Company’s financial
statements will be required.

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 141 (revised 2007), “Business Combinations”
(SFAS No. 141(R)). This Statement replaces SFAS No, 141, “Business Combinations,” SFAS No, 141(R}
requires an acquirer to recognize the assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, including those arising from
contingent considerations and contractual contingencies based on their fair values as measured on the acquisition
date. In addition, SFAS No. 141(R) requires the acquirer to measure the noncontrolling interest in the acquiree at
fair value, which will result in recognizing the goodwill attributable to the noncontrolling interest in addition to
the goodwill attributable to the acquirer. SFAS No. 141(R) applies prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
December 15, 2008. Since Statement 141(R) will only be applicable to future business combinations, it will not
have a significant effect on the Company’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows prior to such
acquisitions.
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NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

In December 2007, the FASB issued Statement No. 160, “Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated
Financial Statements™ (SFAS No. 160). SFAS No. 160 amends Accounting Research Bulletin 51, “Consolidated
Financial Statements,” to establish accounting and reporting standards for the noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary and for the deconsolidation of a subsidiary. This Statement clarifies that a noncontrolling interest in a
subsidiary is an ownership interest in the consolidated entity that should be reported as equity in the consolidated
financial statements. SFAS No. 160 changes the way the consolidated earnings (loss) statement is presented by
requining consolidated net earnings (loss) to be reported including the amounts attributable to both the parent
interest and the noncontrolling interest. In addition, the Statement requires disclosure on the face of the
consolidated statement of operations of the amounts of consolidated net earnings (loss) attributable to the parent
interest and to the noncontrolling interest. SFAS No. 160 is effective for fiscal periods, and interim periods
within those fiscal years, beginning on or after December 15, 2008. The Company does not expect the initial
adoption of SFAS 160 to have a significant effect on the financial position, results of operations and cash flows
as the Company has no significant non-controlling interests.

NOTE 3.

BUSINESS COMBINATION

As discussed in Note 1, on March 7, 2007, Domtar Corporation completed the Transaction to combine the
Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business with Domtar Inc. Under the Transaction, Domtar Corporation issued
155,947,307 shares of common stock and Domtar Canada Paper Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary of Domtar
Corporation, issued 75,004,303 exchangeable shares to acquire Domtar Inc. This Transaction was considered, for
accounting purposes, as the acquisition of Domtar Inc, by Domtar Corporation and has been accounted for using
the purchase method. Accordingly, the purchase price is based upon the estimated fair value of Domtar
Corporation common stock issued plus acquisition costs directly related to the Transaction. Since no quoted
market price existed for the shares of the Company’s common stock, the purchase price is based on the fair value
of the net assets acquired on August 23, 2006, the date on which the terms of the Transaction were agreed to and
announced. The fair value of Domtar Inc. common shares of $6.63 per share used in the calculation of the
purchase price is based upon the average closing price of Domtar Inc. common shares on the Toronto Stock
Exchange for the five trading days beginning August 21, 2006 and ended August 25, 2006, converted at the
average daily foreign exchange rate of the Bank of Canada. The number of outstanding Domtar Inc. common
shares used in the calculation of the fair value is based on the same periods.

The following table summarizes the components of the total purchase price :

231,436,850 common shares of Domtar Inc. outstanding at an average closing price of $6.63 per

] 7T« = $1,534
Direct aCqUISION COSES . . .. oottt ittt et e ee it e e e 28
Estimated total purchase price, net of assyumed debt .. .. .. ... . ... .. o ool 1,562

The total purchase price is allocated to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based
on the Company’s estimates of their fair value, which are based on information currently available. During the
fourth quarter of 2007, the Company has completed the valuation of all assets and liabilities. In the process of
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completing such valuation, the Company has revised the amounts allocated to certain assets and liabilities from
those previously reported in the third quarter of 2007. The principal significant elements for which such amounts
have been modified include property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, income tax balances and goodwill.

The table below illustrates the purchase price allocation:

Fair value of net assets acquired at the date of acquisition

Cash and cash equivalents ... ... . . . i it i et e e $ 573
Receivables . .. ... e e 166
InventorIes . ... 448
Prepaid CXPeISeS ... .. e e e e 12
Income and other taxes receivable ... ... . ... e e e 10
Deferred income taxes—CUITENt . ... .. ... .. ottt ittt 63
Property, plant and equipment .. .......... ... i e e 2,469
Intangible assets (NOTE 14) .. ... .. i i e e e ieeaens 98
Deferred income taxes—non CUITENT . . . . ... ottt ettt ie e it aa s 34
Goodwill (NOTE 12) .. i et e e e et e aeas 300
L 1T T3 39
Total ASSeUS . ... o e 4212
Less: Liabilities
Bank indebtedness ... ... ... e e e 67
Trade and other payables . .. ... ... .. e 410
Income and other taxes payable ... ... ... . . e 15
Long-term debt due within one year . ... ... .. . . . i i |
Long-termdebt . .. .. i 1,660
Deferred income tax liability—non-current .. ... ... .. .. .. L. 141
Other liabilities and deferred credits ...... ... . ... . ... . . . i 328
L T a T L V11 ] =1 - O O 28
Total liabilities . . .. ... . . e e 2,650
Fair value of net assets acquired at the date of acquisition .................................. 1,562
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The following unaudited pro-forma information for the years ended December 30, 2007 and December 31,
2006, presents a summary of consolidated results of operations of the Company as if the combination had
occurred at the beginning of the respective fiscal periods. These unaudited pro forma results have been prepared
for comparative purposes only.

Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31,
2007 2006

(In millions of US dollars,
unless otherwise noted)

Sales ... e $6,520 $6,750
Operating expenses, excluding depreciation and amortization and impairment of

goodwill and property, plant and equipment . ........... ... . ... Ll 5,653 5,794
Depreciation and amortization . ... ... ittt i i et 471 458
Impairment of goodwill and property, plant and equipment . .................... 96 749
Operating income (1088) .. .. .. ... i i e 300 (251)
Earnings (loss) before inCome taxes .. ... ... . ottt iinnn s 93 (448)
Net earnings (loss) applicable to common shares . ............................ 62 (550)
Basic earnings (loss)pershare . .. ... ... . i 0.12 (1.07)
Diluted earnings (loss) pershare . ... ... ity 0.12 (1.07)
Basic weighted average number of common shares outstanding (millions) ......... 515.3 515.1
Diluted weighted average number of common shares outstanding (millions) ....... 516.2 515.1

The above includes a charge of $749 million for the impairment of goodwill in the year ended December 31,
2006, not deductible for tax purposes. The above also includes a charge of $29 millicn for transaction related
costs of Domtar Inc, incurred in the year ended December 30, 2007,

NOTE 4.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

2007 OMNIBUS INCENTIVE PLAN

Under the Omnibus Incentive Plan (the “Omnibus Plan”), the Company may award to executives and other
key employees non-qualified stock options, incentive stock options, stock appreciation rights, shares of restricted
stock, restricted stock units, performance conditioned restricted stock units, performance shares, deferred share
units and other stock-based awards. A total of 20,000,000 common shares are reserved for issuance in connection
with awards granted under the Omnibus Plan. Awards may be subject to both performance and time-based
vesting.

The exercise price of options and stock appreciation rights is equal to the closing price per share of the
Company’s common stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the date of grant.
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During the second quarter of 2007, the Company granted awards under the Omnibus Plan as follows:

PERFORMANCE CONDITIONED RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS (“PCRSUs")

On June 27, 2007, the Company granted 1,381,100 PCRSUs having a weighted average grant date fair value
of $10.44 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of approximately 21 months. Each PCRSU is
equivalent in value to one common share and is subject to a service condition as well as a performance or market
condition. These awards have an additional feature where the ultimate number of units that vest wifl be
determined by the Company’s performance resulis or shareholder return in relation to a predetermined target
over the period to vesting. No awards vest when the minimum thresholds are not achieved. The performance
measurement date will vary depending on the specific award. Upon vesting, the participants will receive common
shares of the Company or in certain instances cash of an equivalent value.

At December 31, 2007, one markel condition for the first measurement period was achieved. As such, this
portion of the PCRSU grant, representing 76,665 units, will cliff vest on December 31, 2009. No other
performance condition was achieved.

RESTRICTED STOCK UNITS (“RSUs”)

On June 27, 2007, the Company granted 818,250 RSUs having a weighted average grant date fair value of
$10.64 and a weighted average remaining contractual life of approximately 23 months. The Company will
deliver one share of common stock in settlement of each outstanding RSU (including dividend equivalents) that
has vested in accordance with the stipulated service conditions. The awards cliff vest at various dates up to
February 28, 2010.
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DEFERRED STOCK UNITS (“DSUs™)

The Company delivers, on a quarterly basis, DSUs to its Directors that vest immediately on the grant date.
The Company will deliver at the option of the holder either one share of common stock or the cash equivalent of
the fair market value on settlement of each outstanding DSU (including dividend equivalents accumulated) upon
termination of service.

NON-QUALIFIED STOCK OPTIONS

On June 27, 2007, the Company granted 615,900 stock options, having an exercise price of $10.64 and grant
date fair value of $2.88. The stock options vest at various dates up to February 28, 2010 if certain market
conditions are met in addition to a service period. Upon exercise, the option holders may elect to proceed with a
cashless exercise and receive common shares net of the deduction for cashless exercise. The options expire at
various dates no later than seven years from the date of grant.

GENERAL TERMS OF AWARDS UNDER THE OMNIBUS PLAN
TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Upon a termination due to death, time-based awards vest in full, performance-based awards vest at target
levels, and options and stock appreciation rights remain exercisable for one year. Upon a termination due to
disability, time-based awards vest in full, performance-based awards continue to vest in accordance with the
original vesting schedule, and options and stock appreciation rights remain exercisable for one year. Upon
retirement, a pro-rated portion of time-based awards vest and a pro-rated portion of performance-based awards
continue to vest based on actual performance during the applicable performance period, and all awards remain
outstanding for five years. Upon a termination for cause or a voluntary termination by a plan participant, all
awards, including vested but unexercised awards, are forfeited without payment. Upon an involuntary
termination for any reason other than cause, vested awards remain outstanding for 90 days and unvested awards
are forfeited.

CHANGE IN CONTROL

Upon a change in control, unless otherwise determined by the Company, a participant’s awards will be
replaced with awards of the acquiring company having the same or better terms. If there is a change in control
and a participant’s employment is terminated for business reasons in the three months prior to or twenty-four
menths after the change in control, his or her time-based awards will fully vest and performance-based awards
will vest to the extent the applicable performance goals have been achieved as of the date of the change in control
or the end of the fiscal quarter immediately prior to the date of termination, whichever is greater.

If replacement awards are not available, unless the Company determines otherwise, all time-based awards
fully vest and performance-based awards vest to the extent the performance goals related to the award have been
achieved as of the date of the change in control. Alternatively, the Human Resources Committee of the Board of
Directors may determine that vested awards will be cancelled in exchange for a cash payment (or other form of
change in control consideration) based on the value of the change in control payment and that unvested awards
will be forfeited. The Company’s Board of Directors may also accelerate the vesting of any or all awards upon a
change in control.
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CLAWBACK FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING MISCONDUCT

If a participant in the Omnibus Plan knowingly or grossly negligently engages in financial reporting
misconduct, then all awards and gains from the exercise of options or stock appreciation rights in the 12 months
prior to the date the misleading financial statements were issued as well as any awards that vested based on the
misleading financial statements will be disgorged to the Company.

REPLACEMENT PLANS FOR AWARDS TO FORMER EMPLOYEES OF WEYERHAEUSER

Prior to the consumimation of the Transaction, employees of Weyerhaeuser who were being transferred to
the Company were given the opportunity to exchange their outstanding Weyerhaeuser equity awards for awards
of the Company having the same terms and conditions as their prior Weyerhaeuser awards. The Company has
adopted three plans to provide for the grant of the Company’s equity awards in exchange for the prior plan
awards. The Restricted Share Units (“RSUs”), Stock Appreciation Rights (“SARs”) and Stock Options mirror the
three Weyerhaeuser plans under which the prior plan awards were initially granted.

Awards were made under these plans in connection with the consummation of the Transaction only to those
employees who elected to exchange their prior plan awards for the Company’s equity awards.

REPLACEMENT PLANS FOR FORMER DOMTAR INC. AWARDS

‘ Options granted to Domtar Inc. employees, whether vested or unvested, were exchanged on the same terms
and conditions for an option to purchase a number of shares of common stock of Domtar Corporation equal to the
number of the Company’s commen shares or of equivalent value determined using the Black-Scholes option-

‘ pricing model, depending if the exercise price was higher, equal or less than the market value at the time of the
exchange.

Each outstanding award of restricted Domtar Inc. common shares was exchanged on a one-for-one basis,
and on the same terms and conditions as applied to Domitar Inc. restricted share awards, for awards of restricted
shares of the Company’s common shares (“RSAs”). On March 7, 2007, 654,935 common shares were acquired

‘ and are held in trust in exchange for the former Domtar Inc. restricted awards.

Each outstanding grant of DSUs with respect to Domtar Inc. common shares were exchanged on a ‘
| one-for-one basis, on the same terms and conditions as applied to the Domiar Inc. DSUs, for DSUs with respect
to shares of the Company’s common stock. On March 7, 2007, 351,718 DSUs and 54,815 DSUs were issued to
outside directors and executives, respectively, in exchange for Domtar Inc. DSUs. DSUs granted after March 7,
2007 are granted under the Omnibus Incentive plan.

No new awards have been or will be made under any of the replacement plans.

For the year ended December 30, 2007, compensation expense recognized in the Company’s results of
operations was approximately $15 million for all of the outstanding awards. Compensation cost not yet
recognized amount to approximately $29 million and will be recognized over the remaining service period.
Compensation costs for performance awards are based on management’s best estimate of the final performance
measurement.
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SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING AWARDS

Details regarding Domtar Corporation outstanding awards are presented in the following tables:

NUMBER OF AWARDS

Outstanding at January 1,2007 ..........................

Exchanged pursuant to the Transaction
Granted

Forfeited/expired . ....... ... .. . i
Exercised/settled .......... ..o

Total outstanding at December 30, 2007

‘ OPTIONS

Outstanding at January 1,2007 . ......... ... ... ... ...
} Exchanged pursuant to the Transaction

Granted

EXercised . ..o e

Forfeited/expired . ......... ... . i

Outstanding at December 30,2007 . .....................
Options exercisable at December 30, 2007

SARs

Outstanding at January 1, 2007
Exchanged pursuant to the Transaction

Outstanding at December 30, 2007
SARs exercisable at December 30, 2007
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PCRSU RSU/RSA DSU
RO 875733 406,533
......... 1,381,100 818,250 103,132
......... — (1,179) -
......... — — (131,573)
......... 1,381,100 1,692,804 378,092
Weighted
Weighted average Aggregate.
average remaining intrinsic
Number of exercise life value
options price (in years)  (in millions)
—  $ — $
4,869,502 7.33
615,900 10.64
(295,416) 7.82
(69,114) 8.20
5,120,872 7.69 5.0 2.5
2,040,578 7.84 42 0.8
Weighted
Weighted average Aggregate
average remaining intrinsic
Number of exercise life value
SARs price (in years)  (in millions}
— 5 — $
195,395 6.58
165,395 6.58 7.5 0.2
14,644 6.27 6.8 —
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The fair value of the stock options granted in 2007 was estimated at the date of grant using a Black-Scholes
based option pricing model or an option pricing model that incorporated the market conditions when applicable.
The following assumptions were used in calculating the fair value of the options granted.

Dividend yield . ... ... e 0%
Expected volatility . ........ . . o 30% - 35%
Risk-free INterest TALe . . . ... ... ottt ettt e 4% - 5%
Expected life . ... ... . . 4 to 6 years

The weighted average grant date fair value for the options and stock appreciation awards exchanged
pursuant to the transaction was $3.27.

NOTE 5.

EARNINGS (LOSS) PER SHARE

The following table provides the reconciliation between basic and diluted eamings (loss) per share:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

2007 2006 2005

Net earnings (1088) - . .o ottt $ 70 $ (609) % (478)
Weighted average number of common and exchangeable shares

outstanding (millions} .......... ... ... . 474.1 284.1 284.1
Effect of dilutive securities (millions) .. ... iennrannn 1.8 — —
Weighted average number of diluted common and exchangeable shares

outstanding (millions) ......... . ... i i e 4759 284.1 284.1
Basic net earnings (loss) per share {indollars) .................... $ 0.15 $(214) £(1.68)
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share (indollars) .................. % 0.15 5214 $(1.68)

The following table includes the potential maximum awards of certain performance-based awards that were
not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended December 30, 2007 due to
performance targets not being satisfied at the end of the year:

December 30,
2007
Performance-based awards . . ... ... .. e e e e e 2,924,668

Prior to the Transaction, Domtar Corporation did not have publicly traded common stock or stock options
outstanding. The weighted average number of shares of common stock of Domtar Corporation outstanding for
the year ended December 30, 2007 assumes that all such common stock outstanding immediately after the
Contribution but before the acquisition of Domtar Inc. were outstanding since January 1, 2007, The effect of
dilutive securities for the year ended December 30, 2007 assumes that all replacement stock options of Domtar
Corporation were outstanding immediately after the Contribution on March 5, 2007,
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The weighted average number of shares of Domtar Corporation common stock outstanding for the years
ended December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005 assumes that all such common stock outstanding immediately
after the contribution of the Business Unit but before the acquisition of Domtar Inc. were outstanding since
December 31, 2004.

NOTE 6.

PENSION PLANS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLANS

As part of the acquisition of Domtar Inc., the Company now has several additional defined contribution
plans and multi-employer plans. The pension expense under these plans is equal to the Company’s contribution.
For the year ended December 30, 2007, the pension expense was $10 million (2006—3$7 million; 2005—
$8 million),

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

As part of the acquisition of Domtar Inc., the Company now has several additional defined benefit pension
plans covering substantially all employees. Non-unionized employees in Canada joining the Company after
June 1, 2000 participate in defined contribution plans. The defined benefit plans are generally contributory in
Canada and non-contributory in the United States. The Company also provides other post-retirement plans to
eligible Canadian and US employees; the plans are unfunded and include life insurance programs, medical and
denta] benefits and short-term and long-term disability programs. At March 7, 2007, the funded status acquired
by the Company was a net liability of $152 million for the pension plans and $71 million for other post-
retirement benefit plans. Other post-retirement benefits were accounted for in the Predecessor financial
statements using a multi-employer approach. As a result, an additional net liability of $35 million was recorded
in 2007. Certain other pension liabilities, other than the ones related to the four Canadian pension plans, were
retained by Weyerhaeuser.

The pension expense and the obligation related to the defined benefit plans are actuarially determined using
management’s most probable assumptions.

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

Components of net periodic benefit cost for pension plans 2007 2006 2005
Service costfortheyear ...... ... ... ... . oviuriieaannn.. $40 $ 7 $ 5
INEEreSt EXPENSE . . oo\t e e e it et ae e 74 15 15
Expected returnonplanassets .................. ... ... (86) (26) (22)
Curtailment gain .......... ... ... ... i i (1 —_ —
Settlement loss (gain) . ... .. ... i e 7 — (8)
Amortization of prior year service costs .. ................... 1 2

Net periodic benefitcost ....... ...t i 35 €)) &)
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The components of net periodic benefit cost for pension plans for the years ended December 31, 2006 and
December 25, 2005, as disclosed in the table above, include the components for the Canadian Plans only.

Year ended Year ended Year ended

Components of net periodic benefit cost for December 30, December 31, December 25,
other post-retirement benefit plans 2007 2006 2005
Servicecostfortheyear ........ .. ... iiiiiiiiiia $5 $ 11 $ 9
INIErESt EXPEMSE - . .ottt et e et 5 — —
Curtailment gain ....... ..ot i 3 —_ —
Net periodic benefitcost .. ... ... i i 7 11 9

The Company’s pension plan funding policy is to contribute annually the amount required to provide for
benefits earned in the year and to fund past service obligations over periods not exceeding those permitted by the
applicable regulatory authorities. Past service obligations primarily arise from improvements to plan benefits.

The Company expects to contribute a total amount of $72 million in 2008 compared to $106 million in 2007
(2006—3%8 million) to the pension plans. The contributions made in 2007 to the other post-retirement benefit
plans amounted to $5 million (2006 — nib). In conjunction with a partial wind-up declared in 2006 related 10 the
pension plans of Domtar Inc., an estimated amount of $132 million (CDNS$130 million) of plan assets and
liabilities is expected to be settled from the pension funds in 2008. The Company was required to make an
augmented contribution to the plan in 2007 in the amount of approximately $38 million. This augmented
contribution did not have an impact on the net periodic benefit cost.

CHANGE IN ACCRUED BENEFIT OBLIGATION

The following table represents the change in the accrued benefit obligation as of December 30, 2007 and
December 31, 2006, the measurement date for each year:

December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006

Other post- Other post-
Pension retirement  Pension  retirement
plans benefit plans plans benefit plans

Accrued benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 318 $— $310 $—
Post-closing adjustment (Note 1} ........................ — 35 — —
Servicecostfortheyear ........ ... ... ... o ... 40 5 6 —
Interest eXpense .. ... ... .. i e 74 5 15 —
Plan participants’ contributions . ........................ 7 — 2 —
Actarial gain (loss) ... ... ... . (24) (5 1 —
Planamendments .......... ... .. . it 3 — _ —
Benefitspaid .. ...... ... (89) &) (16) —
Settlement . ... e e e e (92) — —_ —
Curtailment . ......... .. .. s (15) (2) () —
Acquisition of Domtar Inc. (Note 3) ..................... 1,254 71 —_ —
Other . — — | —
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate change . ... ........ 259 11 — —

Accrued benefit obligation atendof year ..................... 1,735 115 318 -
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CHANGE IN FAIR VALUE OF ASSETS

The following table represents the change in the fair value of assets reflecting the actual return on plan
assets, the contributions and the benefits paid during the year:

December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006
Other post- Other post-
retirement retirement
Pension plans  benefit plans  Pension plans  benefit plans
Fair value of assets at beginning of year .............. $ 333 $— $292 $—
Actual returnon plan assets .................... (19 — 47 —
Employer contributions . . ........... ... ... 166 5 8 —
Plan participants’ contributions ................. 7 — 2 —
Benefitspaid ....... ... ... .. it (89 &) (16) —
SEtlEmMENt ... vttt e e e 92) — — —
Acquisition of Domtar Inc. (Note 3) . ............. 1,102 — — —
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate change . . .. 240 — = —
Fair value of assets atendof year . . .................. 1,588 — 333 =

DESCRIPTION OF ASSETS OF THE PENSION PLANS

The assets of the pension plans are held by a number of independent trustees and are accounted for
separately in the Company’s pension funds. The investment strategy for the assets in the pension plans is to
maintain a diversified portfolio of assets, invested in a prudent manner 10 maintain the security of funds while
maximizing returns within the guidelines provided in the investment policy. The Company’s pension funds are
not permitted to own any of the Company’s shares or debt instruments. The target asset allocation is based on the
expected duration of the benefit obligation.

The following table shows the allocation of the plan assets, based on the fair value of the assets held and the
target allocation for 2007:

Percentage plan  Percentage plan

assets as at assets as at
Target December 30, December 31,
allocation 2007 2006
Fixed income Secunties ... ... .. it innnrrnae e 56% - 66% 62% 16%
Equity SeCUrities . ....... ... oiuiiiiiiiiiaaeeaaarr e 34% - 44% 38% 27%
Hedge fund securities ......... .. .. .. e 0% 0% 53%
Real estate ... . e 0% 0% 4%
Total . o oo e 100% 100%

ASSET BACKED COMMERCIAL PAPER

The Company and its subsidiaries, including Domtar Inc., have no direct holdings of asset backed
commercial paper (ABCP).

At December 30, 2007, Domtar Corporation’s Canadian pension funds have approximately $450 million
(CDN $445 million) invested in multiple ABCP conduits that may be restructured. $393 million {CDN
$389 million) of this amount is subject to the interim arrangement of the “Montreal Proposal.”
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Pursuant to the Montreal Proposal, banks and major investors are negotiating restructuring proposals with
respect to such ABCP conduits intended to minimize potential losses for investors, These discussions are not yet
completed and the outcome and the effect it would have on the value of the Company’s Canadian pension fund
assets has yet to be determined. The objective of the Montreal Proposal is to restructure the ABCP conduits to
give investors the reasonable expectation of receiving full par value over time and reducing the risk that adverse
credit market conditions will impact the restructured notes. The objective of the Investors Committee is to
complete the restructuring process by the end of April 2008.

At December 30, 2007, the Company has determined that the fair value of these ABCP investments should
be reduced by 13% or $57 millien to reflect management’s best estimate of fair value and assumes the successful
completion of the Montreal Proposal.

The approach to determine the $57 miilion reduction in fair value was to segregate the ABCP conduits into
three main categories. Category | represents conduits holding traditional securitized assets. Category 2 represents
conduits mainly providing collateral to support leveraged super senior (LSS) tranches of collateralized debt
obligations as well as other synthetic assets or traditional assets. Category 3 represents portions of conduits
holding assets linked to US sub-prime mortgages. The Company looked to comparable fair values assuming the
ACBP trusts were converted to long-term investments.

The Company does not expect liquidity issues to affect the pension funds since pension fund obligations are
primarily long-term in nature. Losses in the pension fund investments, if any, would result in future increased
contributions by the Company or its Canadian subsidiaries. Additional contributions to these pension funds
would be required to be paid over a 5-year period. Losses, if any, would also impact operating earnings over a
longer period of time and immediately increase liabilities and reduce equity.

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDED STATUS TO AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET

The following table presents the difference between the fair value of assets and the actuarially determined
accrued benefit obligation. This difference is also referred to as either the deficit or surplus, as the case may be,
or the funded status of the plans. The table further reconciles the amount of the surplus or deficit (funded status)
to the net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet.

December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006
Other post- Other post-
retirement retirement
Pension plans  benefit plans  Pension plans  benefit plans
Accrued benefit obligation atendof year ... ........... $(1,735) $(1135) $(318) —
Fair value of assetsatendofyear .. .................. 1,588 — 333 —
Fundedstatus .......... ... i uiinirirnnnnnn (147) (115) 15 —
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December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006

Other post- Other post-
Pension retirement Pension retirement
plans  benefitplans  plans  benefit plans

Trade and other payables (Note 17) .............coovviinnon.. 53 % G $— $—
Other liabilities and deferred credits (Note 19) ................. (182) (11 (1) —
Otherassets (Note 15) . ... .. oot ii i aas 38 — 16 —
Net amount recognized in the consolidated balance sheet ......... (147 (115} 15 —

The following table presents the amount not yet recognized in net periodic benefit cost and included in
accumulated other comprehensive income.

December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006

Other post- Other post-
Pension  retirement  Pension  retirement
plans  benefitplans  plans  benefit plans

PriOr YEAr SErVICE COSL . . oo\t vu e e iee e e ciaanenenannss $an $— 5 $—
Accumulated gain (Joss) .. ... ... .. i 79 10 (an —
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss} ............... 90 10 (20) —
Cumulative employer contributions in excess of net periodic benefit

o -1 1 U (37) (125) 35 —
Net liability amount recognized . .......... ... ... ... .. ... ... 147) (115) 15 —

The following table presents the pre-tax amounts included in other comprehensive incore.

Year ended Year ended
December 30, 2007 December 31, 2006

Other post- Other post-
Pension retirement Pension retirement
plans  benefitplans plans  benefit plans

PrOT YEar SEFVICE COSE . o oot v eee et et eee e aiiie s $@® $— )] §—
Amortization of prior year service cost ......... ... ... 2 — — —
Netgain (J0SS) .. ... i i (75) 10 (11) —
Amorization of net actuarial loss .. ........ ... ... .. oo, 7 — — —
Net amount recognized in other comprehensive income (pre-tax) . .. (70) 10 (200 —_

An estimated amount of $1 million for pension plans and nil for other post-retirement benefit plans will be
amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost in 2008,

At December 30, 2007, the accrued benefit obligation and the fair value of defined benefit plan assets with

an accrued benefit obligation in excess of fair value plan assets were $1,344 million and $1,158 million,
respectively.
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ESTIMATED FUTURE BENEFIT PAYMENTS FROM THE PLANS

Estimated future benefit payments from the pians for the next 10 years at December 30, 2007 are as follows:

Other post-retirement

Pension plans benefit plans
2008 L e e $257 $6
2009 L e 88 6
2000 L e e 90 6
200 e e 93 6
200 e e e 96 7
2003 - 2007 . e 550 35

WEIGHTED-AVERAGE ASSUMPTIONS

The Company used the following key assumptions to measure the accrued benefit obligation and the net
periodic benefit cost. These assumptions are long-term, which is consistent with the nature of employee future
benefits.

December 30, December 31, December 25,

M 2007 2006 2005
Accrued benefit obligation

DIscountrate ...t i e 5.5% 52% 5.2%

Rate of compensation increase ........... ... ... ... 2.7% 3.3% 3.3%
Net periodic benefit cost

Discount rate ......... ... .. . . . i e 53% 5.2% 6.0%

Rate of compensationincrease ............................ 2.8% 3.3% 35%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets .............. 6.2% 9.5% 9.5%

December 30, December 31, December 25,

Qther post-retirement benefit plans 2007 2006 2005
Accrued benefit obligation

Discountrate ... ... ... . e 5.6% N/A N/A

Rate of compensation increase ................ciieviiin..n 2.9% N/A N/A
Net periodic benefit cost

Discountrate . ... ... .. i e e 5.3% N/A N/A

Rate of compensation increase ......... e 3.0% N/A N/A

Effective January 1, 2008, the Company will use 6.3% as the expected return on plan assets, which reflects
the current view of long-term investment returns.

The 2008 expected return on plan assets assumption is based on an analysis of the target asset allocation and

expected return by asset class. This rate is adjusted for an equity risk premium and by 0.5% to take into
consideration the active investment management of the plan assets.
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For measurement purposes, a 5.8% weighted-average annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of
covered health care benefits was assumed for 2008. The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 4.1% by 2013
and remain at that level thereafter. An increase or decrease of 1% of this rate would have the following impact:

Increase of 1%  Decrease of 1%

Impact on net periodic benefit cost for other post-retirement benefit plans ....... $1 (D
Impact on accrued benefit obligation . ......... ... i 13 (11}

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Other operating expenses (income) are an aggregate of both recurring and occasional expenses {income)
items and, as result, can fluctuate from year to year. The Company’s other operating expenses (income) include
the following:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

2007 2006 2005
Gain on lawsuit settlement .. ... .. . . i $(39) $— $—
Gainoninsuranceclaim ... ... . ... e (12) — —_
Gain on financial instruments . ..........c. . i i (18) — —
Foreignexchange galn ... ... .o oo (5) — —
Antidumping and countervailing dutiesrefund . . .................. — (63) —
L1 1T S 17 O 5 2 (8)
Other Operating iNCOME . ... ...\ vut i aennens $(69) $(63) 5 (@)

H

On November 23, 2007, the Company won a judgement by the Supreme Court of Canada in a claim against
ABB Inc. and Alstomn Canada Inc. In a unanimous decision rendered on November 22, 2007 the Court ordered
ABB Inc. and Alstom Canada Inc. to pay Domtar approximately $39 million in damages and interest relative to a
1989 lawsuit on matters regarding manufacturers liability, latent defects and disclosure responsibility involving
the installation of a recovery boiler at the Windsor, Quebec facility.

During the year, the Company won a settlement of approximately $12 million for past insurance claims
relative to the recovery of past legal expenses incurred related to Phenolic foam insulation warranty claims.

In conjunction with the Transaction, the various financial instruments of Domitar Inc. were recorded at fair
value and, as such, did not meet the requirements for hedge accounting. As a result, Domtar Corporation
accounts for these contracts at their fair value with resulting gains and losses being included as a component of
Other operating income.

The U.S. and Canada reached a final settlement in 2006 to a long-standing trade dispute over Canadian exports of
softwood lumber into the U.S. Under the settlement agreement, a Canadian export tax was instituted that replaced
countervailing and antidumping duties imposed by the U.S., and Canadian softwood lumber exporters received refunds
of approximately 81% of countervailing and antidumping duties paid between 2002 and 2006. The Company recorded
a refund of countervailing and antidumping duties of $65 million in the year ended December 31, 2006.
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NOTE 8.

FINANCING EXPENSES

The following table presents the components of financing expenses:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

2007 2006 2005

Interest on long-termdebt .. ... ...ttt i, $142 $— $—
Premium and fees on debt-for-debt exchange ... .................. 50 _— —
Reversal of fair value increment on Canadian debentures ........... (25) —_ —
Receivables securitization Note 10) .......... .. ... . it 3 — —
Amortization of debt issue costs andother ....................... 4 — —
176 — —

Less: Income from short-term investments . ... ................... 5 — —
$171 $— —

NOTE 9.

INCOME TAXES

The Components of Domtar Corporation’s earnings (loss) before income taxes by taxing jurisdiction were:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

2007 2006 2005
US.eamnings (10ss) ... ... i $ 217 $(541) $ 46
Foreignlosses ........ ... ... i e (118) (15) (624)
Earnings (loss) before incometaxes . .......................... § 99 $(556) $(578)

Provisions for income taxes include the following:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

2007 2006 2005

U.S. Federal and State:

CUITENt . o o e e $102 $105 $ 35

Deferred ... ... e e (30) (55) (40)
Foreign:

L8y () 11 — — 2

Deferred . ... . e (43) 3 N
Income tax expense (benefit) .............. ... ... ... ... ..... 29 $ 53 $(100)

H
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The provisions for income taxes of Domtar Corporation differ from the amounts computed by applying the
statutory income tax rate of 35% to earnings (loss) before income taxes due to the following:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

2007 2006 2005
U.S. federal SIAtUtOry iNCOME tAX ..o vvvvnvv it ot eeans $ 35 $(195) $(202)
State and local income taxes, net of federal income tax benefit . ... ... to 7 |
Foreign income tax rate differential ........................ ..., 5 (2) 120
TaK CrEdilS - .. oo ottt it e e 6 (12) (16)
Goodwill Impairment .. ..ot 1 262 —
Taxratechanges ... ... i (15) &)} 4)
Uncertain tax positions . ... .. .o eririiien i 4 — —
U.S. manufacturing deduction . . ........ ... i (5 3 &)
(10111 7= u AP PPN — N _2
Income tax expense (benefit) ............. ... ... ... ..ol 29 $ 53 $(100)

During the first quarter of 2007 the income tax expense included an out-of-period adjustment which
decreased expense by approximately $6 million. This out-of-period adjustment is the result of an omission to
account for a change in Canadian federal tax rate which occurred in the second quarter of 2006. In addition
during 2007, Domtar Corporation recognized an additional deferred tax benefit of $5 million resulting from a
change in the federal rate in Canada, $3 million in South Carolina and $1 million in Texas. During 2006, Domtar
Corporation recognized a deferred tax benefit of $3 million resulting from a change in the Texas state tax rate.
During 2005, Domtar Corporation recognized deferred tax benefits of $3 million and $1 million resulting from a
change in the Ohio state income tax law and a reduction in the British Columbia provincial corporate income tax
rate, respectively. The benefits were due to the effect of the lower tax rates on accumulated temporary
differences.
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DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The tax effects of significant temporary differences representing deferred tax assets and liabilities at
December 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006 are comprised of the following:

December 30, December 31,

2007 2006
ACCOUNIAZ PIOVISIONS .+« ¢ . oottt ettt e e e e e eeas $ 90 $ 28
ASSELIMPAIITIENLS . ... oottt et e et — 144
Net operating loss carryforwards and other deductions . . ... ................... 306 121
Pension and other employee future benefitplans ....... ... ... ... .. L. 90 —
INVEnIOTY . e 34 10
0 1] 5T 23 2
Gross deferred tax assels .. ... .. ... i 543 305
Valuation allowanCe . . .. ..ottt e e e {(72) (109}
Netdeferred tax assets .. ... ... o i ittt 471 196
Property, plant and equipment .. ... .. L. il (1,157 {928)
Pension and other employee future benefitplans ....... ... ... ... .. ... ... ... — 4)
Impact of foreign exchange on long-term debt and investments . ................. (71) —
1 11 11~ (37 —
Total deferred tax liabilities . ......... .. .. .. . ... .. .. ... .. ... . . . . ... (1,265) (932)
Total netdeferred taxes . .. ... . . . . i $ (794) $(736)

As a result of the Transaction, the Company has inherited federal net operating loss carry forwards and
scientific research and experimental development expenditures not previously deducted of approximately of
$1,147 million (3603 million in Canada and $544 million in the U.S). The March 7, 2007 transaction is
considered to be an acquisition of control of Domtar Inc. for Canadian tax purposes and consequently part of the
Canadian loss carry forwards amount has been utilized to increase the adjusted cost base of capital property with
unrealized gains under paragraph 111(4)(e) of the Canadian Income Tax Act as well as increase the tax basis of
depreciable property. At March 7, 2007 after the reallocation of losses and other adjustments, the Company has
inherited federal net operating loss carry forwards and scientific research and experimental development
expenditures not previously deducted of approximately $773 million {$213 million in Canada and $560 million
in the U.S}.

At December 30, 2007, Domtar Corporation had U.S. federal net operating loss carryforwards of
$465 million that expire between 2017 and 2021 and Canadian federal losses and scientific research and
experimental development expenditures not previously deducted in the amount of $260 million. Canadian losses
in the amount of $118 million will begin to expire in 2025. The U.S. federal net operating losses are subject to
annual Jimitations, including Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), for
U.S. tax purposes.

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during periods in which temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Management believes that it is more likely
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than not that the results of future operations will generate sufficient taxable income to realize the net deferred tax
assets in the U.S., notwithstanding the annual limitation of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. However,
the Company has established a valuation allowance against Domtar Inc.’s Canadian losses inherited at the time
of acquisition of control on March 7, 2007 for which utilization is uncertain.

We do not provide for a U.S. income tax liability on undistributed earnings of our Canadian subsidiaries.
The earnings of the Canadian subsidiaries, which reflect full provision for Canadian income taxes, are currently
indefinitely reinvested in Canadian operations or will be remitted substantially free of additional tax to Domitar
Corporation.

ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes.” The adoption of FIN 48 had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company. At
December 30, 2007, the Company had gross unrecognized tax benefits of approximately $40 million. If
recognized in 2008, $32 million of these tax benefits would impact goodwill and 35 million would impact the
effective tax rate. If recognized after 2008, these tax benefits would impact the effective tax rate.

December 30,

2007
Balance at beginming Of YEAT . ... .....otnt it i $—
Domtar Inc. March 7, 2007 opening balances (Note 3) . ... o ns 35
Additions based on tax positions related tocurrent year ........ ... il 4
Foreign eXchange IMPact . ....... e uno e 2
Federal rate CHANEes ... ..ottt ittt aa e (1)
Balanceatend of year ... ........ . ... i e $ 40

The Company accrues interest on unrecognized tax benefits as a component of interest expense. Penalties, if
incurred, would be recognized as a component of income tax expense. The Company had no accrual for interest
and penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits at December 30, 2007.

In 2008, the Company and its subsidiaries will file three separate consolidated U.S. federal income tax
returns for 2007 as well as returns in various states and in Canada. At December 30, 2007, the Company’s
subsidiaries may be subject to U.S. and Canadian federal income tax ¢xaminations for the tax years 2002 through
2006, with years prior to 2003 being closed from a cash tax liability standpoint in the U.S. In addition, the
Company’s subsidiaries are undergoing tax audits in various state and foreign jurisdictions for the years 2000 to
2006. The Company does not anticipate that adjustments stemming from these audits would result in a significant
change to the results of its operations and financial condition. During December 2007, the Company has received
a draft statement of adjustments related to the income tax examination by the Canada Revenue Agency of its
Canadian subsidiary Domtar Inc. for 2003, 2004 and 2005. The draft statement of adjustments is not expected to
have a significant impact to the results of the operations and financial condition. The Company does not expect a
significant change to the amount of unrecognized tax benefits over the next 12 months. However, audit outcomes
and the timing of audit settlement are subject to significant uncertainty.

TAX SHARING AGREEMENT

In conjunction with the Transaction, the Company signed a Tax Sharing Agreement that governs both
Weyerhaeuser and the Company’s rights and obligations after the Transaction with respect (0 taxes for both pre
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and post-Distribution periods in regards to ordinary course taxes, and also covers related administrative matters.
The Distribution refers to the distribution of shares of the Company 0 Weyerhaeuser shareholders. The
Company will generally be required to indemnify Weyerhaeuser and Weyerhaeuser shareholders against any tax
resulting from the Distribution if that tax results from an act or omission to act by the Company after the
Distribution. If Weyerhaeuser, however, should recognize a gain on the Distribution for reasons not related to an
act or omission to act by the Company after the Distribution, Weyerhaeuser would be responsible for such taxes
and would not be entitled to indemnification by the Company under the Tax Sharing Agreement. In addition, to
prescrve the tax-free treatment of the Distribution to Weyerhaeuser, the following actions will be subject to
restrictions for a two-year period following the date of the Distribution:

* the redemption, recapitalization, repurchase or acquisition by the Company of the capital stock;
* the issuance by the Company of capital stock or convertible debt;

+ the liquidation of the Company;

» the discontinuance of the operations of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business;

» the sate or dispositton (other than in the ordinary course of business) of all or a substantial part of the
Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business; or

» other actions, omissions to act or transactions that could jeopardize the tax-free status of the
Distribution.

NOTE 10.

RECEIVABLES

The following table presents the components of receivables:

December 30, December 31,

2007 2006
Trade receivables .. ... ... . e $315 $325
Notesreceivables ... . .. . i e e — 1
Subordinate interest in securitized receivables ......... ... . . ..o, 130 —_
Allowance fordoubtful accounts . ....... ... . .. . . i i e () (2)
Sales taxes receivable ... ... e e e 39 —_
O her TECEIVADIES . ... e i e et e 67 16
Receivables $542 $340

RECEIVABLES SECURITIZATION

The Company uses securitization of the receivables as a source of financing by reducing its working capital
requirements. The Company’s securitization program consists of the sale of receivables, or the sale of a senior
beneficial interest in them, to special purpose trust managed by a financial institution for multiple sellers of
receivables. The agreement governing the Company’s receivables securitization program normally allows the
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daily sale of new receivables to replace those that have been collected. The agreement also limits the cash that
can be received from the sale of the senior beneficial interest. The subordinated interest retained by the Company
is included in “Receivables” on the Consolidated balance sheet and will be collected only after the senior
beneficial interest has been settled. The book value of the retained subordinated interest approximates fair value.

The Company retains responsibility for servicing the receivables sold but does not record a servicing asset
or liability as the fees received by the Company for this service approximate the fair valve of the services
rendered.

In 2007, a net charge of $5 million (2006 - nif; 2005 - nil} resulted from the programs described below and
was included in “Financing expenses.”

The Company has a three-year agreement maturing in 2011, including both U.S. and Canadian receivables.
The maximum cash consideration that can be received from the sale of receivables under this combined

agreement is $150 million.

The foltowing balances were outstanding under this program:

December 30,
2007
Securitized receivabIES . .. ..ot e $ 260
Senior beneficial interest held by third parties .. ............ . o (130)
Subordinate interest in securitized receivables retained by Domtar . ...................... $ 130

In 2007, the net cash inflow from the sale of senior beneficial interests in the U.S. and Canadian receivables
was nil.

NOTE 11,

INVENTORIES

The following table presents the components of inventories:

December 30, December 31,

2007 2006

Work in process and finished goods . ... ... .. oo $586 $335
Raw materials . . .. u e e i 136 15
Operating and maintenance supplies .......... ... i 214 170
$936 $520

109




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
{IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

NOTE 12,

GOODWILL

The carrying value of goodwill and changes in the carrying value are as follows:

December 30, December 31,
2007

2006
Balance at beginning of year .. ... ... ... . e $ 14 $ 763
Impairmentof goodwill . ... ... ... . 4) (749)
Acquisition of Domtar Inc, (NOTE3) . .........c0 it 300 —_
Impact of foreign exchange ........ ... . . . it 62 —
Balanceatend of year ........ ... ... ... $372 $ 14

The goodwill at December 30, 2007 is all related to the Paper segment. (December 31, 2006—3$10 miilion
related to Papers and $4 million related to Wood).

The goodwill resulting from the acquisition of Domtar Inc. as well as the goodwill impairment were not
deductible for income tax purposes and represent a permanent book-tax difference. As a result, no tax benefit has
been recognized for the goodwill and goodwill impairment charge.

Domtar performed its annual impairment test of goodwill during the fourth quarter, in accordance with
SFAS 142 “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” As a result, the Company determined that the Wood segment
goodwill was impaired, necessitating an impairment charge of $4 million. The impairment was largely due to the
detertoration of economic conditions in the Wood segment.

In April 2006, Weyerhaeuser announced that it was considering alternatives for some of its business units
that ranged from continuing to hold and operate the assets 1o a possible sale or other disposition. In connection
with the announcement, Weyerhacuser received information that indicated that the carrying value of certain
business units exceeded the fair value. Based on an evaluation of the assets and liabilities of the Company, it was
concluded that the implied value of the Company’s goodwill relating to the paper segment, was $10 million. As a
result of the above, a charge of $749 million was recorded in the first quarter of 2006,
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NOTE 13.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The following table presents the components of property, plant and equipment:

Range of  December 30, December 31,

useful lives 2007 2006

Machinery and equipment . . ..., o 3-20 $ 7,897 $5718
Buildings and improvements ..............ccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiaas 10-40 1,318 831
Timber limitsand land .. ...... ... e 334 33
Assets UNAEr CONSIIUCHDN . . v v v v e e e e e ea e raneeaees 77 14
(0117 SRS A OOQP 3 59 100

9,685 6,696
Less allowance for depreciation and amortization ................... (4,323) (3.631)

$ 5,362 $ 3,065

At December 30, 2007, a net carrying amount of $6 million {2006—nil) included in Buildings is held under
capital leases ($8 million for cost (2006—nil) and $2 million for accumulated amortization (2006—mnil)), a net
carrying amount of $27 million (2006—$37 million) included in Machinery and equipment ($60 million for cost
(2006—$67 million) and $33 million for accumulated amortization (2006—3$30 million)} and a carrying amount
of $4 million (2006—nil) included in Land is held under capital leases.

Subsequent to the decision to shut down one paper machine at its Dryden mill and the write-off of
$92 million related to this paper machine, Domtar conducted a Step I impairment test on the remaining Dryden
mill fixed assets during the fourth quarter of 2007. Estimates of undiscounted future cash flows used to test the
recoverability of a long-lived asset included key assumptions related to trend prices, the 15-year forecasted
exchange rate for the U.S. dollar and the estimated useful life of the long-lived assets. The trend prices were
based on an analysis of external price trends, including published industry guidance. The forecasted Canadian-
U.S. foreign exchange rate assumptions were based on independent market information, as well as analysis of
historical data, trends and cycles. Domtar concluded that the recognition of an impairment loss for the Dryden
mill was not required.
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NOTE 14,

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents the components of intangible assets:

December 30,
Weighted average useful lives 2007
Intangible assets subject to amortization
Waterrights ... ... . 40 $15
Power purchase agreements ............. .. .. iiiiiiia 25 33
Customer relationships .. ... o L 20 9
Tradenames . ...... ... o i e 7 7
Supplieragreements ... .. ... . i e 5 6
Natural gascontracts . ............ ottt inniinennaanan.. 4 17
Cutting rights ... ... . i e Units of production method 29
116
Allowance for amortization ............ .. . . (5)
Total intangibleassets ...........................c..... ... $111

The aggregate amortization expense for the year ended December 30, 2007 amounted to $5 million.

Amortization expense for the next five years related to intangible assets is expected to be as follows:

— — ve— mmm— ———

Amortization expense related to intangible assets ......................... $8 %8 %9 $9 85

NOTE 15.

OTHER ASSETS

The following table presents the components of other assets:

December 30, December 31,

2007 2006
Pension asset—defined benefit penston plans (Note 6) . ........................ %33 $ 16
Unamortized debt issue CoStS ... .. .. .t e 23 —_
Deferred InCOMe 1aX A85815 .. oottt ittt i ettt e et 27 —
Investments and advances ... ...ttt e e 15 —_
1015 T- 2 i4

$105 330
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NOTE 16.

CLOSURE AND RESTRUCTURING COSTS

On December 13, 2007, Domtar Corporation announced that it will close its Port Edwards, Wisconsin mill
as well as reorganize production at its Dryden, Ontario facility. These measures will result in a permanent
curtailment of Domtar’s annual paper production capacity by approximately 336,000 tons. Approximately 625
employees at these facilities will be affected by these decisions.

On July 31, 2007, Domtar Corporation announced that it will permanently close two paper machines, one at
the Woodland, Maine pulp and paper mill and another at the Port Edwards, Wisconsin pulp and paper mill as
well as the Gatineau, Quebec paper mill and the converting center in Ottawa, Ontario. In total, these closures will
result in the permanent curtailment of approximately 284,000 tons of paper capacity per year and will affect
approximately 430 employees.

Year ended Year ended Year ended

Closure and restructuring costs, including impairment December 30, December 31, December 25,
of property, plant and equipment 2007 2006 2005
Impairment of property, plant and equipment . . ................... 592 §— $499
Termination benefits ... ... ... . i i e 5 — 43
Inventory obsolescence . ... 6

Loss {(gain) on curtailment of pension benefits . ................... —_ 2 (8)
ReSIrUCIUMNG COSLS . ... i ittt iin et saas — — 3
Other closSUre COSES ...\t vr it ittt cacaena v 3 13 —

|

Total closure and restructuring costs, including impairment of
property, plant and equipment ............... ... ... $106

o
—_—
wh

$537

H
|
li

At December 30, 2007, $78 million of the paper segment closure and restructuring cost liability, identified
below, relates to operations and activities of Domitar Inc., which was acquired by Domtar Corporation on
March 7, 2007, and was part of a plan that had begun to be assessed and formulated by management at that date.
As a result, these costs represent assumed liabilities and costs incurred as of the acquisition date and were treated
as part of the purchase price altocation in accordance with EITF 95-3, Recognition of Liabilities in Connection
with a Purchase Business Combination. These closures also impacted the fair value of certain property, plant and
equipment as part of the Domtar Inc. purchase price allocation as described in Note 3.

December 30,
2007
Balance at beginning of YEar .. ... ... ....oouuiut ittt $2
AAIIONS .« oottt e e e 80
SEVETANCE PAYMENLS .« . o o . vt e et traae e s aaassas s s st a e (25
Reversal Of ProviSiON ... .. ..ttt et e 2)
Acquisition of Domtar Inc. (Note 3) ... ... oo 23
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate change . ....... ... il 5
Balance atend of Ye@r ... ... ... ... i e $83
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Other costs related to the above closures expected to be incurred over 2008 and 2009 include $7 million for
demolition, training, relocation, outplacement and security costs. These costs will be expensed as incurred and
are all included in the paper segment.

Closure and restructuring costs are based on management’s best estimates at December 30, 2007. Although
the Company does not anticipate significant changes, the actual costs may differ from these estimates due io
subsequent developments such as the results of environmental studies, the ability to find a buyer for assets set to
be dismantled and demolished and other business developments. As such, additional costs and further write-
downs may be required in future periods.

In 2006, the Company recognized restructuring costs, which included Fine Paper facilities and restructuring
activities at the Dryden, Ontario and Prince Albert, Saskatchewan facilities.

In 2005, the Company recognized closure costs and impairment charges related to the closure of a pulp and
paper facility and a fine paper machine. Additionally, the Company recognized impairment charges for Big River
and Wapawekka, Saskatchewan, sawmills as they sold chips and hog fuel to the closed pulp and paper facility
and did not have an alternate market for such residuals,

NOTE 17.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following table presents the components of trade and other payables:

December 30, December 31,

2007 2006
Trade payables .. ... e e $460 $118
Payroll-related accruals . ...... .. ... .. . e 172 74
AcCrued INEBIESt . ..o e e e 14 —
Payables on capital projects ... ..., .. .. i i e 11 —
Pension liability—defined benefit pension plans (Note 6) ...................... 3 —
Liability—other post-retirement benefit plans (Note 6) . ....................... 5 —
Provision for environment and other asset retirement obligations (Note 21} ........ 21 —
Closure and restructuring costs liability (Note 16) ............................ 50 2
T . e e 29 56

$£765 $250
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NOTE 18.

LONG-TERM DEBT

Nominal December 30, December 31,
Maturity Amount Currency 2007 2006
Unsecured debentures and notes

10% Debentures .. ......coovenrneennin.. 2011 5 2 CDN 5§ 2 $—
TBISTo NOIES oo vv v vv v ee e 2011 600 uUs 630 —
S375% NOES ..o v e ee e 2013 350 us 323 —
TI25% NOES o .o v v i et 2015 400 us 398 —_
05 NOBS . v v ce v ie i i ciaeannn 2016 125 us 138 —
10.85% Debentures .................... 2017 1 CDN 1 —
Secured term loan facility ................... 2014 us 643 —
Secured revolving credit facility .............. 2012 us 50 —

Capital lease obligations . ................... 2007 - 2028 39 39

Other ... . e 6 ___5

2,230 44

Less: Due withinoneyear ................... 17 12

$2,213 $ 32

Principal long-term debt repayments, including capital lease obligations, in each of the next five years
amounted to:

Long-term debt  Capital leases

B0 . ot e e e e $ 12 $ 8
1.2 01, 1 OO 10 7
20 3 1 3RS O U 8 6
2 1) 15 PPN 610 4
.20 ) AU 58 4
N UV T4 7= G A PPt 1,479 26
2,177 55
L.ess: AMOunts representing interest ... ... eemii et — (16)
Total payments, excluding the fair value increment of $14 million .. ............ $2,177 $39

UNSECURED DEBENTURES AND NOTES

In November 2007, certain of Domtar Inc.’s bondholders elected to exchange their Domtar Inc. bonds for
Domtar Corporation bonds with the same maturity and interest rate pursuant to an exchange offer. The amounts
exchanged were 99.96% of the outstanding principal amount of 7.875% Notes due 2011, 99.55% of the
outstanding principal amount of 5.375% Notes, 99.93% of the outstanding principal amount of 7.125% Notes,
and 99.30% of the outstanding principal amount of 9.5% Notes.

CDN$80 million aggtegate principal amount of the 10% Debentures, representing approximately 97.32% of
the amount outstanding, and CDN$74 million aggregate principal amount of the 10.85% Debentures,
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representing approximately 99.33% of the amount outstanding, were repurchased by Domtar in December 2007
at a cash cost totalling CDN$194 million pursuant to a tender offer to holders. This repurchase was not
mandatory but at the holders’ option.

BANK FACILITY

On March 7, 2007, the Company, Domtar Paper Company, LLC and Domtar Inc. entered into a new credit
agreement, which consisted of an $800 million senior secured tranche B term loan facility and a $750 million
senior secured revolving credit facility. Borrowings by the Company and Domtar Paper Company LLC (the U.S,
borrowers) under the senior revolving credit facility are made available in U.S. dollars and borrowings by
Domitar Inc. under the senior revolving credit facility will be made available in U.S. dollars and/or Canadian
dollars and limited to $150 million (or the Canadian equivalent thereof). Upon the closing of the Transactions,
the Company borrowed $800 million under the Term loan B facility and $60 million under the revolving loan
facility. The borrowing proceeds from the new credit facility, combined with cash on hand that was advanced
from Domtar Inc., served mainly to repay a temporary borrowing of $1.35 billion incurred by the Company as
part of the Transaction.

Amounts drawn under the tranche B term loan facility bear annual interest at either a eurodollar rate plus a
margin of 1.375%, or an alternate base rate plus a margin of 0.375%. Amounts drawn under the revolving credit
facility bear annual interest at either a eurodollar rate plus a margin of between 1.25% and 2.25%, or an alternate
base rate plus a margin of between 0.25% and 1.25%. Amounts drawn under the revolving credit facility by
Domtar Inc. in U.S. dollars bear annual interest at either a eurodollar rate plus a margin of between 1.25% and
2.25%, or a U.S. base rate plus a margin of between 0.25% and 1.25%. Amounts drawn under the revolving
credit facility by Domtar Inc, in Canadian dollars bear annual interest at the Canadian prime rate plus a margin of
between 0.25% and 1.25%. Domtar Inc. may also issue bankers’ acceptances denominated in Canadian dollars
which are subject to an acceptance fee, payable on the date of acceptance, which is calculated at a rate per annum
equal to between 1.25% and 2.25%. The interest rate margins and the acceptance fee, in each case, with respect
to the revolving credit facility are subject to adjustments based on the Company’s consolidated leverage ratio.

The tranche B term loan facility matures on March 7, 2014, and the revolving credit facility matures on
March 7, 2012. The tranche B term loan facility amortizes in nominal quarterly installments (equal to one percent
of the aggregate initial principal amount thereof per annum) with the balance due on the maturity date.

At December 30, 2007, borrowings under the tranche B term loan facility had been reduced from the initial
$800 million to $643 million. There was $50 million of borrowings under the revolving credit facility. In
addition, at December 30, 2007, the Company had outstanding letters of credit pursuant to this bank credit for an
amount of $46 million. The Company also has other outstanding letters of credit for an amount of $2 million.

The Credit Agreement contains a number of covenants that, among other things, limit the ability of the
Company and its subsidiaries to make capital expenditures and place restrictions on other matters customarily
restricted in senior secured credit facilities, including restrictions on indebtedness (including guarantee
obligations), liens (including sale and leasebacks), fundamental changes, sales or disposition of property or
assets, investments (including loans, advances, guarantees and acquisitions), transactions with affiliates, hedge
agreements, dividends and other payments in respect of capital stock, changes in fiscal periods, environmental
activity, optional payments and modifications of other material debt instruments, negative pledges and
agreements restricting subsidiary distributions, changes in lines of business, and the proposed amendments to the
transaction documents to the extent that any such amendment would be materially adverse to the interests of the
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lenders. As long as the revolving credit commitments are outstanding, the Company is required to comply with a
consolidated EBITDA (as defined) to consolidated cash interest coverage ratio of greater than 2.50x and a
consolidated debt to consolidated EBITDA ratio of less than 4.75x, decreasing to 4.5x on December 31, 2008.
The Credit Agreement contains customary events of default, provided that non-compliance with the consolidated
cash interest coverage ratio or consolidated leverage ratio will not constitute an event of default under the tranche
B term loan facility unless it has not been waived by the revolving credit lenders within a period of 45 days after
notice.

The Company’s direct and indirect, existing and future, U.S. wholly-owned subsidiaries serve as guarantors
of the senior secured credit facilities for any obligations thereunder of the U.S. borrowers, subject to agreed
exceptions. Domtar Inc.’s direct and indirect, existing and future, wholly-owned subsidiaries, as well as the
Company and its subsidiaries, serve as guarantors of Domtar Inc.’s obligations as a borrower under the senior
secured credit facilities, subject to agreed exceptions. Domtar Inc. does not guarantee Domtar Corporation’s
obligation under the credit Agreement.

The obligations of the Company in respect of the senior secured credit facilities are secured by all of the
equity interests of the Company’s direct and indirect U.S. subsidiaries, other than 65% of the equity interests of
the Company’s direct and indirect “first-tier” foreign subsidiaries, subject to agreed exceptions, and a perfected
first priority security interest in substantially all of the Company’s and its direct and indirect U.S. subsidiaries’
tangible and intangible assets. The obligations of Domtar Inc., and the obligations of the non-U.S. guarantors, in
respect of the senior secured credit facilities also are secured by all of the equity interests of the Company’s
direct and indirect subsidiaries, subject to agreed exceptions, and a perfected first priority security interest, lien
and hypothec in the inventory of Domtar Inc., its immediate parent, and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.

NOTE 19.

OTHER LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED CREDITS

The following table presents the components of other liabilities and deferred credits:

December 30, December 31,

2007 2006

Liability—other post-retirement benefit plans (Note 6) ........................ $110 $—
Pension liability—defined benefit pension plans (Note 6) ...... ... ... ... oo 182 1
Provision for environment and other asset retirement obligations (Note 21) ........ 93 20

Provision for contracts assumed ... . ... .. s 19 —

WOrKEr's COMPENSAEON . ... ..ottt iamm e e nes 6 —
11 71 25 4
S 440 $ 25

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLEGATIONS

The asset retirement obligations are principally linked to landfill capping obligations, asbestos removal
obligations and demolition of certain abandoned buildings. At December 30, 2007, Domtar has estimated the net
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present value of its asset retirement obligations to be $39 million (2006 — $16 million); the present value was
based on probability weighted undiscounted cash outflows of $112 million. The majority of asset retirement
obligations are estimated to be settled prior to December 31, 2030. However, some settlement scenarios call for
obligations to be settled as late as December 31, 2047. Domtar’s credit adjusted risk-free rates were used to
calculate the net present value of the asset retirement obligations. The rates used vary between 4.50% and
12.00%, based on the prevailing rate at the moment of recognition of the liability and on its settlement period.

The following table reconciles Domtar’s asset retirement obligations:

December 30, December 31,

2007 2006
Asset retirement obligations, beginning of year $16 $ 17
Acquisition of Domtar Inc. (Note 3) .. .. ... .. . . i e 21 —
Revisions toestimated cash flows . ....... ... ... . .. ... . . . . ... | {)
Setllements . . ... .. e 2) (1)
ACCIEHION EXPENSE . . vttt it ittt et et e 3 1
Asset retirement obligations,endof year . ... ... .. ... ... . ol $39 $ 16

NOTE 20.
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The authorized stated capital consists of the following:

PREFERRED SHARES

Twenty million preferred shares, par value $0.01 per share. The Board of Directors of the Company will
determine the voting powers (if any) of the shares, and the preferences and relative, participating, optional or
other special rights, if any, and any qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, of the shares at the time of
issuance. No preferred shares were outstanding at December 30), 2007 or December 31, 2006.

COMMON STOCK

On August 22, 2006, the Company was authorized to issue 1,000 shares of common stock par value, $0.01
per share. On March 7, 2007, the certificate of incorporation of the Company was amended to authorize the
issuance of two billion shares of common stock, par value $0.01 per share. Holders of the Company’s common
stock are entitled to one vote per share.

SPECIAL YOTING STOCK

One share of special voting stock, par value $0.01 per share was issued on March 7, 2007, upen
consummation of the Transaction as described in Note 1. The share of special voting stock is held by
Computershare Trust Company of Canada (the “Trustee”) for the benefit of the holders of exchangeable shares of
Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. in accordance with the voting and exchange trust agreement. The Trustee holder of
the share of special voting stock is entitled to vote on each matter which stockholders generally are entitled to
vote, and the Trustee holder of the share of special voting stock wil! be entitled to cast on each such matter a
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number of votes equal to the number of outstanding exchangeable shares of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. for
which the Trustee holder has received voting instructions. The Trustee holder will not be entitled to receive
dividends or distributions in its capacity as holder or owner thereof.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN

Subsequent to the Transaction, the Company entered into a rights agreement under which the shares of the
Company’s common stock will include certain attached rights associated with a significant change in beneficial
ownership of the Company. Under the rights agreement, one right is attached to each share of the Company’s
common stock outstanding, but is not detachable until a distribution triggering event. The rights will not be
exercisable before a distribution triggering event and will expire on March 7, 2009.

Under the rights agreement, the rights will detach from the shares of the Company’s common stock upon the
earlier to occur of (a) a person, together with its affiliates and associates acquired beneficial ownership of 10% or
more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock; or (b) an acquirer commencing or announcing
its intention to commence a tender or exchange offer, the consummation of which would result in beneficial
ownership of such acquirer of 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock.

No cash dividend was declared on these shares in 2007. The changes in the number of outstanding common
stock and their aggregate stated value from January 1, 2007 to December 30, 2007, were as follows:

December 30, 2007

Number of
Common stock _ sheres 8
Balance at beginning of year ... ... .. ... e 1,000 —
Shares issued
Business Unit (NOWE 1) .o it i i e i aaaa s 284,067,852 3
Domtar Inc. {NOIE 3) o i ittt e e 155,947,307 2
SEOCK OPHONS L .« oottt ittt s a e e 295,416 —
D U COMVETSIONS &+ o ettt et ettt it te e e e e ae i e ea e iasaanas 106,912 —
Conversion of exchangeable shares . .. ... ... ... oo 30,751,472 —
Balanceattheendof year ............ .. .. . . . . .. i 471,169,959 3
EXCHANGEABLE SHARES

Upon the consummation of the Transaction as described in Note 1, Domtar Inc. shareholders could either receive
common stock of the Company or shares of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. that are exchangeable for common stock of
the Company. As such, a total of 44,252,831 common stock remains reserved for future issuance for the exchangeable
shares of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. outstanding at December 30, 2007. The exchangeable shares of Domtar
(Canada) Paper Inc. are intended to be substantially economic equivalent to shares of the Company’s commeon stock.
The rights, privileges, restrictions and conditions attaching to the exchangeable shares include the following:

» The exchangeable shares are exchangeable at any time, at the option of the holder on a one-for-one
basis for shares of common stock of the Company;

» In the event the Company declares a dividend on the common stock, the holders of exchangeable
shares are entitled to receive from Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. the same dividend, or an economically
equivalent dividend, on their exchangeable shares;
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* The holders of the exchangeable shares of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. are not entitled to receive notice
of or to attend any meeting of the shareholders of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. or to vote at any such
meeting, except as required by law or as specifically provided in the exchangeable share conditions;

* The exchangeable shares of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. may be redeemed by Domtar {Canada) Paper
Inc. on a redemption date to be set by the board of directors of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc., which date
cannot be prior to July 31, 2023 (or earlier upon the occurrence of certain specified events) in exchange
for one share of Company common stock for each exchangeable share presented and surrendered by
the holder thereof, together with all declared but unpaid dividends on each exchangeable share.

The holders of exchangeable shares of Domtar (Canada) Paper Inc. are entitled to instruct the Trustee to
vote the special voting stock as described above.

NOTE 21.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

ENVIRONMENT

‘ The Company is subject to environmental laws and regulations enacted by federal, provincial, state and
‘ local authorities.

During the first quarter of 2006, the Company closed the pulp and paper mill in Prince Albert,
Saskatchewan and the Big River sawmill in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan due to poor market conditions. The
' Company has not determined at this time whether the facilities will be reopened, sold or permanently closed. In
| the event the facilitiecs are permanently closed, the Province of Saskatchewan may require active
decommissioning and reclamation at one or both facilities. In the event decommissioning and reclamation is
required at either facility, the work is likely to include investigation and remedial action for areas of significant

environmental impacts.

In 2007, the Company’s operating expenses for environmental matters, as described in Note 1, amounted to
$85 million.

The Company made capital expenditures for environmental matters of $11 million in 2007, for the
improvement of air emissions, effluent treatment and remedial actions to address environmental compliance. At
this time, the Company cannot reasonably estimate the additional capital expenditures that may be required.
However, management expects any additional required expenditure would not have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s financial position, earnings or cash flows.

The Company is also a party to various proceedings relating to the cleanup of hazardous waste sites under
the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability Act, commonly known as “Superfund,”
and similar state laws. The EPA and/or various state agencies have notified the Company that it may be a
potentially responsible party with respect to other hazardous waste sites as to which no proceedings have been
instituted against the Company. The Company continues to take remedial action under its Care and Control
Program at a number of former operating sites, especially in the wood preserving sector, due to possible soil,
sediment or groundwater contamination. The investigation and remediation process is lengthy and subject to the
uncertainties of changes in legal requirements, technological developments and the allocation of liability among
potentially responsible parties.
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While the Company believes that it has determined the costs for environmental matters likely to be incurred
based on known information, the Company’s ongoing efforts to identify potential environmental concerns that
may be associated with the properties may lead to future environmental investigations. These efforts may result
in the determination of additional environmental costs and liabilities, which cannot be reasonably estimated at
this time,

An action was commenced by Seaspan Internationa! Ltd. (“Seaspan”) in the Supreme Court of British
Columbia, on March 31, 1999 against Domtar Inc, and others with respect to alleged contamination of Seaspan’s
site bordering Burrard Inlet in North Vancouver, British Columbia including contamination of sediments in
Burrard Inlet, due to the presence of creosote. As of July 3, 2002, the parties entered into a partial Settlement
Agreement (the “Settlement Agreement”} which provides that while the agreement is performed in accordance
with its terms, the action commenced by Seaspan will be held in abeyance. The Settlement Agreement focused
on the sharing of costs between Seaspan and Domtar Inc, for certain remediation of contamination referred to in
the plaintiff’s claim. The Settlement Agreement does not address all of the plaintiff's claims as that cannot be
reasonably determined at this time. Due to the complexity in the implementation of the Settlement, the parties are
currently renegotiating the terms and conditions of the Settlement. No party has exercised its right to terminate
the Settlement. The Company has recorded a provision for the estimated settlement amount,

Domtar Inc. was issued a Request for Response Action (“RFRA™) by the Minnesota Pollution Control
Agency (“MPCA”) for the clean-up of tar seeps and soils at a former coal tar distillation plant located in Duluth,
Minnesota. On March 27, 1996, the MPCA issued a Request for Response Action (“RFRA™) to Domtar Inc.,
Interlake Corp., Allied-Signal, Inc. and Beazer East, Inc. requiring the investigation and potential remediation of
a portion of an industrial site located in Duluth, Minnesota, believed to contain contaminated sediments
originating from former coke and gas plants and coal tar distillation plants. Domtar Inc. formerly operated one
coal tar distillation plant. The total cost of the likely remediation is estimated to be between $3 million and
$7 million. Final allocation of remediation cost is expected to be determined in the second quarter of 2008. At
December 30, 2007, the Company had a provision of $4 million for remediation costs.

At December 30, 2007, the Company had a provision of $119 million for environmental matters and other
asset retirement obligations. Additional costs, not known or identifiable, could be incurred for remediation
efforts. Based on policies and procedures in place to monitor environmental exposure, management believes that
such additional remediation costs would not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position,
earnings or cash flows.

At December 30, 2007, anticipated undiscounted payments in each of the next five years were as follows:

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total

Environmental provision and other asset retirement
OblIgatioN . ..o e $21 $32 $14 $7 §7 $38

o

1

\D

CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of operations, the Company becomes involved in various legal actions mostly related
to contract disputes, patent infringements, environmental and product warranty claims, and labor issues. While
the final outcome with respect to actions outstanding or pending at December 30, 2007, cannot be predicted with
certainty, it is management’s opinion that their resolution will not have a material adverse effect on the
Company’s financial position, earnings or cash flows.
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Domtar Inc. is subject to a motion by Joachim Laferriére Electricien Inc., filed in the Quebec Superior Court
on January 9, 2006, for authorization to bring a class action suit against Domtar Inc. and others for alleged
damages relating to a conspiracy to fix prices of carbonless sheets during the period of January through
December 2000 in the Province of Quebec, Canada. The claim seeks estimated compensatory damages in the
amount of $50 million {CDN$50 million) plus estimated exemplary damages in the amount of $! million to
$5 million (CDNS1 million to CDNS$5 million). Domtar is also subject to a motion by McLay & Company Inc.
filed in Ontario Superior Court on January 11, 2006 for authorization to bring a class action suit against Domtar
Inc. and others, for alleged inflated prices of carbonless sheets paper during the period of October 1999 through
September 2000 in the Province of Ontario, Canada. These class actions have been settled in principle for an
insignificant amount and are subject to Court approval. The amount had been previously provided for in the
purchase price allocation related to the acquisition of Domtar Inc.

In the early part of 2006, the Company closed its pulp and paper mill in Prince Albert, Saskatchewan.
Certain unionized parties filed a grievance against Weyerhaeuser following the shut down, alleging that certain
post-closure actions taken by Weyerhaeuser violated their collective bargaining agreement. In particular, the
union disputed the post-closure contracting with a third-party vendor to oversee on-site security at Prince Albert.
In connection with the Transaction, the Company has assumed any liability with respect to this grievance. In
November 2007, the Company was informed that the Government of the Province of Saskatchewan was not
prepared to participate in the financing and redevelopment of the Prince Albert Facility into a Northern Bleached
Softwood Kraft (“NBSK"™) pulp mill producing 100% Forest Stewardship Council (FSC) centified softwood pulp
for the North America and offshore markets, as set forth in the memorandum of understanding signed on
September 12, 2007. As such, the Company has not determined whether these previously idled facilities will be
reopened, sold or closed. In a separate grievance relating to the closure of the Prince Albert facility, which could
result in liability in excess of $20 million, the union is claiming that it is entitled to the accumulated pension
benefits during the actual layoff period because, according to the union, a majority of employees retained still
had recall rights during the layoff. The Company is currently evaluating its position with respect to these
grievances and cannot be certain that it will not incur liability, which could be material, with respect to these
grievances.

E.B. EDDY ACQUISITION

On July 31, 1998, Domtar Inc. acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of E.B. Eddy Limited and
E.B. Eddy Paper, Inc. (E.B. Eddy), an integrated producer of specialty paper and wood preducts. The purchase
agreement includes a purchase price adjustment whereby, in the event of the acquisition by a third party of more
than 50% of the shares of Domtar Inc. in specified circumstances, Domtar Inc. may have had to pay up to a
maximum of $121 million (CDN$120 millicn), an amount which is gradually declining over a 25-year period. At
March 7, 2007, the maximum amount of the purchase price adjustment was $111 million (CDNS$! 10 million}. No
provision was recorded for this potential purchase price adjustment.

On March 14, 2007, the Company received a letter from George Weston Limited (the previous owner of
E.B. Eddy and a party to the purchase agreement) demanding payment of $111 million (CDN$110 million) as a
result of the consummation of the Transaction. On June 12, 2007, an action was commenced by George Weslon
Limited against Domtar Inc. in the Superior Court of Justice of the Province of Ontario, Canada, claiming that
the consummation of the Transaction triggered the purchase price adjustment and sought a purchase price
adjustment of $111 million (CDN$110 million) as well as additional compensatory damages. The Company does
not believe that the consummation of the Transaction triggers an obligation to pay an increase in consideration
under the purchase price adjustment and intends to defend itself vigorously against any claims with respect
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thereto. However, the Company may not be successful in the defense of such claims, and if the Company is
ultimately required to pay an increase in consideration, such payment may have a material adverse effect on the
liguidity, results of operations and financial condition.

LEASE AND OTHER COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

The Company has entered into operating leases for property, plant and equipment. The Company also has
commitments to purchase property, plant and equipment, roundwood, wood chips, gas and certain chemicals.
Minimum future payments under these operating leases and other commercial commitments, determined at
December 30, 2007, were as follows:

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total

Operating 18ases . ... ...ovvr e $29 $22 %16 39 $5 $ 6 3587
Other commercial commitments . ... ... ..........0vui.s 97 26 s 7 5 — 144

Total operating lease expense amounted to $31 million in 2007.

GUARANTEES AND INDEMNIFICATIONS

In the normal course of business, the Company offers indemnifications relating to the sale of its businesses
and real estate. In general, these indemnifications may relate to claims from past business operations, the failure
to abide by covenants and the breach of representations and warranties included in the sales agreements.
Typically, such representations and warranties relate to taxation, environmental, product and employee matters.
The terms of these indemnification agreements are generally for an unlimited period of time. At December 30,
2007, the Company is unable to estimate the potential maximum liabilities for these types of indemnification
guarantees as the amounts are contingent upon the outcome of future events, the nature and likelihood of which
cannot be reasonably estimated at this time. Accordingly, no provisions have been recorded. These
indemnifications have not yielded a significant expense in the past.

NOTE 22.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

FAIR VYALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

December 30, December 31,
2007 2006
Fair Carrying Fair Carrying
valne amount value amount
Long-termdebt ... ... . e e e $2,162 $2230 %44 $d4

The fair value of the long-term debt, including the portion due within one vear, is principally based on
quoted market prices.

Due to their short-term maturity, the carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, receivables, bank
indebtedness, trade and other payables and income and other taxes approximate their fair values.
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INTEREST RATE RISK

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk arising from fluctuations in interest rates on its cash and cash
equivalents, its bank indebtedness, its bank credit facility and its long-term debt. The Company may manage this
interest rate exposure by the use of derivative instruments such as interest rate swap contracts.

CREDIT RISK

The Company is exposed to credit risk on the accounts receivable from its customers. In order to reduce this
risk, the Company reviews new customers’ credit histories before granting credit and conducts regular reviews of
existing customers’ credit performance.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by counterparties to its
financial instruments. The Company minimizes this exposure by entering into contracts with counterparties that
are believed to be of high credit quality. Collateral or other security to support financial instruments subject to
credit risk is usually not obtained. The credit standing of counterparties is regularly monitored.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

In order to reduce the potential negative effects of a fluctuating Canadian dollar, the Company may enter
into various arrangements to stabilize anticipated future net cash inflows denominated in U.S. dollars. Such
arrangements are composed of forward foreign contracts and currency options purchased and sold. Forward
foreign exchange contracts are contracts whereby the Company has the obligation to sell U.S. dollars at a specific
rate. Currency options purchased are contracts whereby the Company has the right, but not the obligation, to sell
U.S. dollars at the strike rate if the U.S. dollar trades below that rate. Currency options sold are contracis
whereby the Company has the obligation to selt U.S. dollars at the sirike rate if the U.S. dollar trades above that
rate. No arrangements were outstanding at December 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006,

COST RISK

The Company purchases natural gas at the prevailing market price at the time of delivery. In order to
manage the cash flow risk associated with purchases of natural gas, the Company may utilize derivative financial
instruments to fix the price of forecasted natural gas purchases. The Company formally documents the hedge
relationships, including identification of the hedging instruments and the hedged items, the risk management
objectives and strategies for undertaking the hedge transactions, and the methodologies used to assess
effectiveness and measure ineffectiveness. Changes in the fair value of the derivative financial instruments are
allocated by the Company to individual facilities based on projected usage of natural gas. The Company
recognizes its allocable share of the gains and losses on the Company’s derivative financial instruments in
earnings when the forecasted purchases occur. A summary of amounts related to the Company’s hedging
program follows:

December 30, December 31,
2007 2006

Unrealized losses not yet recognized in the consclidated statements of eamings (loss)
atend Of Year . ... .. e e e — $(9)

124




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

NOTE 23.

RELATED PARTY

Prior to the Transaction, the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business was engaged in various transactions with
Weyerhaeuser that were characteristic of a consolidated group under common control. For the years ended
December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005, the Business Unit purchased from Weyerhaeuser pulp, fiber and
corrugated boxes for an amount of $209 million and $355 million, respectively, and sold pulp, paper and lumber
for an amount of $91 million and $132 million, respectively.

NOTE 24.

SEGMENT DISCLOSURES

Following the Transaction, the Company operates in the three reportable segments described below. Each
reportable segment offers different products and services and requires different technology and marketing
strategies. The following summary briefly describes the operations included in each of the Company’s reportable
segments:

+ Papers—represents the aggregation of the manufacturing and distribution businesses, commercial
printing and publication, and technical and specialty papers, as well as pulp.

» Paper Merchants—involves the purchasing, warehousing, sale and distribution of various products
made by the Company and by other manufacturers. These products include business and printing
papers and certain industrial products.

*  Wood—comprises the manufacturing and marketing of lumber and wood-based value-added products
and the management of forest resources.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as described in Note 1. The Company
evaluates performance based on operating income, which represents sales, reflecting transfer prices between
segments at fair value, less allocable expenses before financing expenses and income taxes. Segment assets are
those directly used in segment operations.

The Company attributes sales to customers in different geographical areas on the basis of the location of the
customer.

Long-lived assets consist of goodwill and property, plant and equipment used in the generation of sales in
the different geographical areas.
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An analysis and reconciliation of the Company’'s business segment information to the respective

information in the financial statements is as follows:

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

SEGMENT DATA 2007 2006 2005
Sales

Papers ... ... 35,116 $3,143 $3,074

PaperMerchants ......... ... .o 813 — —

BT T« _’32& 234 338
Total for reportable segments .. ....... ... ... ... .. .. ... 6,233 3,377 3,412

Intersegment sales—Papers . . ... ... ... ... .ol {235) —_ (2)

Intersegment sales—Paper Merchants . .................. ... (1) — —

Intersegment sales—Wood ......... .. ... ... ... s (50) an (143)
Consolidated sales . .. ... ... ... .. ... 5947 3,306 3,267
Depreciation and amortization

Papers ... 444 302 341

PaperMerchants . ....... .. ... .. . . . . i i 2 — —

Wood .. e 25 9 16
Consolidated depreciation and amortization . ... ... ... ... ... ... 471 311 357
Charges for closure of facilities, restructuring costs and

impairments

Papers ... e 105 765 461

Wood .. e e 5 (N 77
Consolidated charges for closure of facilities, restructuring costs

and impairments ... ... .. .. ... L 110 764 538

Operating income (loss)

Papers ... e 321 (608) (492)

Paper Merchants . ....... . ... . ... . i i i 13 — —

Wood .o e (63) 52 (86)

COTPOTALE . . ..ot e e nH — —
Consolidated operating income (loss) ......................... 270 (556) (578)
Interest EXpense . . ... ... ... . 171 — —
Earnings (loss) before income taxes . .......................... 99 (556) (578)
INCOme 1ax eXPENSE . .. ..o\t 29 53 (100
Netearnings (loss) ....... ... ... .. 0. iiiiiiniiiinins $ 70 $ (609) $ (478)

126




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

December 30, December 31,

SEGMENT DATA (CONTINUED) 2007 2006
Segment assets
PapErs . . . $6,888 $3,933
Paper Merchants . . ... ... ... . . . i 108 —
Wood .. 320 65
Total for reportable segments .. ......... ... ... it 7,316 3,998
L0 5147 432 —
Consolidated assets . ........... ... it $7,748 $3,998

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 31, December 25,

2007 2006 2005
Additions to property, plant and equipment
PaDETS L. 3 92 $ o4 $ 108
Paper Merchants ........... ... .. ... . i 2 — —
Wood ... 4 — 5
Total for reportable segments ...... ... ... ... ... .. ....... 98 64 113
Corporate . ... e e 25 — —
Consolidated additions to property, plant and equipment . ........... 123 64 113
Add: Change in payables on capital projects ................. )] — —

Consolidated additions to property, plant and equipment per
Consolidated cashftows .................................. $ 116 $ 64 $ 113

Geographic information

Sales
United SateSs . . ...t $4,841 $2,791 $2,663
Canada . ..... ... . i e 742 515 559
Other foreign countries ........ccoververiinieeennnnnnnn. 364 — 45
$5,947 $3,306 $3.267

December 30, December 31,
2007 2006

Property, plant and equipment and goodwill

nited SEatES . .o e e e %3,760 $2,324
Canada . ... o 1,974 755
$5,734 $3,079
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NOTE 25.

SALE OF WOOD BUSINESS

On Janvary 7, 2008, Domtar announced that Domtar Inc. and Conifex Inc. have terminated the agreement
announced June 22, 2007, relating to the sale of Domtar Inc.'s forest products business. Conifex was to acquire
sawmills and other forest operations situated in Ontario and Quebec. Both parties recognized that closing
conditions had not been met pursuant to the terms of the agreement.

Domtar intends to continue to seek opportunities to maximize the value of these assets as well as pursue
initiatives to improve their operational efficiency.

NOTE 26.

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following information is presented as required under Rule 3.10 of Regulation S-X, in connection with
the Company’s issuance of debt securities in exchange for outstanding debt securities of Domtar Inc, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. Pursuant to this exchange transaction, the securities that were issued (the
“Guaranteed Debt”) were fully and unconditionally guaranteed by Domtar Paper Company, LLC, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company (“Guarantor Subsidiary”) and the successor to the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper
Business U.S. Operations. The Guaranteed Debt will not be guaranteed by the Guarantor Subsidiary’s own
wholly-owned subsidiaries; namely Domtar Delaware Investments Inc, Domtar Delaware Holdings Inc and
Domtar Delaware Holdings LLC (and subsidiaries including Domtar Inc.) (collectively the “Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries™ and the successor to the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business Canadian Operations).
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The following supplemental condensed consolidating financial information sets forth, on an unconsolidated
basis, the balance sheets at December 30, 2007 and December 31, 2006 and the statements of earnings (loss), and
cash flows for the years ended December 30, 2007, December 31, 2006 and December 25, 2005 for Domiar
Corporation (the “Parent Company”), and for the Guarantor Subsidiary and, on a combined basis, the
Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries. The supplemental condensed consolidating financial information reflects, for 2007
fiscal periods, the investments of the Parent Company in the Guarantor Subsidiary as well the investments of the
Guarantor Subsidiary in the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries, in both cases using the equity method. The Parent
Company’s purchase price allocation adjustments, including applicable intangible assets, arising from the
business acquisition in Note 3 have been pushed down to the applicable subsidiary columns.

Year ended December 30, 2007

Non-
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING Guarantor GI.IEI?:II!OI‘ Consolidating
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS (LOSS) Parent Subsidiary Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
Sales . ... .. ... $— $3,214 $2,925 $(192) $5,947
Operating expenses
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation and
amortization ............ .. .ol — 2,589 2,360 (192) 4,757
Depreciation and amortization . .. . .......... — 227 244 — 471
Selling, general and administrative .. ........ 16 196 196 — 408
Impairment of property, plant and
EQUIPMENT ...ttt i e — — 92 — 92
Impairment of goodwill ................... — — 4 — 4
Closure and restructuring costs ............. — — 14 — 14
Other operating expenses (income) .......... (2) 6 a3 — 69
i4 3,018 2,837 (192) 5,677
Operating income {(loss) . . .................... (14 196 88 —_ 270
[nterest EXPense . ......vooueeamnaaanny 66 43 62 — 171
Earnings (loss) before income taxes . ... ........ (8B0) 153 26 — 99
Income tax expense (benefit) . . ........... ... ... (33) 49 13 _ 29
Share in earnings of equity accounted investees .. .. 117 13 —_ (130) —
Netearnings(loss) .......................... $70 % 117 $ 13 $(130) $ 70

|
|
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS (1.OSS)

Sales . ... ... . ...

Operating expenses
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation and

amortization ............... ... .. ...
Depreciation and amortization .............
Selling, general and administrative . .........
Impairment of goodwill ..................
Closure and restructuring costs .. ...........
Other operating expenses (income) .........

Operating income (loss) .....................

Earnings (loss) before income taxes ...........
Income taxexpense . .. .............. ...,

Netearnings(loss) ..........................

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING
STATEMENT OF EARNINGS (LOSS)

Sales . ... ... ...

Operating expenses
Cost of sales, excluding depreciation and

amortization . ............. ... ... .. ...
Depreciation and amortization .............
Selling, general and administrative ..........

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Impairment of goodwill ..................
Closure and restructuring costs ... ..........
Other operating expenses (income) .........

Operating income (loss) .....................

Earnings (loss) before income taxes ...........
Incometax benefit ..........................

Netearnings (loss) . .........................

Year ended December 31, 2006

Non-
Guarantor Gum?a“ntor Consolidating
Subsidiary Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
....... $2,656 $ 978 $(328) $3,306
....... 2,095 904 {323) 2,676
....... 232 79 — 311
....... 144 30 — 174
....... 749 — —_ 749
....... 1 14 — 15
....... 5 (68) — (63)
3,226 959 (323) 3,862
....... {570) 19 (5) (556)
....... {570} 19 5) (556)
....... 50 3 — 53
....... $ (620) $ 16 L) $ (609)

Year ended December 25, 2005
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Non-
Guarantor Gual?anntor Consolidating
Subsidiary Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
....... $2,570 $1,078 $(381) 33,267
....... 2,106 1,061 (383) 2,784
....... 235 122 — 357
....... 150 24 — 174
....... — 499 — 499
....... — I — 1
....... 1 37 — 38
....... 2 (10 — &
2,494 1,734 (383 3,845
....... 76 (656) 2 (578)
....... 76 (656) 2 (578)
....... (5) (95) — (100)
....... $ 81 $ (sel) $ 2 $ (478)
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December 30, 2007
Non-
Guarantor  Guarantor  Consolidating
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET Parent  Subsidiary Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ................ $ 9 § 22 % 40 $ — 5 71
Receivables .................covuven .. — 332 210 — 542
Inventories ............. ... irinian. —_ 404 532 —_— 936
Prepaid expenses ........... ... ... ..., — 3 11 — 14
Income and other taxes receivable .......... — 36 17 — 53
Intercompany accounts .................. —_ 427 578 (1,005) —-—
Deferred income taxes ..............oonn. 5 21 156 —_ 182
Total currentassets ................ 14 1,245 1,544 (1,005) 1,798
Property, plant and equipment, at cost . ... - 4,188 5,497 — 9,685
Accumulated depreciation .. ............. —_ (2,139) (2,184) —_ (4,323)
Net property, plant and equipment . .. — 2,049 3,313 — 5,362
Goodwill .................. ... ... .. ...... -— — 372 — 372
Intangible assets, net of amortization ......... — — L1 — 111
Investments in affiliates . . . .................. 5,465 1,881 15 (7,361) —_
Intercompany advances . .. .................. 2 450 659 (LI —_
Otherassets.........................covunn 23 — 82 —_— 103
Totalassets ....................... 5,504 5,625 6,096 9477 7,748
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Bankindebtedness ...................... — 32 31 - 63
Trade and other payables ................. i5 251 499 — 765
Intercompany accounts . ................. 403 175 427 (1,005) —
Income and other taxes payable ............ - — 50 — 50
Long-term debt due within one year ........ 8 5 4 — 17
Total current liabilities ............. 426 463 1,011 (1,005) 895
Long-termdebt . ........................... 2,173 24 16 — 2,213
Intercompany long-termloans ............... — 1,114 — (1,111) —
Deferred incometaxes ...................... — 620 383 — 1,003
Other liabilities and deferred credits .. ... ... .. 1 59 380 — 440
Shareholders’ equity . ..... ... ... ........... 2,904 3,348 4,306 (7,361) 3,197
Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity . .. ... .. .. $5,504 § 5,625 $ 6,096 $(9.477) $ 7,748
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents ..........
Receivables ......................
Inventories . ......................
Prepaidexpenses ..................
Deferred income taxes .............

Total current assets ...........

Property, plant and equipment, atcost . .. .. ..., ...

Accumulated depreciation .........

Net property, plant and equipment ...........

Goodwill . ... ........................
Otherassets .. .......................

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities

Trade and other payables ...........
Income and cther taxes payable ......
Long-term debt due within one year . ..

Total current liabilities . .. ... ..
Long-termdebt ......................
Deferred incometaxes ................
Other liabilities and deferred credits . . ..
Shareholders’ equity ..................

Total liabilities and
shareholders’ equity
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December 31, 2006

Non-
Guarantor  Guarantor  Consolidating

Subsidiary  Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated
$ — 0§ 1 $— $ 1
300 40 — 340
428 102 (10 520
3 3 — 6
21 1 — 22
752 147 (10) 889
4,233 2,463 — 6,696
(1.916) (1,715) — (3.631)
2317 748 — 3,065
11 3 — 14
— 30 — 30
3,080 928 (10 3,998
191 59 — 250
— 6 — 6
6 6 — 12
197 71 — 268
32 — — 32
698 60 — 758
13 12 — 25
2,140 785 (10) 2,915
33,080 5 928 3 Q0 $ 3,998




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

Year ended December 30, 2007

Non-
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF Guarantor Guarantor  Consolidating
CASH FLOWS Parent  Subsidiary Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

Operating activities
Netearnings (I0Ss} ..o, $ 70 S$i17 $ 13 $(130) $§ 70
Changes in operating and intercompany assets and

liabilities and non cash items, included in net

earnings (foss) .. ......... ... .. oo 274 (54) 186 _130 536
Cash flows provided from {used for)
operating activities ......... ... .. ... 344 63 199 = 606
Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment . . .. .. — (14) (102) —_ (116)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and
EQUIPIIENT .. .ot e — — 29 — 29
Business acquisitions—cash acquired .......... — — 573 — 573
Increase in long-term advances to related
PAMLIBS © oottt — (663) (604) — (1,267
Decrease in long-term advances to related
PAMIES ..ottt et s 663 604 — — 1,267
Other ..o e e s — — H — ()
Cash flows provided from (used for)
investing activities ................... 663 amn (105) — 485
Financing activities
Net change in bank indebtedness .............. — 32 {(53) — 21
Drawdown of revolving bank credit .. .......... 50 — — — 50
Issuance of short-term debt .................. 1,350 — — — 1,350
Issuance of long-termdebt ................... 800 — — — 800
Repayment of short-termdebt ................ (1,350) — —_ — (1,350)
Repayment of long-termdebt . . ............... 310) — (1) — 31
Deblissue COSIS ... ..ttt (39) —_ — — 39
Premium on redemption of long-term debt .. .... (40) — -— — (40)
Repurchase of minority interest ............... (28) — — — (28)
Distribution to Weyerhaeuser prior to March 7,
2007 e (1,431} — — — (1,431}
Other . ... e e — — {5) = (5)
Cash flows provided from (used for)
financing activities ................... (998) 32 (59) = (1,025)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents . .. .. 9 22 35 — 66
Translation adjustments related to cash and cash
equivalents ......... ..o i i, -— — 4 — 4
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
period ... ... — — 1 . |
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period . ... $ 9 $ 22 $ 40 $— $ 7
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 30, 2007
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Year ended December 31, 2006

Non-
Guarantor  Guarantor  Consolidating

Subsidiary Subsidiaries Adjustments Consolidated

Operating activities

Netearnings{(loss) ..........oi i,

Changes in operating and intercompany assets and liabilities
and non cash items, included in net earnings (loss) ......

Cash flows provided from operating activities . .......

Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment ..............
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment . .

Cash flows used for investing activities .............

Financing activities
Distribution to Weyerhaeuser .. ............ .. .........
Debt and capital lease payments .......................

Cash ftows used for financing activities . .......... ..

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents . ... ... .. ..
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ...........

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ..............

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

$620) 3 16 $ 5
892 69 s
272 85 =
(50) (14)

| — —

(49) (14) -
218) (69) —
) @ =
(223) (71) —
- o =
s— 0§ 1 $—

Year ended December 25, 2005

$(60%)

966
357
(64)

1
(63)

(287)

)
(294)

&4
|1
- |-

Non-
Guarantor  Guarantor  Consolidating

Subsidiary Subsidiaries  Adjustments Consolidated

Operating activities

Netearnings (1oss) ........ .. ...

Changes in operating and intercompany assets and liabilities
and non cash items, included in net earnings {loss) ......

Cash flows provided from (used for) operating
activities ...... ... ... . . i i

Investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment ..............
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment .

Cash flows used for investing activities .............

Financing activities
Distribution to (from) Weyerhaeuser ...................
Debt and capital lease payments . ......................

Cash flows provided from (used for) financing
ACHVILIES . ... e

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents .............
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year . ....... ...

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year . .............

$ 8t $(561) $ 2

15 555 o)
196 (6) =
(71) (42) —

4 — —
6 @ =
(124) 48 —

(5) (N —
(129) 47 —
— 2 il

5— 0§ 1 —

$(478)

668




Domtar Corporation
Interim Financial Results (Unaudited)
(in millions of US dollars, unless otherwise noted)

m Qual:t'er"' 2nd Quarter  3rd Quarter  4th Quarter Year
SAlES . .ot $1,051 $1,583®  $1,660 $1,653  $5,947
Operating iNCOME . ... vvvvetrr e ns 71 69 123 7 (e 270
Earnings (loss) before income taxes ............. 60 22 75 (38) 99
Net earnings (1088) ......ooiiiiiiiinnnn et 49 il 36 (26) 70
Basic net earnings (loss) pershare . .............. 0.14 0.02 0.07 (0.05) 0.15
Diluted net earnings (loss) pershare ............. 0.14 0.02 0.07 {0.05) 0.15
Dividends pershare ........ ... .o — — — — —
% 1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Year
Sl e $ 829 $ 809 $ 795 $ 873  $3,306
Operating income (10s8) ..............oeinnns (7147) @ 2n 69 143 {556)
Earnings (loss) before income taxes ............. (747) 2n 69 143 (556)
Netearnings (1088) .. ... .ot iiinnnnennn. (747) (12) 48 102 (609)
Basic net earnings (loss) pershare .. ............. (2.63) 0.04) 0.17 0.36 (2.14)
Diluted net earnings (loss) per share ............. (2.63) (0.04) 0.17 0.36 (2.14)

Dividends pershare .......... .. ... .. . ... — — — — —

(a) The results for the 1st quarter of 2007 include the results of Domtar Inc., following the acquisition, starting
on March 7, 2007,

(b) The sales for the 2nd quarter of 2007 have been restated to reflect certain intercompany sales that were not
properly eliminated against cost of sales. The effect of correcting this item would have been to decrease
both sales and cost of sales in the amount of $37 million.

(¢) The operating income for the 4th quarter of 2007 includes an impairment of property, plant and equipment
relating to the reorganization of the Dryden, Ontario facility of $92 million and an impairment of goodwill
relating to the Wood reportable segment of $4 million,

(d) The operating loss for the st quarter of 2006 includes an impairment of goodwill relating to the Paper
reportable segment of $749 million.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

The Company has nothing 10 report under this item.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

This annual report does not include a report of management’s assessment regarding internal control over
financial reporting or an attestation report of the company’s registered public accounting firm due to a transition
period established by rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission for newly public companies.

Transition to New Public Company

As discussed in detail under the caption “The Transaction™ in Note 1 of the financial statements (refer to
Part 11, Item 8), on March 7, 2007, we completed a transaction pursuant to which we became an independent
public holding company that, directly or indirectly through our subsidiaries, owns both the Weyerhaeuser Fine
Paper Business and Domtar Inc. In connection with the Transaction we entered into a Transition Services
Agreement (“TSA”) with Weyerhaeuser to provide services to us relating to finance and administration, human
resources and payroll, and information technology to enable us to manage an orderly transition in the operation
of the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business. Pursuant 1o the TSA, certain financial and accounting information
used to complete our financial statements for fiscal year 2007, and the comparable period of 2006 was prepared
by Weyerhaeuser based on Weyerhaeuser systems and controls.

There were many complexities arising from the Transaction that impacted the preparation of our financiat
information including the timing of the closing of the Transaction late in the first quarter and the related
availability of the financial systems and related system conversion, and the allocation of the purchase price of
Domtar Inc. to its assets and application of purchase accounting. In addition, in conjunction with the TSA with
Weyerhaeuser, additional time was required to obtain certain key information and supporting documentation
necessary to complete our review of all financial statement accounts. Our disclosure controls and procedures
include extensive management and senior management review of all financial matters and disclosures before any
public filing is made.

During the fourth quarter 2007, we completed the process of integrating the procedures and practices we
inherited from Weyerhaeuser (with respect to the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business) and from Domtar (with
respect to the Domtar business) with respect to finance and administration previously under the TSA. Human
resources and payroll procedures and practices previously under the TSA agreement were integrated in late
December 2007. We expect to integrate the procedures and practices currently covered under the information
technology portion of the TSA in the fourth quarter of 2008.

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in our reports under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), is
recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules and forms,
and that such information is accurnulated and communicated to management, including our Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, o allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In
connection with the preparation of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, an evaluation was performed, as of
December 30, 2007, by members of management, at the direction and with the participation of our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based upon this
evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of December 30, 2007,
our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable assurance level.
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Previously Reported Material Weaknesses in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than
a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected. Management identified the following material weaknesses as of April 1, 2007.

The Company did not maintain effective controls over the completeness and accuracy of financial
information produced under the TSA with Weyerhaeuser. Specifically, the Company did not have controls
designed and in place to ensure that financial data regarding the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper Business was
complete, accurate, produced on a timely basis and supported with appropriate documentation. Further, the
Company did not maintain an appropriate accounting and financial reporting organizational structure,
specifically relating to the depth of resources, to be able to ensure that the accounting records being maintained
by Weyerhacuser under the TSA were accurate and complete. The financial data produced under the TSA affects
substantially all balance sheet and income statement accounts.

These contro] deficiencies resulted in adjustments to the April 1, 2007 interim financial statements and a
delay in the filing of that Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for our first quarter of 2007. These material
weaknesses were remediated as of December 30, 2007.

Remediation of the Material Weaknesses

The Company has hired additional professional financial and accounting staff and engaged temporary
professional resources to help review the accounting records prepared under the TSA as well as to help to
integrate the procedures and practices. During the fourth quarter 2007, we completed the process of integrating
the procedures and practices we inherited from Weyerhaeuser (with respect to the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper
Business) and from Domtar (with respect to the Domtar business) with respect to finance and administration
previously under the TSA. Human resources and payroll procedures and practices previously under the TSA
agreement were integrated in late December 2007. These changes have materially affected our internal control
over financial reporting. We believe that we have controls over the completeness and accuracy of financial
information produced both under the TSA and by the Corporation that are designed to be effective and that these
controls have been in place for a sufficient period of time to demonstrate operating effectiveness.

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

The Company has nothing to report under this item.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The information included under the captions “Governance of the Corporation,” “Election of Directors™ and
“Section 16(a) Beneficial ownership reporting compliance” in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding our executive officers is presented in Part 1, Item 1, Our Business, of this Form 10-K
under the caption “Our Executive Officers.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information appearing under the caption “Compensation discussion and analysis,” “Executive
Compensation” and “Director Compensation” in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.
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ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information appearing under the caption “Security ownership of certain beneficial owners, directors and
officers” in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by
reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR
INDEPENDENCE

The information appearing under the captions “Governance of the Corporation—Board Independence” and
“Governance of the Corporation—Certain relationships and related transactions” in our Proxy Statement for the
2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPLE ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information appearing under the caption “Ratification of appointment of independent registered public
accounting firm” and “Independent registered public accounting firm fees” in our Proxy Statement for the 2008
Annual Meeting of Stockholders is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) 1. Financial Statements—See Itemn 8, Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

2. Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
All other schedules are omitted as the information required is either included elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements in ltem 8—or is not applicable

3. Exhibits

Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 7, 2007)

32 Amended and Restated By-Laws {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on March 7, 2007)

4.1 Form of Rights Agreement between the Company and Computershare Trust Company, N.A.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10,
Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on January 26, 2007)

4.2 Form of Indenture among Domtar Corp., Domtar Paper Company, LLC and The Bank of New York,
as trustee, relating to Domtar Corp.’s (i) 7.125% Notes due 2015, (ii) 5.375% Notes due 2013,
(iii) 7.125% Notes due 2011, (iv) 9.53% Notes due 2016, (v} Cdn 10% Notes due 2011 and (vi)
Cdn 10.85% Notes due 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form 5-4, Amendment No. |1 filed with the SEC on October 16, 2007.)

4.3 Supplemental Indenture, dated February 15, 2008, among Domtar Corp., Domtar Paper Company,
LLC, The Bank of New York, as Trustee, and the new subsidiary guarantors parties thereto,
relating to Domtar Corp.’s (i) 7.125% Notes due 2015, (ii) 5.375% Notes due 2013, (iii) 7.125%
Notes due 2011, (iv} 9.5% Notes due 2016, (v) Cdn 10% Notes due 2011 and (vi) Cdn 10.85%
Notes due 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on February 21, 2008)
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

4.4

9.1

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated February 20, 2008, among Domtar Corp., Domtar Paper
Company, LLC, The Bank of New York, as Trustee, and the new subsidiary guarantor party
thereto, relating to Domtar Corp.’s (i} 7.125% Notes due 2015, (ii} 5.375% Notes due 2013,

(iii) 7.125% Notes due 2011, (iv) 9.5% Notes due 2016, (v) Cdn 10% Notes due 2011 and (vi)
Cdn 10.85% Notes due 2017 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to the Company’s Form 8-K
filed with the SEC on February 21, 2008)

Form of Voting and Exchange Trust Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 9.1 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on January
26, 2007)

Form of Tax Sharing Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Transition Services Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Pine Chip Supply Agreement (Ptymouth, North Carolina) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Hog Fuel Supply Agreement (Plymouth, North Carolina) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Slush Pulp Sales Agreement (Columbus, Mississippi) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Site Services Agreement (Plymouth, North Carolina) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC
on January 26, 2007)

Form of Site Services Agreement (Kamloops, British Columbia) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Site Services Agreement (Columbus, Mississippi) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9
to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on
January 26, 2007)

Form of Fiber Supply Agreement {Princeton, British Columbia) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.10 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Fiber Supply Agreement (Okanagan Falls, British Columbia) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.11 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Fiber Supply Agreement (Kamloops, British Columbia) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.12 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

Form of Fiber Supply Agreement (Carrot River and Hudson Bay) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.13 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on Jannary 26, 2007)
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Exhibit
Number Exhibit Description

10.13 Form of Fiber Supply Agreement (Prince Albert, Saskatchewan) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.14 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

10.14 Form of Fiber Supply Agreement (White River, Ontario) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15
to the Company’s Registration Staternent on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on
January 26, 2007)

10.15 Form of Site Services Agreement (Utilities) {Columbus, Mississippi) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.16 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)
10.16 Form of Site Services Agreement (Utilities) (Plymouth, North Carolina) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.17 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with
the SEC on January 26, 2007)

10.17 Pine and Hardwood Roundwood Supply Agreement (Plymouth, North Carolina) (incorporated by
reference 1o Exhibit 10.18 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-| filed with the SEC
on May 9, 2007)

10.18 Agreement for the Purchase and Supply of Pulp (Plymouth, North Carolina) (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.19 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form 5-1 filed with the SEC
on May 9, 2007)

10.19 Pine In-Woods Chip Supply Agreement (Plymouth, North Carolina) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.20 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9,
2007)

by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the
SEC on May 9, 2007)

10.21 OSB Supply Agreement (Hudson Bay, Saskatchewan) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to
the Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

10.22 Hog Fuel Supply Agreement (Kenora, Ontario) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 to the

10.20 Pine and Amory Hardwood Roundwood Supply Agreement (Columbus, Mississippi) (incorporated
|
‘ Company's Registration Staternent on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

10.23 Fiber Supply Agreement (Trout Lake and Wabigoon, Ontario) (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.26 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9,

2007)

10.24 Form of Intellectual Property License Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.18 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on January 28,
2007)

10.25 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 1o the Company’s

Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

10.26 Domtar Corperation 2007 Omnibus Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.29 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 fited with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

10.27 Domtar Corporation 2004 Réplacement Long-Term Incentive Plan for Former Employees of
Weyerhaeuser Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.30 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

10.28 Domtar Corporation 1998 Replacement Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan for Former
Employees of Weyerhaeuser Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.31 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)
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Exhibit
Number

Exhibit Description

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

Domtar Corporation Replacement Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan for Former Employees
of Weyerhaeuser Company {incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.32 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form $-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Domtar Corporation Executive Stock Option and Share Purchase Plan (applicable to eligible
employees of Domtar Inc. for grants prior to March 7, 2007) (incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.33 to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9,
2007)

Domtar Corporation Executive Deferred Share Unit Plan (applicable to members of the Management
Committee of Domtar Inc. prior to March 7, 2007) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.34 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Domtar Corporation Deferred Share Unit Plan for Qutside Directors (for former directors of
Domtar Inc.) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to the Company’s Registration Statement
on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Supplementary Pension Plan for Senior Executives of Domtar Corporation (for certain designated
senior executives) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.36 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Supplementary Pension Plan for Designated Management Employees of Domtar Corporation (for
certain designated management employees) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.37 to the
Company’s Registration Statement on Form $-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Domtar Retention Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.38 to the Company’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Domtar Corporation Restricted Stock Plan (applicable to eligible employees of Domtar Inc. for
grants prior to March 7, 2007) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Domutar Severance Policy for Senior Executives (applicable to members of the Management
Committee of Domtar Inc. prior to March 7, 2007) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.40 to the
Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Director Deferred Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 24, 2007

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 24, 2007

Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Form
8-K filed with the SEC on May 24, 2007

Senior Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to the
Company’s Form 8-K filed with the SEC on May 24, 2007.)

Credit Agreement among the Company, Domtar, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A,, as administrative
agent, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as syndication agent, Bank of America, N.A., Royal
Bank of Canada and The Bank of Nova Scotia, as co-documentation agents, and the lenders from
time to time parties thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.45 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1 filed with the SEC on May 9, 2007)

Indenture between Domitar Inc. and the Bank of New York dated as of July 31, 1996 relating to
Domtar’s $125,000,000 9.5% debentures due 2016 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.20 to the
Company’s registration statement on Form 10, Amendment No. 2 filed with the SEC on January 26,
2007)

Employment Agreement of Mr. Raymond Royer (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 0.1 to the
Company’s form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 15, 2007.)
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10.45

12.1
21.1

24.1
311
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321

322

Employment Agreement of Mr. Marvin Cooper (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the
Company’s form 8-K filed with the SEC on August 15, 2007.)

Computation of Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Subsidiaries of Domtar Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to the Company’s
Registration Statement on Form S-4 filed with the SEC on September 26, 2007)

Powers of Attorney (included in signature page)

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Centification of the Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002.

Centification of the Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of
2002,
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FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE
(IN MILLIONS OF US DOLLARS, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED)
SCHEDULE H--VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

For the three years ended:

Balance at

beginning Charged to  (Deductions) from/  Balance at end
of year income Additions to reserve of year
Allowances deducted from related asset accounts:
Doubtful accounts—Accounts receivable
2007 e s $2 $ @) $ 1l $9
2006 .. e e, 2 — — 2
2008 e 2 — — 2

The additions to reserve during 2007 include the acquisition of Domtar Inc. of $12 miliion.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly
caused this registration statement to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in the
City of Montreal, Quebec, Canada, on March 25, 2008.

DOMTAR CORPORATION

By: fs/ RAYMOND ROYER

Name: Raymond Royer

Title: President and Chief Executive Officer

We, the undersigned directors and officers of Domtar Corporation, hereby severally constitute Gilles
Pharand and Razvan L. Theodoru, and each of them singly, our true and lawful attorneys with full power to them
and each of them to sign for us, in our names in the capacities indicated below, any and all amendments to this
Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this registration statement
has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
/s/ RayMonD ROYER President and Chief Executive Officer March 25, 2008
Raymond Royer (Principal Executive Officer) and
Director
fs!/ DANIEL BURON Senior Vice-President and Chief March 25, 2008
Daniel Buron Financial Officer (Principal
Financial Officer and Principal
Accounting Officer)
/s/ HaroLD H. MacKay Director March 25, 2008

Harold H. MacKay

fs!  Jack C. BINGLEMAN Director March 25, 2008
Jack C. Bingleman

/s!  MarvIN D. CooPER Director March 25, 2008
Marvin D. Cooper

Is/  Louis P. GIGNAC Director March 25, 2008
Louis P. Gignac

/s/ BRIAN M. LEvITT Director March 25, 2008
Brian M. Levitt
fs/ W, HENSON MOORE Director March 25, 2008

W. Henson Moore

fsf  MICHAEL R. ONUSTOCK Director March 25, 2008
Michael R. Onustock
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Signature

/s/ ROBERT J. STEACY

Robert J. Steacy

fs/  WiLLiaM C. STIVERS

William C. Stivers

/s/ PAMELA B. STROBEL

Pamela B. Strobel

/s!  RICHARD TaN

Richard Tan

/s/ DENIS TURCOTTE

Denis Turcotte

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Title

Date

March 25, 2008

March 25, 2008

March 25, 2008

March 25, 2008

March 25, 2008



Domtar Corporation
Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges

Available earnings:
Earnings (loss) before interest
expense and income taxes .......
Add Fixed charges:
Interest Expense (excluding
capitalizedy ...............
Amortization of loan costs . . . ..
Interest factor inrents ........

Total earnings (loss) as definded .... ...,

Fixed charges:
Interest expense incurred ..........
Amortization of debt expense ......
Interest portion of rental expense . . . .
Preferred dividends of subsidiaries ..
Capitalized interest . . .............

Total fixedcharges . ..................
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges .......

Deficiency in the coverage of earnings to
fixedcharges .....................

Year ended

Exhibit 12.1

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 28, December 26, December 25, December 31, December 30,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
$ (96) 4D $(578) $ (536) $ 99

- - — — 166
- - — — 5

6 6 7 5 10
(90) 35 87 (551) 280
- - — — 166
- — — — 5
6 6 7 5 10

6 6 7 5 181
1.5

58 81.6




Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Raymond Royer, certify that:
T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Domtar Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consotidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly-
during the period in which this report is being prepared; and

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth ftscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) Al significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 24, 2008

/s/ RAYMOND ROYER

Raymond Royer
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Daniel Buron, certify that:
I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Domtar Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit 1o state
a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to
be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known 1o us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared; and

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

¢) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board
of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a)  All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 24, 2008

Isi DANIEL BUurRON

Daniel Buron
Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge, the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated
March 24, 2008 (the “Form 10-K™) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material
respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s RAYMOND ROYER

Raymond Royer
President and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32,2

CERTIFICATION BY THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT
TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

The undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge, the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated
March 24, 2008 (the “Form 10-K™) fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and information contained in the Form 10-K fairly presents, in all material
respects, the ftnancial condition and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ DANIEL BURON

Daniel Buron
Senior Vice-President and Chief Financial Officer




Head Office

Domtar Corporation

395 de Maisonneuve Blvd. West
Montreal, Quebec H3A 1L6 CANADA
Phone: (514} 848-5555

Website; www.domtar.com

Annual Meeting

The annual meeting of stockhatders of
Domtar Corporation will be held on
Tuesday, May 6, 2008 at 1.00 p.m,, at the
Centre Mont-Royal, 2200 Mansfield Street
Montreal, Quebec, Canada.

Transfer Agent

The transfer agent maintains the records
of registered common and exchangeable
stockholders and can help with a variety

of stockholder related services, including:
estate settiement, lost stock certificates,
change of name or address, stock transfers,
and duplicate mailings.

Stockholders having such inguiries or
wishing to obtain assistance should
contact the transfer agent at:
Computershare Investor Services

P.O. Box 43078

Providence RI 02940-3078

Phone: within the US (877) 282-1168
Qutside US (781} 575-2723

Shareholders wishing to email Computershare
Investor Services should go through the
website at www computershare.com

Canadian stockholders should
contact the transfer agent at:
Computershare Investor Services Inc.
1500 University Street, 7th Floer
Mantreal, Quebec H3A 358

Phone: 1-866-245-4053

Fax: 1-888-453-0330

Canadian stockholders wishing to email
Computershare Investor Services can do sc at:
service@computershare.com

SEDAR™ files should be sentat:
e3filing@computershare.com

Stock Exchanges

Domtar Corporation common stock is
traded an the New York Stock Exchange
and on the Toronto Stock Exchange under
the symbol “UFS”.

Demtar (Canada) Paper tnc. exchangeable
shares are traded on the Toronto Stock
Exchange under the symbal “UFX”.

Company Reports

Electronic versions of this Annual Report

on Form 10-K, SEC filings and other company
publications can be printed on demand

by visiting Domtar Corporation’s website.

Copies can be obtained by writing to

the Investcr Refations Department at
Domtar Corporation’s Head Office address
indicated in this page.

Investor Relations

investors requiring additional
information about Demtar Corporation
should contact the Company’s Investor
Relations Department at:

Phone: {514) 848-5938

Email: ir@demtar.com

Corporate Communications

For further inguiries please contact the
Company's Corperate Communications
Department at.

Phone: (514) 848-5555, ext.B5213

Email: communication@domtar.com

Production Notes

Cover printed on FSC-Certified 65 Ib,
Cougar Smooth Finish Cover,

Text printed on FSC-Certified 35 Ib.
Domtar Donnelley Financia!l Opaque.
Ardoise Design Communications
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Great ideas always command greater-attention. That's

why you need Cougar®. Offering standout performance,
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HE SHAPING OF DOMTAR CORPORATION

COMBINED THE ASSETS OF DOMTAR INC.

WITH THE FINE PAPER BUSINESS

OF WEYERHAEUSER COMPANY, TWO

PAPERMAKING ORGANIZATIONS,

TO CREATE A NEW LEADING NORTH
AMERICAN MANUFACTURER OF UNCOATED FREESHEET (UFS).
BEING NUMBER ONE MEANS MORE THAN BEING THE BIGGEST.
IT ALSO MEANS BEING THE BEST. AS RAYMOND ROYER
SUGGESTS, THE COMPANY WILL LEVERAGE ITS NEWLY
AUGMENTED STRENGTHS TO EARN THE TRUST OF
ITS CUSTOMERS AND GENERATE SHAREHOLDER VALUE.

AN
INTERVIEW
WITH
RAYMOND
ROYER

Domtar Corporation’s
President and
Chief Executive Officer

What virtues of creating the industry

Q

tion a compelling transaction for you?

A

making us financially stronger. We now have an

{eading maker of UFS made this combina-

First and foremost, it will help us face the
challenges of a maturing market while

extensive pool of expertise, which is supported
by a great group of mills, having retained the best
performers of both predecessor companies, Our
corporate culture is strong and entrepreneurial,
focused on meeting customer expectations.
We have market leadership in the crucial busi-
ness papers segment. The combination was
an accretive way of investing in very efficient

“1 see the potential
to make Domtar
much greater
than the sum of
its parts.”

production capacity, building on our respective
distribution networks and customer base and
lowering our delivered unit costs, which have
become important with rising fuel prices. | see
the potential to make Domtar much greater than
the sum of its parts.

Q

maker of UFS that should translate into share-

Big is usually better, but what are the
specific advantages of being the leading

holder value?

A

market awareness, improved access to capital

This deal was transformative. With our
critical mass came ecanomies of scale,

and the opportunity to de-leverage our balance
sheet. We have retained the best performing
facitities and rationalized some that were less
cost-efficient, We have reproduced commercia)
match of our most popular grades. This means
that the same recognized brand-name product
{such as Husky® or Lynx®) is manufactured at
maore than one location with the same quality
standard. In this way, we take advantage of our
extended mill footprint and reduce pur delivered

costs. We have also shifted some products to mills
where they can be produced mare competitively.
Substantially all of our high volume paper products
will be manufactured on paper machines that are
firstand second quartile in terms of costs. With our
increased marketing and distribution capability
we can supply the very largest or the smallest oi
customes mandates. I'm particufarly excited about
our potential to build brand recognition for our

products and increase our market share.
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“This

will be

3 great
business
o bein
foralong
time 1o
come.”

Demand for UFSin North America appears
Q to be on a slow, structural decline.
Is becoming the biggest producer a case of
ensuring that Domtar will be the proverbial
‘last man standing'?

This wiil be a great business to be in

for a long time to come. UFS paper is
fragmented into different paper grades, which
come in many sizes, shades, colors and basis
weights for varicus applications. Each application
has its own unique demand trend and elasticity.
Far example, direct mail has a flat to positive
demand trend. In grades that are in structural
decling, our geographic coverage, proximity to
customers and efficient assets provide us with
a tremendous advantage. If required, we can
consolidate production to lower cost facilities and
achieve greater uniformity in terms of quality and
consistency praviding good potential for market
share growth. All this assures that we keep our
mills operating at optimal capacity, and avoid

discounting to drum up volume.

One could say that 2007 was a transitional
year conducted against the backdrop of

weakening North American economy. How would

you characterize the Company’s performance?

Allthings considered, I'd say most gratifying.
A Integrating two entities is an enormous
undertaking but our people have gone through
this in the past. There were difficult decisions
taken toclose or downsize operations, afiecting
employees, families and communities. It's always
the most difficult part of my job and we strive to
do it in the most respectful way.
In terms of performance, Domtar achieved a
pro forma EBITDA of approximately $00 mittion
in 2007 despite upward pressure on energy, fiber

and chemical costs, as well as the impact of

the stronger Canadian dollar on our Canadian

operations.This allowad us to reduce our debt by
more than $350 million since the end of March 2007.
All of this augers well for Domtar's stakeholders
in the future.

How would you assess the progress
achieved in integrating the assets of the

two companies?

Q As of December 30, the full year synergies
fun-rate of what has been achieved

is 5130 million. That includes synergies from
sharing of best-in-class practices, logistics and
transpartation, procurerment, etc. I'm confident

that we will meet or perhaps exceed our original




forecast of 5200 million in synergies (run-rate} by
December 2008.

Priorities for 2008 include completing the
synergy program and transitioning IT services
in operations. We are also committed to finding
the best solution for our nen-core wood business,
one that balances the interests of shareholders
and the employees involved.

What remains to be done to achieve the
full potential of the coming together of
these businesses?

g Having picked a lot of the low hanging
fruit, our primary focus for the upcoming

year will be to further achieve efficiency gains

and monitor continuous performance improve-

ments. The goal is to cptimize Domtar's strengths
by implementing our new brand strategy and

leveraging our distribution network and cus-

tomer services, We made a statement when
we abtained “UFS” as our ticker symbol on the
New York and Toronio exchanges. It shows how
focused we are on our business plan. We want
our customers to see our products as the brand
name in their category and Domtar as the quality
and service leader.

Is Domtar actively seeking additional
acquisitions?

Q Not at this time. Our goal is to complete
the blending of operations, pursue the

launching of our brands and fully implement
other marketing strategies, as well as solidify
our leadership in our major product categories.
Far now, the priority and focus of our employees
is on delivering synergies. Our commitment
to customers is to be their preferred UFS
supplier and our actiens are geared toward
establishing ourselves as the supplier of choice
in North America.

DCOMTAR 7 ANNUAL REVIEW & INTERVIEW & 2007 & 07

What does the economic environment
laok like for 20087

Q Despite the slowing ecanomy, the bigger
story of 2008 looks like cost inflation

pressure, not weaker demand or prices. Paper ship-
ments lock steady, inventories for major grades
like cut size are reasenably tight, partly a reflec-
tion of consolidation throughout the industry.
A number of price increases during the first
quarter are indicative of a good supply demand
balance. The weak dollar helps sustain pricing
and makes the demestic market less attractive for
European competitors. Also, demand for market
pulp remains strong, particularly offshare.
Casts are another story. 5100+ for a barrel of
crude oil has a significant impact on energy-
related supplies, while the housing crisis indirectly
pushes up fiber prices. Although most of our fiber
procurementis hardwood, a lot of our softwood
fiber supply comes in the form of residual wood
chips from lumber mills, many of which have shut
down or are taking extended downtime. S0 we
have a big job ahead of us to contain costs.

Has championing sustainability begun
paying off for Domtar, and if so, how?

Q Absolutely! When dealing with renew-
able assets like forestry,it's important to

demonstrate your commitment to sustainability
through concrete actions. Only in this way will
stakeholders be convinced that such a commit-
mentis truly part of your core values. That's why
nine years ago, we went for FSC certification, a
standard we are still committed to today. These
recognized third-party audits and chain-gf-custody
certifications clearly demonstrate that our com-
mitment te sustainability remains at the forefront
of our development strategy.

We are now starting to see some very encour-
aging results. Sales of our FSC-certified products
actually deubled from 2006 to 2007, and this is
justthetip of theiceberg. Just marry these three

“Our geographic
coverage, proximity
to customers and
efficient assets
provide us with
a tremendous
advantage.”

thoughts. One, Demtar is the leader bar none in
producing FSC-certified UFS products under our
Domtar EarthChaice® banner. Our Cougar® line of
ultra-bright premium printing papers was added
to that fist in January 2008. Two, the consumer’s
appetite for “sustainability” products or products
made from socially responsible producers is
increasing. Many large buyers of paper are antici-
pating this trend and catering to it by adopting
ancient forest friendly or eco-paper purchasing
policies. And three, as Domtar Corporaticn, we can
naw market and sell FSC-certified products to a
much larger customer base, work with customers
to help spread the good word on green products
and educate the public on the environmental
benefits. Frankly, paper manufacturers in some
of thelow-cost countries have theireye onlarge
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“We want ou
see our prog

name int

paper markets like North America, but they won't
be able to make the social and environmental case
like we can—not even close!—which is why we
will forcefully advocate for our line of Domtar
EarthChoice products.

The political landscape appears to be
changing with respect to global warming
with such approaches as carbon taxes and

emissions trading now on the table. Is this

aconcern?

Actually, it would be anet plus for Domtar.
A For years now, cur pulp and paper mills
have worked hard to reduce their greenhouse gas
emissions. They have succeeded inreducing them
by maore than 20 percent since 2002 on both an
aggregate and intensity basis and continue towork
onenergy efficiency. We provide about 68 percent
of the energy required to produce steam internally
through our recovery boilers and cogeneration
assets Approximately 69 percent of our electric
power requirements are produced internally.
Furthermore, healthy, sustainable well-managed
forests can be a great resource in mitigating the
effects of climate change and this s in line with

Domtar's commitment to sustainability.

ccustomers to
ucts as the brand
Ir category.”

How can Domtar bring more stability for
ali stakeholdersin a perpetually instable

industry?

When | jgined Domtarin 1996, there were

two things this industry needed. First,
consolidation. This would make it possible to
achieve ecanomies of scale and ensure discipline
on capital expenditures to be able to compete
on a global basis. Second, a commitment to the
industry and an acknowledgemeni that demand
had matured, making it necessary to balance
supply with customer demand. We live in aworld
with shortened cycles and extraordinary currency
and commodity price volatility. Butmy instinctis

that Domtar finds itself in a very good situation,
with the kind of market share, asset quality
and mix, currency exposure, product focus and
continent-wide distribution network that inspires
confidence. Butlalso need to be clear, there's no
room for complacency. We can always optimize
our situsation. This is, after all, a business where
major assets have been changing hands with
remarkable rapidity. Interesting opportunities
will come aleng. So will the need to be flexible.
Domtar employees continue to beinstrumental in
helping to manage all of this volatility. With their
continued dedication and professionalism, for
which they have my considerable gratitude, we
can all look forward to much future success. @




Nlaylie evearyone shonid get to kvow Norl
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How two
companies
came together,
learned from
each other,

and gotitright.

with apologies to grade school teachers everywhere,
sometimes in business the rules of arithmetic
simply don't apply. Take the case of Comtar and
the fine paper business of Weyerhaeuser, which
came together to form the largest manufacturer
and marketer of uncoated freesheet paper in
North America and the second largestin the warld,
based on production capacity.

Add up the two grganizations’ expertise,
embodied in their 13,000 employees. Add up
their customers, mills and capacity. Add up twe
histories stretching back to the nineteenth
century. And while you're at it, you might also
tote up two product portfolios that contain
some of the industry’s mest respected brands,
the widest range of fine and specialty papers,

DETTer

and Domtar EarthChoice®—quite possibly the
most environmentally sustainable {amily of fine
papers in North America, After you've done all your
adding up, you'lilikely get a pretty impressive sum.

But the way smart business works, and the
genius of this particular transaction, isthat the sum
total of the two organizations is greater than a
simple calculation would suggest. It actually adds
up toanew level of leadership. Given their strategic
fit, the two companies’ products, the geographic
location of their mills, their customers and cultures
are actually complementary. Their assets enhance
rather than compete with each other, and the
result is & bigger and better Damtar— better
for its customers, better for its employees and
shareholders.

strategicnt

SUPERIOR[PRODUGT
IRANGE

BRSERVICE:

BEITERCUSTOMERIN

why this
corporate marriage

just works

boardroom, Here's why:

The new company, drawing on the best from
Domtar Inc. and Weyerhaeuser's fine paper busisness,
is a marriage made in heaven..or at leastin the

Customers can choose
from a wider selection

of premium products,
including Domtar
EarthChoice®, the leading
environmental line

of papers.

Along with a consolidated
product range, customers
have access to alarger
Horth American
footprint, so there’s

availability and services,
such as just-in-time
delivery, closer to where
customers do business,




Steering out of the perfect storm

To understand the fult implications of this
blockbuster marriage, we need to turn the
calendar back a couple of years. At that time
the North American paper industry was on the
ropes—especially in Canada, where the dollar had
been on a tear in recent years. The costs of fiber,
chemicals and energy were also increasing.

Itwas the perfect storm. And it became pretty
obvious that the longer North American paper
producers waited, the worse the situation would
became. Ciearly, it was time for some out-of-
the-box thinking. The only way to ride out the
challenges of a turbulent business environment
was to treate a North American low-cost paper
producer, with the innovativeness, capacity and
scale to claim the lead.

Enter Raymond Royer, CEQ of Domtar and
already a veteran of successful consolidations
while at the helm of the venerable Canadian
paper company. His executive team understood
one thing: The longer they waited, the more
complete the perfect sterm would becomne and
the less maneuverabitity they would ultimately
have, Butthe sooner they took decisive action, the
sooner they could return to profitability.
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Domtar better than the sum
of its parts
The deal bringing together Domtar and

1

the fine paper business of Weyerhaeuser
was a complex process of countless days
and nights spent by dozens of executives
hammering out the details over many
months. It was critical to get this deal
exactly right, notjust for the company's
shareholders, but equally for its employees and
customers. The competitive landscape was simply
too challenging to altow for anything fess than
perfect execution,

inthe final analysis, the much-heralded strategic
fit between the two companies’ businesses turned
out to be precisely as predicted. Inits first year,
Domtar Corporation posted a solid performance—
and that's well before the expected synergies
have really kicked in.

Sometimes

+1 =3

Out-of-the-box thinking helped
to defy the odds and recreate
Domtar—a low-cost paper
producer with the capacity and
scale to claim the lead.

Not to mention that Raymond Royer, one of the
masterminds behind the transaction, was named
by RISI, which tracks the global forest products
industry, as North American CEO of the year.

So what's ahead for Domtar, its employees and
other stakeholders, now that they've defied the
simple rules of addition? Only time will tell.

R NGPERATION S IR

i . sumABLE L
ok ¥ -
?

Two industry leaders
come together to
share ideas and learn
from each other.
Result: The best of both
organizations.

With a wider inventory
of paper machines to
choose fram, Domtar
can match the right
paper machine to the

right product, based on
market demand, locatian
and other factors. This
alsp produces higher and
mare consistent quality.

Asustainable enterprise
is a more profitable
enterprisein the long
run. With less duplication
and greater streamlining,
Domtar reduces its
energy use, shipping and

waste, while optimizing
recycling and reuse.
Customers increasingly
want to be associated
with sustainable partners.
S0 da shareholders,
emplayees and neighboss.




George S. Patton
once said,

“Never tell

| people how
to do things.
Tell them
what to do
and they will
surprise you
with their
ingenuity.”

\ )

In 2007, the people at Domtar
Corporation showed they
really knew what he was
talking about because their
ingenuity came out in spades!
DOMTAR BECAME THE NUMBER
ONE INTEGRATED PRODUCER
OF UNCOATED FREESHEET
PAPER ON THE CONTINENT

and second largestin the
waorld, based on capacity.
This deal was more than an
integration. It gave birth to

a new leader in the industry,

changing the face of pulp
and paper manufacturing in
North America.




a#l

team

In 2007, Domtar Corporation became a
$6-BILLION company with a production and
operational capacity that spans the continent
from the shores of Newfoundland in Canada
to sauthern California. it has some of the most
efficient and cost-competitive paper mills
in the world, and a 13,000-strong employee
population with the skills to ensure that its
customers reap the benefits of their new,
improved supplier.

“This combination further reaffirmed
our business strategy of consolidating our
presence in fine papers. Today Domtiar's
sales of paper and pulp stand at 82%, and
we capture an impressive market share in
many product categories including business
papers, offset and opaque papers,” said
Raymond Royer, President and Chief Executive
Officer, The remainder of the Company’s
business comprises sales from Domtar-owned
merchants {14%) and wood {4%).
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delivering
like a leader

To be successful inan industry with fierce
competitors, the new Domtar must make
sure that it produces the papers preferred by
its customers at the best possible cost. The
combination of two large portfolios of assets
provided an opportunity to identify areas
where potential efficiencies can be generated
(i.e. where productivity can be increased or
maney can be saved by combining activities).

Special teams were mandated to complete
a review of the Company’s operatians. The
results of this exercise generated more
than 650 projects that enabled Domtar to reach
$130 MILLION (run-rate} in improvements and
savings at the end of 2007.

“This is a case where the numbers speak
for themselves,” said Raymond Rayer. “we
had set a target of $80 MILLION in synergies
by year-end but managed to surpass that
by $50 MILLION. Based on our success thus
far, we are confident that we can achieve and
perhaps even exceed our ultimate goal of
$200 miltion {run-rate) in synergies by the end
of 20087

always

better

As with any initiative of this magnitude,
some projects are always easier to implement
than others. Domtar continues to work

on improving performance, optimizing its
equipment, increasing service levels and
balancing production with demand. It has
simplified its ordering system to make
supplying customers more efficient, as
well as enhanced some of its product lines.
Increased customer demand for Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC) certified papers
was also addressed, with the addition of
its premium Cougar® Gpaque as well as
Domtar Hots® to the Domtar EarthChoice®
family of environmentally and socially
responsible papers.

“It is not just a question of having become
bigger but we have also become better. Our
employees have worked hard to generate
a good performance for our shareholders
during this period of intense change. | think
our results demonstrate that the course set
from the very beginning was a sound one,
and that we are on the path to even further
improvement,” conctuded Raymond Royer.
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Domtadistaleompanyiiooted]infvaliess
The Company srives & fostar & werk eivirenmaent Hee puis &
(o velne en cenminens, dedpling, areprencmrsiis, inkdadng,
andl=amest impertantly—respeet. These dharss velues e &k
thelvepvlheanfoiBomtaigstsiccessy

omtar is committed to the highest standards of ethical behavior and business conduct.
This standard governs its relationships with customers, suppliers, shareholders,
competitors, and the communities in which it operates, as well as relations among
Domtar employees at every level of the organization.

The Company has rigorous internal policies and processes that guide its activities and ensure that
it complies with the corporate governance guidelines issued by the United States Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE)
and the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX).

Domtar’s activities are overseen by a board of strong and independent directors, which is itself
governed by rules that define the board’s responsibilities, its committees, the conduct of its
directors and its various practices.

Domtar's governance system also relies on reputable independent auditors, who audit annual
financial statements and interact with the board of directors and management.

Conduct that is becoming of...

Management and employees all carry out their responsibilities in accordance with a ¢lear Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics. The Code is an expression of Domtar’s core values and provides
a framework for decision-making. Its purpose is to help everyone comply rigorously with laws
and regulations and exercise good judgment. Ethical standards affect everything a company
does and each individual within the Company shares respensibility for the guality of Domtar’s
ethical behavior. Domzar also has internal policies that support the application of its Code of
Business Conduct and Ethics.

* Throughaut this document “the Company” and “Domiar” refer Lo Domaiar Corperation,
its subsidiaries and its investments
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Domtar’s board
is comprised

of 13 highly
experienced and
knowledgeable
directors.

Each direcior has independent status on the board, in
compliance with the Company's Director Independence
Standards and the independence requirements of the SEC
and the NYSE with the exception of Mr. Raymond Royer,
Domtar's CEQ, and Mr. Marvin Coaper, Domtar’s COO.

Mr. Harold H. MacKay is the chairman of the board of
the Company. Mr. MacKay has served as Counsel to the
law firm MacPhersan Leslie & Tyerman LLP in Regina,
Saskatchewan since 2005. Previously, he was a partnerin
the firm from 1969 to 2004. He also served as the Cliffosd
Clark policy advisor to the Department of Finance of
Canada and chaired the Task Force on the Future of
the Canadian Financial Services Sector in 1997 and 1998.
Heis adirector of The Toronto-Dominion Bank and The
Masaic Company. Mr. MacKay is an Officer of the Order of
Canada. Mr. MacKay is the chairman of the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee.

_ LOUISP. - BRIAN M.
© GIGNAC _ LEVITT
Montreal, .. Montreal,

- Quebec, Canada  + Quebec, Canada
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Mr. Raymond Royer is the President and Chief Executive
Officer and adirector of the Company. Mr. Royer has been
presidentand CEQ and a director of Domtar since joining
DomtarInc.in 1896. He is also a directer of Power Financial
Corporation, Mr. Royer is an Officer of the Drder of Canada,
aCommander of the Order of Léopold 1 of Belgium and
an Officer of the Ordre natianal du Québec.

Mr. Jack . Bingleman has been the president of Indian
River Asset Management Inc. since 2001 Previcusly, he
held a number of executive positions with Staples Inc,
including president of Staples International from
1997 to 2000. He has been a director of the Company
and/or Domtar Inc. since 2005 he is also a director of
Tracior Supply Co. He is & member of the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee and the
Audit Commitiee.

Mr. Marvin D. Cooper is Executive Vice-President and
Chief Operating Officer of the Company since March 2007.
Mr. Cooper was the senior vice-president, cellulose fiter,
white papers ané containerboard manufacturing and
engineering of Weyerhaeuser Company from 2002 to 2006
when he stepped down to work full-time on the series
of transactions whereby the Weyerhaeuser Fine Paper
Business was combined with Domtar Inc. io form Domtar
Corporation. Prior to joining Weyerhaeuser in 2002, he
held a number of executive positicns with Willamette
Industries, Inc,, inchuding executive vice-president, pulp
and paper mills fraom 1998 to 2002. His career in the
pulp and paper industry spans over 36 years.

Mr, Louis P. Gignac has been a corporate direcior and
presideat of G Mining Services Inc.since November 2006,
Previously, he served as presidentand CEQ of Cambior Inc.
from 1986. He has been a director of the Company
and/or Domtar Inc. since 1995; he is also a director
of Gaz Metro Inc, St. Andrew Goldfields Ltd, Franco
Nevada Corp. and Revett Minerals Inc. Mr. Gignac is a
member of the Audit Committee and the Environmental,
Health and Safety Committee,

W, HENSON MICHAEL R. ROBERT J. WILLIAM C. PAMELA B.
MOORE ONUSTOCK STRACY STIVERS STROBEL
Crested Butte, Portland, Toronto, North Bend, Winnetka,
Colorado, USA Oregon, USA Ontario, Canada Washington, USA  Hlinois, USA
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Mr. Brian M, Levitt has been the co-chair of the law firm
Osler, Hoskin & Harcourt LLP since 2001, Mr, Levitt was
chairman of the board of Domtar (nc. from 2004 until
March 2007, Previously, he held a number of executive
positions with Imasco Limited, including president and
chief executive officer from 1995 to 2000. Mr. Levitt has
been a director of Demtar Inc. since 1997; he is also a
director of BCE Inc. He is the chairman of the Human
Resopurces Committee and a member of the Neminating
and Corporate Governance Committee.

Mr. W. Henson Moore was, from 1995 to August 2006,
president and CEQ of the American Forest & Paper
Association, Previously, he served in a number of senior
U.5. government appointments and as a member of
the U.S. House of Representatives for the Sixth Qistrict
of Louisiana. Mr. Moore is a director of USEC, Inc. Ha is
the chairman of the Environmenzial, Health and Safety
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Michael R. Onustock retired as senior vice-president,
pulpand white paper with Weyerhaeuser Company in 2004,
Prior to joining Weyerhaeuser in 2002, he held a number of
executive positionsin Willamette Industries, Inc, including
executive vice-president, pulp and fine paper marketing
from 1989 10 2002. He is a director of the University of
Washington Pulp and Paper School Foundation, He
is a member of the Environmental, Health and Safety
Committee and the Human Resaurces Committee.

Mr, Robert J. Steacy has been a corporate director since
May 2005. Previously, he served as the senior financial
officer of Torstar Corporation since 1989 including as
executive vice-president and chief financial officer from
2002 1o 2005. He has been a directar of the Company
and/or Domtar inc. since 2005, Mr. Steacy is a director
of Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce and Cineplex
Galaxy Income Fund. He is the chairman of the Audit
Committee and a member of the Nominating and
Corporate Governance Commitiee.

Mr. William C. Stivers retired as executive vice-president
of Weyerhaeuser Company in 2003, serving as chief
ftnancial officer from 1950 to 2003. Mr. Stivers is a former
director of Factory Mutual Insurance Company and a past
member of Chase Manhattan Bank's National Advisory
Board. He is adirector of Minerals Technologies Inc. He is
amember of the Audit Committee and the Envirpnmental,
Health and Safety Committee.

Ms. Pamela B. Strobel retired as executive vice-president
and chief administrative officer of Exelon Corporation
in 2005. During her tenure with Exelen and its pre-
decessor companies since 1993, she also served as
president of Exelen’s Business Services Company and
as chairman and CEC of Exelon Energy Delivery, the
holding company for Exelon's energy delivery businesses.
She is a director of Illinpis Teol Works, Inc. and State
Farm Mutual Automobile Insurance Company. She is a
member of the Human Resources Committee and the
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee,

Mr. Richard Tan is, since 1977, the founder, president
and CEO of Pacific Millennium Heldings Corporation,
aninvestment and operating group involved in varicus
industries over the years, including pulp and paper, forest
plantation, infermation technology, and develppment
and global joint ventures in Asia. Mr. Tan is alse the
president and chief executive officer of Stone Tan China
Acquisition Corp, a blank check company formed in 2007
for the purpose of acquiring an operating business with
primary operations in China. He is a member of the
Environmental, Health and Safety Committee and the
Human Resaurces Committee.

Mr. Denls Turcotte has been president and CEO of Algoma
SteelInc. since 2002. Previously, he held a number of senior
executive positions with companies in the putp and
paper industry, including president of the Paper Graup
and executive vite-president of corporate development
and strategy of Tembec Inc, from 1999 to 2002 He is a
member of the Human Resources Committes.
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Domtar’s
MISSION CONTROL

WORKING FROM THE COMPANY’S HEAD OFFICE IN MONTREAL,
QUEBEC AND OPERATIONS CENTER IN FORT MILL, SOUTH CAROLINA,
DOMTAR’S MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE CONDUCTS THE
COMPANY’S BUSINESS. IT DETERMINES AND IMPLEMENTS THE
COMPANY’S MISSION AND LONG-TERM STRATEGY. THE COMMITTEE
ALSO PROPOSES FUNDAMENTAL FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS
STRATEGIES AND CORPORATE ACTIONS TO THE BOARD. THIS TEAM
LEADS DOMTAR WITH BOTH EXPERIENCE AND EXPERTISE.

MR. RAYMOND ROYER

is the President and Chief Executive Officer
and a director of the Company. Mr. Royer
was president and chief executive officer
and adirector of Domtarsince joining
Domiarinc.in 1996. Heis also a director of
Power Financial Corporation. Mr. Royer is an
Officer of the Order of Canada, a Commander
of the Order of Léopold Il of Belgium and an
Officer of the Qrdre national du Québec.

MR. MARVIN D. COOPER

js Executive Vice-President and Chief Operating
Officer of the Company since March 2007.

Mr. Cooper was the senior vice-president, cellulose
fiber, white papers and containerboard manufac
turing and engineering of Weyerhaeuser Company
from 2002 to 2006 when he stepped down to work
full-time on the series of transactions whereby the
Weyerhaguser Fine Paper Business was combined
with Domtar inc. to form Domiar Corporation.
Prior to joining Weyerhaeuser in 2002, he held a
number of executive positions with Willamette
Industries, Inc,, including executive vice-president,
pulp and paper mills from 1998 1o 2002. His career
in the pulp and paper indusiry spans over 36 years.




1 MR. DANIEL BURON is Senior vice-President
and Chief Financial Officer of the Company. He was
senior vice-president and chief financial officer of
Domitar Inc. since May 2004. He oversees all finance
functions including financial reporting, risk and debt
management, treasury operations, taxation and
investorrelations, He joined Domtar Inc. in 1999, Prior
to May 2004 he was vice-president, finance, pulp and
paper sales division and, prios to Sepiember 2002, he
was vice-president and controller. He has over 19 years
of experience in finance.

2 MR. STEVEN A. BARKER is Senior Vice-
President, Pulp and Paper Marketing of the Company
and as such, he is responsible for product develop-
ment and the marketing of all pulp and paper
grades. de was iormerly senior vice-piesident pulp
and paper sales and marketing for Domtar tnc.

since December 2004 He joined Domtar Inc. in 2000
{ollowing the acquisition of Ris Paper Company, Inc.
{a wholly-owned subsidiary of Domtar Ing, singe 2000)
where he held a number of executive positions. His
career in the paper industry spans over 25 years.

3 MR. ROGER H. BREAR s Senior Vice-President,
Southern Region Mills and is responsible for the
following mills: Ashdown (AR), Columbus (MS),
Kingsport {TN), Marthoro {SC), Plymouth {NC) and
Kamloogs (BC). He jeined Domtar Inc. in 2001 as senior
vice-president, paper manufacturing, following the
acquisition of four LLS. paper mills from Georgia-
Pacific Corparation, where he held various senior
manufacturing positions. His career in the paper
industry spans over 35 years.

4 MR, MICHEL DAGENAIS is Senior Vice-President,
Human Resources. He had been vice-president, human
reseurces of Domtar Inc. since 2005. Previously, he

was director, human resources of the Forest Products
Group since joining Domtar fnc. in 2001. During his
career thai spans over 36 years, he has held various
management and consulting positions in human
resources and labor relations.
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5 MR. GHISLAIN DINEL is Senior Vice-President,
Northern Region Mills and is responsible for the
following mills: Dryden {ON), Hawesville (KY),
Lebel-sur-Quévillon (QC), Prince Albert (SK),

Windsor (QC) and Woodlang {ME). Previously he

was vice-president, operations, aptimization and
technology of Domtar Inc. since 2004, Since joining
Domtar Inc.in 1970, he has held various management
positions in prlp and paper operations. His career

in the pulp and paper industry spans over 37 years,

8 MR. MICHAEL EDWARDS s Group Semior Vice-
President, Pulp and Paper Manufacturing, responsible
for these aperations. Formerly, he was vice-president,
fine paper manufacturing of Weyerhzeuser since 2002,
He joined Weyerhaeuser in 1994, where he held various
management positions in pulp and paper operations.
Prior to Weyerhaeuser, Mr. Edwards worked at

Domtar Inc. for 11 years. His career in the pulp and
paper industry spans over 44 years.

7 MR. JAMES F. LENHOFF is Senior Vice-President,
Distribution. He is responsible for distribution

across the US.and Canada. He was previously senior
vice-president, Demtar Distribution Group since 2004,
He joined Domzar tnc. in 2000 following the acqui-
sition of Ris Paper Company, Inc, where he was
vice-president, sales and marketing. His career in the
paper industry spans gver 26 years.

8 MR. PATRICK LOULOU is Senior Vice-President,
Corporate Development since he joined the Company
in March 2007. tn this capacity, he assists in the value
optimization of Domtar’s assets. Previously, he hetd a
number of positions in the telecommunications sector,
as well as in management consulting He has over

ten years experience in the field of corporate strategy
and business development,

9 MR, JEAN-FRANGOIS MERETTE is Seniar
Vice-President, Forest Products since March 2007

‘and is responsible for all forestry and sawmilling
operations. He was vice-president, sawmills when he
joined Domiar inc. in 2005. Previousty, he held various
management positions with a major forest products
company. His career in the forest products indusiry
spans over 16 years.

10 MR. BART NICHOLSON is Senior Vice-President,
Specialty Mills & Converting Operations. He is
responsible for specialty mills located in Espanola [ON),
Johnsonburg (PA), Rothschild (W1}, Nekoosa (Wl), Port
Huron {Ml) as well as all the canverting centers.
Previously, from the time he joined Weyerhaeuser

in 2002, he was vice-president, fine paper converting
operations. He had held various management positions
in the pulp and paper operations of Willamette
Industries, Inc. since 1981, His career in the pulp and
paper industry spans over 26 years.

11 MR. YVES PARENT is Senior Vice-President,
Information Technology of the Company since
March 2007. He joined Dom1ar Inc. in 2005 as vice-
oresident, information technology. He has over

25 years of experience in 1T management, including
15 years in ihe putp and paper industry and

ten years as senior director, ITin an international
manufacturing organization.

12 MR. GILLES PHARAND is Senior Vice-President,
Law and Corporate Affairs since 1994 and General
Counsel since 1986 He joined Domtar Inc.in 1970, He

is respansible for secretariat, environmental and legal
affairs, communications and government relations,
internal audit and head office operations. His career in
the pulp and paper industry spans over 37 years.

13 MR. RICHARD L. THOMAS is Senior Vice-
President, Sales. He is respansible for the sale of the
Company’s complete pulp and paper output. In his
previous position with Weyerhaeuser, he was vice-
president of fine papers from 2005. Prior to 2005, he
was vice-president, business papers. Mr. Thomas joined
Weyerhaeuser in 2002 when Willamette Industries, Inc.
was acquired by Weyerhaeuser. At wiltamette, he had
held various management positions in operations
since joining in 1992, Previously, he was with Champion
international Corporation for twelve years.




KINGSPORT

Employees with

paper machine at the
Kingsport, Tennessee mill,
circa1920

we EARLY YEARS rocssrcrn

Domtar's great grandparent markets a special process protecting lumber from
decay. Business booms, as railways need to protect millions of rail ties. In 1903,
the company sets up shop across the Atlantic, where its new Canadian owners
list it on the American Stock Exchange in 1930.

THE PAPER ERA BEGINS From the mid-1950s to

the 1960s, Domtar grows into one of Canada’s largest companies. Its widely
diversified businesses include chemicals, consumer products, construction

materials, kraft and fine papers, newsprint, containerboard, and packaging.

 JUSTPAPER i

- Domtar comesinto its own in the 1970s and 1980s, and

———

Y

¢ pradually divests other interests te focus on paper in the 1990s.
' Management is determined to become the leader in paper
manufacturing..as it will.

Domtar Corporation

L

Domtar Inc. 2007
| 2001 '
Domtar Inc. Georgia-Pacific
|‘ {Fine Paper Mills)
-
r 1998 ' 1990 '
Domtar Inc. E.B. Eddy Georgia-Pacific Great Northern Nekoosa
1 ]
| | | | | 7570 |
Windsor Port Huron Espanola Woodland Ashdown Nekoosa
0riginal'l;'built by Built in 188§in Michigan Built inu1'9{)5 by St C:d&.Paper Neknosa':iidwards Nekoo.s'a. Paper
Angus, Logan & Co. Sulphite Fiber Company Spanish River Pulp Company in 1906 began eperations Company in 1883
" .1.8.65 Port Huron Paper Company and Pape:rj:ompany Georgia-Pacific in 1368 Nekoosa-Edwards
Acquired by in 1910 Acquired by in 1963 Paper Company
Dominion Tar H - Abitibi Power & in 1908
and Chemical Port L(':m“ Sulphite and Paper Co.
Company Papes Company in 1916 in 1927
in 1361 Pentair Inc. in 1583 Kalamazoo Vegetable
The new mill E.B. Eddyin 1987 Parchment Company
began operations in 1943
in 1387 Brown Forest
Industries
in 1966

E.B. Eddy in 1969
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WEI-B 0 M E MR. ROYER

Appointed CEO in 1996 with a mandate to bring

Employees in trdl
the Windsor, Quéﬁ)
circa 1950

Domtar to solid financial footing, Raymond Royer

presides over a spectacular era of growth,

In short arder he:

B In3ugurates a customer-focused culture

B Pioneers sustainability in the industry with
more environmental papers and third-party
certification

B Embarks on a major expansion, successfully
integrating four paper mills from Georgia-Pacific
Corporation (2001}, thereby becoming Canada’s
largest paper company in terms of sales

B Leads the joining together with Weyerhaeuser's

fine paper business to create a leader with

sales of over $6 billion

WINDSOR

Windsor, Quebec mill
employee with paper rolls,
Circa 1940

Weyerhaeuser Company
{Fine Paper Mills)

|
o 2002
Weyerhaeuser Company Willamette

I I | I | | I | |
Kamloops Plymouth  Rothschild  Columbus Dryden Johnsonburg  Marlboro  Hawesville  Kingsport

d & 4 &L 4 4L L 4 &

| Built by North Carolina Marathon Original mil ~ DrydenPower&  Original mill Original mill Original mill Original mil
Weyerhaeuser Putp Company Paper Milts opened by Timber Co. forms opened by apened by opened by apened in 1916 as
in 1965 in 1937 in 1909 Weyerhaeuser in 1911 Castanea Willamette Willamette Kingsport Pulp
Second line Acquired by Marathon in 1380 First paper fn .1.8.90 in 1330 in 1367 Acquired by
added in 1972 Weyerhaeuser Corporation machine installed Acquired by Mead
in 1957 in 1944 in 1918 Curtis Publishing in 1920
American Can Acquired by " .1.9-22 Acquired by
Company Avenor Acquired by Willamette
in 1957 in 1994 Penntech in 1995
Acquired by Acquired by " .1.9.59
Weyerhaeuser Weyerhaeuser Acquired by
in 1973 in 1998 Willamette

in 1990




Lynx® Opaque is ideal for showcasing
great ideas. With a dazzling brightness,
brilliant blue-white shade and superior
opacity, Lynx Opaque delivers crisp, sharp
detail and colors that pack a punch —run
after run, time afier time. Printer-friendly
Lynx Opaqgue offers superb value with top
guality and proven performance, and is
available in a broad range of sizes in beth
text and cover weights. To maintain quality
without sacrificing creativity or losing
control over your budget, you'll want to
remember Lynx Opaque.

poMTAR EarthChoice

High quality paper with a conscience
[

g~ Rainforest FSC
Alliance .. Lo, I

96 ce

brightress

FSC

cartified sheeta

Smooth
& Vellum

finishas
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WANT YOUR
ORGANIZATION

TO MAKE ITS BEST

G R E IMPRESSION? ~ __

THEN START WITH DOMTAR COMMERCIAL PRINTING
PAPERS. DOMTAR’S ROSTER INCLUDES SOME OF
THE INDUSTRY’S MOST TRUSTED BRANDS. BRANDS
THAT PROMISE EXCELLENT PERFORMANCE AND
UNBEATABLE VALUE FOR JUST ABOUT ANY BUDGET.
AND UNPARALLELED VERSATILITY TO TACKLE

ANY PROJECT.




In 2007,
approximately 35%
of Domtar's paper
producis shipments
were comprised of
various commercial
printing grades.
The Company
enjoys impiessive
market shares in
Offset, Opaque and
Premium Grades,

42007 2 23
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COUGAR’

Great ideas command greater attention when

they spring to life on Cougar. With its balanced
white shade and smooth surface, Cougar remains %
the first choice for prestigious projects such
as annual reports and corporate stationery.
Now FSsC-certified, Cougar heads the Domtar
EarthChoice® family of leading

environmentally responsible papers.

LYNX® OPAQUE

Customers specify Lynx Opague for its dazzling
blue-white shade and faithful reproduction of color, linge
and text. And for Lynx's value and on-press performance.
Nimble, proven Lynx Gpaque delivers the goods on posters,
brochures, direct mail and more, Lynx will be FSC-certified by spring 2008.

HUSKY" OFFSET

Versatile and tireless on press, Husky Offset is a high-value perfarmer for most printing projects.
withits pleasing white shade, it’s trusted to deliver outstanding results on catatogs, newsletters,

direct mail and mare.

HOTS®

High-impact Hots really grabs the attention. The 17 brilliant fluorescent colors raise the
temperature on everything from brochures, flyers and menus to newsletters and invitations.
FSC-certified Hots is part of the Domtar EarthChoice® family of environmental papers.

2008
SWATCHBOOKS

Striking in design,

the new Domtar
swatchbooks incorporate
all the bhest features

in format and look.
Compelling photography
provides life-like images
of print demonstrations
with full ink coverage.
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ou could call it fuel for business.
Every organization runs on paper and
has its own combination of needs

for quality, value, environmental
credentials and jam-free performance on office
equipment. That’s why many organizations fuel
up on Domtar. The North American leader in
Business and Office Papers,
Domtar manufactures
several well-known
mill brands, as well
as a variety of well-
known private brands.

BRAND YOUR OWN

Domtar has a private brand manufacturing program that allows
customers to enhance their brand identity and end-user relationships
by selling high-quality cut size business and office papers with

their own unique branding elements. Custemized packaging allows
customers to have their own unique labels, carions and ream wrap.
Domtar currently produces over 600 private brands.



| —

Some of Domtar’s best includes:

FIRST CHOICE®

The first famiiy of business papers, First Cholce is preferred
for its superior reproduction quality and range of choices.
The dazzling white surface is ideal for reports and proposals,
as well as letterheads, business cards and invitations. There’s
a First Chaice paper that's compatible with most capiers and
printers, delivering superb results in black and white or color,

DOMTAR EARTHCHOICE® OFFICE PAPER

North America’s first 100% virgin fiber office paper that's also
FSC-certified, Domtar EarthCheice Office Paper is a multi-
function sheet that fits every need, on just about any electronic
imaging equipment. Reliable and versatile, it also helps a
business make the right environmental choice.

DOMTAR COLORS®

To get ahead in business, you first need to get noticed.
That's where Domtar Colars comes in. With its stylish pastel
colors, including white and cream, Domtar Colors is the
ideal attention-getter for reports, menus, newsletters...

and preity much every place where color counts,

DOMTAR 7 ANNUAL REVIEW & IZVIN; & 2007 & 25

Business and Gifice Papers
accounted for approximately
43% of Domtar's shipments
of paper products in 2007.
The Company produces
over 2 million tons, which
represents an estimated 37%

market share.

from left:

MICHAEL CROSS
vice-President, Financial
Reparting & Campliance,
Head Office

MELANIE PAILLE
Senior Manager,
Financial Plarning &
Analysis, Head Office

There’s a First Choice
paper that's compatible
with most copiers and
printers, delivering
superb results in black
and white or color.
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DOMTAR TRADEBOOK

Specifically designed for today's
dernanding book market, Domtar
Tradebeokis made to PPl standards and
is available in a broad range of finishes
and weights, in cream or white.

CHOCTAW®

A premium coated groundwood,
Choctaw is specified for magazines

and catalogs, as well as direct mai! and
other commercial printing applications.
Its superior ink holdout yields excellent
reproduction and consistency.

& 2007

PUBLISHING PAPERS

FIT.TO
PRINT

GOES THE
SAYING.

And if you want to publish
well, Domtar’s broad range
of Publishing Papers are
designed to make words
and pictures look their best.
From mass-market books
and textbooks, to religious
and reference works, to
catalogs, brochures and
much more. Domtar has a
publishing paper with the
specifications, environmental
attributes, permanence

and value to make any
project a real page-turner.




DOMTAR MAKES

A WIDE RANGE OF
SPECIALIZED PAPERS
AND PULP THAT MUST
MEET DEMANDING
SPECIFICATIONS

FOR FOOD, MEDICAL,

FINANCIAL AND OTHER
APPLICATIONS. THESE
INCLUDE PRODUCTS
FROM ENVELOPES AND
'FOOD WRAPPERS TO
MEDICAL GOWNS AND
PRECISION BONDS FOR

ENGINEERING PLANS.

Converting and specialty papers
accounted for approximately 22% of
shipments of paper products in 2007.

These specialty applications range from
medical gowns to food wrappers.

DOMTAR # ANNUAL REVIEW # K

PUSHING 1he

ENVELOPE
.AND A LOT
MORE CONVERTING

SPECIALTY
PAPERS

C12000°

Designed specifically for envelopes that use the more versatile
flexographic printing method, ci2000 is a unique and economical
alternative to coated papers. it's the right choice for banking and

direct mail, for commercial and retail announcements.

DOMTAR WHITE WOVE ENVELOPE

Its bright white shade and elegant wove finish support

the marufacture of premium quality envelopes. Especially when the
envelopes must be precision-made to meet the needs of automated
processes and protect corporate reputations.

& 2007 2 27

Unigue
End Uses

for Domtar
Products

+ Adult{incontinence
products

+ Bakery liners
and tissues

+ Baking and
condiment cups

+ Bangage wrap

* Bibles

+ Hymnals

+ Burger wrappers

* Candy pouches

+ C0 and DVD packaging

+ Checks

» Church offering
envelppes

+ Colored gift lissues

+ Dental tray covers

+ Desktop blotters

+ Dinnerware
{melamine)

+ Disposable diapers

* Drafting paper -
architectural drawings

+ Dry cleaner
hanger paper

* Electrica!
capacltor paper

+ Feminine hygiene
products

+ Filter papers -
watand dry

+ Financial proxy
statements

* Fregzer wrap

+ Gaskets

* Gasikel paper

¢ |ce cream wrap

+ Laminate overlay and
base paper

+ Laminated gum and
cigaretie packages

+ Lollipop and cotton
swab sticks

* Masking tape

* Microwave
popcorn bags

+ Molded dining ware

* Paint masking tape

+ Perfurne boxes

+ Pharmaceutical inserts

* Plastic laminates

+ Point-of-sale
receipt rolls

+ Postit style notes

* Powdered cellulose
products

* Quick-serve restaurant
packaging

+ Restaurant placemats

+ Self-aghesive labels

+ Shopping bags

+ Silicone release papers

+ Steelinterleave paper

+ Sugar packets

* Surgical gowns

* Toilet paper and Loilet
paper wrap




28 # DOMTAR # ANNUAL REVIEW & Vi

R\

s pecialtyPapers
| NEW PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT

)

r . - PR o ————

At Domitar, developing new.and innovative products and
solutions for customers is key to the Company’s longevity.

in 2007; over :[2,000 t[ans of new products were added to the
Campany’s specialty portfolio, bringing Domtar's total specialty
papers production capacity to 420,000 tons.

Cusfomer reduests often drive new product development.
Recently, a customer asked if Domtar could develop paper that
could.resist.charringin-a high-temperature cooking application.
Initially, the idea of a paper that wouldn't char or brown was
quiékly dismissed as impossible. 8ut through creative thinking,
— -— Domtar began labdnd trial work to explore possible options.
“Domtar employees-were ultimately able to unlock technologies
that could indeed reduce paper browning in this type of
appiication,” said Cindy Krzysiak, Domtar Technology Manager.
Variogus-tnternal-and external evaluations during the develop-
ment process brought very favorable results in comparisan to
competitive products. Domtar zeroed in on key scientific data
and'was able to customize the product to provide the best
- —- fesistanee-to-heat-induced-browning, Further experimentation
aliowed Domtar to offer the attributes of grease resistance,
wet strength and release properties to this base sheet, thus
from left: e e - = " §j5assTAG the OTiginal customer request while helping to

KRISTA e diversify-the-preductoffering.

SIMPSON I o

Product B . . - - o - .
Development \ The Port Huren, Michigan facility qualified production of
specialist, - ’ ’ this first new commercial application of 24lb. CP Wrap in early
Espanola, ON spring of 2007.

DAVE

GROLEAU

Technical Group -
Senior Analyst,

{retired in 2007),
Espanola, ON J
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When it comes to
acting greener in paper
consumption, one
papermaker stands

out with a product line
that meets your highest
standards. Domtar
EarthChoice®is a
complete and innovative
line of socially and
environmentally
responsible papers
that inctudes paper for
avariety of end uses.
The EarthChoice line of
products are certified
to Forest Stewardship
Council (FSC) standards,
publicly endorsed by
the Rainforest Alliance
and supported by
WWF-Canada.

BREAKING AWAY

Given the confusion that one can find in the marketplace
about what constitutes an environmentally friendly
product, Domtar ensured thatits EarthChoice line would
be easily recognizable and straightforward for anyone
who buys paper, Aline of products that would make
users feel confident they are making the right choice for
the environment. Domtar’s comprehensive product tine
is positioned as the best choice among environmental
products. Purchasing Domtar EarthChoice products

also makes a supportive statement about Domtar’s
commitment to responsible environmental practices.

Domtar EarthChoice offers users the peace of mind
of knowing that they are doing the right thing for
the environment.

The Domtar EarthChoice family includes paper for
avariety of end uses, including corporate identity
materials, business and office applications, digital
printing, direct mail, transaction printing, converting,
publishing and unique specialty applications.

The premiere product in the EarthChoice line is Cougare, a premium uncoated opaque
containing 10% post-consumer recycled content. Other grades include Hots-, EarthChoice
Office Paper, along with many other publishing, converting and digital papers,

Domtar has designed this line for companies that are outspoken about their commitment
to protecting the environment as well as on other environmentally sensitive issues.

www.domtarearthchoice.com

e N et b AR
I - o h— ) -
\,- “—\I [ o0l

R
A
e

; '-f {

I

Ll
x
”
e
.

LN




poMTAR EarthChoice
bgh queltiy wiith & conseience
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v wwidomtaceanthchoicelcom




DOMTAR’S
HIGHLY FLEXIBI

MILLS, CONVERTING
& DISTRIBUTION
. CETERS

ESEANDLA MILL - 1945
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The History
of Paper

Paper is one of the aldest means of
communicating and recording ideas,
with a past that stretches back almost
5,000 years. It will continue to allow
upcoming generations to see into
that past as well as dream the future.

With manufacturing
ondistribution
facilities in 37 of
the 50 H.S. states
and sevem\of the ten
%gTENSIVE Canadian provinces,
MANUFACTURING  Domtar is less than
’s truck dxive

Papermaking has come a long way since
the Ancient Egyptians, Romans and Greeks
used papyrus and other fiber to make
paper. Over time there have been many
significant developments in technique.
The origins of the processes in use today
go back about 200 years. Papermaking is
now a high speed, technology-intensive
process that bears little resemblance to
past production methods, except that
the skills of papermakers still make the
difference between a good sheet of
paper and a great sheet of paper.
Domtar is proud that its papermakers,
often representing generations of
experience, design and make papers
for customers around the world.

from more than

POSITIONED




/. Domtar's pulp and paper facilities are

strategically located to take advantage of
prime papermaking wood species. With
distribution facilities stretching coast

to coast, from St.John’s, Newfoundland to
Miami, Florida, and from Cerritos, California
to Vancouver, British Columbia, Domiar is
able to deliver paper products that meet
every customer's demands.

Plus, Domtar’s facilities are close to

major shipping ports, which makes its
manufacturing system even mose competitive
and enables Domiar to efficiently service
international customers.

For Domtar, Big Means More Attentive
Domtar is a major corporation but it remains
close to its customers. In every area—from
paper design to manufacture, and from
converting to delivery — Domtar’s team of
highly committed and dedicated professionals
strive continuously to respond quickly to meet
the needs of each and every customer.

JEAN-JACQUES
LETUEL
Cutter, |BR, La Maison du Papier
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MONTREAL, QC

HKEAD OFFICE

395 DE MAISONNEUVE BLVD, WEST
MONTREAL, QC H3A1L6

FORT MILL, 5C
OPERATIONS CENTER
100 KINGSLEY PARK DR.
FORT MILL, SC 297156476

PULP & PAPER MILLS

ASHDOWN, AR
933,000 ST OF PAPER
PERYEAR
86,000 ADMT OF PULP
PER YEAR
COLUMBUS, M3
238,000 ST OF PAPER
PER YEAR
DRYDEN, ON
151,000 ST OF PAPER
PER YEAR @ CONVERTING
197,000 ADMT QF PULP O FORMS AND
PER YEAR DISTRIBUTION
OPERATIONS

ESPANOLA, ON
77,000 ST OF PAPER 1 ASHDOWN, AR
PER YEAR [CONVERTING AND
114,000 ADMT OF PULP DISTRIBUTION
PER YEAR OPERATIONS —ONSITE)
HAWESVILLE, KY 16 BROWNSVILLE, TN
634,000 ST OF PAPER (CONVERTING AND
PER YEAR DISTRIBUTION
47,000 ADMT OF PULP OPERATICNS—OFFSITE)
PER YEAR

17 CERRITOS, CA

JOHNSONBURG, PA (CONVERTING, FORMS

374,000 ST OF PAPER AND DISTRIBUTION

PER YEAR QPERATIQNS—OFFSITE)

KAMLOOPS, BC 18 DALLAS/FORT WORTH, TX

477,000 ADMT QF PULP (CONVERTING, FORMS

PER YEAR AND DISTRIBUTION
OPERATIONS—OFFSITE)

KINGSPORT, TN

425,000 ST OF PAPER 19 DUBOIS, PA

PER YEAR [CONVERTING AND
DISTRIBUTION

MARLBORO, SC OPERATIONS —OFFSITE)

391,000 5T OF PAPER

PER YEAR 3 DRYDEN, ON
{CONVERTING AND

NEKOQSA, Wi DISTRIBUTION

167,000 ST OF PAPER OPERATICNS—ONSITE)

PER YEAR

20 GRIFFIN, GA

PLYMOUTH, NC (CONVERTING AND
489,000 5T OF PAPER DISTRIBUTION
PER YEAR OPERATIONS—OFFSITE)
153,000 ADMT OF PULP
PER YEAR 11 INDIANAPOLILS, IN
{FORMS

PORT HURON, MI MANUFACTURING
116,000 ST OF PAPER PLANT)
PERYEAR

22 LANGHORNE, PA
ROTHSCHILD, Wi [FORMS
147,000 ST CF PAPER MANUFACTURING
PER YEAR PLANT)
WINDSOR, QC 13 MIRA LOMA, CA
670,000 ST OF PAPER ICONVERTING AND
PER YEAR DISTRIBUTION
33,000 ADMT OF PULP OPERATIONS—OFFSITE}
PER YEAR

11 PLYMOUTH, NC
WOODLAND, ME {CONVERTING AND
398,000 ADMT OF PULP DISTRIBUTION
PER YEAR OPERATIONS—{ONSITE}

24 OWENSBORO, KY
{CONVERTING AND
DISTRIBUTION
OPERATIONS—OFFSITE)

25 RIDGEFIELDS, TN
(CONVERTING AND
DISTRIBUTION
OPERATIONS—QFFSITE}

2

ROCK HILL, 5C
{FORMS
MANUFACTURING
PLANT}

1

W

ROTHSCHILD, Wi
(CONVERTING AND
DISTRIBUTION
QOPERATHONS —ONSITE)

17 TATUM, 5C
(CONVERTING AND
DISTRIBUTION
OPERATIONS—OFFSITE)

28 TERREBONE, QC
(CONVERTING AND
DYSTRIBUTION
OPERATIONS—OFFSITE)

2

WASHINGTON COURT
HOUSE, OH
[CONVERTING AN
DISTRIBUTION
OPERATIONS—OFFSITE}

1

>~

WINDSOR, QC
(CONVERTING AND
DISTRIBUTION
OPERATIONS—ONSITE)

O SAWMILLS

30 BIG RIVER, 5K
250 MFBM PER YEAR
{NOT OPERATING)

31 EARFALLS, ON
199 MFBM PER YEAR

32 LEBEL-SUR-QUEVILLON
140 MFBM PER YEAR
(NOT OPERATING}

33 MATAGAMI, QC
100 MF8M PER YEAR

34 NAIRN CENTRE, ON
130 MFBM PER YEAR
{NOT OPERATING}

35 STE-MARIE, QC
70 MFBM PER YEAR

36 SULLIVAN, QC
75 MFBM PER YEAR

37 TIMMINS, ON
140 MFBM PER YEAR

38 VAL-D'OR, QC
160 MFBM PER YEAR

39 WHITE RIVER, ON
110 MFBM PER YEAR
(NOT OPERATING)

@ Head Office/Operations Center
@ Converting, Forms Operations
@ Pulp and Paper Mlills

> Sawmill Operations

O Distribution Facilities

ALL PAPER TONNAGE IS EXPRESSED SN SHORT TONS (ST)

ALL PULP TONNAGE IS EXPRESSED IN AIR DRY METRIC
TONNES (ADMT)

ALL WOOD CAPACITIES ARE EXPRESSED N MILLIGN
FOOT BOARD MEASURE (MFBM).

PAPER TONNAGE IS EXPRESSED BY MILL CAPACITY.
PULP TONNAGE 15 EXPRESSED BY MILL TRADE PULP

NOTES
LEBEL-SUR-QUEVILLON, QUEBECIS INDEFINITELY IDLED

PORT EOWARDS, WISCONSIN Wil | BE PERMANENTLY
CLOSED IN THE SECOND QUARTER OF 2008

PRINCE ALBERT, SASKATCHEWAN IS INDEFINITELY IDLED.

GRAND-REMOUS AND MALARTIC SAWMILLS ARE
INCEFINITELY IDLED.




2

(> DISTRIBUTION, SUPPLY AND SERVICE FACILITIES

ENTERPRISE GROUP

ALBUQUERGUE, NM
BIRMINGHAM, AL
BOISE, ID
BOSTON, MA
BUENA PARK, CA
BUFFALO, NY
CALGARY, AB
CERRITOS, CA
CHANDLER, AZ
CHARLOTTE, NC
CHATTANOOGA, TN
CINCINNATI, OH
CLEVELAND, OH
COLUMBUS, OH
DENVER, CO

DES MOINES, IA
DULUTH, GA

EL PASO, TX
EVANSVILLE, IN
FRIDLEY, MN
FI.SMITH, AR

FT. WAYNE, IN
GARLAND, T
HARAHAN, LA
HAYWARD, CA
HOBOXEN, NJ
HOUSTON, TX
INDIANAPOLIS, IN
JACKSON, MS
JACKSONVILLE, FL
KANSAS CITY, KS

KENT, WA
KNOXVILLE, TN
LAKELAND, FL
LANGHORNE, PA
LAS VEGAS, NV
LEXINGTON, KY
LITTLE ROCK, AR
LIVONIA, MI
LOUISVILLE, KY
MEMPHIS, TN
MIAMI, FL
MILWAUKEE, Wi
MONTREAL, QC
NASHVILLE, TN
OKLAHOMA CITY, OK
OMAHA, NE
PEORIA, IL
PITTSBURGH, PA
RICHMOND, VA
ROCK HILL, SC
SALT LAKE TITY, UT
SAN ANTONIO, TX
SHREVEPORT, LA
ST, LOUIS, MO
SYRACUSE, NY
TORONTO, ON
TULSA, OK
VANCOUVER, BC
VANCOUVER, WA
WAYLAND, M
WEST CHICAGO, IL

DOMTAR DISTRIBUTION GROUP

ALBANY, NY
BOSTON, MA

BUFFALO, NY
CINCINNATI, OH
CLEVELAND, OH
COLUMBUS, OH
COVINGTON, KY
DALLAS/FORT WORTH, TX
DARTMOUTH, NS
DAYTON, OH

FORT WAYNE, IN
HARRISBURG, PA
HARTFORD, CT
INDIANAPOLIS, IN
KALAMAZOO, MI
LANCASTER, PA

LONDON, ON

MONTREAL, OC

MT. PEARL, NL

NEW YORK, NY

OTTAWA, ON
PHILADELPHIA, PA
QUEBEC CITY, QC
SOUTHPORT, CT
TORONTO, ON
WASHINGTON, DC/BALTIMORE, MD

L2
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from Boston to Washington, D.C. .

TAMMY WATERS
Cammunications ang

Training Coordinatar

Criginal mill
opened in 1968

Second paper maching
added in 1975.

Third paper machine
and new pulp line
added in 1979,

Fourth paper machine
and new pulp line
added in 1991.

Bacame part of
Domtar Inc. in 2001.

Annual paper production
capacity of 933,000 tons,

Annual pulp production
capacity of 810,000 tonnes

- includes 86,000 tennes

of mill trade pulp.

3puip lines and
4 paper machines.

Uncoated freesheet
papers: Offset, copy
paper, laser form bond,

IM Noiepad, check paper.

Bleached hardwood
and sofiwood kraft
market pulp.

FSC Chain-of-Custody
certified.

SFl certified.
150 goo2 certified.
1S0 14001 certified.

Arkansas Environmental
Federation Diamand
Award Winner for
environmental
excellence.

Warren L. Allen, general
manager - 2005 Papes
Industry Management
Association Mill
Manager of the Year.

Chairman’s Best Safety
Performance Award.

Domtar

Ashdown Mill

285 Hwy 71 South
Ashdown, Arkansas
71822

Telephone: 870-898-2711
Fax:870-898-4724
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SHIRLEY
JACKSON
Shipping

JACK
DOSSEY
A-2 Operator

ONE OF THE LARGEST =
UNCOATED FREESHEET_~

JR KERVIN
Maintenance

MILLS IN NORTH AMERICA ,

933,000 Tons

‘he Ashdown, Arkansas mill is ene of

the largest fully integrated, low-cost

busingss and commercial printing paper
mills in the world. It also produces bleached kraft
pulp, with four paper machines producing aver
2,500 tons daily, Ashdown has the capacity to serve
a broad cross-section of customers.

The mill’s flagship paper machine, the
Ashdown Express, was started up in 1991 as the
culmination of a 25-year project to build the
mill. It is among the world’s largest and most
technologically advanced. Spanning the length
of two football fields, the Ashdown Express
produces asheet 32 feet across—the width of a
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SPANNING THE LENGTH OF TWO FOOTBALL
FIELDS, THE ASHDOWN EXPRESS PRODUCES
SHEETS 32 FEET ACROSS—THE WIDTH OF A
RESIDENTIAL BOULEVARD. IF IT OPERATED
CONTINUOQUSLY FOR 24 HOURS AT ITS
MAXIMUM SPEED OF 4,000 FEET PER MINUTE,
IT WOULD PRODUCE A CONTINUOUS SHEET
STRETCHING 1,000 MILES.

from left:
LONNIE SEAMSTER
Stock Prep Helper, PM 62

LARRY ERWIN
Machine Tender, PM 62

residential boulevard. If it operated continuously
for 24 houwrs at its maximum speed of 4,000 feet
perminute, it would produce a continuous sheet
stretching 1,000 miles.

Ashdown is customer-driven, quality-focused
and eavironmentally responsible. the mitl recovers
and reuses millions of gatlons of water every day.
Its state-of-the-art wastewater treatment facility
includes a 750-acre aeration system and sattling
pand system where water is treated for 25 days
before discharge.




NANCY
SCHROEDER
Yard Crew

olthe facility’s efforts in energy

i Biion reduction qualities.

|
'1

|

HISTORY MILL PRODUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
PERFORMANCE
Original mill opened Annual paper production | Uncoated freesheet: SFlcertified. Domtar
by Willamette in 1957 capacity of 634,000 tons. Xerographic, offset, 150 14001 certifiable Hawesville Mill
er B EDP Facestock Hwy 1406,
First fine paper Annual pulp production ¢ EPA combined H g
. ) eat
machine in 1981. Engineering Laser 58 Wescar Road

Acquired by

Weyerhaeuser in 2002.

Became part of
Domtar in 2007.

capacity of 455,000 tonnes
- includes 47,000 tonnes
of mill trade pulp.

1pulplineand
2 paper machines.

Bond, Forms Bond.

& Air Award.

1905 Reclamation Award.

 TIM

HIEGEL
Lead Operataor,
Bleached Pulp Mill

Hawesville, Kentucky
42348

Telephone: 270-927-6961
Fax: 276-927-9929




DOMTAR

SHERRILL
WETTSTAIN
Winder Operator, H2

JAMIE
HOGSTON
Loader Fine Paper

from left:

JEREMY COX
Wet End Assistant

JUANITA GILTNER
' Process Tester

JON MILLER
HY Superintendent

JOE WILBORN
Winder Operator

JOEY WATKINS
Reserve

,| EQOF THE LARGEST

NCOATED FREESHEET
MILLS IN'NORTFHEAMERICA

634,000

]\

ituated on the banks of the Ohia River

in Hancock County, Kentucky, the

Hawesville mill is a paper facility with
two paper machines and a bleached pulp milk.
Most of the pulp is used as raw material for the
onsite papermaking and the rest is either sold or
used by other Domtar facilities.

The pulp and paper mill is a 300-acre
industrial facility within the Company’s 2,200-acre
property. It is surrounded by corn, soybean
and wheat fields as well as educational and
recreaticnal wetlands. The mill’s management

has aiso created a wetland area {or waterfowl

and has converted approximately 15 acres of
non-preductive farmland to native grasslands.

The mill generates approximately 60% of the
electricity it needs with an onsite steam turbine
generator. Virtually all of this onsite-generated
electricity is produced through renewable energy
sources and certified as “green power”. The balance
of the mill's electric power needs is purchased
through a local electrical coop.

CARROLL
CRAIG
tnstrument Journeyman
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v reliable; in 2007
hper without

1d been unreeled,

n 9,000 miles long!

ADELIA HISTORY MILL PRODUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
GILLIAM PERFORMANCE

Wi?der Qriginal mill Annual paper preduction 7 Uncoated freesheet: SFlcertified. Domtar
Assistant opened in 1916. capacily of 425,000 tons, Xeragraphic. Kingsport Mil

Acquired by Mead
in1920.

Annual pulp production

Acquired by
Willamette in 1995.

1pulpline and
1 paper machine,

Acquired by
Weyerhaeuser in 2002.

Became part of
Domtar in 2007.

from left:

RANDALL
KILGORE
B Tester

KAREN
COLLINS
Tester

capacity of 272,000 tonnes.

150 14001 certitiable.
100 Clinchfield Street

Kingsporl, Tennessee
37660

Gavernor's
Manufacturing

Excellence Award.
Telephone: 423-247-7111

2006 Tennassee Work Fax. 423-392-2719

Training Grant.

ENVIRCNMENT

Only sultur-free
pulping processin
the United States.

2006 Tennessee Chamber
Envirpnmental Award.

State Clean Air Award,




VIRTUALLY NO ODCR.

ONE OF THE

JIMMY
GILLIAM
Power Assistant

he Kingsport mill is located in the

‘ Tri-Cities area of Tennessee, an the
banks of the Holston River. It has been
producing paper continuously since 1816.

The mill was significantly upgraded from
2000 te 2003 and equipped with a state-of-the-art
| computerized system linking and monitoring
all facets of the papermaking process. The mill
now houses one of the most modern paper

GRADY
FLEENOR
K-10Operator
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KINGSPORT IS THE ONLY MILL TO USE A

§ SULFUR-FREE PULPING PROCESS IN THE

Rl UNITED STATES. THROUGH THE SODA-AQ
PROCESS, THE PULP FIBER IS STRENGTHENED
AND THE COOKING PROCESS CREATES

fram left:

STEVE
SARGINGER
Staff Supervisor

BRENDA

LARGEST UNCOATED WILLIS
FREESHEET MILLS MARCUS
IN NORTH AMERICA o e

machines in North America, produting paper of
archival quality.

The facility draws about 11 million gallons
of water daily from the Holston River for the
papermaking process. This water is reused several
times before being discharged into a four-day
effluent treatment system to be thoroughly
cleaned before returning toits source. Returning
waler is also tested every day to ensure that it
is clean.




BETTIE
FLEMING
£xecutive
Secretary

i

Mill

The “Marlboro Maverick” produces
enough paper every month to create a
sheet of paper 27 feet wide and long
enough togeirélle the globe at the equator.

Original mill opened
by willamette in 1990.

Acquired by

Weyerhaeuser in 2002,

Became part of
Domtarin 2007

Annual paper pfoguction
capacity of 391,000 tons.

Annual pulp production
capacity of 356,000 tonnes.

1 pulp line and
1 paper machine.

Lncoated fraesheetl: SFI certified.
Xerographic, offset,

envelope.

1S0 14001 certifiable.

2005 and 2007
South Carolina
Environmental
Excellence
Program Award.

1996‘Pollution
Prevention Award.

ENVIRONMENT

0, delignification.

Domtar

Marlboro Mill

585 Willamette Road
Bennettsville,

South Caralina 29512

Telephone: 843-479-0200
Fax: B43-479-0608
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ANGALENA
KELLER
Mill Technician

-

ANNA L.
SMITH
Chip Yard
Technician

THE MARLBORO MILL WAS
CONSTRUCTED IN 1989 AND
1990 AND WAS ONE OF THE
FIRST PAPER MILLS DESIGNED
ENTIRELY BY ENGINEERS

USING COMPUTERS.

'ONE OF THE LARGEST

UNCOATED FREESHEET

AMERICA

'MILLS IN NORTH

he Marlboro mill, located along the

Great Pee Dee River in South Caroling, is

astate-of-the-art papermaking facility.
Distinctive qualities, from computer-aided design
to innovative employment and engineering
philosophies, make Marlboro a North American
'eader in quality papermaking.

Every paper reel goes through quality
cantrol tests for grade, brightness, opacity ang
strength. Marlboro uses an extra press to ensure
that sheets have greater uniformity on both sides.
The facility produces paper of archival quality.

Strict environmental controls were planned for

the mill befcre one shovelful of dirt was moved

forconstruction. in fact, Martbaro's environmental
commitment ¢an be seen invirtually every facet of
its operation. Bark residues, spent pulping liquor,
sander dust and rejected chips are burned to
create steam instead of going into a waste stream.

JADE
COWAN
Mill Techrnician
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ANDRE
LEBLANC
Pracess Engineer -
Technical Services

The current Windsor mill;*

which began operations in 1987,

stretches a mile long!

HISTORY MILL

PERFORMANCE

Annual paper production
capacity of 670,000 tops.

Originally built by Angus,
Logan & Co.in 186¢,

Annual pulp production
capacity of 454,000 tonnes
-includes 33,000 tonnes
of mili trade pulp.

Acquired by Dominion
Tar and Chemical
Company in 1961.

The new mill began
operations in 1987 1 pulpline and

2 paper machines.

SERGE
ST-LAURENT
Paper Machine No.7
Tender

PRODUCTS

Uncoated freesheet
papers: Photocopy paper,
MICR {Magnetic Ink
Character Recognition),
Forms Bond and
computer paper,
envelope paper, offset
printing paper, bleached
wet-lap market puip.

ENVIRONMENT

Responsible Care
Program certification,

ACHIEVEMENTS

FSC Chain-of-Custody
certified.

SFl certified.
150 gooa certified.

Xerox On-Time Oelivery.

CONTACT

Domtar

windsor Mill

609 Rang 12
CP.a010
windsor, Quebec
J152Lg

Telephone: 819-845-2771
Fax: 819-845-8308




from left:
LucC TOMMY
BEAUDET POUDRIER
Steam and Winder Operator
Recovery BRUNO
Operator DOSTIE

winder Operator

MARC-ANDRE
LEBLANC
winder Operator
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NATHALIE
BAZIN
Accountant - Analyst

ONE OF THE LARGEST
UNCOATED FREESHEET
MILLS IN NORTH AMERICA

.

he papermaking legacy of the citizens
of this small Canadian community
dates back 150 years. The Windsor,
Quebec integrated mili handles every stage of
manufacturing, from woodland operations to pulp
production, papermaking and converting.

The Windsor facility owns 400,000 acres of
private lands in southern Quebec and Maine, These
properties are all FSC, 150 14001 and SFl certified.
This means that it can offerits customers paper
that meets the most stringent environmental
standards.

When it comes to air and water emissions,
solid waste and hazardous materials, Windsos’s
procedures are developed and implemented in
the most rigorous manner possible. The facility
has ane of the lowest water consumption ratios
per ton of finished praduct in the North American
pulp and paper indusiry,

Time after time, the Windsor mill employees
find new ways of improving on what they do
best: maintaining low production costs and
manufacturing high-quality products through
continuous improvement efforts.
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...and more of the best assets

in North America...

BASED ON PRODUCTION CAPACITY, DOMTAR IS THE LARGEST INTEGRATED MANUFACTURER
OF UNCOATED FREESHEET IN NORTH AMERICA AND THE SECOND LARGEST IN THE WORLD.

IT HAS EXTREMELY EFFICIENT AND COMPETITIVE ASSETS—INCLUDING WORLD-CLASS

MILLS THAT CONTAIN THE MOST MODERN FLEET OF PAPER MACHINES IN OPERATION TODAY.
DOMTAR MILLS ARE SET TO PRODUCE VALUE-ADDED PRODUCTS FOR WHICH FLEXIBILITY

AND SERVICE ARE KEY. THIS MIX ALLOWS DOMTAR TO OFFER A BROAD PRODUCT LINE TO
MEET A VARIETY OF CUSTOMER REQUIREMENTS. DOMTAR MILLS ACROSS THE UNITED STATES
AND CANADA EMPLOY THE LATEST TECHNOLOGY FOR OPTIMUM EFFICIENCY AND CUSTOMER
SERVICE. THEY WORK QUICKLY TO DESIGN AND PRODUCE HIGH QUALITY PAPERS.

Columbus,

MS

w. |

A

HISTORY MILL PRODUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
PERFORMANCE
Original mill opened by Paper complex became Annual paper production | Coated groundwoed SFI certified. Domtar
Weyerhaeuser in 1980. part of Demtar in 2007. capacity of 238,000 tons. papers. 150 12001 certifiable Columbus Mill
PO Box 8093

1pulpline and
1 paper machine.

Annual pulp preduction

capacity of 70,000 tonnes,

Choctaw papers.

4620 Old Macen Road
Columbus, Mississippi
39703

Telephone: 662-329-5660
Fax: 662-329-5686

i Cd
i e
-— z
Dryden z
b

ON
HISTORY MILL PRODUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT

PERFORMANCE
Dryden Power & Timber Acquired by Annual paper production | Uncoated freesheet: 150 5000 certified, Domtar
Co, formed in 1911. Weyerhaeuser in 1998. capacity of 151,000 tons. | Xerographic, Dryden Mill

First paper machine
installed in 1918.
Acquired by

Avenor in 1994,

Became part of
Domtar in 2007.

Annua' pulp
praduction capacity

of 319,000 tonnes -
includes 197,000 tonnes
of mill trade pulp.

1 pulp lineand
1 paper mathine.

opaque, offset.

150 14000 certifiable.

CSA ZBog and Chain of
Cusicdy (PFC Annex 4}
certified.

1 Duke Street
Dryden, Ontario
P8N 3J7

Telephone: 807-223-2323
Fax: 807-223-9317




Espanola,

ON

DOMTAR & ANNUAL REVIEW 2 DURNURARRZAMT SSGesd 7 2007 0 47

HISTORY MILL PRCDUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
PERFORMANCE

Original groundwood Became part of Annual paper production | Over 200 different 150 goo1 certified. Domtar

mill built‘in 19.05 by DomtarInc. in 1998 capacity of 77,000 tons. grad_es of technical and 150 14001 certified. Esparjcla Mill

the Spanish River Puip The hardwood line Annual pulp production spec}a}\t); papers, FSC- FSe Chain-of-Custody 1 Station Road '

and Paper Company. was extensively capacity of 351,000 tonnes certified market pulps, = Espanola, Cntario

as well as northern certified. PSE 1R6
Purchased by George modernized in 1993, - inctudes 114,00c tonnes 5
Weston Ltd, owners of of mill trade pulp. har¢wood pfulp and Telephone: 705-866-2020
northern softwood pulp. R

E.B.£ddy, from the Brown 2pulp lines and Fax: 705-869-4901

Co.of New York in 1969. 2 paper machines.

Johnsonburg,

HISTCORY MILL PRODUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT

PERFORMANCE

Original milt apened Acquired by Anpual paper production | Uncoated freesheet: FSC Chain-of-Custody Domtar

by Castanea in 18g¢. Willamette in 1990. capacity of 374,000 tons, | Xerographic, offset, certified. Johnsonburg Mmill

Acquired by Curtis Acquired by Annual pulp prodection envek'mpe, opaquzs,‘rrade SFI certified. mr[: Cemsr Street
fehing : - Baak, Forms Bond. Johnsanburg,

Publishing in 1923, Weyerhaeuser in 2002, capacity of 231,000 tonnes, 150 14001 certifiable. bennsylvania

Acquired by Became part of 1 pulpline and 2004 AF&PA Forest 15845

Penntechin 1969,

Domtarin 2007.

2 paper machines.

Management Award for
Cooperative Fish Nursery,

Telephone: 814-965-2521
Fax: 814-965-6231

. - A a . ;
Nekoosa, vt
WI
HISTORY MILL PRODUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
PERFORMANCE
Nekoosa Paper Company | Nekogsa-Edwards Annual paper production | Value-added fine paper. FSC Chain-of-Custody Domtar
established in 1883, merged with Great capacity of 167,000 tons, certifiad. Nekoosa Mill

Merged to form
Nekoosa-Edwards Paper
Company in 1908.

First manufacture

of printing and fine
papers in 1930.

Norihern Paper
Company in 1670.

Great Northern Nekoosa
Corporation merged with
Georgia-Pacific in 1990.

Became part of
Domzar inc. in 2001.

Annual pulp production

1 pulpline and
3 paper machines.

capacity of 162,000 tonnes.

Uncoated freesheet:
Carbonless paper,
MICR (Magnetic Ink
Charactar Recognition)
and electronic

data processing
basestock {EDP).

SFI certified.
150 9p02 certified.

150 14001 certified.

30 Point Basse Avenue
Nekoosa, Wisconsin
54457

Telephone: 715-886-7111
Fax 715-B86-7620
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Plymouth,

NC

I

HISTORY MILL PRODUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
FERFORMANCE

original pulp millapened | Started fine paper Annual paper production | Uncoated freesheet: SFI certified, Damtar

by North Carglina Pulp production in 1965. capacity of 489,000 tons. | Xerographic, offset, 150 14001 certifiabte. Plymouth Mill

Company in 1437. cpaques, Trade Book. Highway 149

First paper machine
started in 1947,

Acquired by
Weyerhaeuser in 1557

Became part of
Domtar in 2007.

Annual pulp preduction
capacity of 486,000 tonnes
- includeas 153,000 tonnes
of mill trade pulp.

2pulp linesand
2 paper machines.

ENVIRONMENT

0, delignification.

Plymouth, North Carolina
27962

Telephone; 252-793-8111
Fax: 262-793-8164

Port Huron P
, o
MI P
HISTORY PRODUCTS ENVIRONMENT ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
Qriginal mill builtin 1888. | Purchased by Lightweight high-opaque | Recognized by the £SC Chain-of-Custody Domtar

Paper line expanded o
include glazed tissue
and drug wrapping
paper in 1916,

Three new paper
machines added
between 1956 and 1969.

Purchased by
Pentair inc.in 1983.

No.6 paper maching
rebuilt between
1984 and 1985.

E.B.Eddy Lid.in 1687

Became part of
Domtar Inc. in 1998

printing papers and
lightweight paper,
specialty and packaging
papers, including

foil laminating base

MILL
PERFORMANCE

papers, wax laminating
papers, base papers for
hat-melt film coating,

Annual paper production
capacity of 116,000 tons.

4 paper machines.

grease resistant papers,
and selected surgical
paper specialties.

Governor of Michigan for
pasticipation in pollution
pravention programs.

Awarded the Mational
Pollution Prevention
Round Table's 2000

Most Valuable Pollution
Prevention Award by the
Michipan Pulp & Paper
Environmental Council,

certified.
1S0 goa2 certified.
150 14002 certified.

Largest supplier of
“drape gown paper” used
for the manufacturing
of surgical gowns.

Port Huron Mill

1700 Washington Avenue
£0 Box 5003

Part Huron, Michigan
48060

Teiephone: 810-g82-0191
Fax: 810-082-7124

Rothschild,

WI

HISTORY MILL PRODUCTS ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
PERFORMANCE

Original mill opened Acquired by Annual paper production | Uncoated freesheet: FSC Chain-of-Custedy Domtar

by Marathon Weyerhaeuser in 1973. capacity of 147,000 tons. Opaques, recycled certified. Rothschild Mill

Paper Milis in 1909,

Acquired by Marathon
Carporation in 1944.

Acquired by American
Can Company in 1957.

Became pari of
Domtar in 2007.

Annual pulp production

1pulpline and
1 paper machine.

rapacity of 60,000 tonnes.

content.

SFI certified.

150 14001 certifiable.

200 N. Grand Avenue
Rothschild, wisconsin
54474

Telephone: 715-359-3101
Fax: 715-355-6347
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...as well as great pulp mills

BESIDES PULP PRODUCED IN EXCESS OF INTERNAL REQUIREMENTS AT INTEGRATED

PULP AND PAPER MILLS, DOMTAR OWNS AND OPERATES MARKET PULP MILLS THAT PRODUCE
PAPERGRADE AND SPECIALTY PULP. SOME OF DOMTAR'S PULPS ARE AVAILABLE WITH
FOREST STEWARDSHIP COUNCIL (FSC) CERTIFICATION.

Kamloops,

BC

HISTORY MILL ENVIRONMENT ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
PERFORMANCE
Built by Weyerhaeuser Third turbine-generator Anaual pulp production Reductignin use of FSC Chain-of-Custody Domiar
in 1665, second mill instalted in 2003 capacity of 477,000 tonnes. | bleaching agents certified. Kamlocps Mill
added in 1972. Became part of 2 pulp lines. 1: pulp prc\duu:tianf SFi certified. 2005 Mission Flats Road
; through creation o Kamlgops,

Second largest northern Domiar in 2007, ) CSA Chain-of-Custody o .

; specidlty grades. British Columbia
bleached kraft mill e
. certified, V2C 1A
in North America. ?

150 14001 certified. e

$350 million invested in N Telephone: 250-434-6000
capital improvements PRODUCTS 150 5000 certified. Fax: 2508287585

since 1984; 580 million
since 2000.

Papergrade, specialty.

Woodland,

ME

o

HISTORY MILL PRODUCTS ENVIRONMENT ACHIEVEMENTS CONTACT
PERFORMANCE

St. Croix Paper Company | Annual pulp production Northern hardwood State of Maine FSC Chain-oi-Custody Damtar

established in 1906. capacity of 398,000 tonnes. | market putp, Governor's Award for certified. Woodland mill

Acquired by Georgia-
Pacificin 2963.

Kraft mill built in 1965,

Became part of
Domtar Inc.in 2001,

1 pulg line.

FSC-certified pulp.

Pollution Prevention.

State of Maine DEP
Commissioner's
Award for improving
water quality in the
St. Croix River.

Carporate Environmental
Exceilence Award tor
Pollution Prevention.

SFlcertified.
IS0 goo1 certified.
IS0 14001 certified.

Maine International
Trade Center,

Direct Foreign
Investment Award,

Recipient of the
Maine Forest Products
Council's Outstanding
Manufacturer Award.

144 Main Street
Baileyville, Maine
04694

Telephone: 207-427-3311
Fax 207-427-4102
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Earning custom&yalty starts with doing what

is required to sustain.and-satisfy long-term
relationships. With the creation of the new Domtar
in 2007, two great distribution organizations joined
forces to ensure thatDomtar customers continue to
receive excellentservice throughout North America.

o4

segments they serve, segking/out and providing what they need today and into the future. Through technology

The Domtar Distributio:?;ynd Entergrise Group® have been suppliers of choice across the many customer

\‘ that fully integr?ﬁoycts and logistics, continuous improvermnent that strives to meet ever-changingbroduct
o

‘\(equirementsa/' a

s\olgtions thaﬁmdgreater value for customers, Y.

The Domtar Distribution Groupisa
distributi?)\nnetwork comprised of 30 loca-
tions across the-United States and Canada,
Itincludes four regional‘p_aper distributors
serving commercial printéfslend users/
business printers, a group of professionals
dedicated to publishing solutions, and the
consumer and advertising group, serving
the retail mark\e\t with marquis and private
label products, as weil as a full line of paper
for advertising and comrﬁﬁnication; Every
division at every location is ready to deliver
the finest in quality paper, packaging and
graphic arts products from Domtar mill
partners to the customer’s door.

opSultative sales and service approach, the Domtar go-to-market strategy offers cost-effective

Iy

Enterprise Group's experienced and /

S

knowledgeable sales and customer
service teams, in combination with the .~

highly efficient distribution nety\g_urk,/ /

ensure support fortop_—quality/product /

offerings with excellent service throughout
North America. There are five strategically
located forms plants and more than /

e

50 distribution centers across the U.S. and//
Canada. Enterprise Group works clasely
with equipment manufacturers, designing

* ENTERPRISE GROUP IS INVQLVED
IN THE SALE AND DISTRIBUTION
OF DOMTAR PAPERS, NOTABLY
CONTINUQUS FORMS, CUT SIZE
BUSINESS PAPERS AS WELL AS
DIGITAL PAPERS, CONVERTING
ROLLS AND SPECIALTY PRCDUCTS

paper and forms that run smoothly and
ensure customer satisfaction.
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What better subjects to show off the beauty and henefits

of Cougar paper? Its 98 brightness and excellent ink holdout

reproduce color beautifully, and it’s readily available in a wide
variety of weights and sizes—vet it’s surprisingly affordable
for a premium printing paper.

6

g’

Domtar

poMTaR EarthChoice®
High quakty paper with a conscience

Rainforest
™ Alliance

L] Dombar ¥ phmesm]
2y e rmakia wn mervand
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For more infermation about Domtar, piease visit us at
www.domtar.com

© 2008 Domtar




Domtar

fields one

of the most -
accomplished
teams in the
paperbuyness

et ] lf




The call comes when you
least expect it.® It seems
your team’s general
manager has acquired
several top scorers in the
draft, and they’ll be playing
alongside you in the next
big game. ® How will they
fit into the team? ® Will
they have the same work
ethic... similar values and
goals? ® As it turns out, the

home team 1s thEIeague’s

most favo :f‘o tC

i

- il

- “Domtar employeés
know that in order to mesat
the challenges of today’s
intensely competitive and

-+ ever-shifting marketplace, we .
| have to worktogetherand
* ratchet upour performance
~ says Michel Dagenais. “And to ,}}_.-
~do that, we need to be nimbler |-
and more versatile than

- the competmon
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HOME

Domtar’s bigger and better home team

is currently 13,000-strong, with about
7,500 men and women based in the United
States and approximately 5,500 in Canada.

According to Michel Dagenais, Domtar's
Senior Vice-Prasident of Human
Resources, it’s a team that understands
where it's been and where it’s going. This
is largely because Domtar management
always takes pains to share its strategy

Safety first...
and last

and the kind of stakes involved in winning
and losing. Every employee knows that
the Company’s future largely rests on
their performance. Indeed, so keen is
Domtar on employees’ ability to think

and act fast, that the Company upholds
creativity as one of its core values.

TEAM

While creativity is important to Domtar, occupational health & safety (OH&S) retains
its prominence. If anything, Domtar is making an ethical, safe and hazard-free
workplace its top priority.

Domtar is also widely promoting its Cade of Business Conduct to ensure that
employees know their company supports fair and honest dealings in everything
itdoes and that every employee is adeguately protected against discrimination
ang other forms of abuse in the workplace.

“/f you expect commitment and dedication, then you have to provide an envirenment
that’s as hassle- and risk-free as possible,” explains Michel Dagenais. “People won't
give their best unless they feel safe.. unless they know safety and security always
trump production”

Domtar is, in fact, investing the necessary resources to not just meet all applicable
laws and reguiations, but exceed them. The Company wants to go well beyond those
minimum standards, by putting OH&S at the center of every management decision,

Domtar's leadership has even gone on record with an ambitious short-term goal:
Domtar aims to be ranked among the industry’s three safest companies to work for
by 2009. To achieve such an objective, the Company is integrating its various OH&S
systems, sharing best practices between mills, and commissioning regular audits,
making Domtar an even better place to work.
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One team, one goal

Thanks to Domtar’s bigger and stronger
team, the synergies generated, including
lower costs, higher productivity and greater
efficiencies, are starting to roll in—but

this is just the start. At Domtar, synergy
isn't simply a matter of aligning mills and

products. It's also about aligning people.

Domtar believes that the really big Expectations for Domtar’s future are
synergies happen when everyone feels part | therefore high. Because the one company
of the same team, when HR is embedded that's at the top of the North American

in the planning process..and thatis standings in uncoated freesheet paper
happening on a daily basis, throughout production is setting its sights on aiso
the organization. leading in the quality of its people.

college-
bound

Damtar Scholarships
promate higher education.
All parents want the very best
for their kids, starting with
a college education. That's
why Domtar’s Excellence
in Education Scholarship
Program is such a big hit.

O
The program grants
undergraduate scholarships
each year, based on academic
excellence and future
potential.

-y
A

1

fmrma
1 SUE: -, The quality of a company is the reflection
g?§g£§ orf] tr?e qlua)l’it; of its epmpﬁlloyes?s At Domtar,

you guickly realize this idea is taken to

w&&wg heart. It points ta a focused effort to ensure
‘ Comtar employees truly are the industry’s
@UW@N gold standard.

And, to ensure that each employee reaches his or her full potential,
Domtar values are always front and center,

Accarding to Domtar’s Performance Management Process,

the Company’s values support not just continuous improvement
in the workptace. They aiso support the individual employee’s
performance and career. Domtar's values are:

- Commitment
. . . from left.
- Creativity and innovation
. o GRAHAM PEPPER

- Entrepreneurship and initiative Accountant, Forest
- Judgment and discipiine Products, Head Office
- Leadership (also cn page 53)
« Perseverance and determination MARTINE

. . . . DORNEVAL
» Professionalism and integrity

genefits Administrator,

- Respect for others Head Office







Domtar has built a culture of sustainable g_row‘ghh_.\_/‘v"ifjh"mg A
its ranks bP/ establishing a collective commitment tolacting = =7
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responsib

corporate governance, continuous productimprovementand "

in every part of its operations. Rutes of behaviotoi -

development, and stringent internal policies on occupationat .
health & safety, the environment, forest managementand = -

fiber use and s-ourcing have been implemente
the board and are un ailinglg _ .

policies is derived from the Company’s “sustainability -~ -
manifesto”, the Statement on Sustainable Growth.

Nothing like having a
reliable second opinion!

For years, Domtar has claimed that certifying
its operations 1o the highest internationally-
recognized standards is the best way to assure
its stakeholders that its forests, manufacturing
and distribution facilities are managed ina
responsible and transparent manner. Domtar
has made independent third-party certification
anintegral part of its sustainability strategy.

The fact that it chose this path before nearly
everyone else in the industry speaks not only
to its willingness to break ground but also to
acertain intuitiveness as to where the market
was—and indeed has—headed.

upheld. The essence ofthese 7 .,

g

Rigorous 150 14001 envircnmental
management system (EMS) principles are

in place at all Dorntar pulp and paper mills,
except for Windsor, which adheres to the
Responsible Care® program of Canada’s
Chemical Producers Association. The EMS of
all of our forestlands in Canada are certified
under IS0 14001. '

CERTIFICATION UNDER NOTHING

LESS THAN THE MOST RESPECTED
INTERNATIONAL STANDARDS HAS
LENT CREDIBILITY TO THE COMPANY'S

PROFESSED COMMITMENT TO

ENSURING SUSTAINABLE GROWTH.

Many of Domtar’s pulp and paper mills have
obtained certification to the iniernationally-
recognized IS 9000 series, a strong Quality
Management System {QMS) based on customer
satisfaction and continuous improvement, and
subject to regular third-party audits.

The Company has demonstrated its dedication
to responsible foresiry practices by obtaining
certification for all of its operatiens, under

across .-

-

either the Forest Stewardship Council (FSC),
the Sustainable Forestry [nitiative (SF1)

or the Canadian Standards Association
(CSA). Domtar favors FSC, which is arguably
the foremast forestry certification in the
world, because it is recognized by leading
environmental groups and increasingly
sought after by customers.

Domtar salicits third-party
audits to verify its compli-
ance, good practices and
management systems far
environmental, and health
and safety issues. Certification
under nothing less than the
most respected interng-
tional standards has lent credibility to the
Company’s professed commitment to ensuring
sustainable growth.

Both customers and leading environmental
organizations, such as the Rainforest Alliance
and World wildlife Fund, have applauded
Domtar's efforts and supported its EarthChoicee
line of environmentally and socially
respansible papers.

-t
-

-




, Domtar’s
. Declaration”
of Sustainability

Domtar's vision of whatit meanstobea
responsible company in the 215 century is
outlined in its Statement on Sustainable
Growth. The Staternent reflects its commitment
to its three key stakeholders—shareholders,
customers and employees—answering how
each of these stakeholders stands to benefit
fl‘ﬂl‘t"t its association with Domtar,

+ Domtar employees can count on their
company to do everything it can to keep
them safe and help them grow.

e Domtar customers know they are
dealing with a supplier that understands -
theirneeds and shares their concerns
about the environment.

« Domtar shareholders see how a sustainable
growth approach can help build distinct,
long-lasting competitive advantages that
translate into financial performance.

- Responsibility and accountabitity have
a positive impact on the bottom line.

By clearly defining its position on sustainability,
Domtar is telling the world what it cares

about and what it is doing to make a difference.
Best of all, Domtar has gone from words to

concrete actions.

LOOKING AHEAD
Domtar’s quest for sustainability is

ongoing and always evolving. Domtar

feels that there will always be room

for improvement and new challenges

to face. The good news is that, even

as the Company has grown in size and

reputation, it has never been afraid
to ask the all-important question:
what else must we continuously

do to make things better?

SILSIAlINTATE UMY

FSC Forest Stewardship Council
{FSC)
Responibie Foren Manspsmert fscus.org and fsccanada.org

The Forest Stewardship Council is an international,
independent, not-for-profit organization that

sets giobal standards for responsible forestry.

FSC standards address impaortant economic, social
and environmental concerns in the forest products
industry—and are widely accepted by over 85 leading
environmental groups.

SUSTAINABLE | sustainable Forestry Initiative®
FORESTRY (SFI)
INITIATIVE sfiprogram.org

The SFiis a fully-independent, non-profit forest and
paper certification program that integrates the
perpetual growing and harvesting of trees with the
preservation of wildlife, plants, soil, water and air
quality. (n order to be certified, participants in the

SFI program must undergo a thorough, third-party
review of their operations by an accredited audit firm.

COMABORATION

WWF
(World Wildlife Fund)

© 1080 Pance symbol WWF - World Wicke Fund
For Neturs jeleo known as Workd Wikdike Fund)

© “WAHF™ 1.1 WIWF Plagintared Trademank worldwildlife.org and wwif.ca

WWF—the global conservation organization—works
with partners to find sustainable conservation solutions
that benefit people and nature.

Rainforest Rainforest Alliance
) i (RA)
Alliance rainforest-alliance.org

This respected environmental group works to protect
ecosystems by transforming business and land-use
practices, as well as consumer behavior. Participation in
its programs requires meeting rigorous standards that
conserve natural resources and biodiversity.
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DOMTAR’S OSnTATI MENT
Sustainable Growth

To satisfy Domtar’s long-term objectives, we manage our financial, environmental and social resources in a responsible
and sustainable manner. Furthermore, we respect the viewpoints and concerns of other members of society and
accommaodate their needs as appropriate to our operations. Striving for excellence in corporate governance and ethical
standards, we seek to continuously improve our methods and practices. We will periodically report on our performance.

IN THE FOREST

RESPONSIBLE FOREST MANAGEMENT

8ecause we manufacture lumber, pulp and
paper, access to abundant, affordable and
secure sgurces of fiber is critical to our future.
we share these resources with many other
stakeholders, some of which may hald different
forest values. We strive to work cooperatively

with those who have a stake in the forest and
to conserve the forest for future generatiens
by cantributing to the development of
ecologically meaningful protected areas and
by adopting sustzinable forest management
practices. We are committed to ensuring

that our forest management practices meet
the standards of internationally recognized,
third-party verified forest certification
programs. Where appropriate, we favor
certification according to the standards of
the Forest Stewardship Council {F5C).

RESPONSIBLE FIBER PROCUREMENT

Mot all of the fiber we consume originates
from lands we manage. When pracuring from
suppliers, we will strive to acquire fiber which

originates only from forests that are managed
in a sustainable manner. These lands should
be third-party certified and respect the forest

AT OUR FACILITIES >

Qccupational health and safety is our primary
objective at all of our facilities. We continually
strive {0 ensure safe working conditions, equip-
ment and work sites. The cornerstone of our
approach rests on employee involvement and

values of other stakeholders. We will favor
suppliers who meet the standards of the FSC.

FOSTERING A SAFE WORKPLACE

accountability in identifying, preventing and
eliminating dangerous canditions and risks
of injury or iliness. We believe that close
co-operation among management, employees
and where applicable, union representatives,

is essential to improv‘r/r}g ou/'performance.
we will conduct independent audits to verify
compliance, reduce risk, and continually
improve on established health and safety

management systems.

ENVIRONMENTALLY-SOUND OPERATIONS

We conduct gur activities in a manner that
conserves resources. We strive to continually
reduce the environmental foatprint of our

operations by consuming less, emitting less

We seek to meet and anticipate the ever-
changing needs of our customers. We gather
and analyze information on market trends
and consumption behavior, as well as monitor
possible forms of product substitution or
replacement. This data allows us to establish

and generating less waste per unit of product
output We identify, evaluate and control

potential environmental risks and ensure that
all of our facilities have effective contingency

IN THE MARKETPLACE

specific yearly objectives regarding the
development of our new products and
services. We are also committed to fostering
a marketplace that values products that
meet the standards of leading environmental
groups; we support this commitment

by continually expanding, promoting and

plans. Finally, we subscribe to internationally
recognized environmental management
systems with which independent third parties

verify compliance.

commercializing products such as Domtar
EarthChoice® We ensure the integrity of the
manufacturing and distribution chain from
the forest to the market by certifying not only
our forest and manufacturing operations,
but also our distribution operations.

To consult Domtar's pelicies and learn more about its commitment to sustainable growth go to www.domtar.com.
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hether your passion-is-“environmental preservation”, “sustainable development”

or “corporate social responsibility”, you know there is plenty to be concerned

about when it comes to this fragile planet of ours. Maintaining a fine balance

between the four elements needed to sustain life—air, water, fire and earth—
is the responsibility of every citizen of the world. That includes major corporations like
Domtar. O Over the years, Domtar has done a lot to harmonize its business objectives
with its growing commitment to becoming greener, It has launched North America’s

most comprehensive line of ethical papers, and developed lasting partnerships with
leading environmental organizations. O Domtar understands that an investment in
environmental performance is not a barrier to profitability but rather one of the bﬁilding
blocks of strong financial results. It is simply a matter of balance. O The same can be
said for the four main elements of Domtar’s environmental program, all of which impact

each other—and touch the lives of each and every one of us.
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given. With ongoing
monitoring, all of
Domtar’s pulp and paper
operations 00k to go
beyond strict compliance
requirements and work
hard to reduce their
environmental footprint.

SO, emissions {kg/tonne)

| s
i
10.00 1231 J _ + . .
T hrough careful and continuous monitoring,
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HIGHLIGHT

+ S0, emissions are within prescribed limits at ali cur mills.

JA NOTEWORTHY CASE

&2 . . . . .
MThe Johnsonburg, Pennsylvania facility is subject to stringent regulations

as part of a federal NO, emissions trading program aimed at reducing the

impact of large electricity generators on regional air quality in the US.
Sophisticated combustion controls were installed on its power boilers,

resulting in a reduction in NO, emissions of 40 percent.
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ANOTEWORTHY CASE

The Plymouth, North Carofina mill has
developed a system to recycle non-contact
cooling water into the pracess during the
summer months when water resources
are less abundant. Because pumping
water into the mill requires a lot of

energy, this initiative has helped reduce
both water and energy use at the mill.

HIGHLIGHTS

« Water consumptien has
been stable in recent
years at about 76 m? per
tonne produced.

+ Some of Demtar's
mills, such as Windsor,
Hawesville and
Johnsonburg, are
among the lowest water
users in North America.
However, such good
performance is offset by
some of the alder mills,
where the available
technology makes it
difficult to reduce water
use while not affecting
praduct quality. Curreat
efforts to reduce energy
use and, concurrently,
greenhouse gas
emissions will see this
number decreasein
the coming years.

Specific Water Consumption
(m3/tonne of paper)

8co

250 750 75.3 249

70.0

0z 2003 200§ 2005 12006 2007
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Pulp and paper mills consume massive
amounts of water in their various
processes. This water is generally sourced
from local rivers and streams. This makes
it crucially important that the resource

Is used responsibly and that any effluent
discharged is treated according to the
highest environmental standards.

hile some of Domtar's mills, such as Windsor, Quebec, Hawesville, Kentucky and
Johnsonburg, Pennsylvania are among the lowest water users in North America, efforts

are underway to make all of its mills more efficient. Such initiatives will impact not anly

water consumption levels but also help decrease the amount of energy needed to heat water as

well as decrease chemical consumption.

Water consumption at all of Domtar's facilities has remained at an average of 76 m? per tonne of
paper produced for the last five years.

After water is used to make paper or to cool equipment, it is treated and then discharged into
public waterways. To protect the population and the natural environment, strict environmental
regulations have been implemented at the federal, state and provincial levels for what external
pollutants this water can safely contain. Three of the main components in puip and paper mill
effluent are biological oxygen demand {BOD)}, total suspended solids (TSS) and adserbable organic
hatides (AQX). In 2007, alt of Damtar’s mills recorded 80D, 1SS and AOX levels well below all

allowable limits, often making the water discharged cleaner than the water pumped intg the mill,
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Papermaking is an energy-intensive activity.

The fossil fuels traditionally used in the process,

such as natural gas, oil and coal, are a major
source of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions.
By increasing the efficiency of its processes
and replacing fossil fuels with alternative
energy sources such as spent cooking liquor
from its pulping processes and biomass (bark
and other wood wastes), Domtar has been
able to conserve non-renewable resources
while reducing harmful emissions.

PULP AND PAPER MILLS
USE TWO PRIMARY
ENERGY SOURCES

70 POWER THEIR
OPERATIONS: STEAM
AND ELECTRICITY.

AS OF 2007, NEARLY
70% OF THE ENERGY
REQUIRED BY DOMTAR
MILLS TO GENERATE
STEAM CAME FROM
RENEWABLE SOURCES

SUCH AS BIOMASS AND
THE RECOVERY OF SPENT
CHEMICALS DURING
PULPING. BOTH OF
THESE ENERGY SOURCES
ARE CARBON-NEUTRAL,
WHICH MEANS THAT

THE €0, EMITTED FROM
THEIR COMBUSTION

15 ORGANIC IN ORIGIN,
AND AS SUCH, VIEWED
AS NEUTRAL IN TERMS
OF CLIMATE CHANGE
CONTRIBUTION.

ELECTRICAL POWER

AT SOME OF THE
COMPANY’S MILLS
COMES ALMOST
ENTIRELY FROM
BIOMASS COGENERATION
OR THE PRODUCTION OF
STEAM AND ELECTRICITY
FROM THE SAME
ENERGY SOURCE. OTHER
FACILITIES BENEFIT
FROM RUN-OF-THE-
RIVER HYDROELECTRIC
GENERATION, WHEREBY
THE NATURAL FLOW
AND ELEVATIQN DROP
OF ARIVER ARE USED TO
GENERATE POWER.

reducingits reliance on fossil fuels, which generate CO: when

B yincreasing the efficiency of its manufacturing processes and

they are burned, Domtar has dramatically decreased its
GHG emissions in recent years. Between 2002 and 2007 alone, it
recorded a reduction of 21% in emissions generated and 20% in
GHG intensity. Even more noteworthy is that the Company actually

increased its pulp and paper production during this same period
making the overall reduction in emissions all the more significant.

Domtar is in the process of obtaining third-party verification to
confirm the accuracy of these numbers.

DOMTAR IS
CONTINUOUSLY TRYING
TO REDUCE ITS ENERGY
CONSUMPTION AND 15
CURRENTLY ENHANCING
ARIGOROUS ENERGY
PROGRAM THAT WILL
PROMOTE THE FURTHER
USE OF BIOMASS AS A
FUEL SOURCE AND THE
OPTIMIZATION OF ITS
PROCESSES.

HAWESVILLE
MILL, KY

ANOTEWORTHY CASE

In 2003, the Kingsport, Tennessee mill
concluded the replacement of two coal-fired
boilers with a state-of-the-art bigmass boiler,
significantly reducing its reliance on fassil
fuels for steam generation. By doing so,

GHG emissions from the Kingsport mill were
reduced by a staggering 110,000 tons, or the
equivalent of taking 33,000 cars off the road.

?
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- the earth to thrive,
. truth lies at the
commitment to

©management.

. Way possible.

0F
BALANCERE

Many steps continue to be taken, including FSC
and SFI certification of all Demtar facilities and
the 15014001 environmental accreditation for all
its pulp and paper mills and Canadian forestlands.
In addition, internal policies on fiber use and
sourcing, the forest and the envircnment, are
strictly enforced.

But perhaps one of Domtar’s best known earth
friendly initiatives has been its faunch and
ongoing development of the EarthChoices family
of environmental papers. Its commitment to this
line of papers, which uses recycled and/or FSC-
certified virgin fiber, is not only contributing to
the reduction of Domtar's own environmental
footprint but also helping its customers reduce
theirs. Leading environmental organizations
have endorsed the ling, and continue to support
Domtar inits sustainability pursuits.

Other“land-related” issues, such as landfilling and
soil remediation, are managed under Domtar's

comprehensive environmental program.

Between 2003 and 2007, the Company successfully
reduced the quantity of waste landfilled by close
10 36% by maximizing its use of raw materials,
increasing recycling, reusing chemicals previously
categorized as waste, and putting biosolids to

peneficial use.

In addition, Domtar continues to take remedial
action under its Care and Control Program at
a number of farmer operating sites, mainly in
the wood-preserving sector, due to possible
soil, sediment or groundwater centamination,
The investigation and remediation process is
lengthy and subject to regulatory requirements,
technological limitations and the allocation of
liability among potentialty responsibile parties,
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JUNITIES

AS A MAJOR EMPLOYER IN MANY COMMUNITIES THROUGHOUT NORTH
AMERICA, DOMTAR HELPS TO DRIVE LOCAL ECONOMIES THROUGH THE
SALARIES AND BENEFITS IT PROVIDES TO ITS EMPLOYEES, THROUGH
REGIONAL PROCUREMENT OF GOODS AND SERVICES AND THROUGH
THE TAXES IT PAYS TO LOCAL ADMINISTRATIONS AND INSTITUTIONS.
DOMTAR ALSO PROVIDES ASSISTANCE TO NUMEROUS ORGANIZATIONS
IN THE REGIONS WHERE IT OPERATES.

BENNETTSVILLE,
MARLBORO
COUNTY, SC

Marlbero County Court
House—Bennetisvillg,
South Carolina was
founded in 1819. The
lifestyle and affluence
are captured by
Bennettsville's Victarian
and Greek revivat homes
and public buildings.

Domtar also seeks to make a directand
positive impact by supporting employees
who donate their time and skills to worthy
initiatives. Whether they are helping to
improve the quality of life of their neighbors
by providing Christmas gift baskets to the
needy in Port Huron, Wisconsin, or coaching
local sports teams in Kamloops, British
Columbia, or volunteering in local schoels in
Ashdown, Arkansas, Domtar employees have
astrong presence in the everyday life of the
communities where they work and live.
Domtar considers these dynamic employees
to be its best ambassadors and the living
embodiment of its commitment to community
development. The list of examples of employee
involvement is seemingly endless.

Domtar also provides financial support to
charitable organizations throughout the US.

and Canada like the United Way. Every year,
employees donate tens of thousands of dollars
to this national umbrella organization. For
every dollar they raise, Domtar contributes an
additional 50 cents. Mills also donate directly
out of their own budgets te similar initiatives

in their communities.

Getting Genuinely Involved

Domtar constantly reaches out to local
stakeholders to learn more about their
concerns and foster a better understanding
of their activities,

In Windsor, Quebec, Woodland, Maine,
Ashdown, Arkansas and other communities
where the Company operates, Domtar has
created forums at which local stakeholders
can hold discussions directly with Company
representatives, These Community Advisory
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THE ARTFUL
DODGERS

United Way inaugural
Dodge Ball Tournament,
Espanola, Ontario.

From left taright,

back row; Brent Weeres,
Krista Simpson and
Lynne Gibson; front row:
Dean Ruddy, Murray Ross
and Ted Priddle.

Teams are made up of key individuals from
local gavernments and businesses, These
teams meet regularly to provide feedback on
community activities and receive updates an
what is happening at their respective mills.
in addition, many mills regularly host open
houses, inviting neighboring residents and
schools to tour the mills and learn about how
they operate.

In the area of forest preservation,
Domtar participates in the Canadian Bareal
Leadership Council, and works with numerous
stakeholders who share in the common goal of
preserving the Canadian boreal forest. These
include First Nations, a variety of conservation
groups such as WWF-Canada and other
resource companies committed to sustainable
development.

Ehibkilii
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Domtar
considers
involved
employees

as its best
ambassadors
and the living
embodiment of
its commitment

fo community
development.

Supporting Communities

Part of the Economic Backbone

Domtar's North American footprint affects 37 U.S. states and seven Canadian
provinces. With 15 major facilities—13 paper mills and 2 pulp mills—Domtar plays a
key role in the economic devetopment of the communities where it is established.

The economic impact of such a physical presence can take many forms, The
beneficial effects range from providing stable income to its employees to providing
a tax base for municipal, school, state or provincial and federal administrations.

An averview of the taxes paid last year by Domtar facilities to locaf and county
administrations in Maine, Arkansas, Kentucky, Tennessee, Ortario and British Columbia
shows that they each ranged from $1.8 to $6.2 méllion.

Having a Domtar facility in a geographic area can also sustain a healthy supply
economy. The value of local and state or provincial procurement contracts issued by
Domtar facilities can range in the tens of millions of dollars in any given year.

When all the economic benefits resulting from the presence of a major Domtar
facility are added up (e.g. wages and salaries, local supply contracts, taxes, indirect
benefits such as job creation), the total reaches, and in some cases exceeds,
$250 miillion & year.
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Strengthening Ties with First Nations

Domtar recognizes and respects the legal and

customary rights of indigenous peoples to use

and manage their traditional lands, territories
and resources. This includes

DOMTAR
COOPERATES IN THE
ESTABLISHMENT
OF EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITIES )
FOR MEMBERS OF concerns in order to have
FIRST NATIONS
AND FOSTERS
SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT IN
THESE COMMUNITIES.

business practices while

ensuring that each indigenous
commutnity where the Company
operates is directly involved

in defining its interests and

them incorporated into the
Company’s forest management
plans before any forest
operations are undertaken.

In an effort to follow sound

respecting the traditional rights of First
Mations, Domtar continuously takes steps to
ensure that members of these communities
actively participate in public lands manage-
ment. Domtar also aims to achieve such
involvement through its cngoing commitment
to certifying directly managed lands under
the rigorous guidelines set by the Forest
Stewardship Council {FSC).

Furthermaore, Domtar cooperates, where
possible, in creating employment oppor-
tunities for members of First Nations and
contributes to the sustainability of these
communities.

indeed, Domtar makes it a priority to recruit
employees from local First Nations communi-
ties. When a job opening is available, Company

managers send the infermation to local bands.
Damtar also encourages young Aboriginals
to choose forestry as a career through college
and university bursary programs, some of
which offer students summer employment.
Furthermore, Domtar remains committed
to paving the way for mutually beneficial
susiainable economic development through
the shaping of business strategies and
cultural pastnerships with local First Nation
communities. This was the case in 1997, when
the Waswanipi Cree community of Northern
Quebec entered a partnership with Domtar
to allow this First Nation to operate the
Nabakatuk sawmitl; it was also the case with
the Passamaquoddy Tribe near Domtar’s
Weodland, Maine facility where the Company
transferred the deed to Gordon's Island on
Big Lake to the community in 2001 The island
had special cuitural significance to the mem-
bers of this First Nation and the land is now

preserved for posterity.
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An aenal view of St Croix stidy area

The Passamaquoddy Tribe of Maine has two
reservations neighboring the Woadland mill.
While relations between the two parties have
not aiways been smooth, both have acquired
a better understanding of some key issues
thanks to a series of Damtar-led scientific
and cultural studies. The data gathered
threugh this research, some of which was
conducted in collaboration with residents

of the reservations, was shared among

all stakeholders.

Muskrat Study
The muskrat is a culturally important species
to the Passamaquoddy. Certain parts of the

animal are consumed during ritual ceremonies.

And, to this day, some Natives supplement
their income by trapping the muskrat and
selling the pelts.

The objectives of this study were to locate
muskrat habitats around the St. Croix River,
which runs through Domtar lands, and identify
any issues that might be endangering their
environment. It has been discovered that there
are certain areas that attract more of these
animals, such as large grassy wetlands, and
that current habitats are nat being threatened.

Invasive Aquatic Plant Study

Certain species of plants can encroach on

an area, unbalancing fragile ecosystems and

disrupting wildlife and other plant life. One ¢f

these species that has made an appearance

in the Woodland area is the purple loosestrife.
Nen-native water milfoils are another species

that, although not found in this area yet, is

being watched for. During surveys, some milfoil

was found but they were naturally occurring

non-invasive varieties. However, a number of
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patches of purple lposestrife were located and
promptly eradicated. Additional sightings of the
latter have been recorded, suggesting that the
species may eventually gain a stronger foothold
in the region. But for now, the Woadland team is
still in a position to check its spread.

Cultural Plant Study

Medicire men and wemen still practice
traditional herbal medicine among the
Passamaquaddy. These remedies are used
for physical and spiritual well-being within
the community.

The uses and special properties of these
plants are a closely guarded secret within
the peaple, who maintain an oral rather than
written tradition.

Specialists at Domtar's wWoodland mill had
the privilege of learning about these culturally
significant species and have been conducting
regular surveys of the plants since 1995,
including an overnight field study with a local
medicine man. The purpose was to monitor
habitats and identify new locations where the
Natives can gather specimens.

Scenic and Aesthetic Study

While scientific researchis very impartant,
prometing cultural understanding among the
Woodland team and the tribe is equally so.

The natural landscape has a spiritual component
for the Passamaquoddy. To understand this vision
of the world photographs were taken at sunrise
and sunset (spiritually significant times for the
Native population). A meeting was then arranged
with a panel of tribe members to discuss what was
seen in these photos.

Although this last study was part of a larger
scientific initiative to obtain a ticense for dams
on the St.Craix River system, the opportunity
was taken to build stronger ties with neighbors
through the appreciation of their cultire,

Domtar centinues to support the
building of positive relationships with local
Native communities through these projects
and other initiatives.
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THE ESSENCE OF SOMETHING IS WHAT MAKES IT WHAT IT IS. IT IS THE
CORE THAT NEVER CHANGES, THAT ONLY BECOMES RICHER WITH TIME
AND EXPERIENCE. IT IS THE HEART, THE SOUL, THE SPIRIT.

But can a pulp and paper company truly have a
spirit? It can. This spirit cames to life through
a dedication to people, a commitment to the
environment and an unwavering focus on
delivering value to those who have a stake in
its business. It prevails through expressions
of leadership and perseverance, as well as a
willingness to continuously raise the barin search

of excellence.

By remaining true to its principles and
fundamental values, Domtar has now reached
the pinnacle of the North American papermaking
industry. In 2007, the Company was iransformed
when it combined with Weyerhasuser's fine paper
business. Aculture of efficiency and commitment
emerged to provide the needed edge to become
one of the most cost-competitive papermakers in
North America. Moving forward, Domtar aims to

further sharpen its focus on cosis with aview to
improving its financial performance and returns
to its shareholders.

The elements of success are in place. Domtar
now has the largest production capacity for
uncoated freesheet on the cantinent. 1t has one of
the most extensive distribution networks, capable
of quickly detivering products to customers
wherever and whenever they want them.
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Domtar's strength in production and distribu-
tion is matched by the quality of its products
and services. Its portfolio includes some of
the most well-known and respected brands in
Narth America. An ongoing focus on its core
North American markets speaks to a commitment
to continuously improve its already outstanding

service levels.

The soul

Customers ase Domtar's raison d’8tre. The
Company's products are designed to meet their
needs. But the true force behind Domtar's success
is the men and women working throughout the
Company. Without their everyday commitment
to excellence and determination in the face of
the most daunting challenges, Domtar would
never be able Lo achieve its goals.

This group of consummate professionals is
led by one of the most experienced manage-
ment teams in the business. They have set the
Company on a solid path towards fuiure growth
and consolidation of its leadership.

The heart

with leadership comes responsibility. Domtar
understood this long before it reached its current
position in the market. Domtar has succeeded
in setting itself apart from the competition by
stepping forward to face some of the tough
challenges that have long plagued the industry.
Domtar's angoing journey towards sustainable
growth has not been easy. But the satisfaction
of contributing meaningfully to society and the
planet throughinnovations such asindependent

third-party certification for many of its operations

has been well worth the effort. The recognition
that the Company is now receiving from environ-
mental organizations is proof that it has made
the right choices.

Over the years, Domtar has evolved to become
meore than it was before. Indeed, while it has
grown in stature, the Company has maintained
the view that every customer deserves products
and services that meet its needs. Domtar has
sought to continuously improve its operations. It
has built on its relationships with environmental
and community organizations te gain a better
understanding on how to make adifference. And,
it has ensured the development of its employees
by enlisting them as the architects of the present
and the future of the Company.

Excellence,
leadership,
commitment
and pride in

a job well done.
These are

what make up
the essence

of Domtar.

The essence
of being

number oneg\__
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